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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,

·2· ·August 15, 2023, at 621 Woodland Square Loop Southeast,

·3· ·Lacey, Washington, at 8:30 a.m., before the Washington

·4· ·Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council; Kathleen Drew,

·5· ·Chair; and Adam E. Torem, Administrative Law Judge, the

·6· ·following proceedings were continued, to wit:

·7

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · <<<<<< >>>>>>

·9

10· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Let's go ahead and be

11· ·on the record.

12· · · · This is the Horse Heaven wind farm adjudication.

13· ·We're doing our housekeeping session for Tuesday,

14· ·August 15th, 2023.· It is 8:30 in the morning.

15· · · · Counsel, I can see Mr. Harper there, and I saw

16· ·Ms. Voelckers on the screen earlier.

17· · · · Counsel for the applicant present?

18· · · · How about Mr. --

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Good morning, Judge

20· ·Torem.· You were cutting out a lot in your query to us,

21· ·so just so you know.

22· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· But the applicant is

24· ·here and present.· Thank you.

25· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Hopefully



·1· ·we'll get the audio quality better.· I think I was

·2· ·leaning back to look at the screen there.

·3· · · · Mr. Aramburu, I can see you.· Good morning.

·4· · · · And do we have counsel for the environment?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes, I am here, Your

·6· ·Honor.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Good

·8· ·morning, everyone.

·9· · · · Is the audio any better, Mr. McMahan?

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· I believe it is,

11· ·Judge.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I think

13· ·it's just a directional microphone question and keeping

14· ·straight ahead and looking at you guys as opposed to

15· ·trying to look at the court reporter behind me.

16· · · · All right.· My agenda for this morning is to talk

17· ·about a couple of motions that were outstanding and

18· ·decisions that are coming verbally during this

19· ·housekeeping session and also written, talk about some

20· ·screen sharing and exhibits and maybe allow for a quick

21· ·test of anybody's ability to do that today to take a

22· ·little bit of the burden off Ms. Masengale, and then

23· ·we'll turn to the scheduling question and

24· ·Ms. Perlmutter's health.

25· · · · Does anybody else have agenda items we need to try



·1· ·to cover before 9:00?· And making sure if we don't

·2· ·cover them before 9, we just take up housekeeping again

·3· ·after today's business.

·4· · · · Mr. McMahan, anything else you want to add to the

·5· ·agenda?

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· No, Your Honor.· Thank

·7· ·you.

·8· · · · And, unfortunately, we have not checked in with

·9· ·Ms. Perlmutter today yet.

10· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· It's early.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· It's early.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

13· ·Mr. Harper, from the County's perspective?

14· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Well, Your Honor, I

15· ·think you probably identified this already in your

16· ·comments, but if we could just do as a housekeeping

17· ·matter kind of a confirmation of which exhibits have

18· ·been requested for admission and admitted, that'd be

19· ·helpful.

20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I think I

21· ·have a pretty good list of that.· And I think it's good

22· ·practice, Mr. Harper, to do that on a running basis, so

23· ·we will do so.

24· · · · Ms. Reyneveld, anything else to add to the agenda?

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Just briefly.· The



·1· ·parties did want for me to clarify who had been

·2· ·involved in those kind of initial settlement

·3· ·discussions in the spring for the record, so I was

·4· ·going to provide some clarification on that.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· We'll come to

·6· ·that.

·7· · · · Ms. Voelckers, anything that the Yakama Nation

·8· ·wants added today?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Good morning.· Thank

10· ·you, Your Honor.· Yes, we have reached out to

11· ·Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Neutzmann, who were scheduled to

12· ·be sworn in tomorrow and were -- they have made

13· ·themselves available the second half of this morning to

14· ·do that today since they are now the only ones, I

15· ·believe, on the schedule for tomorrow, and no party has

16· ·identified them for cross-examination.

17· · · · So we would like to propose that they be called

18· ·today rather than doing all this tomorrow just for

19· ·their swearing in.

20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I'm making a note of

21· ·that.· Thank you.

22· · · · And, Mr. Aramburu, anything else for the

23· ·housekeeping part of our discussion?

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· No.· I think it might

25· ·be a good idea, if it's possible each day, for -- that



·1· ·we get a running list of the exhibits so that we know

·2· ·what the official version is that's being kept.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

·4· ·I know that Ms. Masengale is keeping a master exhibit

·5· ·list.· And there's no reason that I don't think we

·6· ·could share that or at least a version of that with all

·7· ·the parties.· I'll check with her to make sure there's

·8· ·not any EFSEC internal information on the version that

·9· ·we're keeping.· But from what I've seen, it should be

10· ·an easy request, Mr. Aramburu.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Okay.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Let me turn to

13· ·the first item on my list.

14· · · · Ms. Voelckers, you had supplied me, about a week

15· ·and a half, maybe two weeks ago, with your proposed

16· ·order on the motions to supplement the record with the

17· ·three Fish and Wildlife discovery depositions and also

18· ·Mr. Aramburu's motion separately to admit the Dave

19· ·Kobus deposition.

20· · · · There were no objections to that by the parties

21· ·that I was made aware of, and I think your draft order

22· ·referenced that.· And I think we talked about that at

23· ·Prehearing Conference No. 4.· So I wrote up or edited

24· ·the version you sent me, Ms. Voelckers.· It was a great

25· ·start.· That should be coming out in writing sometime



·1· ·this morning.· Ms. Owens is working on that as we

·2· ·speak.

·3· · · · On the motion to compel -- I'll move to the next

·4· ·item on my list -- I wanted to give you essentially an

·5· ·oral ruling on that rather than spend the time writing.

·6· ·And if you're going to take notes, this is a good time

·7· ·to start on this, the motion to compel filed by

·8· ·Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.

·9· · · · My notes indicate that on July 28th, Mr. Aramburu

10· ·filed the motion to compel certain documents to be

11· ·produced by the applicant.· The motion was based on an

12· ·impasse that was reached during discovery.· And in

13· ·quick summary, the documents and the motions he's

14· ·trying to compel production of are meteorological data;

15· ·information about the applicant trying to do their

16· ·interconnections with BPA, the Bonneville Power

17· ·Association, and -- or Administration; and the

18· ·estimated production of the various turbines, and

19· ·essentially was questioning some of the commercial

20· ·viability aspects of the proposed project.· And it may

21· ·have been seeking proprietary data, some indication of

22· ·that being discussed during testimony prefiled by a

23· ·Witness Poulos, P-o-u-l-o-s.

24· · · · That was on a Friday afternoon.· And the following

25· ·week, on Tuesday, August 1st, the applicant filed its



·1· ·opposition.· And the applicant indicated there were

·2· ·four requests for production that they opposed.· And

·3· ·they were:· No. 1, based on the July 28th order that

·4· ·took BPA interconnection topics essentially off the

·5· ·table for this adjudication.

·6· · · · They also, under RFP No. 2, cited to the Whistling

·7· ·Ridge case and the same order that I just referenced

·8· ·that I issued on July 28th.· That particular RFP was

·9· ·looking for wind resource potential, and the applicant

10· ·contended that I had made that not a topic for the

11· ·adjudication in the previous order.

12· · · · And looking at the Whistling Ridge previous

13· ·prehearing conference order that was issued in that

14· ·matter, making these kind of inquiries essentially

15· ·not -- it's a business decision, and it'd be based on

16· ·proprietary information.

17· · · · Request for Production No. 3 was opposed because

18· ·it went into energy production of the turbines, and the

19· ·applicant asserted again proprietary information there.

20· · · · And, finally, for the Request for Production

21· ·No. 5, the applicant said that looking for a cost per

22· ·kilowatt hour on what the savings or cost to the

23· ·consumer might be was another commercial viability

24· ·issue and not within the realm of EFSEC's mission or

25· ·jurisdiction.



·1· · · · I looked at the Residents Opposed to Kittitas

·2· ·County and EFSEC matter that came out from the supreme

·3· ·court, otherwise known as the ROKT case, R-O-K-T, and

·4· ·it ruled according to 80.50.040, Sub 2, that under that

·5· ·statute, the economic viability of a proposed project

·6· ·was not relevant.· And the quote that I found

·7· ·persuasive there in favor of the applicant's arguments

·8· ·was as follows:

·9· · · · "As economic analysis does not relate to

10· ·environmental or ecological concerns, we" -- being the

11· ·supreme court -- "believe that EFSEC was within its

12· ·authority to refuse to review the economical viability

13· ·of the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project."

14· · · · In the Whistling Ridge case, Administrative Law

15· ·Judge Bob Wallis, on behalf of the Council, took the

16· ·same approach.· His Prehearing Order No. 11, which is

17· ·also labeled as Council Order No. 855, took a fairly

18· ·careful and conservative approach to discovery,

19· ·particularly of confidential and sensitive information.

20· · · · And in the Whistling Ridge case, that order

21· ·followed the Kittitas Valley precedent from the supreme

22· ·court and denied discovery based on the relevance of

23· ·that information to the adjudication and the

24· ·sensitivity of the proprietary data and information.

25· · · · So my ruling denying the motion is that I won't



·1· ·break with the precedent established by the ROKT court

·2· ·or the ruling more recently in the Whistling Ridge

·3· ·matter.

·4· · · · My prehearing orders in this case have already

·5· ·indicated that certain economic viability information

·6· ·is not germane or helpful to Council members or their

·7· ·work to develop a recommendation to the governor.· The

·8· ·discovery of BPA interconnection issues, wind resource

·9· ·potential data, and energy production and cost or rate

10· ·analysis data is not authorized in this matter.· So,

11· ·therefore, Mr. Aramburu, the TCC motion to compel those

12· ·documents is denied.

13· · · · I'm going to see if the court reporter can get me

14· ·a short little extract, a noncertified version of the

15· ·transcript of what I just read to you.· If I do receive

16· ·that from the court reporter, I'll forward it on to the

17· ·parties or ask Ms. Masengale to post it as a summary of

18· ·the ruling that I just gave you on those matters.

19· · · · On that note, as far as posting transcripts, I

20· ·wanted to let you know that Andrea Grantham has already

21· ·taken the hard work of taking yesterday's video of the

22· ·hearing, many hours that it was, getting it

23· ·appropriately edited and ready for prime time, and it's

24· ·already up and linked with the YouTube video from

25· ·yesterday's proceeding.· So we'll be asking any Council



·1· ·members that might have missed anything to already go

·2· ·back and sort out and watch the portion of the video

·3· ·that they missed.

·4· · · · All right.· It's now 8:41.· I wanted to ask

·5· ·parties that might have cross-examination exhibits for

·6· ·today if they wanted to test sharing one or more of

·7· ·those at this time.

·8· · · · My look at the schedule says that when we get to

·9· ·Ms. Cooke's testimony that, Mr. McMahan, Scout Clean

10· ·Energy may be doing at least a half an hour of

11· ·cross-exam.· Did you intend to use any exhibits?

12· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· We do not, Your Honor.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

14· · · · Mr. Aramburu, you had some other examination of

15· ·this witness today as well.· Do you have any exhibits

16· ·you're planning to share?

17· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· No.

18· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· And for

19· ·the Yakama Nation, Ms. Voelckers, any exhibits?

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· No exhibits today,

21· ·Your Honor.

22· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· That's going to

23· ·make Ms. Masengale's job that much easier this morning.

24· · · · If that changes for some reason or any of the

25· ·other parties decide they have questions, we'll go from



·1· ·there.

·2· · · · If anybody wants to test screens later today after

·3· ·the adjudication portion of the day is done, let me

·4· ·know, and we'll stick around for some further testing.

·5· · · · All right.· Let me turn to the last item that I

·6· ·had, and then we'll pick up the parties' items.

·7· · · · Mr. McMahan, on Ms. Perlmutter's health, I hope

·8· ·it's going well.· You'll give us an update as we do.

·9· · · · What other proposals did you and Ms. Stavitsky

10· ·perhaps work out with the other parties for

11· ·rescheduling the Jansen, Rahmig, and perhaps the McIvor

12· ·examinations?

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Hi, Your Honor.

14· ·I'll take that one.

15· · · · So we checked in with our Scout witness Morgan

16· ·Shook, who is currently scheduled to testify on next

17· ·Tuesday, the 22nd.· And he is available for questioning

18· ·tomorrow.· So, again, we're trying to find ways to sort

19· ·of front-load this week to fill the time that

20· ·Mr. Rahmig and Mr. Jansen were -- and Mr. McIvor were

21· ·going to take.· So if that works for everyone else, he

22· ·could be slotted into tomorrow's morning session.

23· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I'm just

24· ·looking for where Mr. Shook had originally been on the

25· ·schedule.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Yeah.· So he was --

·2· ·his testimony was set to begin Tuesday, August 22nd, at

·3· ·11:40 a.m. and span past lunch to 2:30.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

·5· ·I've got that now.· I skipped right past him.· And if

·6· ·my eyes are crossing this early in the morning, that's

·7· ·not a good sign.

·8· · · · Ms. Stavitsky, I wanted to let you know there's a

·9· ·little bit of interference when you're speaking.  I

10· ·don't know if it's, again, a microphone issue that I

11· ·was having, but it will be easier for the court

12· ·reporter if both of us keep it slow and deliberate

13· ·here.

14· · · · Do any of the parties have a concern if Mr. Shook

15· ·moves the testimony from Tuesday, August 22nd?· Looks

16· ·like there's at least an hour and a half to two hours

17· ·scheduled for his testimony if we move that to tomorrow

18· ·on Wednesday, August 16th.

19· · · · Mr. Harper, any concern with that?

20· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No concern.

21· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers, any

22· ·concern?

23· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor, I would

24· ·just like to flag a general concern if we're going to

25· ·keep shifting around witnesses.· This is being proposed



·1· ·to us in real time.· So we were not approached by the

·2· ·applicant about these changes since yesterday's

·3· ·hearing.

·4· · · · And so I don't want to speak for the other parties

·5· ·that have expressed a desire to cross-examine

·6· ·Mr. Shook, because we will not be, but we are concerned

·7· ·about continuing shifting of schedules.

·8· · · · So, I mean, I just have a general concern that --

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Noted.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· -- (indiscernible)

11· ·to respond.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Noted.· But I'm

13· ·guessing because you're not going to have any

14· ·cross-examination questions, we're going to shift

15· ·witnesses.· Just make it a continuing objection,

16· ·Ms. Voelckers.· I sympathize, but I got to do what I

17· ·got to do.· And it was the parties that asked me to

18· ·give up, I'll remind you, two days of hearing time.

19· · · · I worried about this.· We gave them up, and they

20· ·were on the -- on the front end, not on the back end.

21· ·So I can't add time back in.· Work with me on this,

22· ·please.

23· · · · Ms. Reyneveld, any concerns?

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I have no concerns,

25· ·Your Honor.· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, you were

·2· ·the other one with the more extensive cross-examination

·3· ·for next week on Tuesday.

·4· · · · Can you have it ready to go tomorrow?· I know

·5· ·we're going to have additional time today, and I know

·6· ·that other parties had seemed to think that the

·7· ·applicant could magically take over Ms. Perlmutter's

·8· ·duties by tomorrow.

·9· · · · Can you accelerate what you had planned for next

10· ·Tuesday, please?

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· We'll work with the

12· ·parties and with the witness, and we'll be ready to go

13· ·for Mr. Shook tomorrow.

14· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Consider

15· ·it done.

16· · · · Ms. Stavitsky, do you have a time suggested for

17· ·tomorrow?

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Your Honor, I would

19· ·propose that we can slot Mr. Shook in right where we

20· ·were supposed to take up with Mr. Rahmig tomorrow, so

21· ·that would be at 9 a.m.

22· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· And that may

23· ·carry us to about 11 a.m.· And that would be a good use

24· ·of the time we had scheduled up to 11:30.· And we'll

25· ·have already moved up the Ganuelas and Nuetzmann



·1· ·swearing in.

·2· · · · If there's anything else we can use up until for

·3· ·another hour tomorrow, you'll let me know.· But, again,

·4· ·work that out with the parties that have the

·5· ·cross-examination prescheduled.· And, again, I'll note

·6· ·the Yakama Nation's continuing concern for the

·7· ·shuffling that we're doing.· It's difficult, and I

·8· ·appreciate if all the parties would just work with each

·9· ·other and essentially stipulate we're going to try to

10· ·get this done in the eight days we have.· It was pretty

11· ·efficient yesterday.· I do appreciate that.· But we're

12· ·working in real time, as you said, and trying to keep

13· ·the information flowing.

14· · · · All right.· That's taking care of that.

15· · · · Was the applicant aware of any other scheduling

16· ·issues impacted by Ms. Perlmutter's ongoing health

17· ·concern?

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· No, Your Honor.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And --

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor.

21· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Hold on one second.

22· · · · Ms. Reyneveld, as to Mr. McIvor, have you let him

23· ·know what's going on there?

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I have.· And my

25· ·understanding is Mr. McIvor is flexible.· And so if we



·1· ·needed to slate him into Tuesday or Wednesday, that

·2· ·would also be a possibility.· But I would have to

·3· ·confirm.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Keep working

·5· ·with the other parties.· And we'll see how that one

·6· ·comes out.

·7· · · · Ms. Voelckers, you had something else?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your

·9· ·Honor.· I just wanted to finish my statement earlier,

10· ·which would be a request that we do determine who is

11· ·going to be going in that time slot on Tuesday as soon

12· ·as possible rather than waiting till next week.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And we will have

14· ·another housekeeping opportunity either this afternoon

15· ·after our proceeding.· That may not be particularly

16· ·informative, but definitely tomorrow morning we will

17· ·get an update.

18· · · · All right.· Let's move on to your documents.

19· · · · Ms. Masengale, do you happen to be on the line

20· ·already?

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· Yes, Judge.· This is

22· ·Lisa Masengale.

23· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Do you have that

24· ·master exhibit list that you've been keeping up for me

25· ·and the rest of staff and the counsel?



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· I do.· And I sent it

·2· ·to the party e-mail list a few minutes ago.· It's dated

·3· ·with today's date, but it was last updated a little

·4· ·after 5 p.m. last night.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And would you tell the

·6· ·parties, please, how you're annotating the list as we

·7· ·go to indicate what's admitted, rejected, or

·8· ·particularly on the order yesterday, how Mr. Aramburu's

·9· ·citizen and community member testimony was

10· ·recharacterized?

11· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· Absolutely.

12· · · · So there's three columns a little to the -- to the

13· ·right of the middle.· It'll make more sense if you have

14· ·it in front of you.· But basically those columns are

15· ·added to the template that the parties are providing to

16· ·me, so it has some additional data in there.

17· · · · And there's three columns basically indicating if

18· ·something was admitted, whether it was rejected or --

19· ·or stricken or if it has been withdrawn.

20· · · · And so as a determination is made on the exhibits,

21· ·I am trying to update that in real time.· And the notes

22· ·column is mostly for my reference, but parties may find

23· ·that helpful as well, indicating when something was

24· ·admitted or when something was stricken, or some of

25· ·them are notes for me about why it was a revised



·1· ·exhibit.

·2· · · · So, again, that last column might make more sense

·3· ·to me than to the parties, but I'm providing you with

·4· ·the exact list that I am working off of right now.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thanks,

·6· ·Ms. Masengale.· And if the parties have questions about

·7· ·that, I hope they'll e-mail and copy the other parties

·8· ·so that everybody can benefit from any information that

·9· ·you didn't just convey if it's not self-evident.

10· · · · So hopefully, parties, that's going to work.· And

11· ·I know Ms. Masengale, as she said, she's doing that in

12· ·real time.· If she has time at the end of each day,

13· ·I'll ask that she send it out so you have it sooner

14· ·rather than the morning of, and for your own

15· ·housekeeping purposes, can keep tracking on what

16· ·exhibit were there.

17· · · · Ms. Masengale, we had some cross-exam exhibits.

18· ·Are you adding those and indicating the ones that were

19· ·offered and ruled on?

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· That is correct.· As

21· ·I receive e-mails with cross exhibits and the updated

22· ·exhibit list from parties with those cross exhibits,

23· ·I'm adding those in.· And then as the parties move to

24· ·admit those, those are being indicated in there as

25· ·well.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And you and I spoke

·2· ·yesterday just about the timing and, again, this

·3· ·in-real-time item.· Can you give the parties kind of a

·4· ·best practice, at least notional best practice for them

·5· ·to aspire to, to make -- help you help them?

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· Absolutely.· I know

·7· ·the -- the needs and the best practice for -- for the

·8· ·parties and their legal counsel may be different than

·9· ·for me, the records officer.· But as the records

10· ·person, ideally, if I could get things at least by the

11· ·day before.· In a perfect world, that way I have time

12· ·to appropriately add them to the main exhibit list and

13· ·have them ready, especially if I need to help parties

14· ·share their exhibits.

15· · · · That way it's just a little bit tough.· I can't

16· ·process e-mails if I'm sharing my screen.· So just the

17· ·logistics of processing things that might arrive during

18· ·the hearings is a little complicated if things are also

19· ·arriving during the hearing as well that might need to

20· ·be referenced or shown on screen immediately.

21· · · · So, if possible, from my perspective, it's great

22· ·if you can get them to me at least the night before,

23· ·but I understand for legal reasons you might not want

24· ·to do that.· But from my perspective, it'd be super

25· ·helpful.· So thank you.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And I want to

·2· ·compliment Ms. Masengale, much as Mr. Harper did

·3· ·yesterday, for really, really good work that she's

·4· ·doing to help all of us keep this massive information

·5· ·load going forward.· It services the Council well.

·6· ·And, Mr. Harper, no, you can't hire her away from

·7· ·EFSEC.

·8· · · · All right.· The Ganuelas and Nuetzmann testimony

·9· ·being adopted today, anybody have objections to that?

10· ·I'm seeing some head nods "no."· No objections.

11· · · · So, Ms. Voelckers, what time would you think we

12· ·can take and adopt their testimony today?

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your

14· ·Honor.· I think that we can stick to the schedule in

15· ·terms of Ms. Cooke's testimony and then have them adopt

16· ·it after she's done.· We would just ask for a brief

17· ·break.· But they -- they should be available starting a

18· ·little bit after 10.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· That sounds

20· ·good.

21· · · · We'll get a chance to break, then call them and

22· ·have them available.

23· · · · And, Ms. Reyneveld, you had the last question

24· ·about the status of who was involved in settlement

25· ·items.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes.· Per the

·2· ·parties' request, I just wanted to provide some

·3· ·clarification for the record pertaining to the

·4· ·settlement discussions between applicant and counsel

·5· ·for the environment in the spring.

·6· · · · Upon review of my correspondence and meeting

·7· ·invitations, I wanted to clarify for the record that

·8· ·Yakama Nation was invited into and participated in a

·9· ·meeting to discuss the proposal and provided a copy of

10· ·the settlement proposal, but TCC and Benton County were

11· ·not invited to these discussions.· It was certainly my

12· ·intent to involve them had the settlement discussions

13· ·progressed or continued.· And Mr. McMahan, I believe,

14· ·has now provided all parties with the settlement

15· ·proposal.· Is that correct?

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· That is correct,

17· ·Ms. Reyneveld.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· That was my update.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Do parties have any

20· ·other questions for the record about the status and who

21· ·participated in those settlement items?

22· · · · All right.· Seeing none.

23· · · · We've managed to push through an hour of material,

24· ·I think, in 25 minutes.· Thank you for letting me push

25· ·hard on those.



·1· · · · Let's take a break until 9:00.· We'll go on the

·2· ·record then, and we'll get started with Ms. Cooke's

·3· ·adoption of her testimony and cross-exam.

·4· · · · Thank you.· We'll be back on here in about five

·5· ·minutes.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Pause in proceedings from

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 8:55 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.)

·8

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Good morning,

10· ·everyone.· This is Day 2 of our adjudicative hearing in

11· ·the Horse Heaven wind power project.

12· · · · I'm going ask our staff today to just take a poll

13· ·of who's here from the Council.· I know we have one

14· ·that's running late and will be listening in to the

15· ·recording at a later time here.

16· · · · And I see our witness is here already.· Ms. Cooke,

17· ·good morning.· We'll get to you very shortly.

18· · · · If the staff could call the roll.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHILEY:· When I proceed through

20· ·the roll call, please be sure to state your name for

21· ·the record as well as your status as present.· Thank

22· ·you.

23· · · · EFSEC Chair.

24· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:· Kathleen Drew,

25· ·present.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHILEY:· Department of Commerce.

·2· · · · Department of Ecology.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Eli Levitt,

·4· ·present.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHILEY:· Department of Fish and

·6· ·Wildlife.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:· Mike

·8· ·Livingston, present.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHILEY:· Department of Natural

10· ·Resources.

11· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:· Lenny Young,

12· ·present.

13· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHILEY:· Utilities and

14· ·Transportation Commission.

15· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER BREWSTER:· Stacey

16· ·Brewster, present.

17· · · · · · · · · · · MS. SHILEY:· For the Horse Heaven

18· ·project:· Department of Agriculture.

19· · · · And Benton County.

20· · · · All right.· Judge Torem, that's who we have.

21· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· So it

22· ·looks to me that Mr. Brost will have to review some of

23· ·the testimony at a later date, and I think it's Kate

24· ·Kelly for Commerce.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Judge Torem, this is



·1· ·Andrea Grantham.· Really quick:· For Department of

·2· ·Commerce, it is Elizabeth Osborne now.· She is our new

·3· ·Department of Commerce Council member.· She did inform

·4· ·us that she will be running a bit late this morning.

·5· · · · Also, I do see Ed Brost's phone number online.· It

·6· ·is just muted.· So he is here.· I just -- Mr. Brost, if

·7· ·you would like to try to unmute, you can do "#6" or

·8· ·"*6" and see if you can confirm that you are present.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· We'll see

10· ·if Mr. Brost, at least if he's called in, we'll figure

11· ·out with him.· Maybe Ms. Grantham can send another

12· ·e-mail and sort out any confirmation.

13· · · · Let's go over the parties and make sure

14· ·everybody's present.

15· · · · For the applicant today.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Your Honor, applicant

17· ·is present.· Tim McMahan -- excuse me -- with --

18· ·with -- excuse me -- Emily Schimelpfenig and Ariel

19· ·Stavitsky.

20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you,

21· ·Mr. McMahan.

22· · · · For Benton County.

23· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Good morning, Your

24· ·Honor.· Ken Harper and Z. Foster for Benton County.

25· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Counsel for the



·1· ·environment.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Good morning, Your

·3· ·Honor.· Sarah Reyneveld for counsel for the

·4· ·environment.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· For the Yakama Nation.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Good morning, Your

·7· ·Honor, Shona Voelckers, Ethan Jones, and Jessica

·8· ·Houston for the Yakama Nation.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And for Tri-Cities

10· ·C.A.R.E.S.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Richard Aramburu for

12· ·Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.· Thank you, Your Honor.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Council

14· ·members, today's agenda, if you looked at the daily

15· ·schedule, I've already had a housekeeping meeting with

16· ·the parties and gone over some of the schedule

17· ·modifications that are necessary by moving the Jansen

18· ·and Rahmig testimonies to a later date, as well as

19· ·tomorrow's McIvor testimony that's scheduled at 10:30.

20· · · · Just as I think you heard yesterday, we have some

21· ·questions of one of the attorney's health and

22· ·participating in cross and redirect of those witnesses.

23· ·Today we do have Michelle Cooke.· She's scheduled here

24· ·at 9:00 for about an hour and a half to two hours of

25· ·examination.· I hope you've read her testimony, which I



·1· ·believe is Exhibit 2003.

·2· · · · Mr. Harper, is that correct?

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· That's correct, Your

·4· ·Honor.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· The parties have done

·6· ·some shuffling, Council members, to see if we can adopt

·7· ·certain testimony from the Yakama Nation's witnesses

·8· ·tomorrow that were originally scheduled at 11:30 on

·9· ·Wednesday, August 16th.· Those would be for Leon

10· ·Ganuelas and Mark Nuetzmann.

11· · · · Today when we take Mr. Ganuelas's adoption of his

12· ·testimony, much of it is subject to confidentiality

13· ·provisions, so my proposal to staff was that we attempt

14· ·to see, on kind of a low-threat environment

15· ·opportunity, how the procedures we've developed to move

16· ·us all into a breakout room for a closed-record session

17· ·might work.

18· · · · So today when we're done with Ms. Cooke's

19· ·testimony and we get Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Nuetzmann

20· ·together, I think what I'll do is take Mr. Nuetzmann,

21· ·have him adopt his testimony, and let him go, and then

22· ·Mr. Ganuelas, we'll all see how it works for us to go

23· ·into closed-record session to adopt his testimony, work

24· ·out any glitches on that today when we have a little

25· ·extra time.· That way when we take a number of other



·1· ·confidential matters in a closed-record session next

·2· ·week it looks like, we'll have a better idea how that

·3· ·all works and be able to be that much more efficient.

·4· · · · I think the only other update is the exhibit

·5· ·running list that Lisa Masengale is updating in real

·6· ·time has now been shared with the parties, so they'll

·7· ·also be tracking, Council members, what we made sure

·8· ·you understood yesterday afternoon for your purposes of

·9· ·keeping score.

10· · · · I think those are all the things that I covered

11· ·with the attorneys during housekeeping that I wanted

12· ·you to know about.

13· · · · You'll also have seen that Ms. Grantham sent an

14· ·e-mail this morning to the service list linking to

15· ·yesterday's video of the entire hearing.· So those

16· ·members that missed anything or think they need to

17· ·review anything on the video side can get it there.

18· · · · Transcripts may take a little longer to hit the

19· ·website, particularly because we're using the same

20· ·court reporter for the bulk of this adjudicative

21· ·hearing.· So in mercy to the court reporter, we're not

22· ·asking him to continue to work that many more hours

23· ·after what we do each day.

24· · · · All right.· Anything else from the parties by just

25· ·a raising of your hand electronically before I swear in



·1· ·Ms. Cooke?

·2· · · · All right.· I'm not seeing any.

·3· · · · I have one, looks like open microphone on a "509"

·4· ·number.· We'll see if staff -- it starts with a "53,"

·5· ·something.· If you can mute yourself, that'd be great.

·6· ·Otherwise I'll have --

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Judge.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- do that.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Okay.· Yeah, this is

10· ·Andrea.· That was Ed Brost's number.· Just letting you

11· ·know.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· I know you had

13· ·manually maybe unmuted that.· But I haven't heard

14· ·anything from Mr. Brost yet.· And hopefully if he has a

15· ·question for Ms. Cooke, we can unmute him at that time.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. GRANTHAM:· Sounds good.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Witness Michelle Cooke

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · appearing remotely.)

19

20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Not seeing

21· ·any other delays.· Let me -- Ms. Cooke, I'm Judge

22· ·Torem.· Good morning.· I've got your --

23· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Good morning, Your

24· ·Honor.

25· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I've got your prefiled



·1· ·testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, in front of me.· And our

·2· ·process is going to be that I swear you in, ask you to

·3· ·adopt that testimony.· Let us know if there's any

·4· ·changes, modifications.· And then I'll turn you over

·5· ·for cross-examination, unless Mr. Harper, I think your

·6· ·sponsoring witness, has anything else.· So I'll ask

·7· ·him, and then we'll go from there.

·8· · · · So if you'll raise your --

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No, Your Honor.· That's

10· ·fine.

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- right hand.

12· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· I'm sorry.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Ms. Cooke,

14· ·if you'll raise your right hand.

15

16· ·MICHELLE COOKE,· · · · · · ·appearing remotely, was duly

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·sworn by the Administrative

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Law Judge as follows:

19

20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Do you solemnly swear

21· ·or affirm that all the testimony contained in your

22· ·prefiled testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, and the rest of

23· ·your testimony provided today will be the truth, the

24· ·whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

25· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I do.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Now that

·2· ·you've adopted your testimony, that exhibit can be

·3· ·marked admitted.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Exhibit No. 2003_T

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · admitted.)

·6

·7· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Did you have any

·8· ·modifications or updates you wanted to share before

·9· ·cross-exam?

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I do not.

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Then I'm

12· ·going to look at my schedule and see who has questions

13· ·first.

14· · · · I believe Mr. McMahan from Scout Clean Energy has

15· ·questions for you, then Mr. Aramburu from Tri-Cities

16· ·C.A.R.E.S., and then Ms. Voelckers from the Yakama

17· ·Nation.· After that, I'll see if anybody else from

18· ·Council members have questions as well as other parties

19· ·that didn't specifically list anything.· And depending

20· ·on what's asked, I may have some questions for you as

21· ·well.

22· · · · Mr. McMahan, we'll mute here in Lacey, and we'll

23· ·turn it over to you.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Thank you, Your Honor.

25· ·////



·1· · · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

·2· · ·BY MR. McMAHAN:

·3· Q· Good morning, Ms. Cooke.· I'm Tim McMahan.· I'm lead

·4· · ·counsel representing Scout Clean Energy in these

·5· · ·proceedings.· Thank you for being here today.

·6· A· Good morning.

·7· Q· Just to --

·8· A· And thank you.

·9· Q· Yes.· Thank you.

10· · · · · And I just was -- I just violated what I was just

11· · ·about to say, which is yesterday Mr. Wendt and I tended

12· · ·to talk over each other a little too often.· I'm sure I

13· · ·have 50 percent of that responsibility.· So if I do

14· · ·that -- I will try not to -- and I think you and I can

15· · ·perhaps develop a vibe where that doesn't happen, so I

16· · ·promise to do my part there.· And, yeah, I think that

17· · ·was kind of the main thing I just wanted to introduce.

18· · ·So let me know.

19· · · · · And I also tend to be a fast talker.· I will try

20· · ·to discipline myself there as well.· But if I go too

21· · ·fast -- I don't know -- show me a hand or something,

22· · ·and I'll slow myself down.· All right?

23· A· Okay.

24· Q· All right.· Thank you.

25· · · · · Ms. Cooke, getting into your testimony here, on



·1· · ·Page 10 of your testimony, you state that fragmentation

·2· · ·from the project will cause the children of landowners

·3· · ·to be less likely to -- and you're -- you're in

·4· · ·quotes -- leave their non-farming-related jobs in order

·5· · ·to renew the farming legacy, the legacy of farming.

·6· · · · · Are you insinuating that it is the County's

·7· · ·land-use policy or role to influence the succession

·8· · ·planning of farming families?

·9· A· No.· I -- no.· I was not insinuating that at all.  I

10· · ·was insinuating it's the scope of the County to

11· · ·practice good planning, that -- which leads not to the

12· · ·fragmentation of agricultural lands, which are

13· · ·economically important to our area.· It's not a socio-

14· · ·impact to a certain family or demographic.· It's the

15· · ·protection and conservation of the agricultural lands

16· · ·as a whole and keeping those from fragmenting.

17· Q· And we'll get into this a little further.

18· · · · · So is it actually your testimony that this

19· · ·project, around 1 percent of the overall agricultural

20· · ·lands in the County, will in fact interrupt succession

21· · ·planning or make it more difficult for farmers to farm?

22· A· I think it's -- it's a lot more likely, yes.

23· · ·Absolutely.· Especially the farming portion, seeing as

24· · ·that a majority of the land that's going to be lost or

25· · ·the term of the lease is under solar, and you can't



·1· · ·farm under solar panels.· So, yeah, absolutely, I do

·2· · ·think that.

·3· Q· For the solar facility.· Okay.

·4· · · · · Have you -- did you ever reach out to landowners

·5· · ·and farmers involved in the project to ask them what

·6· · ·their long-term plans were for their lands?

·7· A· I didn't reach out to specific lease owners, as that

·8· · ·information was not made publicly available to myself.

·9· · ·I would have for sure if I would have known who those

10· · ·lease owners were.· But I did reach out to other people

11· · ·that I know in the area and asked questions about their

12· · ·practices and what they would do in a similar

13· · ·circumstance.

14· Q· So you're saying you -- you had no idea who these lease

15· · ·owners or landowners were that were involved in the

16· · ·project, never?

17· A· I was never made aware of who they were or where to

18· · ·find that information.

19· Q· Okay.· Are you aware of any other Benton County

20· · ·representative that reached out to landowners or

21· · ·farmers who were involved in the project to ask about

22· · ·their long-term plans for their lands?

23· A· I'm not aware, but it's not the scope of the County to

24· · ·get involved with private leases between farmers and --

25· · ·and developers.· It would be unheard of -- it would be



·1· · ·unheard of for me, my staff, or anyone else here at

·2· · ·the -- at the County to get involved or ask questions

·3· · ·about the nature of a lease or their impressions for

·4· · ·any development, whether it's this one, a subdivision,

·5· · ·or anything of -- of that nature.

·6· Q· So you are, in fact, not aware of any such outreach to

·7· · ·these landowners.

·8· · · · · That's the answer to your question?

·9· A· No.· Yeah, that's the answer to my question.

10· Q· Okay.· So in your testimony, Page 9, Lines 5 through

11· · ·6 -- and if you need to pull that up, I'm fine with you

12· · ·doing so.

13· A· I'm -- can you also put that on the screen for us as

14· · ·well?

15· Q· You know, I don't have it on -- I'm not able to share

16· · ·it on the screen.· Ms. Masengale --

17· A· You said Page 5, Lines 9 -- 5 through 6?

18· Q· 5 through 9.

19· · · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· We'll work to get

20· · ·that on the screen.

21· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· If you need it on the

22· · ·screen, we can pull it up, or if you've got it in your

23· · ·hand, I think we can proceed.

24· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.  I

25· · ·understand that Ms. Masengale is in the process of



·1· · ·pulling that exhibit up.

·2· · · · · Ms. Cooke, if you wait for Mr. McMahan to finish

·3· · ·the question just half a breath, I think it's going to

·4· · ·make the gentleman to my right a little happier.· It's

·5· · ·just --

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- the nature of court

·8· · ·reporting.· It's not a -- I have to tell a lot of

·9· · ·witnesses it's just not a normal conversation.· It's

10· · ·being taken down verbatim.· Anything you and

11· · ·Mr. McMahan can do on this dance and the other counsel

12· · ·will help.

13· · · · · All right.· And here comes your exhibit.· We're

14· · ·going to go to Page 5, Lines 5 through 7.

15· · · · · Thank you, Ms. Masengale.

16· · · · · Mr. McMahan, if you want to --

17· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Thank you, Your Honor.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- re-ask your

19· · ·question.

20· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Yes.

21· Q· (By Mr. McMahan)· In your testimony, Ms. Cooke, you

22· · ·indicate -- and I'm quoting -- "The land is more

23· · ·suitable for continuing farming industry in Benton

24· · ·County than being put to use as a large industrial

25· · ·project."



·1· · · · · Is that your testimony?

·2· A· Yes, as you can see clearly in the exhibit, that is my

·3· · ·testimony.

·4· Q· Shouldn't the property owners, themselves, be the ones

·5· · ·to determine how best to manage their farmlands and

·6· · ·their family legacy?

·7· A· That's an interesting question.· Unfortunately, the

·8· · ·State of Washington mandates land-use planning

·9· · ·practices, which is our office's purview.· So although

10· · ·the line sometimes is contentious about private

11· · ·property owners' rights and what they can and can't and

12· · ·should and should not do with their property and what

13· · ·the state law mandates the County to regulate, it's a

14· · ·little contentious.

15· · · · · And so for us as land-use planners to do -- uphold

16· · ·what the State has charged us with, we have determined

17· · ·these areas are suitable for farming as they are zoned

18· · ·agricultural.

19· Q· Right.

20· · · · · And, in fact -- and, in fact, farming will

21· · ·continue on the wind energy site after the construction

22· · ·of the facility, won't it?

23· A· Yes.· Unfortunately, that's a minority of the property

24· · ·that's going to be lost.· You cannot farm under solar

25· · ·panels, and that's a majority of the acres lost.



·1· Q· I understand what you're saying.

·2· · · · · So -- so you -- you -- are you insinuating that

·3· · ·the planning department should decide the destiny of

·4· · ·these landowners?

·5· A· The -- the County has zoned this as agriculture, and we

·6· · ·are maintaining those permitted uses, which are

·7· · ·agricultural in nature.· We're not deciding what people

·8· · ·should and should not do with their property.· There is

·9· · ·a list of allowed uses, and those are what are

10· · ·permitted on the property.· If someone wants to go

11· · ·outside of that, then that would be not consistent with

12· · ·what the State has mandated us to do in these areas,

13· · ·and that would be going against our County code.

14· Q· Is there anything that restricts renewable energy

15· · ·development based upon the soil classification?

16· A· Can you repeat your question?

17· Q· Is there anything that restricts renewable energy

18· · ·development on these lands based on soil

19· · ·classification?

20· A· I'm not aware that there is.

21· Q· And isn't it true that, at least what I think I'm

22· · ·hearing, is that you or the planning department decide

23· · ·what is compatible for these landowners on behalf of

24· · ·these landowners?

25· A· We don't decide that.· Our county code, which has been



·1· · ·adopted into law, lays that out.

·2· Q· But for this project, are you -- is it your role to

·3· · ·decide whether or not renewable energy is -- is allowed

·4· · ·as a compatible use on the wind facility portion of

·5· · ·this project?

·6· A· For this project, it's EFSEC's role to decide whether

·7· · ·or not compatibility is there.

·8· Q· Okay.· All right.· Good.· Well, we agree on that, then.

·9· · · · · So concerning the soils classification, is there

10· · ·anything that restricts development on the land based

11· · ·upon soil classification?

12· A· Not to my understanding.· But the land was designated

13· · ·as soil classification is a consideration, one of eight

14· · ·considerations that -- that are used to designate ag

15· · ·lands.

16· Q· And do you have knowledge of the farm soils on this

17· · ·property, on -- excuse me -- on the -- on this -- on

18· · ·the -- on the area that's proposed for development?

19· A· It's a very large area, so I'm not specifically aware

20· · ·of what they are, but I did take an active role in our

21· · ·ag lands reclassification, and I know that they're not

22· · ·poor soils.

23· Q· But your testimony, you characterize this as prime

24· · ·farmland, right?

25· A· Yes.



·1· Q· Okay.

·2· A· Like I said, there's eight factors that go into --

·3· Q· Yes.

·4· A· -- prime farmland, not just soils.

·5· Q· I understand that.

·6· · · · · Prime farmland designation, however, is typically

·7· · ·referencing USDA NRCS farmland classification, correct?

·8· A· Are you speaking as far as soils go?

·9· Q· Yes.· So far as soils go.

10· A· That's one of eight tests to designate ag lands of

11· · ·long-term significance.

12· Q· Yes.· And I'm talking about your testimony that calls

13· · ·this project prime farmland.

14· · · · · You do state that in your testimony, don't you?

15· A· Yes.

16· Q· And isn't it true that for this particular soil -- and

17· · ·I know you come from a farming family.

18· · · · · Isn't it true that for the Ritzville silt loam

19· · ·soils, which is about 92 percent -- I can -- I can

20· · ·represent to you 92 percent of the project lease

21· · ·boundary, is classified as prime farmland if irrigated,

22· · ·correct?

23· A· No, that's not correct.· It has to do with water

24· · ·availability, including precipitation.

25· Q· So you're disputing that definition from USDA NRCS data



·1· · ·concerning the -- the characteristics of prime

·2· · ·farmland?

·3· A· As I said, it's one of eight criterias.· And water and

·4· · ·precipitation is another criteria.· So those factored

·5· · ·together.· So if there's enough precipitation for

·6· · ·dryland wheat farming, those soils, that area, are

·7· · ·suitable as an agricultural area.

·8· Q· And you are aware that none of this property is

·9· · ·irrigated, correct?

10· A· I am aware.

11· Q· All right.

12· A· But it does have good precipitation levels.

13· Q· Well, what is the annual precipitation per year in this

14· · ·area?

15· A· In -- in this area?· I believe it's -- well, and I

16· · ·can't say this for sure on the record, but the last

17· · ·time I read the memo, I want to say it's four to six

18· · ·inches of rain a year, roughly.

19· Q· So rather arid, isn't it?

20· A· Not for dryland wheat.· That's enough.

21· Q· But it is arid land up there, isn't it?

22· A· It's dryland.· It's not arid.

23· Q· Okay.· Right.

24· · · · · Is it your -- oh, let's see.

25· · · · · So is your testimony that this location, Benton



·1· · ·County, differs from other dryland wheat areas in the

·2· · ·Northwest is just somehow unique, or is it pretty --

·3· · ·typical?

·4· A· I'm not familiar with other dryland wheat operations in

·5· · ·the Northwest as I'm not from there.

·6· Q· Okay.· Where are you from?· I'm sorry.· That's

·7· · ·interesting.

·8· · · · · Where are you from?

·9· A· I'm from Prosser, Washington, the Horse Heaven Hills.

10· Q· Okay.

11· A· But I'm not familiar with the other dryland wheat

12· · ·regions of Washington State, such as the Palouse,

13· · ·because I'm not from there, and I don't know --

14· Q· All right.

15· A· -- what their yields are like.

16· Q· I understand.· Thanks for the clarification there.

17· · · · · What about for Nine Canyon?· Are you aware that

18· · ·that is dryland wheat, unirrigated, on the Nine Canyon

19· · ·wind farm?

20· A· I don't know what the history of Nine Canyon was, but

21· · ·given the topography of where it's located, I would

22· · ·have -- I would have assumed that it was not dryland.

23· · ·My assumption is it was probably rangeland, because

24· · ·it's on top of a hill.· But I don't know that for a

25· · ·fact, because I wasn't in the country at the time it



·1· · ·was developed.

·2· Q· So you are speculating with that answer, aren't you?

·3· A· You're asking me a question I can't answer, so yes.

·4· Q· Yes, you're speculating.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · Have you visited other wind farms in Oregon or

·6· · ·Washington?

·7· A· I have.· On a --

·8· Q· Which wind farms?

·9· · · · · Excuse me.

10· A· I haven't --

11· Q· I'm sorry.

12· A· I haven't on a professional level.· I have on a

13· · ·personal level.· I've visited the one out in Bickleton.

14· Q· Okay.· In -- in Klickitat County, then?

15· A· In Klickitat County.

16· Q· All right.· And have you discussed farm operations with

17· · ·any farmers out in the Klickitat County area?

18· A· I have.· I...

19· Q· And have you discussed whether or not -- well, have you

20· · ·discussed with those farmers in Klickitat County

21· · ·whether their farming operations are in any way

22· · ·disrupted by the renewable energy development that's

23· · ·hosted on their lands?

24· A· I haven't -- I haven't had conversations with the

25· · ·actual landowners who have the turbines on their



·1· · ·properties.· I've had conversations with adjacent

·2· · ·landowners in the area, so I can't answer that

·3· · ·question.

·4· Q· All right.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · Do you dispute that farmers customarily farm

·6· · ·around local topography, including, you know, for

·7· · ·example, canyons, sloped areas?

·8· · · · · I mean, it's pretty typical, isn't it, for farmers

·9· · ·to farm around topographic features?

10· A· It is.· And in our area, it's a very small percentage

11· · ·of the -- of the land.· Because the Horse Heaven Hills

12· · ·is a mesa and very flat, we do have some areas of

13· · ·shrub-steppe habitat and critical areas in the -- in

14· · ·the drainages, and they do farm around those areas.

15· Q· And the farmers can customarily farm around, oh, power

16· · ·poles, ditches, many things, right?

17· A· Typically in the Horse Heaven Hills, they don't have

18· · ·any of those, as ditches are not and irrigation is not

19· · ·up there, and all of the power poles run along the road

20· · ·right-of-way infrastructure, so they don't need to go

21· · ·around those necessarily.· Those are on the periphery

22· · ·of their operations.

23· Q· So you're saying that entire area up on the Horse

24· · ·Heaven Hills is all flat as a table.

25· · · · · Is that what you're saying?



·1· A· It's predominantly flat.· It's not flat as a pancake,

·2· · ·but it's predominantly flat.· There are some rolling

·3· · ·hills, but not to any great extent.· The slopes are on

·4· · ·the fringe.

·5· Q· In your -- I want to just turn to your testimony about

·6· · ·support services.

·7· · · · · And is it your testimony -- I believe it's your

·8· · ·testimony that due to Horse Heaven, somehow the

·9· · ·agricultural economy will wither, that farmers will let

10· · ·the land go, all because of the construction of the

11· · ·solar and wind projects.

12· · · · · Is that your testimony?

13· A· Can you reference where you're finding that at in my

14· · ·testimony?

15· Q· Page 6.

16· A· And what line?

17· Q· I am not sure about that.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Okay.· All right.

19· · ·Yeah, could you scroll down, please.

20· · · · · Yeah, I'm going to come back to that.· I'm sorry,

21· · ·Ms. Cooke.· I want to come back to that, so if you

22· · ·could just hold on that, we're going to -- we're going

23· · ·to revisit that in a minute.

24· Q· (By Mr. McMahan)· Is it your opinion that this 1

25· · ·percent of Benton County farms proposed for wind and



·1· · ·solar development will actually destroy agricultural

·2· · ·support services?

·3· A· Can you define what you mean by destroy agricultural

·4· · ·support systems?

·5· Q· Well, agricultural support industries, agricultural

·6· · ·support systems.· Things like selling fertilizer,

·7· · ·seeing things like selling equipment, tractors.

·8· · ·Agricultural support services, which you have -- have

·9· · ·provided testimony about.

10· · · · · Is it your opinion that this project, at 1 percent

11· · ·or so of the local agricultural economy, will somehow

12· · ·undermine those agricultural services?

13· A· Well, I'm not exactly qualified to speak to economic

14· · ·development and farming practices such as that.· I do

15· · ·believe that this project will impact those services.

16· · · · · Will it destroy or undermine?· Those are very

17· · ·aggressive words, and I don't -- I think that's taking

18· · ·it a little too brusque.· But I do believe it will have

19· · ·impact to the support services of those types of

20· · ·businesses that help the farmers out in that area.

21· Q· And do you deny that new revenues from the wind leases

22· · ·will spur further investments by these landowners?

23· A· In what capacity are you speaking?

24· Q· Any capacity.

25· · · · · Will the new revenues for these landowners, with



·1· · ·new generation of additional income, is it your opinion

·2· · ·that that -- that that will not spur further

·3· · ·investments?

·4· A· Further investments into what?· Stocks or into their

·5· · ·land or what?

·6· Q· Into their land.· Into their farming operations.

·7· · ·Into buying --

·8· A· I -- I can't speak to what the farmers are --

·9· Q· Excuse me.

10· A· -- going to do --

11· Q· Excuse me.

12· A· -- with their payouts.

13· Q· Excuse me.· We're not going to talk over each other.

14· · · · · Tractors, any equipment.

15· A· I can't --

16· Q· Go ahead.

17· A· -- speak to that.· I don't -- I don't know what the --

18· · ·the personal financial agenda is for -- for the farmers

19· · ·getting the payouts.

20· Q· All right.· Well, let's try this.

21· · · · · With lease revenues, do you deny that farmers will

22· · ·not make additional investments in things like repair

23· · ·and replacement of old equipment?

24· A· I would hope so.· But that's speculation on my part,

25· · ·that I'm hoping that they will put the money back into



·1· · ·the land and continue and improve their practices.  I

·2· · ·don't know that.· That's speculation on my part.

·3· Q· Enhancement of crop -- of crop -- of protection of

·4· · ·crops?

·5· A· Is that a question?

·6· Q· Yes.

·7· A· I don't understand the question.· Sorry.

·8· Q· Purchase of more fertilizer?

·9· A· Again, that's speculation.· I have no idea how the

10· · ·farmers are going to spend their money, if they even

11· · ·ferti- --

12· Q· So you don't --

13· A· -- if they fertilize.· I have no idea.

14· Q· So you don't think the lease revenues are going to spur

15· · ·these kinds of investments?

16· A· I didn't say that.· I said it was speculation.· I don't

17· · ·know how they're going to spend their money.· I would

18· · ·hope so.· As a -- as a child of a farmer, yes, I would

19· · ·hope so, but I can't say.

20· Q· So you don't know whether -- you speculate -- you can't

21· · ·speculate.· I guess you can't guess that these

22· · ·landowners, with their lease revenues, might invest in

23· · ·additional technology, changes in farm practices,

24· · ·beneficial tools in farming production.

25· · · · · As a farmer, as a child of farmers, do you believe



·1· · ·that that actually won't happen, that those investments

·2· · ·actually won't be made in these farms --

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Your Honor.

·4· Q· (By Mr. McMahan)· -- as a consequence of lease

·5· · ·revenues?

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· I'm objecting at this

·7· · ·point, Your Honor.· This has gone on long enough.· This

·8· · ·seems to be repetitive, argumentative.· It's just

·9· · ·badgering the witness.· Mr. McMahan is testifying.

10· · ·He's not examining at this stage.

11· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, I have to

12· · ·agree with Mr. Harper.· I think you've made your point.

13· · ·It's becoming argumentative.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· All right.· All right.

15· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· So that on that basis,

16· · ·it's sustained.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· All right.· Thank you,

18· · ·Your Honor.· I'll move on.

19· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, if you

20· · ·wanted to go back, if -- if it's still germane --

21· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Yes.

22· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- to your inquiry,

23· · ·the portion you were looking for about support starts

24· · ·at the bottom of Page 6, Line 24, and continues to

25· · ·approximately that level on Page 7.· Maybe you've



·1· · ·already gone through it with your questions, but that

·2· · ·was, I think, what you were looking for.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· All right.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· You got to those

·5· · ·questions.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Okay.· Yeah, I think I

·7· · ·did end up getting to those questions, Your Honor.

·8· · ·Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· What's

10· · ·next?

11· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· All right.· Thank you.

12· Q· (By Mr. McMahan)· Ms. Cooke, you provided testimony

13· · ·about the potential loss of agricultural economy or

14· · ·agricultural products.

15· · · · · And your testimony really only references dryland

16· · ·wheat, doesn't it?

17· A· Dryland wheat and rangeland are the majority of what

18· · ·this operation will be taking up.

19· Q· Yes.· Understood.

20· · · · · But you have test- -- your testimony indicates

21· · ·that there are -- that -- you talk about -- we talked

22· · ·in the testimony about -- about specialty crops and any

23· · ·crops other than wheat.

24· · · · · Are you -- are you indicating that -- your

25· · ·testimony seems to only be dealing with dryland wheat,



·1· · ·right?

·2· A· I try to narrow the focus to the -- the agricultural

·3· · ·production which is occurring on the lands that are

·4· · ·slated for this development.· So I did not speak to

·5· · ·other types of agriculture.

·6· Q· But in representing 1 percent of supposed destruction

·7· · ·of the -- of the agricultural economy, you don't

·8· · ·account for any specialty crops other than wheat,

·9· · ·right?

10· A· Again, I'm only speaking to wheat and rangeland,

11· · ·because those are the two primary operations that will

12· · ·be impacted by this, because of that -- of the

13· · ·footprint of it.· If you'd like me to speak to other

14· · ·agricultural in the greater Horse Heaven Hills, I'd be

15· · ·happy to, if you have a question.

16· Q· Well, the question is this:· Your -- or the point is

17· · ·this.· The question is this:

18· · · · · Your testimony talks a lot about the destruction

19· · ·of the farming economy because of the loss of dryland

20· · ·wheat and this 1 percent of the agricultural economy or

21· · ·the agricultural products.

22· · · · · That is your testimony, right?· Focusing on that 1

23· · ·percent which is dryland wheat.

24· A· The -- I'm -- yes, my testimony does speak to the

25· · ·agricultural economy and how this project would impact



·1· · ·that.· Because the scope of the project is within the

·2· · ·dryland area of Benton County.

·3· Q· Yet isn't it true that Benton County grows many

·4· · ·crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples, hops -- that

·5· · ·have a much, much higher value than dryland wheat?

·6· A· The agricultural economics isn't at debate here for the

·7· · ·conditional use criteria, sir.

·8· Q· Well, actually, I -- I disagree with that.· I'm trying

·9· · ·to understand your testimony, which infers that this

10· · ·project is going to have a material impact on the

11· · ·agricultural economy of Benton County.

12· · · · · Yet your testimony does not account for products

13· · ·other than wheat.· Is that true?

14· A· Yes.· Well, wheat and rangeland, which would be cattle.

15· Q· Okay.· I think we can -- we can move on here.

16· · · · · Isn't it true -- and perhaps you can't answer this

17· · ·question, but I'll try.

18· · · · · Isn't it true that dryland wheat is really a very

19· · ·small fraction of the value and use of these lands when

20· · ·you account for all of the other agricultural products,

21· · ·including specialty products and specialty crops which

22· · ·I just described?

23· A· I don't think that we're comparing the agricultural

24· · ·economy as a whole of Benton County here, which

25· · ·surprises me especially as your expert witness



·1· · ·Mr. Wiley, that's his bread and butter.· That's his

·2· · ·family's income, and you're demeaning their -- the

·3· · ·value of their products that they're bringing to the

·4· · ·county.· I find that --

·5· Q· No, I'm not demeaning Mr. Wiley at all, nor am I

·6· · ·demeaning you, ma'am.

·7· · · · · What I am just indicating, that your testimony is

·8· · ·based on dryland wheat.· You characterized the

·9· · ·agricultural economy based on dryland wheat, correct?

10· A· It's one of the factors of Benton County's agricultural

11· · ·economies, yes.

12· Q· And you -- your testimony does not account for all the

13· · ·other crops, espec- -- particularly specialty crops or

14· · ·high-value crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples

15· · ·hops -- that have a much higher value than dryland

16· · ·wheat, right?

17· A· Again, I don't see the relevance here to the scope of

18· · ·this project.

19· Q· Ma'am, you are not -- excuse me.· You are not the

20· · ·adjudicator of relevance or not.· I'm trying to get you

21· · ·to answer a specific question and get your opinion.

22· A· Can you re-ask the question, then, in a way that --

23· Q· Yes.

24· A· -- I can understand?

25· Q· You -- your characterization of the agricultural



·1· · ·economy in Benton County is limited in your testimony

·2· · ·to nothing but dryland wheat, correct?

·3· A· I have spoken to the project area, which is dryland

·4· · ·wheat and rangeland, and how this project will affect

·5· · ·that and the overall economy of Benton County from an

·6· · ·agricultural standpoint.

·7· Q· Right.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

·9· · ·Mr. McMahan, I think you made your point here.· I'm

10· · ·going to let Ms. --

11· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Yes.· Right, Your

12· · ·Honor.

13· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· If there --

14· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· If there are other

16· · ·crops of value that Mr. Harper wants to draw out on

17· · ·redirect, we'll learn about that and find it in the

18· · ·testimony at that point.

19· · · · · What else have you got?

20· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Your Honor, I'm going

21· · ·to interrupt now, if I may, because Mr. McMahan has

22· · ·continued to talk over Ms. Cooke's answers.  I

23· · ·understand that occasionally Ms. Cooke anticipates his

24· · ·question, but it's particularly important that the

25· · ·Council hear her complete thought before Mr. McMahan



·1· · ·moves on.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And I'll interject,

·3· · ·Mr. Harper and Ms. Cooke.· If it's a yes-or-no

·4· · ·question, it's a lot simpler if you just answer "yes"

·5· · ·or "no" up front.· And if it's necessary to elaborate,

·6· · ·you can, but you may want to wait for Mr. Harper to

·7· · ·redirect on the things he thinks the Council will find

·8· · ·most important.

·9· · · · · Again, it's not the most natural thing in

10· · ·conversation to just drop a "yes" or a "no," but for

11· · ·purposes of cross-exam, it might speed things up a

12· · ·little bit, and then we can see what else Mr. Harper

13· · ·wants to make sure the Council knows.

14· · · · · So thank you for continuing to answer.

15· · · · · Mr. McMahan, back to you.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Yes.· And, again, I

17· · ·apologize for talking over you, Ms. Cooke.· You and I

18· · ·both seem to have a habit of doing that, and so I

19· · ·will -- I have just one more question, and so hopefully

20· · ·we can do that without talking over each other.

21· Q· (By Mr. McMahan)· On Page 3, Line 22, of your

22· · ·testimony, Ms. Cooke, you claim that the land will be

23· · ·permanently taken out of production.

24· · · · · Are you aware that the land can and will be fully

25· · ·restored after the life of the project?



·1· A· It's my professional opinion as a land-use planner that

·2· · ·the majority of the land will not go back to

·3· · ·agriculture after the lifetime of this project.

·4· Q· So you dispute the findings throughout the Northwest,

·5· · ·in general, that -- and the understanding that, after

·6· · ·retirement, the land will be returned to agricultural

·7· · ·use.· You -- you --

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Objection.· That --

·9· · ·that -- objection, Your Honor.· That lacks foundation.

10· · ·I don't know what he means, throughout the Northwest,

11· · ·the land will be returned after retirement.

12· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. McMahan, can you

13· · ·give a little bit more specificity so the Council knows

14· · ·what you might be referring to as well?

15· Q· (By Mr. McMahan)· Well, Ms. Cooke, are you aware that

16· · ·wind facilities throughout the Northwest, all of them,

17· · ·are required to restore the land upon which they have

18· · ·hosted the projects?

19· · · · · Are you aware of that?

20· A· I'm not familiar with other wind projects or their

21· · ·conditions of approval in the Northwest, but I am aware

22· · ·that they do need to have a plan in place for the

23· · ·removal of these.· However, I -- I've yet to see a

24· · ·successful wind farm being removed to this point in

25· · ·my -- in my career or my lifetime.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Understood.· It's a

·2· · ·relatively new industry.

·3· · · · · With that, I -- I have no further questions.  I

·4· · ·thank you for your time.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right,

·6· · ·Mr. McMahan.

·7· · · · · Let's go on to Mr. Aramburu.

·8

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

10· · ·BY MR. ARAMBURU:

11· Q· Good morning, Ms. Cooke.· I'm Richard Aramburu.  I

12· · ·represent Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.

13· · · · · Good morning.

14· A· Good morning.

15· Q· Just a couple of questions for you on behalf of the

16· · ·community.

17· · · · · You're the Benton County planning manager.· What

18· · ·is your responsibilities as planning manager?

19· A· That's correct.· I am the planning manager.· I oversee

20· · ·the planning staff.· And I essentially make all of the

21· · ·administrative decisions for the planning department on

22· · ·behalf of Benton County.

23· Q· And have you been involved in the designation of -- of

24· · ·agricultural lands of long-term significance?

25· A· Yes.· I was involved during our 2018 comprehensive plan



·1· · ·update where we did an agricultural lands

·2· · ·classification memo.

·3· Q· And was that confirming the designation of -- of

·4· · ·agricultural lands of long-term significance from prior

·5· · ·versions of the comp plan?

·6· A· For the most part, yes.· We de-designated a few areas.

·7· · ·But overall, we had a net gain of agricultural land

·8· · ·that we add into the county.· But the majority of that

·9· · ·land stayed the same, which was historically classified

10· · ·as agricultural lands and are continuing to be zoned

11· · ·agriculture.

12· Q· And was there any challenges or appeals of the County's

13· · ·designation of agricultural lands of long-term

14· · ·significance to the Growth -- Growth Management

15· · ·Hearings Board?

16· A· There was not.· The groups that we typically get

17· · ·appeals from had no issue with our classification memo.

18· Q· And were there any challenges from -- from anyone in

19· · ·the farming community to the desi- -- to the

20· · ·designation of agricultural lands of long-term

21· · ·significance?

22· A· No, there was not.· And I believe we did hold public

23· · ·meetings for that classification and designation.

24· Q· And do you recall what -- whether there was significant

25· · ·opposition at those meetings?



·1· A· There was a pretty good turnout.· I can't say that

·2· · ·there was significant opposition.· I know a lot of

·3· · ·people had questions, whether or not they were --

·4· · ·particularly the property owners that were either going

·5· · ·to be included in or excepted out of the -- the zone,

·6· · ·as is normal when you're changing zonings on

·7· · ·landowners.

·8· · · · · However, there was no significant objections that

·9· · ·our office received.

10· Q· And did -- did the County do SEPA compliance for this

11· · ·designation?

12· A· Yes, I believe we did as part of the comprehensive plan

13· · ·update.· The ag- -- agricultural lands classification

14· · ·memo was part of an appendix to our comprehensive plan.

15· Q· And was a threshold determination entered regarding the

16· · ·decision to designate the lands as agricultural lands

17· · ·of long-term significance?

18· A· Are you asking what the designation was?

19· Q· No.

20· · · · · I'm asking you whether there was a -- a -- with

21· · ·SEPA compliance, was there a checklist, and was there a

22· · ·threshold determination?

23· A· Yes, I believe there was.

24· Q· Okay.· And was -- was the threshold determination

25· · ·appealed?



·1· A· I don't -- I don't know off the top of my head.

·2· · ·Actually, I believe our -- I believe our -- well, I

·3· · ·don't know if the threshold determination was appealed,

·4· · ·but our comprehensive plan, I believe, was appealed on

·5· · ·different grounds.

·6· Q· But not on -- on the grounds that we're discussing

·7· · ·today?

·8· A· No.· It was on groundwater, I believe.

·9· Q· Okay.· And the -- let's see.

10· · · · · That's all the questions I have.· Let me just look

11· · ·here for a moment.

12· · · · · And is -- is the designation of long- --

13· · ·agricultural lands of long-term significance, that's a

14· · ·part of the comprehensive plan, correct?

15· A· The -- we do have a land-use designation.· The process

16· · ·of designating them is part of the Washington State

17· · ·WAC, not necessarily spelled out in our comprehensive

18· · ·plan, but we do discuss that under the agricultural

19· · ·land-use designation in the comp plan.

20· Q· And then for the comp plan, then zoning is adopted for

21· · ·agricultural lands; is that correct?

22· A· That's correct.· The comp plan is a guiding document,

23· · ·and from there, it's more specific into which zoning

24· · ·designation it is classified as.

25· Q· And were there any appeals of the zoning designation



·1· · ·that's being discussed here by anyone in the Horse

·2· · ·Heaven Hills?

·3· A· No, I'm not aware of anyone appealing the agricultural

·4· · ·zone designation for this area.

·5· Q· And is the -- the zoning designation, comprehensive

·6· · ·plan designation, taken into account by the Benton

·7· · ·County assessor when he assesses value of property?

·8· A· Not to my knowledge.· My understanding is the appraisal

·9· · ·of property, the taxation of property is a separate

10· · ·process than the land-use designation or the zoning

11· · ·designation of property.

12· · · · · Typically we see the assessor pick up similar

13· · ·descriptions of land use based on what we've zoned it,

14· · ·but not always necessarily; such as if there's an

15· · ·agricultural piece of property and there's a home on

16· · ·it, they may have it as residential for appraisal

17· · ·purposes, but maybe they don't reflect that it's

18· · ·necessarily agriculture in nature or zoned agriculture

19· · ·if it's not being currently farmed.

20· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Okay.· No further

21· · ·questions.· Thank you, Ms. Cooke.

22· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Let's turn

23· · ·to Ms. Voelckers at the Yakama Nation.

24· · · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your

25· · ·Honor.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · · CROSS-EXAMINATION

·2· · ·BY MS. VOELCKERS:

·3· Q· Good morning, Ms. Cooke.· My name is Shona Voelckers,

·4· · ·and I represent Yakama Nation in this proceeding.

·5· · · · · My question for you this morning is:· Can Benton

·6· · ·County, under the Benton County Code, issue a

·7· · ·conditional use permit to a development that needs

·8· · ·water without first determining that the proposed

·9· · ·development has a legally available water source to

10· · ·serve that development?

11· A· Sorry.· Can you rephrase the question a little bit?  I

12· · ·think I -- I think I understand what you're asking, but

13· · ·I just want to make sure.

14· Q· Yeah.

15· · · · · Does Benton County Code allow issuance of a

16· · ·conditional use permit to a development that needs

17· · ·water if the permitter has not yet determined that

18· · ·water is actually legally available for that

19· · ·development?

20· A· It's not typical.· So typically from a conditional use

21· · ·permit, we will ensure there's water or at least help

22· · ·district approval.· Most of our conditional use permits

23· · ·don't get into the depth of water law and actual water

24· · ·rights from the Department of Ecology because of

25· · ·their -- their size and scope and nature.



·1· · · · · Most just require approval of the use from the

·2· · ·Benton Franklin Health District, which would approve

·3· · ·the well and/or sanitary facilities.· And we require,

·4· · ·as a part of their application, that Benton Franklin

·5· · ·Health District letter before they can apply, or with

·6· · ·their application materials.· If their water source is

·7· · ·from somewhere else, then we generally ask for

·8· · ·compliance from that water purveyor as part of their

·9· · ·application materials.

10· · · · · I'm trying to think of a larger-type conditional

11· · ·use permit in the last ten years.· We've only had a few

12· · ·of them.

13· · · · · And I would say groundwater compliance would be

14· · ·something, as staff, we would certainly look at.· We

15· · ·also -- when we send out the agency packet to the

16· · ·reviewing agencies, they often -- the Department of

17· · ·Ecology often will comment back that need for

18· · ·groundwater is required, and so we will use that as a

19· · ·condition of approval in the conditional use permit,

20· · ·that they seek compliance with that groundwater

21· · ·requirement.

22· Q· And if you have concerns about whether or not they can

23· · ·comply with the groundwater requirement, would you

24· · ·investigate those concerns before issuing a conditional

25· · ·use permit?



·1· A· Typically, yes.· Most of them -- I won't say all of

·2· · ·them.· Again, it depends on the nature of a conditional

·3· · ·use permit.· The scope is huge as far as, you know,

·4· · ·something small such as a dog kennel versus something

·5· · ·large like a con- -- a confined animal feed lot

·6· · ·operation.· You know, the -- the intensity on the land

·7· · ·is much different.· But we would ensure that there's

·8· · ·compliance with water regulations for that.

·9· · · · · I know before I'd started at Benton County, there

10· · ·was a proposed dairy or a feed lot up on the

11· · ·Rattlesnake Hill, and I believe it was denied due to

12· · ·groundwater issues and concerns.· And that was a

13· · ·conditional use permit as well in an agricultural zone.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you.· I may --

15· · ·I may have other questions, depending on what else is

16· · ·asked, but that's all I have at this time.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you,

18· · ·Ms. Voelckers.

19· · · · · Ms. Cooke, can you clarify:· When you said it was

20· · ·denied for groundwater concerns, was that water supply,

21· · ·or was that potential for water pollution?

22· · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I don't -- I don't

23· · ·know.· As I said, it was before I arrived.· I just know

24· · ·that water -- groundwater was an issue of some sort.  I

25· · ·don't know -- I don't know the status of it entirely.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· If it becomes

·2· · ·relevant to the Council whether it was for nonpoint

·3· · ·pollution or contamination concerns or water supply, it

·4· · ·may come from another witness.

·5· · · · · Ms. Reyneveld, I know you're not listed for any

·6· · ·cross-exam questions.· Did you have anything this

·7· · ·morning?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I don't have

·9· · ·anything at this time.· Thank you, Judge.

10· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

11· · · · · Mr. Harper, I'm going to come back to you and go

12· · ·one more round of questions.· Then I'll ask the Chair

13· · ·and the Council members for their questions if they

14· · ·haven't already been asked.

15· · · · · Mr. Harper.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· All right.· Thank you,

17· · ·Your Honor.

18

19· · · · · · · · · · · ·REDIRECT EXAMINATION

20· · ·BY MR. HARPER:

21· Q· Good morning, Ms. Cooke.· How are you?

22· A· Good.· Thank you.

23· Q· All right.· Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan spent a fair amount

24· · ·of time focusing his questioning on what he portrayed

25· · ·as a -- as a, I guess, a farm economics dispute.



·1· · · · · And what I'd like you to do, Ms. Cooke, is -- if

·2· · ·you could -- just, could you -- could you -- could you

·3· · ·tell the Council about whether that in your view is

·4· · ·germane to the concept of long-range planning and how a

·5· · ·conditional use permit in this case may factor into the

·6· · ·County's long-range interests in its agricultural

·7· · ·lands?

·8· A· The County does consider economics when it comes to

·9· · ·long-range planning in a small sense, but economic

10· · ·development isn't necessarily our scope of or area of

11· · ·expertise.· While our land-use practices, we try very

12· · ·hard to ensure that they promote economic development

13· · ·throughout the county, whatever that may be, we

14· · ·certainly try not to have land-use long-range code

15· · ·provisions such as our comprehensive plan that would go

16· · ·against the benefit of economic development in the

17· · ·county.

18· · · · · But when it comes to -- so that is within the

19· · ·scope of long-range planning or, you know,

20· · ·comprehensive long -- long-term planning.

21· · · · · Within the scope of a conditional use permit,

22· · ·the -- it's a little bit different.· So while we have

23· · ·our comprehensive plan designation for planning -- so

24· · ·planning goes kind of top down -- we have this giant

25· · ·20-year plan with all of our hopes and dreams and good



·1· ·visions for the future, how you do good practical

·2· ·planning that will have a robust -- robust economy.

·3· · · · From there, you whittle down -- as I said earlier

·4· ·in one of my other statements, from there you whittle

·5· ·down into specifics, and get into the day-to-day

·6· ·permits, which the conditional use permit would be one

·7· ·of those, and it gets a lot more limited in its scope.

·8· · · · And, unfortunately, for a conditional use permit,

·9· ·we take out the economic gain or the opportunity to a

10· ·certain demographic of people or that sort of specifics

11· ·from our evaluation, and we just look at our set of

12· ·criteria, which doesn't include that economic gain or

13· ·benefit to a small group of citizens.

14· · · · And as I said earlier, it's a really tough

15· ·conversation to have, because somebody's coming to you,

16· ·wanting to develop their land, and you know from a

17· ·human level that they will have economic gains from

18· ·this.· But from a regulation standpoint -- and,

19· ·honestly, that's what we are; we're regulators of the

20· ·state statutes -- we can't allow it.

21· · · · And so our -- our limitations, you know, prevent

22· ·us from doing that.· Even though it makes sense from a

23· ·human standpoint, professionally it's just not a

24· ·factor, unfortunately.· And -- and, you know, it's --

25· ·it's hard.· As a professional, it's really hard.



·1· · ·Because you understand that there's going to be

·2· · ·economic impacts to a group of people if -- if a use is

·3· · ·denied or not allowed or not permitted, you know.

·4· · · · · And personally, the Wileys are my family.· They're

·5· · ·my cousins.· So do I want them to have economic gain?

·6· · ·Absolutely I do.· But professionally, this isn't an

·7· · ·allowed use.· This isn't a permitted use.· It doesn't

·8· · ·further the protection of agricultural lands.· So

·9· · ·professionally, I have to say no.

10· Q· Ms. Cooke, is there a sense in which your permitting

11· · ·decision-making or your -- your -- your testimony in

12· · ·this case -- because it is certainly correct you're not

13· · ·deciding the outcome of the CUP.

14· · · · · But is there a sense in which your -- your -- your

15· · ·permitting analysis is intended to further and help

16· · ·facilitate longer-range planning goals?

17· · · · · Are those in harmony in some sense?

18· A· They are, on a -- on a kind of a 3,000-foot level, I

19· · ·would say.· Although one permitted use may be denied or

20· · ·isn't permissible, it doesn't take away from the

21· · ·objectives of the allow- -- the allowable uses in a

22· · ·zone, which then further the goals and the policies

23· · ·that we in the state have for each one of our areas.

24· · · · · So let's say a oil refinery isn't allowed in the

25· · ·agricultural zone, since we heard that yesterday.· That



·1· · ·may not -- that may not improve the economy of Benton

·2· · ·County, but it is going to keep farmers and the

·3· · ·agricultural zone -- it's going to allow them to

·4· · ·continue to have the ability to implement their own

·5· · ·economy.

·6· · · · · And so the allowable uses that we have in our

·7· · ·zoning designation further that economy.· It's just

·8· · ·kind of a narrow scope, unfortunately.

·9· Q· Is it -- is it fair to say, Ms. Cooke, that -- that a

10· · ·significant portion of your prefiled testimony is

11· · ·intended to draw the attention of the Council to the

12· · ·long duration of the Horse Heaven wind farm facility?

13· A· Yeah, I would say so.· I think a lot of people are

14· · ·looking at this project within a limited scope, you

15· · ·know, whether it's 30 years or a lifetime.· And from

16· · ·planning, we try to look much further out.

17· · · · · And for us, we only have a limited area of

18· · ·agriculture.· We're not making new agricultural lands.

19· · ·And so that protection is key.

20· · · · · And it's not just protecting it for 10 or 20 years

21· · ·or 30 years, or however long the lease is.· I -- I know

22· · ·from practice that as soon as a use is established, it

23· · ·generally is there in perpetuity.· It doesn't

24· · ·necessarily go away.· It definitely shifts the

25· · ·landscape and -- and what goes on there in the future



·1· · ·long after I'm gone.

·2· · · · · And so these are things that we consider as

·3· · ·land-use planners.

·4· Q· Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan asked you a question that I

·5· · ·objected to as lacking foundation.· He asked you about

·6· · ·other examples of restoration after retirement of a --

·7· · ·of a -- term a similar type of project.· I don't know

·8· · ·quite what he was trying to draw to there.

·9· · · · · But are you aware of any example -- whether it's a

10· · ·wind farm project or any other example -- of proven,

11· · ·demonstrable restoration after compaction of soil,

12· · ·after exporting of soil, after importing of soil,

13· · ·alterations of the landscape, are you aware of any

14· · ·area-wide soil rehabilitation effort that would be

15· · ·comparable to what Horse Heaven wind farm portrays in

16· · ·its ASC here?

17· A· I'm not aware of that.· I'm not aware of any projects

18· · ·that have amended the project boundaries or the

19· · ·footprint for reintroduction.

20· · · · · And one example that, you know, from -- a small

21· · ·example that I can give off the top of my head is CRP

22· · ·ground.· So Conservation Reserve Program has fallow

23· · ·areas of wheat.· And you -- I drive home to visit my

24· · ·family up on Horse Heaven, and you still see these

25· · ·wheat fields that aren't in production.· And, you know,



·1· · ·that was supposed to be kind of a short-term program

·2· · ·from the federal government, and they're still laying

·3· · ·fallow.· And that's not necessarily an intense use

·4· · ·which stopped farming for a short period of time.

·5· · · · · Larger impacts, such as solar project, I don't

·6· · ·think people realize how critical that microclimate is

·7· · ·and how sensitive the microclimate of the shrub-steppe

·8· · ·is.· And those solar panels are going to devastate

·9· · ·that.

10· · · · · So we're not just talking about can you put it

11· · ·back into dryland wheat.· We're talking about can

12· · ·you -- can you grow shrub-steppe back under those solar

13· · ·panels; can you grow those native plants back there

14· · ·that are sensitive and rare species.

15· · · · · I don't believe you can after it's been shaded for

16· · ·30 years.· It's going to completely change that

17· · ·microclimate.· And I don't know of any conservation

18· · ·practices that has successfully done that on, you know,

19· · ·thousands and thousands of acres.

20· Q· Does the ASC and the supporting materials that you've

21· · ·had a chance to review in the SEPA documents, does it

22· · ·adequately engage with this -- this topic, in your

23· · ·opinion?

24· A· I don't believe it does.

25· Q· Ms. Cooke, do you know what the useful operating life



·1· · ·of the Horse Heaven wind farm project is?

·2· A· I don't know for sure, but I believe it's 30 years.

·3· Q· Yeah, I think that's correct.

·4· · · · · I guess the question is this, Ms. Cooke.

·5· · · · · What will essentially happen if, at the end of the

·6· · ·30-year period, it proves to be infeasible or just

·7· · ·uneconomic to engage with this restoration effort to

·8· · ·return the soils to the kind of growing capacity that

·9· · ·they currently have?

10· · · · · Do you have any opinion on that?

11· A· Well, it's going to -- it's going to continue

12· · ·fragmenting the landscape if they're not able to

13· · ·restore it.· And, you know, as I said in my testimony,

14· · ·if that's the case, I believe, then, that it will lead

15· · ·to other uses.

16· · · · · So what typically happens in land-use planning is,

17· · ·let's say for some reason a use isn't allowed or it was

18· · ·what we call grandfathered in and today it's not

19· · ·allowed.· Well, it's been there forever, so I should be

20· · ·able to do this thing.

21· · · · · And so if we have an industry scale or an

22· · ·industrial-type use out in an agricultural zone and

23· · ·that use ends its life cycle or goes away, but maybe

24· · ·the infrastructure is there or something of that

25· · ·nature, we'll see inquiries of more industrial uses



·1· · ·come in, say, Yeah, well, but for the last 30 years,

·2· · ·there's been a wind turbine here, so of course I should

·3· · ·have a communication facility, or of course I should

·4· · ·have, you know, a data server farm.· It -- it won't be

·5· · ·any more intense than what was there previously.

·6· · · · · And that's a -- that's a hard argument from our

·7· · ·standpoint to make.· That's typically when we see a lot

·8· · ·of petitions for rezoning, reclassification, when you

·9· · ·have that legacy of fragmentation in a particular zone.

10· Q· Is it a concern of the County, Ms. Cooke, that in the

11· · ·same manner that Mr. McMahan has tried to portray the

12· · ·Scout facility as a natural extension of the Nine

13· · ·Canyon project, that subsequent projects will be viewed

14· · ·or sought in relationship to the Horse Heaven wind farm

15· · ·should it be approved?

16· A· Yeah, I think, you know, in our layman's terms -- and

17· · ·I'm sorry, but in our -- in our terms, we say

18· · ·essentially we're opening a can of worms.· If you --

19· · ·you know, and Nine Canyon is a really good example of

20· · ·that.

21· · · · · So Nine Canyon was approved by the Board of

22· · ·Adjustment, which is a citizen panel who may not be

23· · ·adequately sufficient to consider all of the facts and

24· · ·the criteria and the issues at hand when it comes to a

25· · ·large-scale project like this, what effect it will



·1· ·have.

·2· · · · And so because Nine Canyon was approved, unlike

·3· ·the other -- we've had two other wind farms that

·4· ·weren't approved, and they were larger and almost in

·5· ·the same area.· It essentially opens the floodgates to

·6· ·other inquiries.· And I feel like, if this is approved,

·7· ·other developers will come in and say, Yeah, but

·8· ·there's this large-scale project right here, so, you

·9· ·know, it's not going to be that -- that much different

10· ·of an impact.

11· · · · Unfortunately, when we're analyzing the CUP

12· ·criteria or other uses in a -- in a zone for

13· ·permitting, we don't look at what's historically been

14· ·done, especially if there were some errors in analyzing

15· ·them.

16· · · · So we look at what's before us, not what was done

17· ·previously.· And so we would look at what's happening

18· ·now, not what happened then, and base it on today's

19· ·factors and today's criteria.

20· · · · And, like you said, you know, I just feel like if

21· ·this is approved, then it's going to lead to more

22· ·fragmentation, more interest, more developers.· And

23· ·that really has me concerned, because our landscape is

24· ·rare and unique and beautiful.· And, you know, we as

25· ·farmers, speaking from a personal sense, try really



·1· · ·hard to be good stewards of the land, both for

·2· · ·ourselves, our families, and our econ- -- our

·3· · ·community.

·4· Q· I've tried to focus, Ms. Cooke, on factors that are

·5· · ·germane to the CUP criteria.· Some of those are very,

·6· · ·very specific.· Some of those have to do almost with

·7· · ·SEPA-level mitigation.· Others are more values-based

·8· · ·and more subjective.· I think you heard Mr. Wendt's

·9· · ·testimony on that.

10· · · · · Let me wrap up with this, Ms. Cooke.

11· · · · · Regardless of Mr. McMahan's discussion of economic

12· · ·impacts, bringing it down to a farmer-by-farmer level,

13· · ·speaking strictly now to CUP criteria contained in the

14· · ·Benton County Code, are you aware of any other

15· · ·conditional use permit that would have a comparable

16· · ·effect to the 10 square miles of irrevocably lost or

17· · ·permanently disturbed, if you will, footprint or the

18· · ·110-square-mile area-wide, lease-wide boundary of this

19· · ·project?

20· · · · · Is there anything else that you've seen as a CUP

21· · ·approved by Benton County comparable to this?

22· A· I have -- I have not seen any CUP approved comparable

23· · ·to this.· The only CUP that we've had in the last

24· · ·eight, six years that wasn't an intense use was denied,

25· · ·and that was for our gravel pit.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· Ms. Cooke, I will end

·2· ·there.· Thank you very much.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· We've

·5· ·completed the redirect.· We're going to do a little bit

·6· ·of recross-exam, and then we'll come to the Chair and

·7· ·the Council.

·8· · · · Mr. McMahan, anything further?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Your Honor, can I

10· ·request a short break?

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Sure.· We have gone

12· ·for an hour.· So let's come back at 10:10, and we'll --

13· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- go from there.

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Pause in proceedings from

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 10:04 a.m. to 10:10 a.m.)

17

18· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right, everybody.

19· ·Let's see if we can get back on screen here.· Court

20· ·reporter's ready to go.

21· · · · Ms. Cooke, you ready?

22· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I am.· Thank you for

23· ·the break.

24· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· No worries.· I think

25· ·everybody probably it needed.· I appreciated the cue.



·1· · ·There were some nodding heads when you asked.

·2· · · · · Mr. McMahan, recross.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Thank you, Your Honor.

·4· · ·One question.· I promise.

·5

·6· · · · · · · · · · · ·RECROSS-EXAMINATION

·7· · ·BY MR. McMAHAN:

·8· Q· Ms. Cooke, are you aware that the project will cause or

·9· · ·propose only one acre of shrub-steppe habitat impacted?

10· A· I don't know that for a fact, but if you're saying that

11· · ·that's the impact, then okay.

12· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Okay.· That's my only

13· · ·question.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, any

15· · ·follow-up?

16

17· · · · · · · · · · · ·RECROSS-EXAMINATION

18· · ·BY MR. ARAMBURU:

19· Q· Ms. Cooke, during your testimony, you expressed some

20· · ·concerns about future development following the

21· · ·cessation of the wind and solar aspects of this

22· · ·project.

23· · · · · Do you remember that?

24· A· Yes.

25· Q· And is that a factor that's taken up during SEPA



·1· · ·review?

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Your Honor, if you

·3· · ·don't mind, I would object to this.· This -- if we're

·4· · ·following the scope of the -- the direct and

·5· · ·cross-examination, this is a new area that

·6· · ·Mr. Aramburu's taking us into that has not been

·7· · ·previously covered and is not within the appropriate

·8· · ·scope right now.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Got it.

10· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I'm following up on

11· · ·the witness's testimony, Your Honor.· That was her

12· · ·testimony.

13· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, we have

14· · ·a little bit of time today, so I'm going to allow it.

15· · ·But for future witnesses and we have a tight time

16· · ·frame, we do have to, as Mr. McMahan said, keep

17· · ·funneling down within the scope of things.

18· · · · · So go ahead and ask a question again, and then

19· · ·Ms. Cooke can answer, and then we'll keep moving along.

20· Q· (By Mr. Aramburu)· Okay.· Ms. Cooke, I went back and

21· · ·refreshed your recollection a bit about your testimony

22· · ·concerning your concerns about future use once

23· · ·particularly the solar aspects of this might be

24· · ·removed.

25· · · · · And is -- is the question of whether the project



·1· · ·would create a precedent for further actions, is that a

·2· · ·matter that's covered by SEPA review?

·3· A· I am unsure.· I don't know that a SEPA review would

·4· · ·speak directly to that or setting a precedent for

·5· · ·something, but it -- a SEPA review would definitely

·6· · ·review and comment on the loss of habitat, the impacts

·7· · ·to, or I would hope that it would.· You know, what the

·8· · ·ramifications would be both short-term and long-term,

·9· · ·which then may set a precedent later in the future.

10· Q· And is it the case that no final action is taken by

11· · ·Benton County on proposals until a final environmental

12· · ·impact statement is prepared?

13· A· On conditional use permits, that's -- that's correct.

14· · ·So typically for conditional use permits, we have

15· · ·concurrent applications.· We have a conditional use

16· · ·permit application, and we have a SEPA application or a

17· · ·checklist.· And those run concurrently.· However, the

18· · ·conditional use permit doesn't go to the hearing

19· · ·examiner until the SEPA has -- determination has been

20· · ·made.

21· Q· And a final impact statement prepared; is that correct?

22· A· I've never dealt with one of those, but, yes, if it got

23· · ·to that point, I assume we would need an FEIS before we

24· · ·come to a hearing for a CUP.

25· Q· And -- and under the -- the Benton County SEPA



·1· · ·ordinance, is it the case that the adequacy of a final

·2· · ·environmental impact statement is subject to appeal?

·3· A· Yes.

·4· Q· Okay.· And -- and --

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, I just

·6· · ·want to -- I just want to interrupt you here.· SEPA's

·7· · ·not on trial in the adjudication.· It's not appropriate

·8· · ·to go down that road.

·9· · · · · Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?

10· · · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Mr. Examiner, I'm

11· · ·asking what the Benton County procedures are.  I

12· · ·understand that the -- that a ruling has been made by

13· · ·you, which we take great exception to, that SEPA will

14· · ·be somehow excised from this process.· But I think I'm

15· · ·entitled to ask questions about the Benton County

16· · ·procedures and what procedures would be followed in

17· · ·Benton County.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I'm not going to allow

19· · ·it, Mr. Aramburu.· We already understand what the

20· · ·Benton County procedures are for conditional use, and

21· · ·we understand how the EFSEC procedures are in their

22· · ·place.· We're applying those.· We're not applying

23· · ·Benton County SEPA.· We're using state rules, and we're

24· · ·having EFSEC as the lead agency.

25· · · · · Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Witness has testified

·2· ·that in -- in her analysis of the County's analysis of

·3· ·conditional use permits, they also comply with SEPA.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And so does EFSEC.

·5· ·We're done -- we're done with this line of questioning,

·6· ·Mr. Aramburu.· I'm going to take great exception if you

·7· ·ask another SEPA question and ask our administrator to

·8· ·mute your mike.

·9· · · · Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Okay.· You're going

11· ·to cut me off.· That's fine, Mr. Torem.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I am.· If you don't

13· ·have any other non-SEPA-related questions, I'm going to

14· ·move on to the Yakama Nation.

15· · · · Ms. Voelckers, any other follow-up?

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Nothing from --

17· ·further from the Yakama Nation for Ms. Cooke.· Thank

18· ·you, Your Honor.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Chair

20· ·Drew, do you have any questions that you wanted to ask?

21· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:· I do not.

22· ·Thank you.

23· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Council members, any

24· ·questions you wanted to ask?

25· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· This is Eli.



·1· ·I have some questions.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right, Mr. Levitt.

·3· ·If you'll introduce yourself to the witness so she

·4· ·knows where you're from, and go ahead and ask your

·5· ·questions.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Hi,

·7· ·Ms. Cooke.· My name is Eli Levitt.· I'm a section

·8· ·manager at the Washington Department of Ecology, and

·9· ·I'm Ecology's Council member for EFSEC.

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Hello.

11· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Just a --

12· ·just a moment.· I need to pull up my questions.

13· · · · So do you or Mr. Wendt or your team do the GIS

14· ·analysis on land use on behalf of the County?· Land use

15· ·or zoning?

16· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· We used to.· However,

17· ·we established the GIS department, so now we work with

18· ·them to do our mapping.

19· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.· Do

20· ·you know, does anyone on that team kind of ground-truth

21· ·the maps by going out into the field ever?· You know,

22· ·to see, okay, this industrial land use borders this

23· ·agricultural use and, you know, try to get the lines as

24· ·correct as possible, so to speak?

25· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Typically -- typically



·1· ·that falls on the planners as we do site visits and

·2· ·work with landowners.· The planners will be the ones

·3· ·that bring up to GIS any amendments needed if there's a

·4· ·mapping error.

·5· · · · However, we as staff do not make any amendments or

·6· ·mapping changes to our data layers, which we get from

·7· ·other agencies.· So coming to mind, a pretty

·8· ·contentious one that we have is wetlands.· And although

·9· ·they may not be the most accurate, we're not able to

10· ·make amendments to those.· We send them to the

11· ·appropriate State agency to work with in determining

12· ·whether or not the wetland is actually present, as we

13· ·don't have the expertise to make those determinations.

14· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Got it.

15· · · · Yesterday, Mr. Wendt's testimony implied that, you

16· ·know, between the 2018 comprehensive plan and the

17· ·previous one --

18· · · · What was that?· Around 2006 or something.

19· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Mm-hmm.

20· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· -- that the

21· ·acres of ag land jumped, increased by something like

22· ·4,000 acres.

23· · · · Is it possible that 4- to 6,000 acres, that --

24· ·that sort of level of change, is within a margin of

25· ·error or due to the changes in the way, the



·1· · ·methodology -- methodologies that the County GI mappers

·2· · ·use?

·3· A· No, that change was -- came about from our ag lands

·4· · ·classification memo.· So we hired developers to analyze

·5· · ·a set of criteria, the eight criteria listed in the

·6· · ·WAC, and our -- and our current zoning.· And that net

·7· · ·gain came about from that classification memo.· So

·8· · ·after that data was provided to us, then we implemented

·9· · ·that into code by making those zone changes, which is

10· · ·when we held the public hearings and that sort of

11· · ·things.· We physically kind of added those areas into

12· · ·our agricultural zoning designation as staff.

13· · · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.  I

14· · ·guess I just want to note, it -- it seems that your

15· · ·testimony combines both personal and lived experience,

16· · ·so I just wanted to ask one quick question about the

17· · ·personal experience.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Sure.

19· · · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· And it's --

20· · ·it's valuable for us to learn about, you know, how ag

21· · ·works in your county for sure.· I visited multiple

22· · ·farms in the Palouse in my past work at Ecology, so I

23· · ·know a little bit about no-till and low-till dryland

24· · ·wheat farming.

25· · · · · Do you -- does your -- you know, you mentioned



·1· ·your family members in your testimony.· Do any of them

·2· ·or the other farmers you've spoken to about solar and

·3· ·wind developments use low- or no-till wheat farming

·4· ·techniques?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· My cousins

·6· ·actually use no-till wheat farming.· It seems to be a

·7· ·general practice of the Horse Heaven wheat farmers.  I

·8· ·don't know that -- I don't know their practices as

·9· ·intimately as I do irrigated ag, grow crops, and animal

10· ·husbandry, which is more of my background.· But in

11· ·speaking with them both in Klickitat County and in

12· ·Benton County as dryland wheat farmers, they both use

13· ·no-till practices.

14· · · · Our irrigated ag land, my cousin actually runs

15· ·soil regeneration practices on -- in the -- in the

16· ·critical areas using animal husbandry to regenerate

17· ·soil habitat and, you know, continue the economic

18· ·development of our farm in the areas that we don't

19· ·actually till up or irrigate or remove out of a

20· ·critical area.· And that's been extremely successful,

21· ·and he's actually taking it to defend in his thesis

22· ·this year as a senior at USC.

23· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Interesting.

24· · · · Well, going back to the GIS questions:· Does the

25· ·County GIS -- do GIS maps or layers at the level where



·1· ·you can differentiate exactly where active dryland

·2· ·wheat farming is occurring in the Horse Heaven Hills

·3· ·area?

·4· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· It's pretty appar- --

·5· ·yeah, it's pretty apparent from aerial imagery.· You

·6· ·have a swath of blond, which is the wheat field, and

·7· ·then you have the clear cutoff line.

·8· · · · The other defining factor is that the wheat

·9· ·farmers tend to use sections.· Because of the large

10· ·linear squares that they have up there, irrigated ag

11· ·tends to use crop circles.· And so just visually, you

12· ·can kind of see the difference between those two

13· ·visually from the aerial imagery.

14· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· So if you

15· ·asked your GIS mapping team, they could estimate the

16· ·number of acres in the Horse Heaven region that is in

17· ·active use right now for dryland wheat farming and/or

18· ·ranching?

19· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Ranching is a lot -- a

20· ·heck of a lot tougher, just because you can't really

21· ·define where people run cattle on.· It looks like

22· ·open -- open habitat.· So you wouldn't know if it was

23· ·preserved or not.

24· · · · But as far as dryland wheat goes, you could

25· ·probably slap a polygon and get a rough estimate,



·1· ·obviously not including physical barriers and canyons

·2· ·and that sort of thing.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.· And

·4· ·jumping around here a little bit.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Excuse me, Mr. Levitt.

·6· · · · Ms. Cooke, you just called something slap a pole

·7· ·up...?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Sorry.· Sorry.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· What was that?

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· To draw a polygon

11· ·using GIS, you know, roughly.· Not necessarily

12· ·accurately as far as determining how many acres within

13· ·the Horse Heaven region would be dryland versus

14· ·irrigated.· But we do actually have that analysis for

15· ·zoning -- specific zoning designations.

16· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· That's fine.

17· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· We just don't have --

18· ·okay.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I just -- I missed the

20· ·word "polygon" as you spoke quickly.

21· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Oh.

22· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I wanted to make sure

23· ·it was accurate in the record.

24· · · · Mr. Levitt, you had a follow-up.

25· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Yeah.· Just



·1· ·a few more.· Three more maybe.

·2· · · · To your knowledge, has the County, Energy

·3· ·northwest, or any other entity that you partner with

·4· ·surveyed and/or reviewed the productivity of farming or

·5· ·any lessons learned in general, such as challenges and

·6· ·opportunities, associated with the Nine Canyon wind

·7· ·farm?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Not to my knowledge,

·9· ·no.

10· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.· So

11· ·the County and/or partners like Energy Northwest have

12· ·not, for example, asked the -- the wheat farmers in

13· ·that area how are things going since --

14· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I'm not --

15· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· -- since the

16· ·wind farm was established?

17· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah, I'm -- I'm not

18· ·aware of it, but Ener- -- I mean, Energy Northwest may

19· ·check in with their leaseholders.· I -- I just -- we,

20· ·the County, are a bit disattached from that narrative,

21· ·so we don't -- we don't hear things like that unless we

22· ·know someone personally involved or professionally

23· ·involved.

24· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.

25· ·Mr. Wendt didn't get into this yesterday, but I guess



·1· ·I'm curious.

·2· · · · You said something earlier about a board of

·3· ·citizens approved the Nine Canyon winds -- wind farm in

·4· ·some way.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Do you have

·7· ·any -- yeah.· Okay.

·8· · · · Could you give me just a very brief background on

·9· ·that, what that process was, from your perspective?

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· So currently a

11· ·conditional use permit is heard by a hearings examiner,

12· ·which is a quasi-judicial, typically a lawyer that we,

13· ·the County, hire.· And she -- she's a woman for us.

14· ·She's an unbiased third party.· So she will hear these.

15· ·She's also professionally trained generally in land-use

16· ·law.· And so she will go through our code and all the

17· ·testimony she's received and the application and review

18· ·it for consistency and then will make her determination

19· ·as to whether something should be approved or denied.

20· · · · The Nine Canyon project -- so prior to having a

21· ·hearing examiner set up, my understanding is -- 'cause

22· ·I wasn't here at the time -- the County used a Board of

23· ·Adjustment, and that was a panel of -- of citizens with

24· ·no particular training who would hear land-use matters

25· ·and make a decision based -- which was supposed to be



·1· ·based on the county code.

·2· · · · We have a similar board called the planning

·3· ·commission, which I oversee, and I can tell you that

·4· ·the difference in the hearings are night and day,

·5· ·especially with consideration and the scope that needs

·6· ·to be narrowed into what they're reviewing.· I feel

·7· ·that hearings examiners are a lot more defensible and

·8· ·accurate in their decisions.· The -- when you get

·9· ·boards of private citizens making decisions on land

10· ·use, sometimes they're not always the best decisions or

11· ·the most appropriate decisions.

12· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.· Then

13· ·I'm curious, I guess, from just the County staff

14· ·perspective, so this includes you and Mr. Wendt and

15· ·other County officials.

16· · · · Is there anything official that changed at the

17· ·County level, 2020 and prior -- you know, it could be a

18· ·commissioner's resolution; it could be changes to code;

19· ·it could be white papers, policies, procedures that

20· ·changed -- that would impact how you and your team

21· ·approach the consideration of proposed wind farms or --

22· ·or solar farms?

23· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I don't believe so.  I

24· ·mean, we had a tax amendment which prohibited them

25· ·after 2020, but I don't -- I don't believe that there



·1· ·was any documentation or guidance of how to review a

·2· ·wind proposal except for those that are listed in our

·3· ·county code and our comprehensive plan, kind of those

·4· ·guiding documents that we as staff would use.

·5· · · · But, again, you know, that's outside of our -- our

·6· ·purview, because we don't get to make those decisions

·7· ·on those types of permits.· It's the same as a dog

·8· ·kennel.· I don't get to decide if somebody gets a dog

·9· ·kennel or not.· That has to go through another

10· ·administrator as far as approval goes.

11· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.· Thank

12· ·you.· That's it.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Do other Council

14· ·members have any questions for Ms. Cooke?

15· · · · All right.· Hearing none.

16· · · · I have one question, Ms. Cooke.

17· · · · From Page 8 toward the end of your -- to the end

18· ·of your testimony, there -- the theme talks about

19· ·taking land out of production and not maintaining

20· ·agricultural viability for a variety of concerns

21· ·between family farms and succession.

22· · · · When I got down to Page 10, your conclusion was it

23· ·won't be economically viable for farmers to return the

24· ·agricultural lands of long-term commercial significance

25· ·to agricultural use at the end of the Horse Heaven wind



·1· ·farm project life.

·2· · · · Have you thought about any ways that you could

·3· ·assist from the County level or you might ask EFSEC or

·4· ·the State government to assist, assuming this

·5· ·recommendation is for approval and it's built?

·6· · · · With that scenario, have you thought of any ways

·7· ·that would change your conclusion to make it easier for

·8· ·things to go back to long-term commercial significance

·9· ·and agricultural use?

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I have not.· But I can

11· ·see where you're going with it.· And honestly I would

12· ·hope that either the State or, you know, another body

13· ·would help incubate and, you know, generate these maybe

14· ·progressive ideas that would help them keep in the

15· ·scope of agricultural while maintaining a new source of

16· ·income.· I just personally don't -- I haven't done it

17· ·myself or thought about it or engaged with anybody on

18· ·that in the context of this project.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· One of the ideas that,

20· ·as I looked at your testimony last night, that came to

21· ·mind -- I don't know if the Council, it's within their

22· ·scope even -- is a question of you -- you made it seem

23· ·as though it's economically infeasible to reverse the

24· ·effects of the wind farm and get things done.· It would

25· ·be a financial issue for the landowners.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Mm-hmm.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And I wondered if

·3· ·there was any consideration in the County for financial

·4· ·assistance to do that, and if so, some kind of

·5· ·long-term trust that may be part of the conditioning

·6· ·the Council considers.· Again, sometimes we're looking

·7· ·at environmental impacts, not financial impacts, but

·8· ·part of the decommissioning of the project usually

·9· ·includes posting a bond and other fiscal things.

10· · · · So I'm wondering again in the context of

11· ·decommissioning whether the County has thought about --

12· ·for this project, for Nine Canyon, for any of them that

13· ·might be a change to an agricultural area -- a trust

14· ·fund of some sort -- how it's funded, I don't know --

15· ·to make sure it's not a financial burden on the

16· ·individual, and the County, as you've said, can

17· ·maintain its regional and zoning area interests to get

18· ·things back and what the County's vision might be for

19· ·beyond our lifetimes.

20· · · · Long question, but the concept, I hope, is clear.

21· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· Yeah.· No, and

22· ·it's a great concept, and it's a great idea.· You know,

23· ·unfortunately, I just -- I don't know about the greater

24· ·County as a whole, but certainly for -- for my office,

25· ·you know, we just don't have the legal ability to do



·1· ·that or make those requirements on the applicant.  I

·2· ·would feel like it's outside the burden of what, you

·3· ·know, a conditional use permit or other, you know,

·4· ·permit that we apply conditions of approval for.

·5· · · · It's kind of outside the scope of what we normally

·6· ·would have done.· But that's not to say it's

·7· ·impossible.· There -- you know, there's universities

·8· ·and all sorts of interest groups that are continuing to

·9· ·work on the promotion of agricultural, so maybe in the

10· ·future it would get -- it would get approved into state

11· ·law and we could have something set up like that for

12· ·them.· It's just not something that's available on the

13· ·table at the moment.

14· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And, admittedly, I

15· ·don't understand all of the decommissioning scope of

16· ·what EFSEC can or can't do.· It's just an outside-the-

17· ·box thought on, as you say, the longer term and perhaps

18· ·more progressive thinking.· Thank you for the input on

19· ·that.

20· · · · Mr. Harper, does that raise anything else -- this

21· ·is your witness -- before we...?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No.· No, it doesn't.

23· ·Thank you, Your Honor.

24· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Council

25· ·members, Chair Drew, any other questions?



·1· · · · I see Eli Levitt has his hand up.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Yeah.

·3· ·Sorry.· I guess, just a quick follow-up question.

·4· · · · So you mentioned that there were two wind farms

·5· ·proposed in the county in the past, and those were

·6· ·denied in some fashion.

·7· · · · Can you talk about, just briefly, about how the

·8· ·process worked for Nine Canyon versus those two other

·9· ·farm -- wind farm proposals that you mentioned?

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I believe they were

11· ·all heard by the Board of Adjustment.· I'm not entirely

12· ·sure.· The other two are from 2001, and our records

13· ·from those days are quite sparse.· Recordkeeping wasn't

14· ·quite a priority then as it was now.

15· · · · But my understanding is they were larger projects,

16· ·anywhere from 200 to 500 turbines that were roughly 250

17· ·to maybe 300-plus feet, covering 4,000-ish acres.

18· · · · One was denied.· The other, we don't know -- it

19· ·was not approved.· I just don't know what the status is

20· ·because of recordkeeping purposes, but it was not

21· ·approved.· But those more than likely went in front of

22· ·the Board of Adjustments as well.

23· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· And to your

24· ·knowledge, for all three of those, Nine Canyon and the

25· ·two -- other two you mentioned, did the County ever



·1· ·discuss mitigation measures, that they would be

·2· ·interested if -- if the projects went forward?· Does

·3· ·that make sense?

·4· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Not to my knowledge.

·5· ·I haven't done a deep dive into the Nine Canyon project

·6· ·myself, so I don't know what was discussed.· I know it

·7· ·was an MDNS, which professionally for me is an

·8· ·interesting choice.· I feel like that's something I

·9· ·wouldn't have made a determination on.

10· · · · But one of the other projects actually had an EIS

11· ·request, and I don't know that it was ever seen

12· ·through, so my guess is, from that project, that one,

13· ·that had an EIS, it could have had mitigation measures

14· ·or, you know, spoken to that as part of that scope for

15· ·an EIS.

16· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:· Okay.· Thank

17· ·you.

18· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Lenny Young?

19· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:· Yeah.

20· · · · Good morning, Ms. Cooke.· I'm Lenny Young.· I'm a

21· ·Department of Natural Resources representative to

22· ·EFSEC.· And quick follow-up to Mr. Levitt's question.

23· · · · Could you -- do you know the name or some type of

24· ·a reference if we wanted to look more into those two

25· ·other projects that were denied?· Is there some kind of



·1· ·a name or identifier we could use to -- to find

·2· ·information on those?

·3· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yeah, the one was,

·4· ·ironically, Horse Heaven Wind.· The other was Maiden

·5· ·Wind.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· M-a-i-d-e-n.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:· Got it.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Any others?

10· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Those are the only two

11· ·besides Nine Canyon that I'm aware of.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Oh.· I'm sorry.· Any

13· ·other questions --

14· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Oh.· Sorry.

15· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- from Council

16· ·members?

17· · · · All right.· Seeing none.

18· · · · I want to make sure the parties understand.  I

19· ·think when Mr. Young's asking about getting other

20· ·information, we'll make sure we have advice from our

21· ·attorney general as to what's in the record and what's

22· ·not.· We talked with Council members about not doing

23· ·our own research outside the record, so that advice is

24· ·being given as we go.· And if anything else is sought

25· ·for the record, it will be in the form of a data



·1· ·request to parties, and you'll know what the Council

·2· ·members are considering.

·3· · · · So if there's any concerns that Council members

·4· ·are asking questions in that regard, they're not

·5· ·necessarily familiar with the -- the niceties of the

·6· ·APA, typical trial practice, and what might be a

·7· ·limited record.· But certainly if the Council members

·8· ·for the adjudication are going to have anything, you'll

·9· ·know what it is.

10· · · · All right.· Anybody have any other questions for

11· ·Ms. Cooke that I need to recognize before we let her go

12· ·and move on to our next order of business?

13· · · · All right.· Hearing none.

14· · · · Ms. Cooke, thank you.· Good morning.· And --

15· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- I appreciate your

17· ·time and testimony.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Witness excused.)
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20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Council

21· ·members, today we had just the one scheduled witness.

22· ·And previous at the housekeeping session, there was a

23· ·question of whether or not we could move some things

24· ·around.

25· · · · We have permission from the Yakama Nation and all



·1· ·the other parties to call Mr. Ganuelas and

·2· ·Mr. Nuetzmann today.

·3· · · · Ms. Voelckers, what's the status of their

·4· ·availability?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you, Your

·6· ·Honor.· They are available.· I would ask that we take a

·7· ·brief break.· But they are here and available to be

·8· ·sworn in.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· We're

10· ·going to take a break just to get them on the line.

11· ·We'll come back at 10:45.

12· · · · Before we go off to our break, the Nuetzmann

13· ·exhibits that you might want to have, if you have any

14· ·questions, Council members, even though they're not

15· ·scheduled for cross-exam, would be 4011_T and 4012.

16· · · · As for Mr. Ganuelas, they would be mostly

17· ·confidential.· But 4008_T and then 4009 and 4010.

18· ·Those are both marked as confidential, and you have a

19· ·redacted version as well.· The reply testimony is an

20· ·Exhibit 4013.· So if you are looking for something to

21· ·do in the next eight minutes --

22· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:· Judge.

23· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- to get ready, we

24· ·would have those.

25· · · · Chair Drew.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:· Would you

·2· ·please have someone put those in the chat since I

·3· ·didn't write that quickly.

·4· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Sure.· They're easy --

·5· · · · · · · · · · · CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· -- to find in the

·7· ·exhibit list.· The -- the Yakama Nation's exhibits all

·8· ·start with a 4.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And I'll ask that --

11· ·we'll get those in the chat, 4011 and -12, 4008 through

12· ·-13.

13· · · · All right.· Thank you.· We'll take our break.

14· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:· Oh.· I just got

15· ·a message.· Okay.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yep.· We'll take our

17· ·break and come back at 10:45.

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Pause in proceedings from

19· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 10:37 a.m. to 10:45 a.m.)
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21· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· It's now

22· ·10:45.· We're back on the record.

23· · · · Ms. Voelckers, have you had a chance to make sure

24· ·whether Mr. Ganuelas and Nuetzmann are on the line?

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Yes, Your Honor.



·1· ·They are logging on through Mr. Jones' computer.· I see

·2· ·Mr. Nuetzmann now.

·3· · · · If I could ask a clarifying question before we get

·4· ·going regarding something that you said before the

·5· ·break.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yes, ma'am.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Our understanding

·8· ·was that Council was going to be provided with the

·9· ·confidential versions of everything, not just the

10· ·redacted ones.· And so I don't know if that -- I just

11· ·wanted to make sure that that was the case.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yes.· And

13· ·Ms. Masengale has definitely provided all of those

14· ·documents.· We've got them in a separate part of our

15· ·SharePoint drive that only has access to Council

16· ·members and not to the general EFSEC or UTC population

17· ·that is on the same server, to my understanding.· So,

18· ·yes, they have both.

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Okay.· I appreciate

20· ·the clarification and also just making sure they have a

21· ·chance to review that before Monday for the other

22· ·members that are testifying.· So thank you for that.

23· · · · I see that Mr. Nuetzmann is all set up.

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Witness Mark Nuetzmann

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · appearing remotely.)



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Let me get

·2· ·to where his exhibits are.

·3· · · · All right.· Good morning, Mr. Nuetzmann.· How are

·4· ·you?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Good morning, Judge

·6· ·Torem.· I'm good.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I'm going to swear you

·8· ·in to adopt your testimony, and then we'll see if

·9· ·there's any questions.

10· · · · Again, my understanding is that your testimony is

11· ·limited to two exhibits.· They are 4011_T, your

12· ·prefiled direct testimony; and Exhibit 4012, your reply

13· ·testimony to Erik Jansen's rebuttal testimony.

14· · · · Are those the two documents that you're aware of

15· ·you've submitted as testimony?

16· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· That's correct.

17· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I'm going

18· ·to have you raise your right hand and adopt that, and

19· ·then we'll see if the Council members have any

20· ·questions.

21

22· ·MARK NUETZMANN,· · · · · · ·appearing remotely, was duly

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·sworn by the Administrative

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Law Judge as follows:

25· ·////



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Do you, Mark

·2· ·Nuetzmann, solemnly swear or affirm that all testimony

·3· ·you've indicated you'll adopt today and any answers you

·4· ·give to Council questions will be the truth, the whole

·5· ·truth, and nothing but the truth?

·6· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I do.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

·8· · · · I'm going to note that for the record, those

·9· ·exhibits I talked about have been adopted under oath,

10· ·and they're now admitted to the record.

11· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Exhibit Nos. 4008_T_Revised,

12· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4009_Confidential,

13· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4009_Redacted,

14· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4010_Confidential,

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 4010_Redacted, 4011_T, 4012,

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · and 4013 admitted.)
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18· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Council members, Chair

19· ·Drew, any questions for Mr. Nuetzmann?

20· · · · All right.· I'm not hearing any, Mr. Nuetzmann.

21· ·That's probably the easiest morning at trial you'll

22· ·ever experience.

23· · · · And we're going to take our next witness from the

24· ·Yakama Nation, Mr. Leon Ganuelas.· So thank you,

25· ·Mr. Nuetzmann.· So thank you, Mr. Nuetzmann.· You can



·1· ·stand down and switch places.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Witness excused.)

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Witness Leon Ganuelas

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · appearing remotely.)

·6

·7· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Good morning.· Are you

·8· ·Leon Ganuelas?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Good morning.· Yes,

10· ·sir, I am.

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Out of respect for the

12· ·confidentiality of much of your testimony, Council

13· ·members, we're now going to make sure that our system

14· ·for moving into closed-record hearing works.· So I'm

15· ·going to ask staff to move us to a Microsoft Teams

16· ·breakout room.

17· · · · So, Mr. Ganuelas, hopefully everybody transfers

18· ·over.· And I'll do a quick roll call of parties and

19· ·Council members to make sure we're all there, and then

20· ·we'll take your testimony.

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Pause in proceedings from

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 10:49 a.m. to 10:53 a.m.)

23· · · · · · · · ·** Closed-record hearing **

24· ·* Not available to general public per protective order *

25· ·////



·1

·2

·3

·4

·5

·6

·7

·8

·9

10

11

12

13

14
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16

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Closed-record session

18· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · concluded.)

19

20· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· I can see

21· ·that a number of us are back, moved over automatically

22· ·from the other meeting.· Let's see if I can have the

23· ·participant list put up on the side.· I see there's

24· ·more of us in this session than there were in the

25· ·other.



·1· · · · For any members of the public that are listening,

·2· ·we're back from a closed-record session where witness

·3· ·Leon Ganuelas was talking about some privileged and

·4· ·confidential information regarding pronghorn antelope.

·5· · · · There are redacted versions of his testimony

·6· ·available on the EFSEC website if you're interested.

·7· ·Those are -- the redacted portions are the ones that

·8· ·members of the public or those that haven't signed

·9· ·confidentiality agreements can -- can access.

10· · · · And we were gone out of public session for about

11· ·30 minutes, maybe less.

12· · · · All right.· Council members, I don't know that

13· ·there's any other business.· I'm going to ask the

14· ·parties again if I'm overlooking anything we said we

15· ·would do on the record today with all of the Council

16· ·members.

17· · · · Mr. McMahan, was there anything on your list that

18· ·we still needed to do with the Council members today?

19· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Not that I'm aware of,

20· ·Your Honor.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Harper?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No.· I don't think so.

23· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And Ms. Reyneveld.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Nothing further.

25· ·Thank you.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Aramburu, let me

·2· ·come to you.· Was there anything else we needed to do

·3· ·on the record with Council members?

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I do have an item,

·5· ·but the Council members' presence is not necessary.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· Thank you.

·7· ·We'll do another housekeeping session here shortly.

·8· · · · And, Ms. Voelckers, anything else from the Yakama

·9· ·Nation we need to do with the Council members today?

10· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Nothing else for the

11· ·Council today from Yakama Nation.· Thank you, Your

12· ·Honor.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Then

14· ·looking forward to tomorrow, Council members, the

15· ·Rahmig scheduled testimony is still not happening

16· ·tomorrow.· But I understand that we're going to have

17· ·Morgan Shook.

18· · · · And Morgan Shook, I'll go over the exhibit numbers

19· ·with you if you have your pens and pencils ready.

20· ·Morgan Shook's testimony will be available also, I'm

21· ·sure, from the very busy Ms. Masengale in a daily

22· ·folder on the SharePoint drive to make it easy to

23· ·access and review this evening.

24· · · · Morgan Shook was originally scheduled for next

25· ·Tuesday, August 22nd, at 11:40 a.m. and supposed to go



·1· ·after a lunch break into 2:30 p.m.· So there's

·2· ·approximately two hours of testimony to be ready for

·3· ·tomorrow.· And unless there's anything else added,

·4· ·we'll start at 9:00, and then we have the monthly

·5· ·Council meeting at 1:30.· Please plan on being

·6· ·available for this adjudication maybe up till 12 or

·7· ·12:30 just in case we're able to add anything else and

·8· ·front-load the schedule a little bit more to

·9· ·accommodate the ever-fluid schedule we've got.

10· · · · But the exhibits that I have for this

11· ·applicant-sponsored witness start with 1008_T.· And

12· ·that's a set of revised testimony filed by the

13· ·applicant.· The supporting exhibits follow in sequence

14· ·through 1009 all the way through 1020.· And there's

15· ·also some reply testimony, if I'm not mistaken, at

16· ·1051_R.· So essentially 1008 through 1020 and 1051.

17· · · · Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, did I get those

18· ·correct?

19· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Yes, Your Honor.

20· ·Thank you.

21· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And Ms. [Sic] Shook

22· ·will be available at 9 a.m. tomorrow?

23· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Correct.

24· · · · It's "Mr. Shook" --

25· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Oh.



·1· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· -- just for the

·2· ·record.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Thank you.

·4· · · · Council members, any question on your homework for

·5· ·tonight and ready for tomorrow?

·6· · · · All right.· Then we'll recess the adjudicative

·7· ·hearing portion.

·8· · · · I have a question from Mr. Livingston.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:· Yeah.

10· ·I'm sorry, Judge.· I missed:· What time will we start

11· ·tomorrow?

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· 9:00.· I'll do a

13· ·housekeeping session with the parties to see about any

14· ·other schedule items I can advise you of, and then at

15· ·9:00 we'll have Mr. Morgan Shook adopt his testimony

16· ·and see if there's any questions.

17· · · · We know we're going to have cross-exam from --

18· ·it'll be a follow-up after Mr. Aramburu's questions on

19· ·behalf of Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S. from the applicant.· So

20· ·about an hour-plus is what Mr. Aramburu is estimating,

21· ·followed by any redirect exam.· And then, as you've

22· ·seen, the round-robin that we do.· And then we'll get

23· ·to the Council members' questions along with anything

24· ·else we need after that.

25· · · · Any other Council questions?



·1· · · · All right.· You had a short day today.· I can't

·2· ·promise there'll be many of these ahead.· Especially

·3· ·tomorrow you'll have a follow-on Council meeting.· So

·4· ·thank you very much.· And I'm going to take a brief

·5· ·recess here till 11:25 so people can stretch and

·6· ·everybody can sign on or off, and we'll resume at 11:25

·7· ·with our housekeeping session.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Pause in proceedings from

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 11:22 a.m. to 11:25 a.m.)

10

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· We're back into

12· ·a housekeeping session.· We're back on the record to

13· ·take any notes that we need.

14· · · · Mr. Aramburu, I'll come to you first.· You said

15· ·you had a note you wanted to take up.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· I have a question for

17· ·you, Judge Torem.· When might we expect decisions on

18· ·the other outstanding motions?

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Tomorrow morning.

20· ·I've got some time this afternoon suddenly.· So I

21· ·apologize that you're still waiting.· But tomorrow

22· ·morning, you'll have my answers on as many of them as I

23· ·can get to.· And given the time balance I have today,

24· ·I'm hoping all.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· And particularly



·1· ·because at least one of the motions deals with

·2· ·scheduling, if you don't have a written ruling, an oral

·3· ·ruling would be -- would be helpful to us as well, just

·4· ·so we -- we know how to -- how to schedule things.· So

·5· ·thank you for that.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I appreciate that.

·7· ·And that's why I try to make notes on that oral ruling

·8· ·today.· And I've asked the court reporter to make sure,

·9· ·if it's reduced to writing that way, then it can also

10· ·be circulated to the parties as soon as possible.

11· · · · So if it's efficiency sake, Mr. Aramburu, I will

12· ·give the oral rulings as best we can and use the

13· ·transcript to document those going forward for

14· ·preserving issues for appeal and a way to cite to them.

15· ·I'm trying to make sure that to service both purposes

16· ·of efficiency and any other errors that might want to

17· ·be called out by parties.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· So let me just

19· ·understand the process here.· You -- you made an oral

20· ·ruling on our motion to compel.· Are you going

21· ·to re- -- are you going to enter an independent written

22· ·ruling on that, or are we just going to rely on your

23· ·oral comments?

24· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· I am not planning to

25· ·issue a further written ruling, but I will circulate in



·1· ·advance a separate piece of the transcript that

·2· ·memorializes it.· Just given the time constraints on

·3· ·everything else, Mr. Aramburu, I just -- I don't want

·4· ·to keep the parties waiting for those written products.

·5· ·The ruling has been made, and I think from there, it

·6· ·will speak for itself.

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· So the date of your

·8· ·ruling is today, then?· Would that be correct?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· It must be, yes.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Okay.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

12· ·Mr. McMahan, any other housekeeping items that the

13· ·applicant had for me today?· Perhaps you've heard from

14· ·Ms. Perlmutter over the course of the morning.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· I will let

16· ·Ms. Stavitsky talk about her communication with

17· ·Ms. Perlmutter.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Yeah, nothing more

19· ·for Scout, Your Honor, except just I can provide an

20· ·update.· We heard back from Ms. Perlmutter, who says

21· ·she's feeling slightly better but still out of

22· ·commission.· So we'll keep checking in and update

23· ·you-all.

24· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.

25· · · · Mr. Harper, any other updates from the County or



·1· ·housekeeping measures for today?

·2· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No.· Thank you, Judge.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

·4· ·Ms. Reyneveld?

·5· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I don't have

·6· ·anything except for, if we wanted to try to move up the

·7· ·wildlife testimony, then Your Honor's direction is for

·8· ·us to coordinate that and come to you with a proposal.

·9· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Maybe not you

10· ·individually, but the parties together collaboratively.

11· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Okay.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Do you have any status

13· ·updates, if appropriate, on your proposed settlement

14· ·agreement that you referenced, I think, last Thursday

15· ·in the fifth prehearing conference regarding the

16· ·eastern solar array wildlife impacts, and there was

17· ·some reference to the memorandum Page 2?· I don't

18· ·remember if we're calling it the Kobus memo or the Moon

19· ·memo.· Any updates on that?

20· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I do not have any

21· ·updates.· And there will not be any updates until the

22· ·conclusion of the adjudicative process from the

23· ·attorney general's perspective.

24· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Okay.· That helps.

25· ·Because I was wondering if I needed to mention to the



·1· ·Council members they might see that during the course

·2· ·of the adjudication.· Because it won't be signed before

·3· ·the end of the adjudication, it's probably best not to

·4· ·give them any anticipation that there is something

·5· ·coming in.· I don't want any negative connotation or

·6· ·positive connotation to be implied because of the

·7· ·ongoing negotiations there.

·8· · · · Would you agree, Ms. Reyneveld?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yes, I think that

10· ·makes sense.· Thanks, Your Honor.

11· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Over the course of my

12· ·career, I've learned that settlements in principle are

13· ·not always settlements in writing.· So we'll leave it

14· ·at that.

15· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yeah, and I would

16· ·say that it's not even a settlement in principle.

17· ·It's -- we've had discussions around the potential for

18· ·settlement.

19· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Excellent.· That helps

20· ·clarify it even further.· Okay.

21· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Your Honor.

22· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yes.· Ms. Voelckers, I

23· ·was about to come to you.

24· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Oh.· Well, just

25· ·before we move on from this topic, if Ms. Reyneveld was



·1· ·able to, we would appreciate clarity on when those

·2· ·discussions ceased.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· I think we had the

·4· ·discussions in the spring, and that's -- I think --

·5· ·correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. McMahan, but I don't think

·6· ·there were further -- further discussions specifically

·7· ·on this that were substantive after that.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Yes, Ms. Reyneveld, I

·9· ·think that's correct.· And I -- if I remember right --

10· ·stand to be corrected -- there was a date on the

11· ·document after we essentially completed those tentative

12· ·discussions.· And as far as I can recall -- and, Sarah,

13· ·correct me if you think I'm wrong -- I think that was

14· ·it from the -- from the date of the last version that

15· ·we circulated.

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· That's my

17· ·recollection.· Thanks, Mr. McMahan.

18· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· So is it fair to

19· ·say, then, that there weren't further discussions about

20· ·the proposal after the date of the one that Mr. McMahan

21· ·e-mailed to the parties last Friday?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· Well, I didn't want to

23· ·speak for Sarah, or for Ms. Randolph -- excuse me --

24· ·but I believe that's correct.

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· Yeah, I don't -- I



·1· ·think we might have checked in on the status of it, but

·2· ·there was no substantive discussions after that, is my

·3· ·recollection after that date, so...

·4· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Thank you.· We

·5· ·appreciate the clarification.

·6· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Ms. Voelckers, did you

·7· ·have any other items for the housekeeping?

·8· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Just a request to

·9· ·the parties, Your Honor, that -- that we do engage in

10· ·that conversation around who might be taking

11· ·Mr. Shook's spot on Tuesday before tomorrow morning's

12· ·check-in with you.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Yeah, I think we will

14· ·hear from you guys in the morning.· I won't participate

15· ·in those conversations, but hopefully the parties will

16· ·make time today.

17· · · · I just see that Ms. Masengale's posted an updated

18· ·exhibit list.· I have one question about an exhibit

19· ·yesterday.· Ms. Masengale, maybe you can clarify it

20· ·best.

21· · · · I'm looking for Exhibit 1040_R.· I think that was

22· ·from Ms. McClain.· And I don't know if we expressly

23· ·asked her to adopt that testimony.· My notes didn't

24· ·catch up to that.· Did yours?

25· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· Judge Torem, I'm



·1· ·just reopening that document, and I will be back with

·2· ·you shortly.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· While

·4· ·you're doing that, the four items.· And, Mr. Aramburu,

·5· ·you might keep along with me here to make sure I've got

·6· ·them.

·7· · · · There's your motion to reconsider the

·8· ·witnesses' -- the testimony that were stricken:

·9· ·Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and Simon.· That's one item I know

10· ·you're waiting for.

11· · · · Related to that is the applicant's motion to

12· ·strike certain rebuttal response testimony of, I think,

13· ·those same witnesses.· There may be more.

14· · · · And, Ms. Reyneveld, there's your motion, which I

15· ·think will be the easiest for me, on your proposed

16· ·supplemental testimony.

17· · · · And, finally, there's Mr. McMahan and the

18· ·applicant's motion to supplement the record with

19· ·Mr. Kobus's testimony.

20· · · · Mr. Aramburu, were there any other items that

21· ·you're still waiting for that I didn't list?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MR. ARAMBURU:· Those sound like the

23· ·ones that are on the list that have not yet been

24· ·decided.

25· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Thank you.



·1· ·I'm just making sure I'm not overlooked something.

·2· ·Sometimes the e-mails have been voluminous, or I think

·3· ·I've used the word "onslaught" before.

·4· · · · Mr. McMahan, anything on the list that I didn't

·5· ·call out that needs to be?

·6· · · · · · · · · · · MR. McMAHAN:· No, Your Honor.· Thank

·7· ·you.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· Mr. Harper?

·9· · · · · · · · · · · MR. HARPER:· No.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.

11· ·Ms. Reyneveld?

12· · · · · · · · · · · MS. REYNEVELD:· That summary

13· ·reflects my understanding of the pending motions.

14· ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· And Ms. Voelckers?

16· · · · · · · · · · · MS. VOELCKERS:· Nothing further.

17· ·Thank you, Your Honor.

18· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· That's my

19· ·homework for this afternoon.

20· · · · Ms. Masengale, what did you find out about

21· ·Exhibit 1040, Sub R?

22· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· Judge Torem, I had

23· ·marked that as admitted, but if that's an error, I can

24· ·delete that.

25· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· No.· I'll just ask



·1· ·applicant's counsel:· Was that, to your recollection,

·2· ·also adopted by the witness yesterday?

·3· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· Your Honor, I'm

·4· ·sorry.· The sound broke out.

·5· · · · Did -- Ms. Masengale, did you say 1040 was or was

·6· ·not adopted?

·7· · · · · · · · · · · MS. MASENGALE:· I marked it as being

·8· ·admitted.· However, that may have been an error on my

·9· ·part.

10· · · · · · · · · · · MS. STAVITSKY:· No, it was -- that

11· ·was what I had in my notes as well, and it should be

12· ·admitted.· So that's correct and accurate.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · · · · · JUDGE TOREM:· All right.· Again,

14· ·it's probably my note-taking as I was multitasking.

15· · · · Does any other party have a question and concern

16· ·whether we can just on the record today confirm 1040_R

17· ·from Ms. McClain was adopted?

18· · · · All right.· Hearing no objections, then.· If it

19· ·wasn't yesterday, it is today.

20· · · · Thank you, Ms. Masengale.· Your notes, I expect,

21· ·are better than mine on some of these as we work

22· ·through it.

23· · · · All right.· Tomorrow morning at 8:30, then, is

24· ·when we'll convene our housekeeping session, and we'll

25· ·go on with Mr. Morgan Cooke's [sic] testimony and



·1· ·whatever else you agree might be fit in before we break

·2· ·for the afternoon Council meeting.

·3· · · · After our session tomorrow morning and before the

·4· ·Council meeting, we'll talk again and confirm as best

·5· ·we can the week of August 21st to 25th and what we can

·6· ·do going forward.

·7· · · · And I'd ask Mr. McMahan and Ms. Stavitsky to keep

·8· ·us apprised, even though we're not going to conduct

·9· ·sessions on Thursday, Friday, or over the weekend, on

10· ·any developments with Ms. Perlmutter's health.

11· ·Hopefully it takes a turn for the better and we'll have

12· ·her with all vim and vigor ready to go next week.

13· · · · So with that, thank you very much for your time.

14· ·At 11:36, we're adjourned for the day, and we'll pick

15· ·up tomorrow.

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Proceedings adjourned at

17· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 11:36 a.m.)
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· · · · · IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
11· ·this 11th day of September, 2023.
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15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·_________________________________
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR
16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Certified Court Reporter No. 2976
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·(Certification expires 5/26/2024.)
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 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,

 2   August 15, 2023, at 621 Woodland Square Loop Southeast,

 3   Lacey, Washington, at 8:30 a.m., before the Washington

 4   Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council; Kathleen Drew,

 5   Chair; and Adam E. Torem, Administrative Law Judge, the

 6   following proceedings were continued, to wit:

 7

 8                        <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                      JUDGE TOREM:  Let's go ahead and be

11   on the record.

12        This is the Horse Heaven wind farm adjudication.

13   We're doing our housekeeping session for Tuesday,

14   August 15th, 2023.  It is 8:30 in the morning.

15        Counsel, I can see Mr. Harper there, and I saw

16   Ms. Voelckers on the screen earlier.

17        Counsel for the applicant present?

18        How about Mr. --

19                      MR. McMAHAN:  Good morning, Judge

20   Torem.  You were cutting out a lot in your query to us,

21   so just so you know.

22                      JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.

23                      MR. McMAHAN:  But the applicant is

24   here and present.  Thank you.

25                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Hopefully

0272

 1   we'll get the audio quality better.  I think I was

 2   leaning back to look at the screen there.

 3        Mr. Aramburu, I can see you.  Good morning.

 4        And do we have counsel for the environment?

 5                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, I am here, Your

 6   Honor.

 7                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Good

 8   morning, everyone.

 9        Is the audio any better, Mr. McMahan?

10                      MR. McMAHAN:  I believe it is,

11   Judge.  Thank you.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think

13   it's just a directional microphone question and keeping

14   straight ahead and looking at you guys as opposed to

15   trying to look at the court reporter behind me.

16        All right.  My agenda for this morning is to talk

17   about a couple of motions that were outstanding and

18   decisions that are coming verbally during this

19   housekeeping session and also written, talk about some

20   screen sharing and exhibits and maybe allow for a quick

21   test of anybody's ability to do that today to take a

22   little bit of the burden off Ms. Masengale, and then

23   we'll turn to the scheduling question and

24   Ms. Perlmutter's health.

25        Does anybody else have agenda items we need to try
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 1   to cover before 9:00?  And making sure if we don't

 2   cover them before 9, we just take up housekeeping again

 3   after today's business.

 4        Mr. McMahan, anything else you want to add to the

 5   agenda?

 6                      MR. McMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank

 7   you.

 8        And, unfortunately, we have not checked in with

 9   Ms. Perlmutter today yet.

10                      JUDGE TOREM:  It's early.

11                      MR. McMAHAN:  It's early.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

13   Mr. Harper, from the County's perspective?

14                      MR. HARPER:  Well, Your Honor, I

15   think you probably identified this already in your

16   comments, but if we could just do as a housekeeping

17   matter kind of a confirmation of which exhibits have

18   been requested for admission and admitted, that'd be

19   helpful.

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think I

21   have a pretty good list of that.  And I think it's good

22   practice, Mr. Harper, to do that on a running basis, so

23   we will do so.

24        Ms. Reyneveld, anything else to add to the agenda?

25                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Just briefly.  The
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 1   parties did want for me to clarify who had been

 2   involved in those kind of initial settlement

 3   discussions in the spring for the record, so I was

 4   going to provide some clarification on that.

 5                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We'll come to

 6   that.

 7        Ms. Voelckers, anything that the Yakama Nation

 8   wants added today?

 9                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Good morning.  Thank

10   you, Your Honor.  Yes, we have reached out to

11   Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Neutzmann, who were scheduled to

12   be sworn in tomorrow and were -- they have made

13   themselves available the second half of this morning to

14   do that today since they are now the only ones, I

15   believe, on the schedule for tomorrow, and no party has

16   identified them for cross-examination.

17        So we would like to propose that they be called

18   today rather than doing all this tomorrow just for

19   their swearing in.

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  I'm making a note of

21   that.  Thank you.

22        And, Mr. Aramburu, anything else for the

23   housekeeping part of our discussion?

24                      MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  I think it might

25   be a good idea, if it's possible each day, for -- that
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 1   we get a running list of the exhibits so that we know

 2   what the official version is that's being kept.

 3                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

 4   I know that Ms. Masengale is keeping a master exhibit

 5   list.  And there's no reason that I don't think we

 6   could share that or at least a version of that with all

 7   the parties.  I'll check with her to make sure there's

 8   not any EFSEC internal information on the version that

 9   we're keeping.  But from what I've seen, it should be

10   an easy request, Mr. Aramburu.

11                      MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  Thank you.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me turn to

13   the first item on my list.

14        Ms. Voelckers, you had supplied me, about a week

15   and a half, maybe two weeks ago, with your proposed

16   order on the motions to supplement the record with the

17   three Fish and Wildlife discovery depositions and also

18   Mr. Aramburu's motion separately to admit the Dave

19   Kobus deposition.

20        There were no objections to that by the parties

21   that I was made aware of, and I think your draft order

22   referenced that.  And I think we talked about that at

23   Prehearing Conference No. 4.  So I wrote up or edited

24   the version you sent me, Ms. Voelckers.  It was a great

25   start.  That should be coming out in writing sometime
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 1   this morning.  Ms. Owens is working on that as we

 2   speak.

 3        On the motion to compel -- I'll move to the next

 4   item on my list -- I wanted to give you essentially an

 5   oral ruling on that rather than spend the time writing.

 6   And if you're going to take notes, this is a good time

 7   to start on this, the motion to compel filed by

 8   Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.

 9        My notes indicate that on July 28th, Mr. Aramburu

10   filed the motion to compel certain documents to be

11   produced by the applicant.  The motion was based on an

12   impasse that was reached during discovery.  And in

13   quick summary, the documents and the motions he's

14   trying to compel production of are meteorological data;

15   information about the applicant trying to do their

16   interconnections with BPA, the Bonneville Power

17   Association, and -- or Administration; and the

18   estimated production of the various turbines, and

19   essentially was questioning some of the commercial

20   viability aspects of the proposed project.  And it may

21   have been seeking proprietary data, some indication of

22   that being discussed during testimony prefiled by a

23   Witness Poulos, P-o-u-l-o-s.

24        That was on a Friday afternoon.  And the following

25   week, on Tuesday, August 1st, the applicant filed its
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 1   opposition.  And the applicant indicated there were

 2   four requests for production that they opposed.  And

 3   they were:  No. 1, based on the July 28th order that

 4   took BPA interconnection topics essentially off the

 5   table for this adjudication.

 6        They also, under RFP No. 2, cited to the Whistling

 7   Ridge case and the same order that I just referenced

 8   that I issued on July 28th.  That particular RFP was

 9   looking for wind resource potential, and the applicant

10   contended that I had made that not a topic for the

11   adjudication in the previous order.

12        And looking at the Whistling Ridge previous

13   prehearing conference order that was issued in that

14   matter, making these kind of inquiries essentially

15   not -- it's a business decision, and it'd be based on

16   proprietary information.

17        Request for Production No. 3 was opposed because

18   it went into energy production of the turbines, and the

19   applicant asserted again proprietary information there.

20        And, finally, for the Request for Production

21   No. 5, the applicant said that looking for a cost per

22   kilowatt hour on what the savings or cost to the

23   consumer might be was another commercial viability

24   issue and not within the realm of EFSEC's mission or

25   jurisdiction.
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 1        I looked at the Residents Opposed to Kittitas

 2   County and EFSEC matter that came out from the supreme

 3   court, otherwise known as the ROKT case, R-O-K-T, and

 4   it ruled according to 80.50.040, Sub 2, that under that

 5   statute, the economic viability of a proposed project

 6   was not relevant.  And the quote that I found

 7   persuasive there in favor of the applicant's arguments

 8   was as follows:

 9        "As economic analysis does not relate to

10   environmental or ecological concerns, we" -- being the

11   supreme court -- "believe that EFSEC was within its

12   authority to refuse to review the economical viability

13   of the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project."

14        In the Whistling Ridge case, Administrative Law

15   Judge Bob Wallis, on behalf of the Council, took the

16   same approach.  His Prehearing Order No. 11, which is

17   also labeled as Council Order No. 855, took a fairly

18   careful and conservative approach to discovery,

19   particularly of confidential and sensitive information.

20        And in the Whistling Ridge case, that order

21   followed the Kittitas Valley precedent from the supreme

22   court and denied discovery based on the relevance of

23   that information to the adjudication and the

24   sensitivity of the proprietary data and information.

25        So my ruling denying the motion is that I won't
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 1   break with the precedent established by the ROKT court

 2   or the ruling more recently in the Whistling Ridge

 3   matter.

 4        My prehearing orders in this case have already

 5   indicated that certain economic viability information

 6   is not germane or helpful to Council members or their

 7   work to develop a recommendation to the governor.  The

 8   discovery of BPA interconnection issues, wind resource

 9   potential data, and energy production and cost or rate

10   analysis data is not authorized in this matter.  So,

11   therefore, Mr. Aramburu, the TCC motion to compel those

12   documents is denied.

13        I'm going to see if the court reporter can get me

14   a short little extract, a noncertified version of the

15   transcript of what I just read to you.  If I do receive

16   that from the court reporter, I'll forward it on to the

17   parties or ask Ms. Masengale to post it as a summary of

18   the ruling that I just gave you on those matters.

19        On that note, as far as posting transcripts, I

20   wanted to let you know that Andrea Grantham has already

21   taken the hard work of taking yesterday's video of the

22   hearing, many hours that it was, getting it

23   appropriately edited and ready for prime time, and it's

24   already up and linked with the YouTube video from

25   yesterday's proceeding.  So we'll be asking any Council
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 1   members that might have missed anything to already go

 2   back and sort out and watch the portion of the video

 3   that they missed.

 4        All right.  It's now 8:41.  I wanted to ask

 5   parties that might have cross-examination exhibits for

 6   today if they wanted to test sharing one or more of

 7   those at this time.

 8        My look at the schedule says that when we get to

 9   Ms. Cooke's testimony that, Mr. McMahan, Scout Clean

10   Energy may be doing at least a half an hour of

11   cross-exam.  Did you intend to use any exhibits?

12                      MR. McMAHAN:  We do not, Your Honor.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

14        Mr. Aramburu, you had some other examination of

15   this witness today as well.  Do you have any exhibits

16   you're planning to share?

17                      MR. ARAMBURU:  No.

18                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And for

19   the Yakama Nation, Ms. Voelckers, any exhibits?

20                      MS. VOELCKERS:  No exhibits today,

21   Your Honor.

22                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That's going to

23   make Ms. Masengale's job that much easier this morning.

24        If that changes for some reason or any of the

25   other parties decide they have questions, we'll go from
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 1   there.

 2        If anybody wants to test screens later today after

 3   the adjudication portion of the day is done, let me

 4   know, and we'll stick around for some further testing.

 5        All right.  Let me turn to the last item that I

 6   had, and then we'll pick up the parties' items.

 7        Mr. McMahan, on Ms. Perlmutter's health, I hope

 8   it's going well.  You'll give us an update as we do.

 9        What other proposals did you and Ms. Stavitsky

10   perhaps work out with the other parties for

11   rescheduling the Jansen, Rahmig, and perhaps the McIvor

12   examinations?

13                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Hi, Your Honor.

14   I'll take that one.

15        So we checked in with our Scout witness Morgan

16   Shook, who is currently scheduled to testify on next

17   Tuesday, the 22nd.  And he is available for questioning

18   tomorrow.  So, again, we're trying to find ways to sort

19   of front-load this week to fill the time that

20   Mr. Rahmig and Mr. Jansen were -- and Mr. McIvor were

21   going to take.  So if that works for everyone else, he

22   could be slotted into tomorrow's morning session.

23                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I'm just

24   looking for where Mr. Shook had originally been on the

25   schedule.
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 1                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Yeah.  So he was --

 2   his testimony was set to begin Tuesday, August 22nd, at

 3   11:40 a.m. and span past lunch to 2:30.

 4                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

 5   I've got that now.  I skipped right past him.  And if

 6   my eyes are crossing this early in the morning, that's

 7   not a good sign.

 8        Ms. Stavitsky, I wanted to let you know there's a

 9   little bit of interference when you're speaking.  I

10   don't know if it's, again, a microphone issue that I

11   was having, but it will be easier for the court

12   reporter if both of us keep it slow and deliberate

13   here.

14        Do any of the parties have a concern if Mr. Shook

15   moves the testimony from Tuesday, August 22nd?  Looks

16   like there's at least an hour and a half to two hours

17   scheduled for his testimony if we move that to tomorrow

18   on Wednesday, August 16th.

19        Mr. Harper, any concern with that?

20                      MR. HARPER:  No concern.

21                      JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, any

22   concern?

23                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, I would

24   just like to flag a general concern if we're going to

25   keep shifting around witnesses.  This is being proposed
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 1   to us in real time.  So we were not approached by the

 2   applicant about these changes since yesterday's

 3   hearing.

 4        And so I don't want to speak for the other parties

 5   that have expressed a desire to cross-examine

 6   Mr. Shook, because we will not be, but we are concerned

 7   about continuing shifting of schedules.

 8        So, I mean, I just have a general concern that --

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  Noted.

10                      MS. VOELCKERS:  -- (indiscernible)

11   to respond.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  Noted.  But I'm

13   guessing because you're not going to have any

14   cross-examination questions, we're going to shift

15   witnesses.  Just make it a continuing objection,

16   Ms. Voelckers.  I sympathize, but I got to do what I

17   got to do.  And it was the parties that asked me to

18   give up, I'll remind you, two days of hearing time.

19        I worried about this.  We gave them up, and they

20   were on the -- on the front end, not on the back end.

21   So I can't add time back in.  Work with me on this,

22   please.

23        Ms. Reyneveld, any concerns?

24                      MS. REYNEVELD:  I have no concerns,

25   Your Honor.  Thank you.
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, you were

 2   the other one with the more extensive cross-examination

 3   for next week on Tuesday.

 4        Can you have it ready to go tomorrow?  I know

 5   we're going to have additional time today, and I know

 6   that other parties had seemed to think that the

 7   applicant could magically take over Ms. Perlmutter's

 8   duties by tomorrow.

 9        Can you accelerate what you had planned for next

10   Tuesday, please?

11                      MR. ARAMBURU:  We'll work with the

12   parties and with the witness, and we'll be ready to go

13   for Mr. Shook tomorrow.

14                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Consider

15   it done.

16        Ms. Stavitsky, do you have a time suggested for

17   tomorrow?

18                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, I would

19   propose that we can slot Mr. Shook in right where we

20   were supposed to take up with Mr. Rahmig tomorrow, so

21   that would be at 9 a.m.

22                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And that may

23   carry us to about 11 a.m.  And that would be a good use

24   of the time we had scheduled up to 11:30.  And we'll

25   have already moved up the Ganuelas and Nuetzmann
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 1   swearing in.

 2        If there's anything else we can use up until for

 3   another hour tomorrow, you'll let me know.  But, again,

 4   work that out with the parties that have the

 5   cross-examination prescheduled.  And, again, I'll note

 6   the Yakama Nation's continuing concern for the

 7   shuffling that we're doing.  It's difficult, and I

 8   appreciate if all the parties would just work with each

 9   other and essentially stipulate we're going to try to

10   get this done in the eight days we have.  It was pretty

11   efficient yesterday.  I do appreciate that.  But we're

12   working in real time, as you said, and trying to keep

13   the information flowing.

14        All right.  That's taking care of that.

15        Was the applicant aware of any other scheduling

16   issues impacted by Ms. Perlmutter's ongoing health

17   concern?

18                      MS. STAVITSKY:  No, Your Honor.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  And --

20                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.

21                      JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on one second.

22        Ms. Reyneveld, as to Mr. McIvor, have you let him

23   know what's going on there?

24                      MS. REYNEVELD:  I have.  And my

25   understanding is Mr. McIvor is flexible.  And so if we
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 1   needed to slate him into Tuesday or Wednesday, that

 2   would also be a possibility.  But I would have to

 3   confirm.

 4                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Keep working

 5   with the other parties.  And we'll see how that one

 6   comes out.

 7        Ms. Voelckers, you had something else?

 8                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your

 9   Honor.  I just wanted to finish my statement earlier,

10   which would be a request that we do determine who is

11   going to be going in that time slot on Tuesday as soon

12   as possible rather than waiting till next week.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  And we will have

14   another housekeeping opportunity either this afternoon

15   after our proceeding.  That may not be particularly

16   informative, but definitely tomorrow morning we will

17   get an update.

18        All right.  Let's move on to your documents.

19        Ms. Masengale, do you happen to be on the line

20   already?

21                      MS. MASENGALE:  Yes, Judge.  This is

22   Lisa Masengale.

23                      JUDGE TOREM:  Do you have that

24   master exhibit list that you've been keeping up for me

25   and the rest of staff and the counsel?
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 1                      MS. MASENGALE:  I do.  And I sent it

 2   to the party e-mail list a few minutes ago.  It's dated

 3   with today's date, but it was last updated a little

 4   after 5 p.m. last night.

 5                      JUDGE TOREM:  And would you tell the

 6   parties, please, how you're annotating the list as we

 7   go to indicate what's admitted, rejected, or

 8   particularly on the order yesterday, how Mr. Aramburu's

 9   citizen and community member testimony was

10   recharacterized?

11                      MS. MASENGALE:  Absolutely.

12        So there's three columns a little to the -- to the

13   right of the middle.  It'll make more sense if you have

14   it in front of you.  But basically those columns are

15   added to the template that the parties are providing to

16   me, so it has some additional data in there.

17        And there's three columns basically indicating if

18   something was admitted, whether it was rejected or --

19   or stricken or if it has been withdrawn.

20        And so as a determination is made on the exhibits,

21   I am trying to update that in real time.  And the notes

22   column is mostly for my reference, but parties may find

23   that helpful as well, indicating when something was

24   admitted or when something was stricken, or some of

25   them are notes for me about why it was a revised
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 1   exhibit.

 2        So, again, that last column might make more sense

 3   to me than to the parties, but I'm providing you with

 4   the exact list that I am working off of right now.

 5                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thanks,

 6   Ms. Masengale.  And if the parties have questions about

 7   that, I hope they'll e-mail and copy the other parties

 8   so that everybody can benefit from any information that

 9   you didn't just convey if it's not self-evident.

10        So hopefully, parties, that's going to work.  And

11   I know Ms. Masengale, as she said, she's doing that in

12   real time.  If she has time at the end of each day,

13   I'll ask that she send it out so you have it sooner

14   rather than the morning of, and for your own

15   housekeeping purposes, can keep tracking on what

16   exhibit were there.

17        Ms. Masengale, we had some cross-exam exhibits.

18   Are you adding those and indicating the ones that were

19   offered and ruled on?

20                      MS. MASENGALE:  That is correct.  As

21   I receive e-mails with cross exhibits and the updated

22   exhibit list from parties with those cross exhibits,

23   I'm adding those in.  And then as the parties move to

24   admit those, those are being indicated in there as

25   well.
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  And you and I spoke

 2   yesterday just about the timing and, again, this

 3   in-real-time item.  Can you give the parties kind of a

 4   best practice, at least notional best practice for them

 5   to aspire to, to make -- help you help them?

 6                      MS. MASENGALE:  Absolutely.  I know

 7   the -- the needs and the best practice for -- for the

 8   parties and their legal counsel may be different than

 9   for me, the records officer.  But as the records

10   person, ideally, if I could get things at least by the

11   day before.  In a perfect world, that way I have time

12   to appropriately add them to the main exhibit list and

13   have them ready, especially if I need to help parties

14   share their exhibits.

15        That way it's just a little bit tough.  I can't

16   process e-mails if I'm sharing my screen.  So just the

17   logistics of processing things that might arrive during

18   the hearings is a little complicated if things are also

19   arriving during the hearing as well that might need to

20   be referenced or shown on screen immediately.

21        So, if possible, from my perspective, it's great

22   if you can get them to me at least the night before,

23   but I understand for legal reasons you might not want

24   to do that.  But from my perspective, it'd be super

25   helpful.  So thank you.
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  And I want to

 2   compliment Ms. Masengale, much as Mr. Harper did

 3   yesterday, for really, really good work that she's

 4   doing to help all of us keep this massive information

 5   load going forward.  It services the Council well.

 6   And, Mr. Harper, no, you can't hire her away from

 7   EFSEC.

 8        All right.  The Ganuelas and Nuetzmann testimony

 9   being adopted today, anybody have objections to that?

10   I'm seeing some head nods "no."  No objections.

11        So, Ms. Voelckers, what time would you think we

12   can take and adopt their testimony today?

13                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your

14   Honor.  I think that we can stick to the schedule in

15   terms of Ms. Cooke's testimony and then have them adopt

16   it after she's done.  We would just ask for a brief

17   break.  But they -- they should be available starting a

18   little bit after 10.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That sounds

20   good.

21        We'll get a chance to break, then call them and

22   have them available.

23        And, Ms. Reyneveld, you had the last question

24   about the status of who was involved in settlement

25   items.
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 1                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Per the

 2   parties' request, I just wanted to provide some

 3   clarification for the record pertaining to the

 4   settlement discussions between applicant and counsel

 5   for the environment in the spring.

 6        Upon review of my correspondence and meeting

 7   invitations, I wanted to clarify for the record that

 8   Yakama Nation was invited into and participated in a

 9   meeting to discuss the proposal and provided a copy of

10   the settlement proposal, but TCC and Benton County were

11   not invited to these discussions.  It was certainly my

12   intent to involve them had the settlement discussions

13   progressed or continued.  And Mr. McMahan, I believe,

14   has now provided all parties with the settlement

15   proposal.  Is that correct?

16                      MR. McMAHAN:  That is correct,

17   Ms. Reyneveld.

18                      MS. REYNEVELD:  That was my update.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  Do parties have any

20   other questions for the record about the status and who

21   participated in those settlement items?

22        All right.  Seeing none.

23        We've managed to push through an hour of material,

24   I think, in 25 minutes.  Thank you for letting me push

25   hard on those.
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 1        Let's take a break until 9:00.  We'll go on the

 2   record then, and we'll get started with Ms. Cooke's

 3   adoption of her testimony and cross-exam.

 4        Thank you.  We'll be back on here in about five

 5   minutes.

 6                             (Pause in proceedings from

 7                              8:55 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.)

 8

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning,

10   everyone.  This is Day 2 of our adjudicative hearing in

11   the Horse Heaven wind power project.

12        I'm going ask our staff today to just take a poll

13   of who's here from the Council.  I know we have one

14   that's running late and will be listening in to the

15   recording at a later time here.

16        And I see our witness is here already.  Ms. Cooke,

17   good morning.  We'll get to you very shortly.

18        If the staff could call the roll.

19                      MS. SHILEY:  When I proceed through

20   the roll call, please be sure to state your name for

21   the record as well as your status as present.  Thank

22   you.

23        EFSEC Chair.

24                      COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Kathleen Drew,

25   present.
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 1                      MS. SHILEY:  Department of Commerce.

 2        Department of Ecology.

 3                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt,

 4   present.

 5                      MS. SHILEY:  Department of Fish and

 6   Wildlife.

 7                      COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:  Mike

 8   Livingston, present.

 9                      MS. SHILEY:  Department of Natural

10   Resources.

11                      COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Lenny Young,

12   present.

13                      MS. SHILEY:  Utilities and

14   Transportation Commission.

15                      COUNCIL MEMBER BREWSTER:  Stacey

16   Brewster, present.

17                      MS. SHILEY:  For the Horse Heaven

18   project:  Department of Agriculture.

19        And Benton County.

20        All right.  Judge Torem, that's who we have.

21                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So it

22   looks to me that Mr. Brost will have to review some of

23   the testimony at a later date, and I think it's Kate

24   Kelly for Commerce.

25                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge Torem, this is
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 1   Andrea Grantham.  Really quick:  For Department of

 2   Commerce, it is Elizabeth Osborne now.  She is our new

 3   Department of Commerce Council member.  She did inform

 4   us that she will be running a bit late this morning.

 5        Also, I do see Ed Brost's phone number online.  It

 6   is just muted.  So he is here.  I just -- Mr. Brost, if

 7   you would like to try to unmute, you can do "#6" or

 8   "*6" and see if you can confirm that you are present.

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We'll see

10   if Mr. Brost, at least if he's called in, we'll figure

11   out with him.  Maybe Ms. Grantham can send another

12   e-mail and sort out any confirmation.

13        Let's go over the parties and make sure

14   everybody's present.

15        For the applicant today.

16                      MR. McMAHAN:  Your Honor, applicant

17   is present.  Tim McMahan -- excuse me -- with --

18   with -- excuse me -- Emily Schimelpfenig and Ariel

19   Stavitsky.

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you,

21   Mr. McMahan.

22        For Benton County.

23                      MR. HARPER:  Good morning, Your

24   Honor.  Ken Harper and Z. Foster for Benton County.

25                      JUDGE TOREM:  Counsel for the
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 1   environment.

 2                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Good morning, Your

 3   Honor.  Sarah Reyneveld for counsel for the

 4   environment.  Thank you.

 5                      JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama Nation.

 6                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Good morning, Your

 7   Honor, Shona Voelckers, Ethan Jones, and Jessica

 8   Houston for the Yakama Nation.

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  And for Tri-Cities

10   C.A.R.E.S.

11                      MR. ARAMBURU:  Richard Aramburu for

12   Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.  Thank you, Your Honor.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council

14   members, today's agenda, if you looked at the daily

15   schedule, I've already had a housekeeping meeting with

16   the parties and gone over some of the schedule

17   modifications that are necessary by moving the Jansen

18   and Rahmig testimonies to a later date, as well as

19   tomorrow's McIvor testimony that's scheduled at 10:30.

20        Just as I think you heard yesterday, we have some

21   questions of one of the attorney's health and

22   participating in cross and redirect of those witnesses.

23   Today we do have Michelle Cooke.  She's scheduled here

24   at 9:00 for about an hour and a half to two hours of

25   examination.  I hope you've read her testimony, which I
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 1   believe is Exhibit 2003.

 2        Mr. Harper, is that correct?

 3                      MR. HARPER:  That's correct, Your

 4   Honor.

 5                      JUDGE TOREM:  The parties have done

 6   some shuffling, Council members, to see if we can adopt

 7   certain testimony from the Yakama Nation's witnesses

 8   tomorrow that were originally scheduled at 11:30 on

 9   Wednesday, August 16th.  Those would be for Leon

10   Ganuelas and Mark Nuetzmann.

11        Today when we take Mr. Ganuelas's adoption of his

12   testimony, much of it is subject to confidentiality

13   provisions, so my proposal to staff was that we attempt

14   to see, on kind of a low-threat environment

15   opportunity, how the procedures we've developed to move

16   us all into a breakout room for a closed-record session

17   might work.

18        So today when we're done with Ms. Cooke's

19   testimony and we get Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Nuetzmann

20   together, I think what I'll do is take Mr. Nuetzmann,

21   have him adopt his testimony, and let him go, and then

22   Mr. Ganuelas, we'll all see how it works for us to go

23   into closed-record session to adopt his testimony, work

24   out any glitches on that today when we have a little

25   extra time.  That way when we take a number of other
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 1   confidential matters in a closed-record session next

 2   week it looks like, we'll have a better idea how that

 3   all works and be able to be that much more efficient.

 4        I think the only other update is the exhibit

 5   running list that Lisa Masengale is updating in real

 6   time has now been shared with the parties, so they'll

 7   also be tracking, Council members, what we made sure

 8   you understood yesterday afternoon for your purposes of

 9   keeping score.

10        I think those are all the things that I covered

11   with the attorneys during housekeeping that I wanted

12   you to know about.

13        You'll also have seen that Ms. Grantham sent an

14   e-mail this morning to the service list linking to

15   yesterday's video of the entire hearing.  So those

16   members that missed anything or think they need to

17   review anything on the video side can get it there.

18        Transcripts may take a little longer to hit the

19   website, particularly because we're using the same

20   court reporter for the bulk of this adjudicative

21   hearing.  So in mercy to the court reporter, we're not

22   asking him to continue to work that many more hours

23   after what we do each day.

24        All right.  Anything else from the parties by just

25   a raising of your hand electronically before I swear in
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 1   Ms. Cooke?

 2        All right.  I'm not seeing any.

 3        I have one, looks like open microphone on a "509"

 4   number.  We'll see if staff -- it starts with a "53,"

 5   something.  If you can mute yourself, that'd be great.

 6   Otherwise I'll have --

 7                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge.

 8                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- do that.

 9                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Okay.  Yeah, this is

10   Andrea.  That was Ed Brost's number.  Just letting you

11   know.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I know you had

13   manually maybe unmuted that.  But I haven't heard

14   anything from Mr. Brost yet.  And hopefully if he has a

15   question for Ms. Cooke, we can unmute him at that time.

16                      MS. GRANTHAM:  Sounds good.

17                             (Witness Michelle Cooke

18                              appearing remotely.)

19

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Not seeing

21   any other delays.  Let me -- Ms. Cooke, I'm Judge

22   Torem.  Good morning.  I've got your --

23                      THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Your

24   Honor.

25                      JUDGE TOREM:  I've got your prefiled
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 1   testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, in front of me.  And our

 2   process is going to be that I swear you in, ask you to

 3   adopt that testimony.  Let us know if there's any

 4   changes, modifications.  And then I'll turn you over

 5   for cross-examination, unless Mr. Harper, I think your

 6   sponsoring witness, has anything else.  So I'll ask

 7   him, and then we'll go from there.

 8        So if you'll raise your --

 9                      MR. HARPER:  No, Your Honor.  That's

10   fine.

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- right hand.

12                      MR. HARPER:  I'm sorry.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Cooke,

14   if you'll raise your right hand.

15

16   MICHELLE COOKE,             appearing remotely, was duly

17                               sworn by the Administrative

18                               Law Judge as follows:

19

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  Do you solemnly swear

21   or affirm that all the testimony contained in your

22   prefiled testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, and the rest of

23   your testimony provided today will be the truth, the

24   whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

25                      THE WITNESS:  I do.
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Now that

 2   you've adopted your testimony, that exhibit can be

 3   marked admitted.

 4                             (Exhibit No. 2003_T

 5                              admitted.)

 6

 7                      JUDGE TOREM:  Did you have any

 8   modifications or updates you wanted to share before

 9   cross-exam?

10                      THE WITNESS:  I do not.

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then I'm

12   going to look at my schedule and see who has questions

13   first.

14        I believe Mr. McMahan from Scout Clean Energy has

15   questions for you, then Mr. Aramburu from Tri-Cities

16   C.A.R.E.S., and then Ms. Voelckers from the Yakama

17   Nation.  After that, I'll see if anybody else from

18   Council members have questions as well as other parties

19   that didn't specifically list anything.  And depending

20   on what's asked, I may have some questions for you as

21   well.

22        Mr. McMahan, we'll mute here in Lacey, and we'll

23   turn it over to you.

24                      MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

25   ////
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 1                        CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2     BY MR. McMAHAN:

 3  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Tim McMahan.  I'm lead

 4     counsel representing Scout Clean Energy in these

 5     proceedings.  Thank you for being here today.

 6  A  Good morning.

 7  Q  Just to --

 8  A  And thank you.

 9  Q  Yes.  Thank you.

10          And I just was -- I just violated what I was just

11     about to say, which is yesterday Mr. Wendt and I tended

12     to talk over each other a little too often.  I'm sure I

13     have 50 percent of that responsibility.  So if I do

14     that -- I will try not to -- and I think you and I can

15     perhaps develop a vibe where that doesn't happen, so I

16     promise to do my part there.  And, yeah, I think that

17     was kind of the main thing I just wanted to introduce.

18     So let me know.

19          And I also tend to be a fast talker.  I will try

20     to discipline myself there as well.  But if I go too

21     fast -- I don't know -- show me a hand or something,

22     and I'll slow myself down.  All right?

23  A  Okay.

24  Q  All right.  Thank you.

25          Ms. Cooke, getting into your testimony here, on
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 1     Page 10 of your testimony, you state that fragmentation

 2     from the project will cause the children of landowners

 3     to be less likely to -- and you're -- you're in

 4     quotes -- leave their non-farming-related jobs in order

 5     to renew the farming legacy, the legacy of farming.

 6          Are you insinuating that it is the County's

 7     land-use policy or role to influence the succession

 8     planning of farming families?

 9  A  No.  I -- no.  I was not insinuating that at all.  I

10     was insinuating it's the scope of the County to

11     practice good planning, that -- which leads not to the

12     fragmentation of agricultural lands, which are

13     economically important to our area.  It's not a socio-

14     impact to a certain family or demographic.  It's the

15     protection and conservation of the agricultural lands

16     as a whole and keeping those from fragmenting.

17  Q  And we'll get into this a little further.

18          So is it actually your testimony that this

19     project, around 1 percent of the overall agricultural

20     lands in the County, will in fact interrupt succession

21     planning or make it more difficult for farmers to farm?

22  A  I think it's -- it's a lot more likely, yes.

23     Absolutely.  Especially the farming portion, seeing as

24     that a majority of the land that's going to be lost or

25     the term of the lease is under solar, and you can't

0303

 1     farm under solar panels.  So, yeah, absolutely, I do

 2     think that.

 3  Q  For the solar facility.  Okay.

 4          Have you -- did you ever reach out to landowners

 5     and farmers involved in the project to ask them what

 6     their long-term plans were for their lands?

 7  A  I didn't reach out to specific lease owners, as that

 8     information was not made publicly available to myself.

 9     I would have for sure if I would have known who those

10     lease owners were.  But I did reach out to other people

11     that I know in the area and asked questions about their

12     practices and what they would do in a similar

13     circumstance.

14  Q  So you're saying you -- you had no idea who these lease

15     owners or landowners were that were involved in the

16     project, never?

17  A  I was never made aware of who they were or where to

18     find that information.

19  Q  Okay.  Are you aware of any other Benton County

20     representative that reached out to landowners or

21     farmers who were involved in the project to ask about

22     their long-term plans for their lands?

23  A  I'm not aware, but it's not the scope of the County to

24     get involved with private leases between farmers and --

25     and developers.  It would be unheard of -- it would be
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 1     unheard of for me, my staff, or anyone else here at

 2     the -- at the County to get involved or ask questions

 3     about the nature of a lease or their impressions for

 4     any development, whether it's this one, a subdivision,

 5     or anything of -- of that nature.

 6  Q  So you are, in fact, not aware of any such outreach to

 7     these landowners.

 8          That's the answer to your question?

 9  A  No.  Yeah, that's the answer to my question.

10  Q  Okay.  So in your testimony, Page 9, Lines 5 through

11     6 -- and if you need to pull that up, I'm fine with you

12     doing so.

13  A  I'm -- can you also put that on the screen for us as

14     well?

15  Q  You know, I don't have it on -- I'm not able to share

16     it on the screen.  Ms. Masengale --

17  A  You said Page 5, Lines 9 -- 5 through 6?

18  Q  5 through 9.

19                        MS. STAVITSKY:  We'll work to get

20     that on the screen.

21                        MR. McMAHAN:  If you need it on the

22     screen, we can pull it up, or if you've got it in your

23     hand, I think we can proceed.

24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I

25     understand that Ms. Masengale is in the process of
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 1     pulling that exhibit up.

 2          Ms. Cooke, if you wait for Mr. McMahan to finish

 3     the question just half a breath, I think it's going to

 4     make the gentleman to my right a little happier.  It's

 5     just --

 6                        THE WITNESS:  Okay.

 7                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- the nature of court

 8     reporting.  It's not a -- I have to tell a lot of

 9     witnesses it's just not a normal conversation.  It's

10     being taken down verbatim.  Anything you and

11     Mr. McMahan can do on this dance and the other counsel

12     will help.

13          All right.  And here comes your exhibit.  We're

14     going to go to Page 5, Lines 5 through 7.

15          Thank you, Ms. Masengale.

16          Mr. McMahan, if you want to --

17                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

18                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- re-ask your

19     question.

20                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.

21  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  In your testimony, Ms. Cooke, you

22     indicate -- and I'm quoting -- "The land is more

23     suitable for continuing farming industry in Benton

24     County than being put to use as a large industrial

25     project."
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 1          Is that your testimony?

 2  A  Yes, as you can see clearly in the exhibit, that is my

 3     testimony.

 4  Q  Shouldn't the property owners, themselves, be the ones

 5     to determine how best to manage their farmlands and

 6     their family legacy?

 7  A  That's an interesting question.  Unfortunately, the

 8     State of Washington mandates land-use planning

 9     practices, which is our office's purview.  So although

10     the line sometimes is contentious about private

11     property owners' rights and what they can and can't and

12     should and should not do with their property and what

13     the state law mandates the County to regulate, it's a

14     little contentious.

15          And so for us as land-use planners to do -- uphold

16     what the State has charged us with, we have determined

17     these areas are suitable for farming as they are zoned

18     agricultural.

19  Q  Right.

20          And, in fact -- and, in fact, farming will

21     continue on the wind energy site after the construction

22     of the facility, won't it?

23  A  Yes.  Unfortunately, that's a minority of the property

24     that's going to be lost.  You cannot farm under solar

25     panels, and that's a majority of the acres lost.
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 1  Q  I understand what you're saying.

 2          So -- so you -- you -- are you insinuating that

 3     the planning department should decide the destiny of

 4     these landowners?

 5  A  The -- the County has zoned this as agriculture, and we

 6     are maintaining those permitted uses, which are

 7     agricultural in nature.  We're not deciding what people

 8     should and should not do with their property.  There is

 9     a list of allowed uses, and those are what are

10     permitted on the property.  If someone wants to go

11     outside of that, then that would be not consistent with

12     what the State has mandated us to do in these areas,

13     and that would be going against our County code.

14  Q  Is there anything that restricts renewable energy

15     development based upon the soil classification?

16  A  Can you repeat your question?

17  Q  Is there anything that restricts renewable energy

18     development on these lands based on soil

19     classification?

20  A  I'm not aware that there is.

21  Q  And isn't it true that, at least what I think I'm

22     hearing, is that you or the planning department decide

23     what is compatible for these landowners on behalf of

24     these landowners?

25  A  We don't decide that.  Our county code, which has been
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 1     adopted into law, lays that out.

 2  Q  But for this project, are you -- is it your role to

 3     decide whether or not renewable energy is -- is allowed

 4     as a compatible use on the wind facility portion of

 5     this project?

 6  A  For this project, it's EFSEC's role to decide whether

 7     or not compatibility is there.

 8  Q  Okay.  All right.  Good.  Well, we agree on that, then.

 9          So concerning the soils classification, is there

10     anything that restricts development on the land based

11     upon soil classification?

12  A  Not to my understanding.  But the land was designated

13     as soil classification is a consideration, one of eight

14     considerations that -- that are used to designate ag

15     lands.

16  Q  And do you have knowledge of the farm soils on this

17     property, on -- excuse me -- on the -- on this -- on

18     the -- on the area that's proposed for development?

19  A  It's a very large area, so I'm not specifically aware

20     of what they are, but I did take an active role in our

21     ag lands reclassification, and I know that they're not

22     poor soils.

23  Q  But your testimony, you characterize this as prime

24     farmland, right?

25  A  Yes.
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 1  Q  Okay.

 2  A  Like I said, there's eight factors that go into --

 3  Q  Yes.

 4  A  -- prime farmland, not just soils.

 5  Q  I understand that.

 6          Prime farmland designation, however, is typically

 7     referencing USDA NRCS farmland classification, correct?

 8  A  Are you speaking as far as soils go?

 9  Q  Yes.  So far as soils go.

10  A  That's one of eight tests to designate ag lands of

11     long-term significance.

12  Q  Yes.  And I'm talking about your testimony that calls

13     this project prime farmland.

14          You do state that in your testimony, don't you?

15  A  Yes.

16  Q  And isn't it true that for this particular soil -- and

17     I know you come from a farming family.

18          Isn't it true that for the Ritzville silt loam

19     soils, which is about 92 percent -- I can -- I can

20     represent to you 92 percent of the project lease

21     boundary, is classified as prime farmland if irrigated,

22     correct?

23  A  No, that's not correct.  It has to do with water

24     availability, including precipitation.

25  Q  So you're disputing that definition from USDA NRCS data
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 1     concerning the -- the characteristics of prime

 2     farmland?

 3  A  As I said, it's one of eight criterias.  And water and

 4     precipitation is another criteria.  So those factored

 5     together.  So if there's enough precipitation for

 6     dryland wheat farming, those soils, that area, are

 7     suitable as an agricultural area.

 8  Q  And you are aware that none of this property is

 9     irrigated, correct?

10  A  I am aware.

11  Q  All right.

12  A  But it does have good precipitation levels.

13  Q  Well, what is the annual precipitation per year in this

14     area?

15  A  In -- in this area?  I believe it's -- well, and I

16     can't say this for sure on the record, but the last

17     time I read the memo, I want to say it's four to six

18     inches of rain a year, roughly.

19  Q  So rather arid, isn't it?

20  A  Not for dryland wheat.  That's enough.

21  Q  But it is arid land up there, isn't it?

22  A  It's dryland.  It's not arid.

23  Q  Okay.  Right.

24          Is it your -- oh, let's see.

25          So is your testimony that this location, Benton
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 1     County, differs from other dryland wheat areas in the

 2     Northwest is just somehow unique, or is it pretty --

 3     typical?

 4  A  I'm not familiar with other dryland wheat operations in

 5     the Northwest as I'm not from there.

 6  Q  Okay.  Where are you from?  I'm sorry.  That's

 7     interesting.

 8          Where are you from?

 9  A  I'm from Prosser, Washington, the Horse Heaven Hills.

10  Q  Okay.

11  A  But I'm not familiar with the other dryland wheat

12     regions of Washington State, such as the Palouse,

13     because I'm not from there, and I don't know --

14  Q  All right.

15  A  -- what their yields are like.

16  Q  I understand.  Thanks for the clarification there.

17          What about for Nine Canyon?  Are you aware that

18     that is dryland wheat, unirrigated, on the Nine Canyon

19     wind farm?

20  A  I don't know what the history of Nine Canyon was, but

21     given the topography of where it's located, I would

22     have -- I would have assumed that it was not dryland.

23     My assumption is it was probably rangeland, because

24     it's on top of a hill.  But I don't know that for a

25     fact, because I wasn't in the country at the time it
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 1     was developed.

 2  Q  So you are speculating with that answer, aren't you?

 3  A  You're asking me a question I can't answer, so yes.

 4  Q  Yes, you're speculating.  Thank you.

 5          Have you visited other wind farms in Oregon or

 6     Washington?

 7  A  I have.  On a --

 8  Q  Which wind farms?

 9          Excuse me.

10  A  I haven't --

11  Q  I'm sorry.

12  A  I haven't on a professional level.  I have on a

13     personal level.  I've visited the one out in Bickleton.

14  Q  Okay.  In -- in Klickitat County, then?

15  A  In Klickitat County.

16  Q  All right.  And have you discussed farm operations with

17     any farmers out in the Klickitat County area?

18  A  I have.  I...

19  Q  And have you discussed whether or not -- well, have you

20     discussed with those farmers in Klickitat County

21     whether their farming operations are in any way

22     disrupted by the renewable energy development that's

23     hosted on their lands?

24  A  I haven't -- I haven't had conversations with the

25     actual landowners who have the turbines on their
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 1     properties.  I've had conversations with adjacent

 2     landowners in the area, so I can't answer that

 3     question.

 4  Q  All right.  Thank you.

 5          Do you dispute that farmers customarily farm

 6     around local topography, including, you know, for

 7     example, canyons, sloped areas?

 8          I mean, it's pretty typical, isn't it, for farmers

 9     to farm around topographic features?

10  A  It is.  And in our area, it's a very small percentage

11     of the -- of the land.  Because the Horse Heaven Hills

12     is a mesa and very flat, we do have some areas of

13     shrub-steppe habitat and critical areas in the -- in

14     the drainages, and they do farm around those areas.

15  Q  And the farmers can customarily farm around, oh, power

16     poles, ditches, many things, right?

17  A  Typically in the Horse Heaven Hills, they don't have

18     any of those, as ditches are not and irrigation is not

19     up there, and all of the power poles run along the road

20     right-of-way infrastructure, so they don't need to go

21     around those necessarily.  Those are on the periphery

22     of their operations.

23  Q  So you're saying that entire area up on the Horse

24     Heaven Hills is all flat as a table.

25          Is that what you're saying?
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 1  A  It's predominantly flat.  It's not flat as a pancake,

 2     but it's predominantly flat.  There are some rolling

 3     hills, but not to any great extent.  The slopes are on

 4     the fringe.

 5  Q  In your -- I want to just turn to your testimony about

 6     support services.

 7          And is it your testimony -- I believe it's your

 8     testimony that due to Horse Heaven, somehow the

 9     agricultural economy will wither, that farmers will let

10     the land go, all because of the construction of the

11     solar and wind projects.

12          Is that your testimony?

13  A  Can you reference where you're finding that at in my

14     testimony?

15  Q  Page 6.

16  A  And what line?

17  Q  I am not sure about that.

18                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  All right.

19     Yeah, could you scroll down, please.

20          Yeah, I'm going to come back to that.  I'm sorry,

21     Ms. Cooke.  I want to come back to that, so if you

22     could just hold on that, we're going to -- we're going

23     to revisit that in a minute.

24  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Is it your opinion that this 1

25     percent of Benton County farms proposed for wind and
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 1     solar development will actually destroy agricultural

 2     support services?

 3  A  Can you define what you mean by destroy agricultural

 4     support systems?

 5  Q  Well, agricultural support industries, agricultural

 6     support systems.  Things like selling fertilizer,

 7     seeing things like selling equipment, tractors.

 8     Agricultural support services, which you have -- have

 9     provided testimony about.

10          Is it your opinion that this project, at 1 percent

11     or so of the local agricultural economy, will somehow

12     undermine those agricultural services?

13  A  Well, I'm not exactly qualified to speak to economic

14     development and farming practices such as that.  I do

15     believe that this project will impact those services.

16          Will it destroy or undermine?  Those are very

17     aggressive words, and I don't -- I think that's taking

18     it a little too brusque.  But I do believe it will have

19     impact to the support services of those types of

20     businesses that help the farmers out in that area.

21  Q  And do you deny that new revenues from the wind leases

22     will spur further investments by these landowners?

23  A  In what capacity are you speaking?

24  Q  Any capacity.

25          Will the new revenues for these landowners, with
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 1     new generation of additional income, is it your opinion

 2     that that -- that that will not spur further

 3     investments?

 4  A  Further investments into what?  Stocks or into their

 5     land or what?

 6  Q  Into their land.  Into their farming operations.

 7     Into buying --

 8  A  I -- I can't speak to what the farmers are --

 9  Q  Excuse me.

10  A  -- going to do --

11  Q  Excuse me.

12  A  -- with their payouts.

13  Q  Excuse me.  We're not going to talk over each other.

14          Tractors, any equipment.

15  A  I can't --

16  Q  Go ahead.

17  A  -- speak to that.  I don't -- I don't know what the --

18     the personal financial agenda is for -- for the farmers

19     getting the payouts.

20  Q  All right.  Well, let's try this.

21          With lease revenues, do you deny that farmers will

22     not make additional investments in things like repair

23     and replacement of old equipment?

24  A  I would hope so.  But that's speculation on my part,

25     that I'm hoping that they will put the money back into
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 1     the land and continue and improve their practices.  I

 2     don't know that.  That's speculation on my part.

 3  Q  Enhancement of crop -- of crop -- of protection of

 4     crops?

 5  A  Is that a question?

 6  Q  Yes.

 7  A  I don't understand the question.  Sorry.

 8  Q  Purchase of more fertilizer?

 9  A  Again, that's speculation.  I have no idea how the

10     farmers are going to spend their money, if they even

11     ferti- --

12  Q  So you don't --

13  A  -- if they fertilize.  I have no idea.

14  Q  So you don't think the lease revenues are going to spur

15     these kinds of investments?

16  A  I didn't say that.  I said it was speculation.  I don't

17     know how they're going to spend their money.  I would

18     hope so.  As a -- as a child of a farmer, yes, I would

19     hope so, but I can't say.

20  Q  So you don't know whether -- you speculate -- you can't

21     speculate.  I guess you can't guess that these

22     landowners, with their lease revenues, might invest in

23     additional technology, changes in farm practices,

24     beneficial tools in farming production.

25          As a farmer, as a child of farmers, do you believe
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 1     that that actually won't happen, that those investments

 2     actually won't be made in these farms --

 3                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor.

 4  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  -- as a consequence of lease

 5     revenues?

 6                        MR. HARPER:  I'm objecting at this

 7     point, Your Honor.  This has gone on long enough.  This

 8     seems to be repetitive, argumentative.  It's just

 9     badgering the witness.  Mr. McMahan is testifying.

10     He's not examining at this stage.

11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, I have to

12     agree with Mr. Harper.  I think you've made your point.

13     It's becoming argumentative.

14                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  All right.

15                        JUDGE TOREM:  So that on that basis,

16     it's sustained.

17                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  Thank you,

18     Your Honor.  I'll move on.

19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, if you

20     wanted to go back, if -- if it's still germane --

21                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.

22                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to your inquiry,

23     the portion you were looking for about support starts

24     at the bottom of Page 6, Line 24, and continues to

25     approximately that level on Page 7.  Maybe you've
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 1     already gone through it with your questions, but that

 2     was, I think, what you were looking for.

 3                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.

 4                        MS. STAVITSKY:  You got to those

 5     questions.

 6                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  Yeah, I think I

 7     did end up getting to those questions, Your Honor.

 8     Thank you.

 9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  What's

10     next?

11                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  Thank you.

12  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Ms. Cooke, you provided testimony

13     about the potential loss of agricultural economy or

14     agricultural products.

15          And your testimony really only references dryland

16     wheat, doesn't it?

17  A  Dryland wheat and rangeland are the majority of what

18     this operation will be taking up.

19  Q  Yes.  Understood.

20          But you have test- -- your testimony indicates

21     that there are -- that -- you talk about -- we talked

22     in the testimony about -- about specialty crops and any

23     crops other than wheat.

24          Are you -- are you indicating that -- your

25     testimony seems to only be dealing with dryland wheat,
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 1     right?

 2  A  I try to narrow the focus to the -- the agricultural

 3     production which is occurring on the lands that are

 4     slated for this development.  So I did not speak to

 5     other types of agriculture.

 6  Q  But in representing 1 percent of supposed destruction

 7     of the -- of the agricultural economy, you don't

 8     account for any specialty crops other than wheat,

 9     right?

10  A  Again, I'm only speaking to wheat and rangeland,

11     because those are the two primary operations that will

12     be impacted by this, because of that -- of the

13     footprint of it.  If you'd like me to speak to other

14     agricultural in the greater Horse Heaven Hills, I'd be

15     happy to, if you have a question.

16  Q  Well, the question is this:  Your -- or the point is

17     this.  The question is this:

18          Your testimony talks a lot about the destruction

19     of the farming economy because of the loss of dryland

20     wheat and this 1 percent of the agricultural economy or

21     the agricultural products.

22          That is your testimony, right?  Focusing on that 1

23     percent which is dryland wheat.

24  A  The -- I'm -- yes, my testimony does speak to the

25     agricultural economy and how this project would impact
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 1     that.  Because the scope of the project is within the

 2     dryland area of Benton County.

 3  Q  Yet isn't it true that Benton County grows many

 4     crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples, hops -- that

 5     have a much, much higher value than dryland wheat?

 6  A  The agricultural economics isn't at debate here for the

 7     conditional use criteria, sir.

 8  Q  Well, actually, I -- I disagree with that.  I'm trying

 9     to understand your testimony, which infers that this

10     project is going to have a material impact on the

11     agricultural economy of Benton County.

12          Yet your testimony does not account for products

13     other than wheat.  Is that true?

14  A  Yes.  Well, wheat and rangeland, which would be cattle.

15  Q  Okay.  I think we can -- we can move on here.

16          Isn't it true -- and perhaps you can't answer this

17     question, but I'll try.

18          Isn't it true that dryland wheat is really a very

19     small fraction of the value and use of these lands when

20     you account for all of the other agricultural products,

21     including specialty products and specialty crops which

22     I just described?

23  A  I don't think that we're comparing the agricultural

24     economy as a whole of Benton County here, which

25     surprises me especially as your expert witness
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 1     Mr. Wiley, that's his bread and butter.  That's his

 2     family's income, and you're demeaning their -- the

 3     value of their products that they're bringing to the

 4     county.  I find that --

 5  Q  No, I'm not demeaning Mr. Wiley at all, nor am I

 6     demeaning you, ma'am.

 7          What I am just indicating, that your testimony is

 8     based on dryland wheat.  You characterized the

 9     agricultural economy based on dryland wheat, correct?

10  A  It's one of the factors of Benton County's agricultural

11     economies, yes.

12  Q  And you -- your testimony does not account for all the

13     other crops, espec- -- particularly specialty crops or

14     high-value crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples

15     hops -- that have a much higher value than dryland

16     wheat, right?

17  A  Again, I don't see the relevance here to the scope of

18     this project.

19  Q  Ma'am, you are not -- excuse me.  You are not the

20     adjudicator of relevance or not.  I'm trying to get you

21     to answer a specific question and get your opinion.

22  A  Can you re-ask the question, then, in a way that --

23  Q  Yes.

24  A  -- I can understand?

25  Q  You -- your characterization of the agricultural
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 1     economy in Benton County is limited in your testimony

 2     to nothing but dryland wheat, correct?

 3  A  I have spoken to the project area, which is dryland

 4     wheat and rangeland, and how this project will affect

 5     that and the overall economy of Benton County from an

 6     agricultural standpoint.

 7  Q  Right.

 8                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 9     Mr. McMahan, I think you made your point here.  I'm

10     going to let Ms. --

11                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.  Right, Your

12     Honor.

13                        JUDGE TOREM:  If there --

14                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you.

15                        JUDGE TOREM:  If there are other

16     crops of value that Mr. Harper wants to draw out on

17     redirect, we'll learn about that and find it in the

18     testimony at that point.

19          What else have you got?

20                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, I'm going

21     to interrupt now, if I may, because Mr. McMahan has

22     continued to talk over Ms. Cooke's answers.  I

23     understand that occasionally Ms. Cooke anticipates his

24     question, but it's particularly important that the

25     Council hear her complete thought before Mr. McMahan
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 1     moves on.

 2                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I'll interject,

 3     Mr. Harper and Ms. Cooke.  If it's a yes-or-no

 4     question, it's a lot simpler if you just answer "yes"

 5     or "no" up front.  And if it's necessary to elaborate,

 6     you can, but you may want to wait for Mr. Harper to

 7     redirect on the things he thinks the Council will find

 8     most important.

 9          Again, it's not the most natural thing in

10     conversation to just drop a "yes" or a "no," but for

11     purposes of cross-exam, it might speed things up a

12     little bit, and then we can see what else Mr. Harper

13     wants to make sure the Council knows.

14          So thank you for continuing to answer.

15          Mr. McMahan, back to you.

16                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.  And, again, I

17     apologize for talking over you, Ms. Cooke.  You and I

18     both seem to have a habit of doing that, and so I

19     will -- I have just one more question, and so hopefully

20     we can do that without talking over each other.

21  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  On Page 3, Line 22, of your

22     testimony, Ms. Cooke, you claim that the land will be

23     permanently taken out of production.

24          Are you aware that the land can and will be fully

25     restored after the life of the project?
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 1  A  It's my professional opinion as a land-use planner that

 2     the majority of the land will not go back to

 3     agriculture after the lifetime of this project.

 4  Q  So you dispute the findings throughout the Northwest,

 5     in general, that -- and the understanding that, after

 6     retirement, the land will be returned to agricultural

 7     use.  You -- you --

 8                        MR. HARPER:  Objection.  That --

 9     that -- objection, Your Honor.  That lacks foundation.

10     I don't know what he means, throughout the Northwest,

11     the land will be returned after retirement.

12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, can you

13     give a little bit more specificity so the Council knows

14     what you might be referring to as well?

15  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Well, Ms. Cooke, are you aware that

16     wind facilities throughout the Northwest, all of them,

17     are required to restore the land upon which they have

18     hosted the projects?

19          Are you aware of that?

20  A  I'm not familiar with other wind projects or their

21     conditions of approval in the Northwest, but I am aware

22     that they do need to have a plan in place for the

23     removal of these.  However, I -- I've yet to see a

24     successful wind farm being removed to this point in

25     my -- in my career or my lifetime.
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 1                        MR. McMAHAN:  Understood.  It's a

 2     relatively new industry.

 3          With that, I -- I have no further questions.  I

 4     thank you for your time.

 5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right,

 6     Mr. McMahan.

 7          Let's go on to Mr. Aramburu.

 8

 9                        CROSS-EXAMINATION

10     BY MR. ARAMBURU:

11  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Richard Aramburu.  I

12     represent Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.

13          Good morning.

14  A  Good morning.

15  Q  Just a couple of questions for you on behalf of the

16     community.

17          You're the Benton County planning manager.  What

18     is your responsibilities as planning manager?

19  A  That's correct.  I am the planning manager.  I oversee

20     the planning staff.  And I essentially make all of the

21     administrative decisions for the planning department on

22     behalf of Benton County.

23  Q  And have you been involved in the designation of -- of

24     agricultural lands of long-term significance?

25  A  Yes.  I was involved during our 2018 comprehensive plan
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 1     update where we did an agricultural lands

 2     classification memo.

 3  Q  And was that confirming the designation of -- of

 4     agricultural lands of long-term significance from prior

 5     versions of the comp plan?

 6  A  For the most part, yes.  We de-designated a few areas.

 7     But overall, we had a net gain of agricultural land

 8     that we add into the county.  But the majority of that

 9     land stayed the same, which was historically classified

10     as agricultural lands and are continuing to be zoned

11     agriculture.

12  Q  And was there any challenges or appeals of the County's

13     designation of agricultural lands of long-term

14     significance to the Growth -- Growth Management

15     Hearings Board?

16  A  There was not.  The groups that we typically get

17     appeals from had no issue with our classification memo.

18  Q  And were there any challenges from -- from anyone in

19     the farming community to the desi- -- to the

20     designation of agricultural lands of long-term

21     significance?

22  A  No, there was not.  And I believe we did hold public

23     meetings for that classification and designation.

24  Q  And do you recall what -- whether there was significant

25     opposition at those meetings?
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 1  A  There was a pretty good turnout.  I can't say that

 2     there was significant opposition.  I know a lot of

 3     people had questions, whether or not they were --

 4     particularly the property owners that were either going

 5     to be included in or excepted out of the -- the zone,

 6     as is normal when you're changing zonings on

 7     landowners.

 8          However, there was no significant objections that

 9     our office received.

10  Q  And did -- did the County do SEPA compliance for this

11     designation?

12  A  Yes, I believe we did as part of the comprehensive plan

13     update.  The ag- -- agricultural lands classification

14     memo was part of an appendix to our comprehensive plan.

15  Q  And was a threshold determination entered regarding the

16     decision to designate the lands as agricultural lands

17     of long-term significance?

18  A  Are you asking what the designation was?

19  Q  No.

20          I'm asking you whether there was a -- a -- with

21     SEPA compliance, was there a checklist, and was there a

22     threshold determination?

23  A  Yes, I believe there was.

24  Q  Okay.  And was -- was the threshold determination

25     appealed?
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 1  A  I don't -- I don't know off the top of my head.

 2     Actually, I believe our -- I believe our -- well, I

 3     don't know if the threshold determination was appealed,

 4     but our comprehensive plan, I believe, was appealed on

 5     different grounds.

 6  Q  But not on -- on the grounds that we're discussing

 7     today?

 8  A  No.  It was on groundwater, I believe.

 9  Q  Okay.  And the -- let's see.

10          That's all the questions I have.  Let me just look

11     here for a moment.

12          And is -- is the designation of long- --

13     agricultural lands of long-term significance, that's a

14     part of the comprehensive plan, correct?

15  A  The -- we do have a land-use designation.  The process

16     of designating them is part of the Washington State

17     WAC, not necessarily spelled out in our comprehensive

18     plan, but we do discuss that under the agricultural

19     land-use designation in the comp plan.

20  Q  And then for the comp plan, then zoning is adopted for

21     agricultural lands; is that correct?

22  A  That's correct.  The comp plan is a guiding document,

23     and from there, it's more specific into which zoning

24     designation it is classified as.

25  Q  And were there any appeals of the zoning designation
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 1     that's being discussed here by anyone in the Horse

 2     Heaven Hills?

 3  A  No, I'm not aware of anyone appealing the agricultural

 4     zone designation for this area.

 5  Q  And is the -- the zoning designation, comprehensive

 6     plan designation, taken into account by the Benton

 7     County assessor when he assesses value of property?

 8  A  Not to my knowledge.  My understanding is the appraisal

 9     of property, the taxation of property is a separate

10     process than the land-use designation or the zoning

11     designation of property.

12          Typically we see the assessor pick up similar

13     descriptions of land use based on what we've zoned it,

14     but not always necessarily; such as if there's an

15     agricultural piece of property and there's a home on

16     it, they may have it as residential for appraisal

17     purposes, but maybe they don't reflect that it's

18     necessarily agriculture in nature or zoned agriculture

19     if it's not being currently farmed.

20                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  No further

21     questions.  Thank you, Ms. Cooke.

22                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's turn

23     to Ms. Voelckers at the Yakama Nation.

24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your

25     Honor.
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 1                        CROSS-EXAMINATION

 2     BY MS. VOELCKERS:

 3  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  My name is Shona Voelckers,

 4     and I represent Yakama Nation in this proceeding.

 5          My question for you this morning is:  Can Benton

 6     County, under the Benton County Code, issue a

 7     conditional use permit to a development that needs

 8     water without first determining that the proposed

 9     development has a legally available water source to

10     serve that development?

11  A  Sorry.  Can you rephrase the question a little bit?  I

12     think I -- I think I understand what you're asking, but

13     I just want to make sure.

14  Q  Yeah.

15          Does Benton County Code allow issuance of a

16     conditional use permit to a development that needs

17     water if the permitter has not yet determined that

18     water is actually legally available for that

19     development?

20  A  It's not typical.  So typically from a conditional use

21     permit, we will ensure there's water or at least help

22     district approval.  Most of our conditional use permits

23     don't get into the depth of water law and actual water

24     rights from the Department of Ecology because of

25     their -- their size and scope and nature.
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 1          Most just require approval of the use from the

 2     Benton Franklin Health District, which would approve

 3     the well and/or sanitary facilities.  And we require,

 4     as a part of their application, that Benton Franklin

 5     Health District letter before they can apply, or with

 6     their application materials.  If their water source is

 7     from somewhere else, then we generally ask for

 8     compliance from that water purveyor as part of their

 9     application materials.

10          I'm trying to think of a larger-type conditional

11     use permit in the last ten years.  We've only had a few

12     of them.

13          And I would say groundwater compliance would be

14     something, as staff, we would certainly look at.  We

15     also -- when we send out the agency packet to the

16     reviewing agencies, they often -- the Department of

17     Ecology often will comment back that need for

18     groundwater is required, and so we will use that as a

19     condition of approval in the conditional use permit,

20     that they seek compliance with that groundwater

21     requirement.

22  Q  And if you have concerns about whether or not they can

23     comply with the groundwater requirement, would you

24     investigate those concerns before issuing a conditional

25     use permit?
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 1  A  Typically, yes.  Most of them -- I won't say all of

 2     them.  Again, it depends on the nature of a conditional

 3     use permit.  The scope is huge as far as, you know,

 4     something small such as a dog kennel versus something

 5     large like a con- -- a confined animal feed lot

 6     operation.  You know, the -- the intensity on the land

 7     is much different.  But we would ensure that there's

 8     compliance with water regulations for that.

 9          I know before I'd started at Benton County, there

10     was a proposed dairy or a feed lot up on the

11     Rattlesnake Hill, and I believe it was denied due to

12     groundwater issues and concerns.  And that was a

13     conditional use permit as well in an agricultural zone.

14                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you.  I may --

15     I may have other questions, depending on what else is

16     asked, but that's all I have at this time.

17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you,

18     Ms. Voelckers.

19          Ms. Cooke, can you clarify:  When you said it was

20     denied for groundwater concerns, was that water supply,

21     or was that potential for water pollution?

22                        THE WITNESS:  I don't -- I don't

23     know.  As I said, it was before I arrived.  I just know

24     that water -- groundwater was an issue of some sort.  I

25     don't know -- I don't know the status of it entirely.
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 1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  If it becomes

 2     relevant to the Council whether it was for nonpoint

 3     pollution or contamination concerns or water supply, it

 4     may come from another witness.

 5          Ms. Reyneveld, I know you're not listed for any

 6     cross-exam questions.  Did you have anything this

 7     morning?

 8                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have

 9     anything at this time.  Thank you, Judge.

10                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

11          Mr. Harper, I'm going to come back to you and go

12     one more round of questions.  Then I'll ask the Chair

13     and the Council members for their questions if they

14     haven't already been asked.

15          Mr. Harper.

16                        MR. HARPER:  All right.  Thank you,

17     Your Honor.

18

19                       REDIRECT EXAMINATION

20     BY MR. HARPER:

21  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  How are you?

22  A  Good.  Thank you.

23  Q  All right.  Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan spent a fair amount

24     of time focusing his questioning on what he portrayed

25     as a -- as a, I guess, a farm economics dispute.
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 1          And what I'd like you to do, Ms. Cooke, is -- if

 2     you could -- just, could you -- could you -- could you

 3     tell the Council about whether that in your view is

 4     germane to the concept of long-range planning and how a

 5     conditional use permit in this case may factor into the

 6     County's long-range interests in its agricultural

 7     lands?

 8  A  The County does consider economics when it comes to

 9     long-range planning in a small sense, but economic

10     development isn't necessarily our scope of or area of

11     expertise.  While our land-use practices, we try very

12     hard to ensure that they promote economic development

13     throughout the county, whatever that may be, we

14     certainly try not to have land-use long-range code

15     provisions such as our comprehensive plan that would go

16     against the benefit of economic development in the

17     county.

18          But when it comes to -- so that is within the

19     scope of long-range planning or, you know,

20     comprehensive long -- long-term planning.

21          Within the scope of a conditional use permit,

22     the -- it's a little bit different.  So while we have

23     our comprehensive plan designation for planning -- so

24     planning goes kind of top down -- we have this giant

25     20-year plan with all of our hopes and dreams and good
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 1   visions for the future, how you do good practical

 2   planning that will have a robust -- robust economy.

 3        From there, you whittle down -- as I said earlier

 4   in one of my other statements, from there you whittle

 5   down into specifics, and get into the day-to-day

 6   permits, which the conditional use permit would be one

 7   of those, and it gets a lot more limited in its scope.

 8        And, unfortunately, for a conditional use permit,

 9   we take out the economic gain or the opportunity to a

10   certain demographic of people or that sort of specifics

11   from our evaluation, and we just look at our set of

12   criteria, which doesn't include that economic gain or

13   benefit to a small group of citizens.

14        And as I said earlier, it's a really tough

15   conversation to have, because somebody's coming to you,

16   wanting to develop their land, and you know from a

17   human level that they will have economic gains from

18   this.  But from a regulation standpoint -- and,

19   honestly, that's what we are; we're regulators of the

20   state statutes -- we can't allow it.

21        And so our -- our limitations, you know, prevent

22   us from doing that.  Even though it makes sense from a

23   human standpoint, professionally it's just not a

24   factor, unfortunately.  And -- and, you know, it's --

25   it's hard.  As a professional, it's really hard.
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 1     Because you understand that there's going to be

 2     economic impacts to a group of people if -- if a use is

 3     denied or not allowed or not permitted, you know.

 4          And personally, the Wileys are my family.  They're

 5     my cousins.  So do I want them to have economic gain?

 6     Absolutely I do.  But professionally, this isn't an

 7     allowed use.  This isn't a permitted use.  It doesn't

 8     further the protection of agricultural lands.  So

 9     professionally, I have to say no.

10  Q  Ms. Cooke, is there a sense in which your permitting

11     decision-making or your -- your -- your testimony in

12     this case -- because it is certainly correct you're not

13     deciding the outcome of the CUP.

14          But is there a sense in which your -- your -- your

15     permitting analysis is intended to further and help

16     facilitate longer-range planning goals?

17          Are those in harmony in some sense?

18  A  They are, on a -- on a kind of a 3,000-foot level, I

19     would say.  Although one permitted use may be denied or

20     isn't permissible, it doesn't take away from the

21     objectives of the allow- -- the allowable uses in a

22     zone, which then further the goals and the policies

23     that we in the state have for each one of our areas.

24          So let's say a oil refinery isn't allowed in the

25     agricultural zone, since we heard that yesterday.  That
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 1     may not -- that may not improve the economy of Benton

 2     County, but it is going to keep farmers and the

 3     agricultural zone -- it's going to allow them to

 4     continue to have the ability to implement their own

 5     economy.

 6          And so the allowable uses that we have in our

 7     zoning designation further that economy.  It's just

 8     kind of a narrow scope, unfortunately.

 9  Q  Is it -- is it fair to say, Ms. Cooke, that -- that a

10     significant portion of your prefiled testimony is

11     intended to draw the attention of the Council to the

12     long duration of the Horse Heaven wind farm facility?

13  A  Yeah, I would say so.  I think a lot of people are

14     looking at this project within a limited scope, you

15     know, whether it's 30 years or a lifetime.  And from

16     planning, we try to look much further out.

17          And for us, we only have a limited area of

18     agriculture.  We're not making new agricultural lands.

19     And so that protection is key.

20          And it's not just protecting it for 10 or 20 years

21     or 30 years, or however long the lease is.  I -- I know

22     from practice that as soon as a use is established, it

23     generally is there in perpetuity.  It doesn't

24     necessarily go away.  It definitely shifts the

25     landscape and -- and what goes on there in the future
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 1     long after I'm gone.

 2          And so these are things that we consider as

 3     land-use planners.

 4  Q  Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan asked you a question that I

 5     objected to as lacking foundation.  He asked you about

 6     other examples of restoration after retirement of a --

 7     of a -- term a similar type of project.  I don't know

 8     quite what he was trying to draw to there.

 9          But are you aware of any example -- whether it's a

10     wind farm project or any other example -- of proven,

11     demonstrable restoration after compaction of soil,

12     after exporting of soil, after importing of soil,

13     alterations of the landscape, are you aware of any

14     area-wide soil rehabilitation effort that would be

15     comparable to what Horse Heaven wind farm portrays in

16     its ASC here?

17  A  I'm not aware of that.  I'm not aware of any projects

18     that have amended the project boundaries or the

19     footprint for reintroduction.

20          And one example that, you know, from -- a small

21     example that I can give off the top of my head is CRP

22     ground.  So Conservation Reserve Program has fallow

23     areas of wheat.  And you -- I drive home to visit my

24     family up on Horse Heaven, and you still see these

25     wheat fields that aren't in production.  And, you know,
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 1     that was supposed to be kind of a short-term program

 2     from the federal government, and they're still laying

 3     fallow.  And that's not necessarily an intense use

 4     which stopped farming for a short period of time.

 5          Larger impacts, such as solar project, I don't

 6     think people realize how critical that microclimate is

 7     and how sensitive the microclimate of the shrub-steppe

 8     is.  And those solar panels are going to devastate

 9     that.

10          So we're not just talking about can you put it

11     back into dryland wheat.  We're talking about can

12     you -- can you grow shrub-steppe back under those solar

13     panels; can you grow those native plants back there

14     that are sensitive and rare species.

15          I don't believe you can after it's been shaded for

16     30 years.  It's going to completely change that

17     microclimate.  And I don't know of any conservation

18     practices that has successfully done that on, you know,

19     thousands and thousands of acres.

20  Q  Does the ASC and the supporting materials that you've

21     had a chance to review in the SEPA documents, does it

22     adequately engage with this -- this topic, in your

23     opinion?

24  A  I don't believe it does.

25  Q  Ms. Cooke, do you know what the useful operating life
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 1     of the Horse Heaven wind farm project is?

 2  A  I don't know for sure, but I believe it's 30 years.

 3  Q  Yeah, I think that's correct.

 4          I guess the question is this, Ms. Cooke.

 5          What will essentially happen if, at the end of the

 6     30-year period, it proves to be infeasible or just

 7     uneconomic to engage with this restoration effort to

 8     return the soils to the kind of growing capacity that

 9     they currently have?

10          Do you have any opinion on that?

11  A  Well, it's going to -- it's going to continue

12     fragmenting the landscape if they're not able to

13     restore it.  And, you know, as I said in my testimony,

14     if that's the case, I believe, then, that it will lead

15     to other uses.

16          So what typically happens in land-use planning is,

17     let's say for some reason a use isn't allowed or it was

18     what we call grandfathered in and today it's not

19     allowed.  Well, it's been there forever, so I should be

20     able to do this thing.

21          And so if we have an industry scale or an

22     industrial-type use out in an agricultural zone and

23     that use ends its life cycle or goes away, but maybe

24     the infrastructure is there or something of that

25     nature, we'll see inquiries of more industrial uses
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 1     come in, say, Yeah, well, but for the last 30 years,

 2     there's been a wind turbine here, so of course I should

 3     have a communication facility, or of course I should

 4     have, you know, a data server farm.  It -- it won't be

 5     any more intense than what was there previously.

 6          And that's a -- that's a hard argument from our

 7     standpoint to make.  That's typically when we see a lot

 8     of petitions for rezoning, reclassification, when you

 9     have that legacy of fragmentation in a particular zone.

10  Q  Is it a concern of the County, Ms. Cooke, that in the

11     same manner that Mr. McMahan has tried to portray the

12     Scout facility as a natural extension of the Nine

13     Canyon project, that subsequent projects will be viewed

14     or sought in relationship to the Horse Heaven wind farm

15     should it be approved?

16  A  Yeah, I think, you know, in our layman's terms -- and

17     I'm sorry, but in our -- in our terms, we say

18     essentially we're opening a can of worms.  If you --

19     you know, and Nine Canyon is a really good example of

20     that.

21          So Nine Canyon was approved by the Board of

22     Adjustment, which is a citizen panel who may not be

23     adequately sufficient to consider all of the facts and

24     the criteria and the issues at hand when it comes to a

25     large-scale project like this, what effect it will
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 1   have.

 2        And so because Nine Canyon was approved, unlike

 3   the other -- we've had two other wind farms that

 4   weren't approved, and they were larger and almost in

 5   the same area.  It essentially opens the floodgates to

 6   other inquiries.  And I feel like, if this is approved,

 7   other developers will come in and say, Yeah, but

 8   there's this large-scale project right here, so, you

 9   know, it's not going to be that -- that much different

10   of an impact.

11        Unfortunately, when we're analyzing the CUP

12   criteria or other uses in a -- in a zone for

13   permitting, we don't look at what's historically been

14   done, especially if there were some errors in analyzing

15   them.

16        So we look at what's before us, not what was done

17   previously.  And so we would look at what's happening

18   now, not what happened then, and base it on today's

19   factors and today's criteria.

20        And, like you said, you know, I just feel like if

21   this is approved, then it's going to lead to more

22   fragmentation, more interest, more developers.  And

23   that really has me concerned, because our landscape is

24   rare and unique and beautiful.  And, you know, we as

25   farmers, speaking from a personal sense, try really
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 1     hard to be good stewards of the land, both for

 2     ourselves, our families, and our econ- -- our

 3     community.

 4  Q  I've tried to focus, Ms. Cooke, on factors that are

 5     germane to the CUP criteria.  Some of those are very,

 6     very specific.  Some of those have to do almost with

 7     SEPA-level mitigation.  Others are more values-based

 8     and more subjective.  I think you heard Mr. Wendt's

 9     testimony on that.

10          Let me wrap up with this, Ms. Cooke.

11          Regardless of Mr. McMahan's discussion of economic

12     impacts, bringing it down to a farmer-by-farmer level,

13     speaking strictly now to CUP criteria contained in the

14     Benton County Code, are you aware of any other

15     conditional use permit that would have a comparable

16     effect to the 10 square miles of irrevocably lost or

17     permanently disturbed, if you will, footprint or the

18     110-square-mile area-wide, lease-wide boundary of this

19     project?

20          Is there anything else that you've seen as a CUP

21     approved by Benton County comparable to this?

22  A  I have -- I have not seen any CUP approved comparable

23     to this.  The only CUP that we've had in the last

24     eight, six years that wasn't an intense use was denied,

25     and that was for our gravel pit.
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 1                      MR. HARPER:  Ms. Cooke, I will end

 2   there.  Thank you very much.

 3                      THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 4                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We've

 5   completed the redirect.  We're going to do a little bit

 6   of recross-exam, and then we'll come to the Chair and

 7   the Council.

 8        Mr. McMahan, anything further?

 9                      THE WITNESS:  Your Honor, can I

10   request a short break?

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  Sure.  We have gone

12   for an hour.  So let's come back at 10:10, and we'll --

13                      THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

14                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- go from there.

15                             (Pause in proceedings from

16                              10:04 a.m. to 10:10 a.m.)

17

18                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right, everybody.

19   Let's see if we can get back on screen here.  Court

20   reporter's ready to go.

21        Ms. Cooke, you ready?

22                      THE WITNESS:  I am.  Thank you for

23   the break.

24                      JUDGE TOREM:  No worries.  I think

25   everybody probably it needed.  I appreciated the cue.
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 1     There were some nodding heads when you asked.

 2          Mr. McMahan, recross.

 3                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 4     One question.  I promise.

 5

 6                       RECROSS-EXAMINATION

 7     BY MR. McMAHAN:

 8  Q  Ms. Cooke, are you aware that the project will cause or

 9     propose only one acre of shrub-steppe habitat impacted?

10  A  I don't know that for a fact, but if you're saying that

11     that's the impact, then okay.

12                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  That's my only

13     question.  Thank you.

14                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, any

15     follow-up?

16

17                       RECROSS-EXAMINATION

18     BY MR. ARAMBURU:

19  Q  Ms. Cooke, during your testimony, you expressed some

20     concerns about future development following the

21     cessation of the wind and solar aspects of this

22     project.

23          Do you remember that?

24  A  Yes.

25  Q  And is that a factor that's taken up during SEPA

0347

 1     review?

 2                        MR. McMAHAN:  Your Honor, if you

 3     don't mind, I would object to this.  This -- if we're

 4     following the scope of the -- the direct and

 5     cross-examination, this is a new area that

 6     Mr. Aramburu's taking us into that has not been

 7     previously covered and is not within the appropriate

 8     scope right now.

 9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Got it.

10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I'm following up on

11     the witness's testimony, Your Honor.  That was her

12     testimony.

13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, we have

14     a little bit of time today, so I'm going to allow it.

15     But for future witnesses and we have a tight time

16     frame, we do have to, as Mr. McMahan said, keep

17     funneling down within the scope of things.

18          So go ahead and ask a question again, and then

19     Ms. Cooke can answer, and then we'll keep moving along.

20  Q  (By Mr. Aramburu)  Okay.  Ms. Cooke, I went back and

21     refreshed your recollection a bit about your testimony

22     concerning your concerns about future use once

23     particularly the solar aspects of this might be

24     removed.

25          And is -- is the question of whether the project
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 1     would create a precedent for further actions, is that a

 2     matter that's covered by SEPA review?

 3  A  I am unsure.  I don't know that a SEPA review would

 4     speak directly to that or setting a precedent for

 5     something, but it -- a SEPA review would definitely

 6     review and comment on the loss of habitat, the impacts

 7     to, or I would hope that it would.  You know, what the

 8     ramifications would be both short-term and long-term,

 9     which then may set a precedent later in the future.

10  Q  And is it the case that no final action is taken by

11     Benton County on proposals until a final environmental

12     impact statement is prepared?

13  A  On conditional use permits, that's -- that's correct.

14     So typically for conditional use permits, we have

15     concurrent applications.  We have a conditional use

16     permit application, and we have a SEPA application or a

17     checklist.  And those run concurrently.  However, the

18     conditional use permit doesn't go to the hearing

19     examiner until the SEPA has -- determination has been

20     made.

21  Q  And a final impact statement prepared; is that correct?

22  A  I've never dealt with one of those, but, yes, if it got

23     to that point, I assume we would need an FEIS before we

24     come to a hearing for a CUP.

25  Q  And -- and under the -- the Benton County SEPA
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 1     ordinance, is it the case that the adequacy of a final

 2     environmental impact statement is subject to appeal?

 3  A  Yes.

 4  Q  Okay.  And -- and --

 5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, I just

 6     want to -- I just want to interrupt you here.  SEPA's

 7     not on trial in the adjudication.  It's not appropriate

 8     to go down that road.

 9          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?

10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Mr. Examiner, I'm

11     asking what the Benton County procedures are.  I

12     understand that the -- that a ruling has been made by

13     you, which we take great exception to, that SEPA will

14     be somehow excised from this process.  But I think I'm

15     entitled to ask questions about the Benton County

16     procedures and what procedures would be followed in

17     Benton County.

18                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not going to allow

19     it, Mr. Aramburu.  We already understand what the

20     Benton County procedures are for conditional use, and

21     we understand how the EFSEC procedures are in their

22     place.  We're applying those.  We're not applying

23     Benton County SEPA.  We're using state rules, and we're

24     having EFSEC as the lead agency.

25          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?
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 1                      MR. ARAMBURU:  Witness has testified

 2   that in -- in her analysis of the County's analysis of

 3   conditional use permits, they also comply with SEPA.

 4                      JUDGE TOREM:  And so does EFSEC.

 5   We're done -- we're done with this line of questioning,

 6   Mr. Aramburu.  I'm going to take great exception if you

 7   ask another SEPA question and ask our administrator to

 8   mute your mike.

 9        Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?

10                      MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  You're going

11   to cut me off.  That's fine, Mr. Torem.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  I am.  If you don't

13   have any other non-SEPA-related questions, I'm going to

14   move on to the Yakama Nation.

15        Ms. Voelckers, any other follow-up?

16                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing from --

17   further from the Yakama Nation for Ms. Cooke.  Thank

18   you, Your Honor.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Chair

20   Drew, do you have any questions that you wanted to ask?

21                      COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  I do not.

22   Thank you.

23                      JUDGE TOREM:  Council members, any

24   questions you wanted to ask?

25                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  This is Eli.
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 1   I have some questions.

 2                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right, Mr. Levitt.

 3   If you'll introduce yourself to the witness so she

 4   knows where you're from, and go ahead and ask your

 5   questions.

 6                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Hi,

 7   Ms. Cooke.  My name is Eli Levitt.  I'm a section

 8   manager at the Washington Department of Ecology, and

 9   I'm Ecology's Council member for EFSEC.

10                      THE WITNESS:  Hello.

11                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Just a --

12   just a moment.  I need to pull up my questions.

13        So do you or Mr. Wendt or your team do the GIS

14   analysis on land use on behalf of the County?  Land use

15   or zoning?

16                      THE WITNESS:  We used to.  However,

17   we established the GIS department, so now we work with

18   them to do our mapping.

19                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Do

20   you know, does anyone on that team kind of ground-truth

21   the maps by going out into the field ever?  You know,

22   to see, okay, this industrial land use borders this

23   agricultural use and, you know, try to get the lines as

24   correct as possible, so to speak?

25                      THE WITNESS:  Typically -- typically
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 1   that falls on the planners as we do site visits and

 2   work with landowners.  The planners will be the ones

 3   that bring up to GIS any amendments needed if there's a

 4   mapping error.

 5        However, we as staff do not make any amendments or

 6   mapping changes to our data layers, which we get from

 7   other agencies.  So coming to mind, a pretty

 8   contentious one that we have is wetlands.  And although

 9   they may not be the most accurate, we're not able to

10   make amendments to those.  We send them to the

11   appropriate State agency to work with in determining

12   whether or not the wetland is actually present, as we

13   don't have the expertise to make those determinations.

14                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Got it.

15        Yesterday, Mr. Wendt's testimony implied that, you

16   know, between the 2018 comprehensive plan and the

17   previous one --

18        What was that?  Around 2006 or something.

19                      THE WITNESS:  Mm-hmm.

20                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  -- that the

21   acres of ag land jumped, increased by something like

22   4,000 acres.

23        Is it possible that 4- to 6,000 acres, that --

24   that sort of level of change, is within a margin of

25   error or due to the changes in the way, the

0353

 1     methodology -- methodologies that the County GI mappers

 2     use?

 3  A  No, that change was -- came about from our ag lands

 4     classification memo.  So we hired developers to analyze

 5     a set of criteria, the eight criteria listed in the

 6     WAC, and our -- and our current zoning.  And that net

 7     gain came about from that classification memo.  So

 8     after that data was provided to us, then we implemented

 9     that into code by making those zone changes, which is

10     when we held the public hearings and that sort of

11     things.  We physically kind of added those areas into

12     our agricultural zoning designation as staff.

13                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  I

14     guess I just want to note, it -- it seems that your

15     testimony combines both personal and lived experience,

16     so I just wanted to ask one quick question about the

17     personal experience.

18                        THE WITNESS:  Sure.

19                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  And it's --

20     it's valuable for us to learn about, you know, how ag

21     works in your county for sure.  I visited multiple

22     farms in the Palouse in my past work at Ecology, so I

23     know a little bit about no-till and low-till dryland

24     wheat farming.

25          Do you -- does your -- you know, you mentioned
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 1   your family members in your testimony.  Do any of them

 2   or the other farmers you've spoken to about solar and

 3   wind developments use low- or no-till wheat farming

 4   techniques?

 5                      THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  My cousins

 6   actually use no-till wheat farming.  It seems to be a

 7   general practice of the Horse Heaven wheat farmers.  I

 8   don't know that -- I don't know their practices as

 9   intimately as I do irrigated ag, grow crops, and animal

10   husbandry, which is more of my background.  But in

11   speaking with them both in Klickitat County and in

12   Benton County as dryland wheat farmers, they both use

13   no-till practices.

14        Our irrigated ag land, my cousin actually runs

15   soil regeneration practices on -- in the -- in the

16   critical areas using animal husbandry to regenerate

17   soil habitat and, you know, continue the economic

18   development of our farm in the areas that we don't

19   actually till up or irrigate or remove out of a

20   critical area.  And that's been extremely successful,

21   and he's actually taking it to defend in his thesis

22   this year as a senior at USC.

23                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Interesting.

24        Well, going back to the GIS questions:  Does the

25   County GIS -- do GIS maps or layers at the level where
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 1   you can differentiate exactly where active dryland

 2   wheat farming is occurring in the Horse Heaven Hills

 3   area?

 4                      THE WITNESS:  It's pretty appar- --

 5   yeah, it's pretty apparent from aerial imagery.  You

 6   have a swath of blond, which is the wheat field, and

 7   then you have the clear cutoff line.

 8        The other defining factor is that the wheat

 9   farmers tend to use sections.  Because of the large

10   linear squares that they have up there, irrigated ag

11   tends to use crop circles.  And so just visually, you

12   can kind of see the difference between those two

13   visually from the aerial imagery.

14                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  So if you

15   asked your GIS mapping team, they could estimate the

16   number of acres in the Horse Heaven region that is in

17   active use right now for dryland wheat farming and/or

18   ranching?

19                      THE WITNESS:  Ranching is a lot -- a

20   heck of a lot tougher, just because you can't really

21   define where people run cattle on.  It looks like

22   open -- open habitat.  So you wouldn't know if it was

23   preserved or not.

24        But as far as dryland wheat goes, you could

25   probably slap a polygon and get a rough estimate,
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 1   obviously not including physical barriers and canyons

 2   and that sort of thing.

 3                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  And

 4   jumping around here a little bit.

 5                      JUDGE TOREM:  Excuse me, Mr. Levitt.

 6        Ms. Cooke, you just called something slap a pole

 7   up...?

 8                      THE WITNESS:  Sorry.  Sorry.

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  What was that?

10                      THE WITNESS:  To draw a polygon

11   using GIS, you know, roughly.  Not necessarily

12   accurately as far as determining how many acres within

13   the Horse Heaven region would be dryland versus

14   irrigated.  But we do actually have that analysis for

15   zoning -- specific zoning designations.

16                      JUDGE TOREM:  That's fine.

17                      THE WITNESS:  We just don't have --

18   okay.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  I just -- I missed the

20   word "polygon" as you spoke quickly.

21                      THE WITNESS:  Oh.

22                      JUDGE TOREM:  I wanted to make sure

23   it was accurate in the record.

24        Mr. Levitt, you had a follow-up.

25                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Yeah.  Just
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 1   a few more.  Three more maybe.

 2        To your knowledge, has the County, Energy

 3   northwest, or any other entity that you partner with

 4   surveyed and/or reviewed the productivity of farming or

 5   any lessons learned in general, such as challenges and

 6   opportunities, associated with the Nine Canyon wind

 7   farm?

 8                      THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge,

 9   no.

10                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  So

11   the County and/or partners like Energy Northwest have

12   not, for example, asked the -- the wheat farmers in

13   that area how are things going since --

14                      THE WITNESS:  I'm not --

15                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  -- since the

16   wind farm was established?

17                      THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm not

18   aware of it, but Ener- -- I mean, Energy Northwest may

19   check in with their leaseholders.  I -- I just -- we,

20   the County, are a bit disattached from that narrative,

21   so we don't -- we don't hear things like that unless we

22   know someone personally involved or professionally

23   involved.

24                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.

25   Mr. Wendt didn't get into this yesterday, but I guess
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 1   I'm curious.

 2        You said something earlier about a board of

 3   citizens approved the Nine Canyon winds -- wind farm in

 4   some way.

 5                      THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 6                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Do you have

 7   any -- yeah.  Okay.

 8        Could you give me just a very brief background on

 9   that, what that process was, from your perspective?

10                      THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  So currently a

11   conditional use permit is heard by a hearings examiner,

12   which is a quasi-judicial, typically a lawyer that we,

13   the County, hire.  And she -- she's a woman for us.

14   She's an unbiased third party.  So she will hear these.

15   She's also professionally trained generally in land-use

16   law.  And so she will go through our code and all the

17   testimony she's received and the application and review

18   it for consistency and then will make her determination

19   as to whether something should be approved or denied.

20        The Nine Canyon project -- so prior to having a

21   hearing examiner set up, my understanding is -- 'cause

22   I wasn't here at the time -- the County used a Board of

23   Adjustment, and that was a panel of -- of citizens with

24   no particular training who would hear land-use matters

25   and make a decision based -- which was supposed to be
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 1   based on the county code.

 2        We have a similar board called the planning

 3   commission, which I oversee, and I can tell you that

 4   the difference in the hearings are night and day,

 5   especially with consideration and the scope that needs

 6   to be narrowed into what they're reviewing.  I feel

 7   that hearings examiners are a lot more defensible and

 8   accurate in their decisions.  The -- when you get

 9   boards of private citizens making decisions on land

10   use, sometimes they're not always the best decisions or

11   the most appropriate decisions.

12                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Then

13   I'm curious, I guess, from just the County staff

14   perspective, so this includes you and Mr. Wendt and

15   other County officials.

16        Is there anything official that changed at the

17   County level, 2020 and prior -- you know, it could be a

18   commissioner's resolution; it could be changes to code;

19   it could be white papers, policies, procedures that

20   changed -- that would impact how you and your team

21   approach the consideration of proposed wind farms or --

22   or solar farms?

23                      THE WITNESS:  I don't believe so.  I

24   mean, we had a tax amendment which prohibited them

25   after 2020, but I don't -- I don't believe that there
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 1   was any documentation or guidance of how to review a

 2   wind proposal except for those that are listed in our

 3   county code and our comprehensive plan, kind of those

 4   guiding documents that we as staff would use.

 5        But, again, you know, that's outside of our -- our

 6   purview, because we don't get to make those decisions

 7   on those types of permits.  It's the same as a dog

 8   kennel.  I don't get to decide if somebody gets a dog

 9   kennel or not.  That has to go through another

10   administrator as far as approval goes.

11                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Thank

12   you.  That's it.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  Do other Council

14   members have any questions for Ms. Cooke?

15        All right.  Hearing none.

16        I have one question, Ms. Cooke.

17        From Page 8 toward the end of your -- to the end

18   of your testimony, there -- the theme talks about

19   taking land out of production and not maintaining

20   agricultural viability for a variety of concerns

21   between family farms and succession.

22        When I got down to Page 10, your conclusion was it

23   won't be economically viable for farmers to return the

24   agricultural lands of long-term commercial significance

25   to agricultural use at the end of the Horse Heaven wind
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 1   farm project life.

 2        Have you thought about any ways that you could

 3   assist from the County level or you might ask EFSEC or

 4   the State government to assist, assuming this

 5   recommendation is for approval and it's built?

 6        With that scenario, have you thought of any ways

 7   that would change your conclusion to make it easier for

 8   things to go back to long-term commercial significance

 9   and agricultural use?

10                      THE WITNESS:  I have not.  But I can

11   see where you're going with it.  And honestly I would

12   hope that either the State or, you know, another body

13   would help incubate and, you know, generate these maybe

14   progressive ideas that would help them keep in the

15   scope of agricultural while maintaining a new source of

16   income.  I just personally don't -- I haven't done it

17   myself or thought about it or engaged with anybody on

18   that in the context of this project.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  One of the ideas that,

20   as I looked at your testimony last night, that came to

21   mind -- I don't know if the Council, it's within their

22   scope even -- is a question of you -- you made it seem

23   as though it's economically infeasible to reverse the

24   effects of the wind farm and get things done.  It would

25   be a financial issue for the landowners.
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 1                      THE WITNESS:  Mm-hmm.

 2                      JUDGE TOREM:  And I wondered if

 3   there was any consideration in the County for financial

 4   assistance to do that, and if so, some kind of

 5   long-term trust that may be part of the conditioning

 6   the Council considers.  Again, sometimes we're looking

 7   at environmental impacts, not financial impacts, but

 8   part of the decommissioning of the project usually

 9   includes posting a bond and other fiscal things.

10        So I'm wondering again in the context of

11   decommissioning whether the County has thought about --

12   for this project, for Nine Canyon, for any of them that

13   might be a change to an agricultural area -- a trust

14   fund of some sort -- how it's funded, I don't know --

15   to make sure it's not a financial burden on the

16   individual, and the County, as you've said, can

17   maintain its regional and zoning area interests to get

18   things back and what the County's vision might be for

19   beyond our lifetimes.

20        Long question, but the concept, I hope, is clear.

21                      THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Yeah.  No, and

22   it's a great concept, and it's a great idea.  You know,

23   unfortunately, I just -- I don't know about the greater

24   County as a whole, but certainly for -- for my office,

25   you know, we just don't have the legal ability to do
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 1   that or make those requirements on the applicant.  I

 2   would feel like it's outside the burden of what, you

 3   know, a conditional use permit or other, you know,

 4   permit that we apply conditions of approval for.

 5        It's kind of outside the scope of what we normally

 6   would have done.  But that's not to say it's

 7   impossible.  There -- you know, there's universities

 8   and all sorts of interest groups that are continuing to

 9   work on the promotion of agricultural, so maybe in the

10   future it would get -- it would get approved into state

11   law and we could have something set up like that for

12   them.  It's just not something that's available on the

13   table at the moment.

14                      JUDGE TOREM:  And, admittedly, I

15   don't understand all of the decommissioning scope of

16   what EFSEC can or can't do.  It's just an outside-the-

17   box thought on, as you say, the longer term and perhaps

18   more progressive thinking.  Thank you for the input on

19   that.

20        Mr. Harper, does that raise anything else -- this

21   is your witness -- before we...?

22                      MR. HARPER:  No.  No, it doesn't.

23   Thank you, Your Honor.

24                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council

25   members, Chair Drew, any other questions?
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 1        I see Eli Levitt has his hand up.

 2                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Yeah.

 3   Sorry.  I guess, just a quick follow-up question.

 4        So you mentioned that there were two wind farms

 5   proposed in the county in the past, and those were

 6   denied in some fashion.

 7        Can you talk about, just briefly, about how the

 8   process worked for Nine Canyon versus those two other

 9   farm -- wind farm proposals that you mentioned?

10                      THE WITNESS:  I believe they were

11   all heard by the Board of Adjustment.  I'm not entirely

12   sure.  The other two are from 2001, and our records

13   from those days are quite sparse.  Recordkeeping wasn't

14   quite a priority then as it was now.

15        But my understanding is they were larger projects,

16   anywhere from 200 to 500 turbines that were roughly 250

17   to maybe 300-plus feet, covering 4,000-ish acres.

18        One was denied.  The other, we don't know -- it

19   was not approved.  I just don't know what the status is

20   because of recordkeeping purposes, but it was not

21   approved.  But those more than likely went in front of

22   the Board of Adjustments as well.

23                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  And to your

24   knowledge, for all three of those, Nine Canyon and the

25   two -- other two you mentioned, did the County ever
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 1   discuss mitigation measures, that they would be

 2   interested if -- if the projects went forward?  Does

 3   that make sense?

 4                      THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge.

 5   I haven't done a deep dive into the Nine Canyon project

 6   myself, so I don't know what was discussed.  I know it

 7   was an MDNS, which professionally for me is an

 8   interesting choice.  I feel like that's something I

 9   wouldn't have made a determination on.

10        But one of the other projects actually had an EIS

11   request, and I don't know that it was ever seen

12   through, so my guess is, from that project, that one,

13   that had an EIS, it could have had mitigation measures

14   or, you know, spoken to that as part of that scope for

15   an EIS.

16                      COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Thank

17   you.

18                      JUDGE TOREM:  Lenny Young?

19                      COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Yeah.

20        Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Lenny Young.  I'm a

21   Department of Natural Resources representative to

22   EFSEC.  And quick follow-up to Mr. Levitt's question.

23        Could you -- do you know the name or some type of

24   a reference if we wanted to look more into those two

25   other projects that were denied?  Is there some kind of
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 1   a name or identifier we could use to -- to find

 2   information on those?

 3                      THE WITNESS:  Yeah, the one was,

 4   ironically, Horse Heaven Wind.  The other was Maiden

 5   Wind.

 6                      COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Thank you.

 7                      THE WITNESS:  M-a-i-d-e-n.

 8                      COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Got it.

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  Any others?

10                      THE WITNESS:  Those are the only two

11   besides Nine Canyon that I'm aware of.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  Oh.  I'm sorry.  Any

13   other questions --

14                      THE WITNESS:  Oh.  Sorry.

15                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- from Council

16   members?

17        All right.  Seeing none.

18        I want to make sure the parties understand.  I

19   think when Mr. Young's asking about getting other

20   information, we'll make sure we have advice from our

21   attorney general as to what's in the record and what's

22   not.  We talked with Council members about not doing

23   our own research outside the record, so that advice is

24   being given as we go.  And if anything else is sought

25   for the record, it will be in the form of a data
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 1   request to parties, and you'll know what the Council

 2   members are considering.

 3        So if there's any concerns that Council members

 4   are asking questions in that regard, they're not

 5   necessarily familiar with the -- the niceties of the

 6   APA, typical trial practice, and what might be a

 7   limited record.  But certainly if the Council members

 8   for the adjudication are going to have anything, you'll

 9   know what it is.

10        All right.  Anybody have any other questions for

11   Ms. Cooke that I need to recognize before we let her go

12   and move on to our next order of business?

13        All right.  Hearing none.

14        Ms. Cooke, thank you.  Good morning.  And --

15                      THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

16                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- I appreciate your

17   time and testimony.

18                             (Witness excused.)

19

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council

21   members, today we had just the one scheduled witness.

22   And previous at the housekeeping session, there was a

23   question of whether or not we could move some things

24   around.

25        We have permission from the Yakama Nation and all
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 1   the other parties to call Mr. Ganuelas and

 2   Mr. Nuetzmann today.

 3        Ms. Voelckers, what's the status of their

 4   availability?

 5                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your

 6   Honor.  They are available.  I would ask that we take a

 7   brief break.  But they are here and available to be

 8   sworn in.

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We're

10   going to take a break just to get them on the line.

11   We'll come back at 10:45.

12        Before we go off to our break, the Nuetzmann

13   exhibits that you might want to have, if you have any

14   questions, Council members, even though they're not

15   scheduled for cross-exam, would be 4011_T and 4012.

16        As for Mr. Ganuelas, they would be mostly

17   confidential.  But 4008_T and then 4009 and 4010.

18   Those are both marked as confidential, and you have a

19   redacted version as well.  The reply testimony is an

20   Exhibit 4013.  So if you are looking for something to

21   do in the next eight minutes --

22                      COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Judge.

23                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- to get ready, we

24   would have those.

25        Chair Drew.
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 1                      COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Would you

 2   please have someone put those in the chat since I

 3   didn't write that quickly.

 4                      JUDGE TOREM:  Sure.  They're easy --

 5                      CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 6                      JUDGE TOREM:  -- to find in the

 7   exhibit list.  The -- the Yakama Nation's exhibits all

 8   start with a 4.

 9                      COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Okay.

10                      JUDGE TOREM:  And I'll ask that --

11   we'll get those in the chat, 4011 and -12, 4008 through

12   -13.

13        All right.  Thank you.  We'll take our break.

14                      COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Oh.  I just got

15   a message.  Okay.  Thank you.

16                      JUDGE TOREM:  Yep.  We'll take our

17   break and come back at 10:45.

18                             (Pause in proceedings from

19                              10:37 a.m. to 10:45 a.m.)

20

21                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  It's now

22   10:45.  We're back on the record.

23        Ms. Voelckers, have you had a chance to make sure

24   whether Mr. Ganuelas and Nuetzmann are on the line?

25                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.
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 1   They are logging on through Mr. Jones' computer.  I see

 2   Mr. Nuetzmann now.

 3        If I could ask a clarifying question before we get

 4   going regarding something that you said before the

 5   break.

 6                      JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, ma'am.

 7                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Our understanding

 8   was that Council was going to be provided with the

 9   confidential versions of everything, not just the

10   redacted ones.  And so I don't know if that -- I just

11   wanted to make sure that that was the case.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  And

13   Ms. Masengale has definitely provided all of those

14   documents.  We've got them in a separate part of our

15   SharePoint drive that only has access to Council

16   members and not to the general EFSEC or UTC population

17   that is on the same server, to my understanding.  So,

18   yes, they have both.

19                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Okay.  I appreciate

20   the clarification and also just making sure they have a

21   chance to review that before Monday for the other

22   members that are testifying.  So thank you for that.

23        I see that Mr. Nuetzmann is all set up.

24                             (Witness Mark Nuetzmann

25                              appearing remotely.)
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let me get

 2   to where his exhibits are.

 3        All right.  Good morning, Mr. Nuetzmann.  How are

 4   you?

 5                      THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Judge

 6   Torem.  I'm good.

 7                      JUDGE TOREM:  I'm going to swear you

 8   in to adopt your testimony, and then we'll see if

 9   there's any questions.

10        Again, my understanding is that your testimony is

11   limited to two exhibits.  They are 4011_T, your

12   prefiled direct testimony; and Exhibit 4012, your reply

13   testimony to Erik Jansen's rebuttal testimony.

14        Are those the two documents that you're aware of

15   you've submitted as testimony?

16                      THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

17                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I'm going

18   to have you raise your right hand and adopt that, and

19   then we'll see if the Council members have any

20   questions.

21

22   MARK NUETZMANN,             appearing remotely, was duly

23                               sworn by the Administrative

24                               Law Judge as follows:

25   ////
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  Do you, Mark

 2   Nuetzmann, solemnly swear or affirm that all testimony

 3   you've indicated you'll adopt today and any answers you

 4   give to Council questions will be the truth, the whole

 5   truth, and nothing but the truth?

 6                      THE WITNESS:  I do.

 7                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

 8        I'm going to note that for the record, those

 9   exhibits I talked about have been adopted under oath,

10   and they're now admitted to the record.

11                             (Exhibit Nos. 4008_T_Revised,

12                              4009_Confidential,

13                              4009_Redacted,

14                              4010_Confidential,

15                              4010_Redacted, 4011_T, 4012,

16                              and 4013 admitted.)

17

18                      JUDGE TOREM:  Council members, Chair

19   Drew, any questions for Mr. Nuetzmann?

20        All right.  I'm not hearing any, Mr. Nuetzmann.

21   That's probably the easiest morning at trial you'll

22   ever experience.

23        And we're going to take our next witness from the

24   Yakama Nation, Mr. Leon Ganuelas.  So thank you,

25   Mr. Nuetzmann.  So thank you, Mr. Nuetzmann.  You can
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 1   stand down and switch places.

 2                      THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 3                             (Witness excused.)

 4                             (Witness Leon Ganuelas

 5                              appearing remotely.)

 6

 7                      JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning.  Are you

 8   Leon Ganuelas?

 9                      THE WITNESS:  Good morning.  Yes,

10   sir, I am.

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  Out of respect for the

12   confidentiality of much of your testimony, Council

13   members, we're now going to make sure that our system

14   for moving into closed-record hearing works.  So I'm

15   going to ask staff to move us to a Microsoft Teams

16   breakout room.

17        So, Mr. Ganuelas, hopefully everybody transfers

18   over.  And I'll do a quick roll call of parties and

19   Council members to make sure we're all there, and then

20   we'll take your testimony.

21                             (Pause in proceedings from

22                              10:49 a.m. to 10:53 a.m.)

23                 ** Closed-record hearing **

24   * Not available to general public per protective order *

25   ////
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 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17                             (Closed-record session

18                              concluded.)

19

20                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I can see

21   that a number of us are back, moved over automatically

22   from the other meeting.  Let's see if I can have the

23   participant list put up on the side.  I see there's

24   more of us in this session than there were in the

25   other.
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 1        For any members of the public that are listening,

 2   we're back from a closed-record session where witness

 3   Leon Ganuelas was talking about some privileged and

 4   confidential information regarding pronghorn antelope.

 5        There are redacted versions of his testimony

 6   available on the EFSEC website if you're interested.

 7   Those are -- the redacted portions are the ones that

 8   members of the public or those that haven't signed

 9   confidentiality agreements can -- can access.

10        And we were gone out of public session for about

11   30 minutes, maybe less.

12        All right.  Council members, I don't know that

13   there's any other business.  I'm going to ask the

14   parties again if I'm overlooking anything we said we

15   would do on the record today with all of the Council

16   members.

17        Mr. McMahan, was there anything on your list that

18   we still needed to do with the Council members today?

19                      MR. McMAHAN:  Not that I'm aware of,

20   Your Honor.  Thank you.

21                      JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper?

22                      MR. HARPER:  No.  I don't think so.

23                      JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. Reyneveld.

24                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Nothing further.

25   Thank you.
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 1                      JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, let me

 2   come to you.  Was there anything else we needed to do

 3   on the record with Council members?

 4                      MR. ARAMBURU:  I do have an item,

 5   but the Council members' presence is not necessary.

 6                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you.

 7   We'll do another housekeeping session here shortly.

 8        And, Ms. Voelckers, anything else from the Yakama

 9   Nation we need to do with the Council members today?

10                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing else for the

11   Council today from Yakama Nation.  Thank you, Your

12   Honor.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then

14   looking forward to tomorrow, Council members, the

15   Rahmig scheduled testimony is still not happening

16   tomorrow.  But I understand that we're going to have

17   Morgan Shook.

18        And Morgan Shook, I'll go over the exhibit numbers

19   with you if you have your pens and pencils ready.

20   Morgan Shook's testimony will be available also, I'm

21   sure, from the very busy Ms. Masengale in a daily

22   folder on the SharePoint drive to make it easy to

23   access and review this evening.

24        Morgan Shook was originally scheduled for next

25   Tuesday, August 22nd, at 11:40 a.m. and supposed to go
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 1   after a lunch break into 2:30 p.m.  So there's

 2   approximately two hours of testimony to be ready for

 3   tomorrow.  And unless there's anything else added,

 4   we'll start at 9:00, and then we have the monthly

 5   Council meeting at 1:30.  Please plan on being

 6   available for this adjudication maybe up till 12 or

 7   12:30 just in case we're able to add anything else and

 8   front-load the schedule a little bit more to

 9   accommodate the ever-fluid schedule we've got.

10        But the exhibits that I have for this

11   applicant-sponsored witness start with 1008_T.  And

12   that's a set of revised testimony filed by the

13   applicant.  The supporting exhibits follow in sequence

14   through 1009 all the way through 1020.  And there's

15   also some reply testimony, if I'm not mistaken, at

16   1051_R.  So essentially 1008 through 1020 and 1051.

17        Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, did I get those

18   correct?

19                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Yes, Your Honor.

20   Thank you.

21                      JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. [Sic] Shook

22   will be available at 9 a.m. tomorrow?

23                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Correct.

24        It's "Mr. Shook" --

25                      JUDGE TOREM:  Oh.
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 1                      MS. STAVITSKY:  -- just for the

 2   record.  Thank you.

 3                      JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.

 4        Council members, any question on your homework for

 5   tonight and ready for tomorrow?

 6        All right.  Then we'll recess the adjudicative

 7   hearing portion.

 8        I have a question from Mr. Livingston.

 9                      COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:  Yeah.

10   I'm sorry, Judge.  I missed:  What time will we start

11   tomorrow?

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  9:00.  I'll do a

13   housekeeping session with the parties to see about any

14   other schedule items I can advise you of, and then at

15   9:00 we'll have Mr. Morgan Shook adopt his testimony

16   and see if there's any questions.

17        We know we're going to have cross-exam from --

18   it'll be a follow-up after Mr. Aramburu's questions on

19   behalf of Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S. from the applicant.  So

20   about an hour-plus is what Mr. Aramburu is estimating,

21   followed by any redirect exam.  And then, as you've

22   seen, the round-robin that we do.  And then we'll get

23   to the Council members' questions along with anything

24   else we need after that.

25        Any other Council questions?
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 1        All right.  You had a short day today.  I can't

 2   promise there'll be many of these ahead.  Especially

 3   tomorrow you'll have a follow-on Council meeting.  So

 4   thank you very much.  And I'm going to take a brief

 5   recess here till 11:25 so people can stretch and

 6   everybody can sign on or off, and we'll resume at 11:25

 7   with our housekeeping session.

 8                             (Pause in proceedings from

 9                              11:22 a.m. to 11:25 a.m.)

10

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We're back into

12   a housekeeping session.  We're back on the record to

13   take any notes that we need.

14        Mr. Aramburu, I'll come to you first.  You said

15   you had a note you wanted to take up.

16                      MR. ARAMBURU:  I have a question for

17   you, Judge Torem.  When might we expect decisions on

18   the other outstanding motions?

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  Tomorrow morning.

20   I've got some time this afternoon suddenly.  So I

21   apologize that you're still waiting.  But tomorrow

22   morning, you'll have my answers on as many of them as I

23   can get to.  And given the time balance I have today,

24   I'm hoping all.

25                      MR. ARAMBURU:  And particularly
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 1   because at least one of the motions deals with

 2   scheduling, if you don't have a written ruling, an oral

 3   ruling would be -- would be helpful to us as well, just

 4   so we -- we know how to -- how to schedule things.  So

 5   thank you for that.

 6                      JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that.

 7   And that's why I try to make notes on that oral ruling

 8   today.  And I've asked the court reporter to make sure,

 9   if it's reduced to writing that way, then it can also

10   be circulated to the parties as soon as possible.

11        So if it's efficiency sake, Mr. Aramburu, I will

12   give the oral rulings as best we can and use the

13   transcript to document those going forward for

14   preserving issues for appeal and a way to cite to them.

15   I'm trying to make sure that to service both purposes

16   of efficiency and any other errors that might want to

17   be called out by parties.

18                      MR. ARAMBURU:  So let me just

19   understand the process here.  You -- you made an oral

20   ruling on our motion to compel.  Are you going

21   to re- -- are you going to enter an independent written

22   ruling on that, or are we just going to rely on your

23   oral comments?

24                      JUDGE TOREM:  I am not planning to

25   issue a further written ruling, but I will circulate in
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 1   advance a separate piece of the transcript that

 2   memorializes it.  Just given the time constraints on

 3   everything else, Mr. Aramburu, I just -- I don't want

 4   to keep the parties waiting for those written products.

 5   The ruling has been made, and I think from there, it

 6   will speak for itself.

 7                      MR. ARAMBURU:  So the date of your

 8   ruling is today, then?  Would that be correct?

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  It must be, yes.

10                      MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  Thank you.

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

12   Mr. McMahan, any other housekeeping items that the

13   applicant had for me today?  Perhaps you've heard from

14   Ms. Perlmutter over the course of the morning.

15                      MR. McMAHAN:  I will let

16   Ms. Stavitsky talk about her communication with

17   Ms. Perlmutter.

18                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Yeah, nothing more

19   for Scout, Your Honor, except just I can provide an

20   update.  We heard back from Ms. Perlmutter, who says

21   she's feeling slightly better but still out of

22   commission.  So we'll keep checking in and update

23   you-all.

24                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.

25        Mr. Harper, any other updates from the County or
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 1   housekeeping measures for today?

 2                      MR. HARPER:  No.  Thank you, Judge.

 3                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

 4   Ms. Reyneveld?

 5                      MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have

 6   anything except for, if we wanted to try to move up the

 7   wildlife testimony, then Your Honor's direction is for

 8   us to coordinate that and come to you with a proposal.

 9                      JUDGE TOREM:  Maybe not you

10   individually, but the parties together collaboratively.

11                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Okay.  Thank you.

12                      JUDGE TOREM:  Do you have any status

13   updates, if appropriate, on your proposed settlement

14   agreement that you referenced, I think, last Thursday

15   in the fifth prehearing conference regarding the

16   eastern solar array wildlife impacts, and there was

17   some reference to the memorandum Page 2?  I don't

18   remember if we're calling it the Kobus memo or the Moon

19   memo.  Any updates on that?

20                      MS. REYNEVELD:  I do not have any

21   updates.  And there will not be any updates until the

22   conclusion of the adjudicative process from the

23   attorney general's perspective.

24                      JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That helps.

25   Because I was wondering if I needed to mention to the
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 1   Council members they might see that during the course

 2   of the adjudication.  Because it won't be signed before

 3   the end of the adjudication, it's probably best not to

 4   give them any anticipation that there is something

 5   coming in.  I don't want any negative connotation or

 6   positive connotation to be implied because of the

 7   ongoing negotiations there.

 8        Would you agree, Ms. Reyneveld?

 9                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, I think that

10   makes sense.  Thanks, Your Honor.

11                      JUDGE TOREM:  Over the course of my

12   career, I've learned that settlements in principle are

13   not always settlements in writing.  So we'll leave it

14   at that.

15                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah, and I would

16   say that it's not even a settlement in principle.

17   It's -- we've had discussions around the potential for

18   settlement.

19                      JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  That helps

20   clarify it even further.  Okay.

21                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.

22                      JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  Ms. Voelckers, I

23   was about to come to you.

24                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Oh.  Well, just

25   before we move on from this topic, if Ms. Reyneveld was
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 1   able to, we would appreciate clarity on when those

 2   discussions ceased.

 3                      MS. REYNEVELD:  I think we had the

 4   discussions in the spring, and that's -- I think --

 5   correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. McMahan, but I don't think

 6   there were further -- further discussions specifically

 7   on this that were substantive after that.

 8                      MR. McMAHAN:  Yes, Ms. Reyneveld, I

 9   think that's correct.  And I -- if I remember right --

10   stand to be corrected -- there was a date on the

11   document after we essentially completed those tentative

12   discussions.  And as far as I can recall -- and, Sarah,

13   correct me if you think I'm wrong -- I think that was

14   it from the -- from the date of the last version that

15   we circulated.

16                      MS. REYNEVELD:  That's my

17   recollection.  Thanks, Mr. McMahan.

18                      MS. VOELCKERS:  So is it fair to

19   say, then, that there weren't further discussions about

20   the proposal after the date of the one that Mr. McMahan

21   e-mailed to the parties last Friday?

22                      MR. McMAHAN:  Well, I didn't want to

23   speak for Sarah, or for Ms. Randolph -- excuse me --

24   but I believe that's correct.

25                      MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah, I don't -- I
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 1   think we might have checked in on the status of it, but

 2   there was no substantive discussions after that, is my

 3   recollection after that date, so...

 4                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you.  We

 5   appreciate the clarification.

 6                      JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, did you

 7   have any other items for the housekeeping?

 8                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Just a request to

 9   the parties, Your Honor, that -- that we do engage in

10   that conversation around who might be taking

11   Mr. Shook's spot on Tuesday before tomorrow morning's

12   check-in with you.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, I think we will

14   hear from you guys in the morning.  I won't participate

15   in those conversations, but hopefully the parties will

16   make time today.

17        I just see that Ms. Masengale's posted an updated

18   exhibit list.  I have one question about an exhibit

19   yesterday.  Ms. Masengale, maybe you can clarify it

20   best.

21        I'm looking for Exhibit 1040_R.  I think that was

22   from Ms. McClain.  And I don't know if we expressly

23   asked her to adopt that testimony.  My notes didn't

24   catch up to that.  Did yours?

25                      MS. MASENGALE:  Judge Torem, I'm
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 1   just reopening that document, and I will be back with

 2   you shortly.

 3                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  While

 4   you're doing that, the four items.  And, Mr. Aramburu,

 5   you might keep along with me here to make sure I've got

 6   them.

 7        There's your motion to reconsider the

 8   witnesses' -- the testimony that were stricken:

 9   Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and Simon.  That's one item I know

10   you're waiting for.

11        Related to that is the applicant's motion to

12   strike certain rebuttal response testimony of, I think,

13   those same witnesses.  There may be more.

14        And, Ms. Reyneveld, there's your motion, which I

15   think will be the easiest for me, on your proposed

16   supplemental testimony.

17        And, finally, there's Mr. McMahan and the

18   applicant's motion to supplement the record with

19   Mr. Kobus's testimony.

20        Mr. Aramburu, were there any other items that

21   you're still waiting for that I didn't list?

22                      MR. ARAMBURU:  Those sound like the

23   ones that are on the list that have not yet been

24   decided.

25                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.
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 1   I'm just making sure I'm not overlooked something.

 2   Sometimes the e-mails have been voluminous, or I think

 3   I've used the word "onslaught" before.

 4        Mr. McMahan, anything on the list that I didn't

 5   call out that needs to be?

 6                      MR. McMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank

 7   you.

 8                      JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper?

 9                      MR. HARPER:  No.  Thank you.

10                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.

11   Ms. Reyneveld?

12                      MS. REYNEVELD:  That summary

13   reflects my understanding of the pending motions.

14   Thank you.

15                      JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. Voelckers?

16                      MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing further.

17   Thank you, Your Honor.

18                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  That's my

19   homework for this afternoon.

20        Ms. Masengale, what did you find out about

21   Exhibit 1040, Sub R?

22                      MS. MASENGALE:  Judge Torem, I had

23   marked that as admitted, but if that's an error, I can

24   delete that.

25                      JUDGE TOREM:  No.  I'll just ask
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 1   applicant's counsel:  Was that, to your recollection,

 2   also adopted by the witness yesterday?

 3                      MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, I'm

 4   sorry.  The sound broke out.

 5        Did -- Ms. Masengale, did you say 1040 was or was

 6   not adopted?

 7                      MS. MASENGALE:  I marked it as being

 8   admitted.  However, that may have been an error on my

 9   part.

10                      MS. STAVITSKY:  No, it was -- that

11   was what I had in my notes as well, and it should be

12   admitted.  So that's correct and accurate.  Thank you.

13                      JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Again,

14   it's probably my note-taking as I was multitasking.

15        Does any other party have a question and concern

16   whether we can just on the record today confirm 1040_R

17   from Ms. McClain was adopted?

18        All right.  Hearing no objections, then.  If it

19   wasn't yesterday, it is today.

20        Thank you, Ms. Masengale.  Your notes, I expect,

21   are better than mine on some of these as we work

22   through it.

23        All right.  Tomorrow morning at 8:30, then, is

24   when we'll convene our housekeeping session, and we'll

25   go on with Mr. Morgan Cooke's [sic] testimony and
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 1   whatever else you agree might be fit in before we break

 2   for the afternoon Council meeting.

 3        After our session tomorrow morning and before the

 4   Council meeting, we'll talk again and confirm as best

 5   we can the week of August 21st to 25th and what we can

 6   do going forward.

 7        And I'd ask Mr. McMahan and Ms. Stavitsky to keep

 8   us apprised, even though we're not going to conduct

 9   sessions on Thursday, Friday, or over the weekend, on

10   any developments with Ms. Perlmutter's health.

11   Hopefully it takes a turn for the better and we'll have

12   her with all vim and vigor ready to go next week.

13        So with that, thank you very much for your time.

14   At 11:36, we're adjourned for the day, and we'll pick

15   up tomorrow.

16                             (Proceedings adjourned at

17                              11:36 a.m.)
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 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,

                         ) ss  a certified court reporter

 2   County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do

                               hereby certify:

 3

 4

          That the foregoing proceedings were taken in my

 5   presence and were adjourned on August 15, 2023, and

     thereafter were transcribed under my direction; that the

 6   transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

     said proceedings and was transcribed to the best of my

 7   ability;

 8        That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

     of any party to this action or relative or employee of any

 9   such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

     interested in the said action or the outcome thereof;

10

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

11   this 11th day of September, 2023.
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		179						LN		268		21		false		           21				false

		180						LN		268		22		false		           22				false

		181						LN		268		22		false		                ** Closed-record session concluded **               392				false

		182						LN		268		23		false		           23				false

		183						LN		268		23		false		                Discussion re scheduling, witnesses                 394				false

		184						LN		268		24		false		           24				false

		185						LN		268		24		false		                Housekeeping session                                397				false

		186						LN		268		25		false		           25				false

		187						PG		269		0		false		page 269				false

		188						LN		269		1		false		            1                INDEX OF PROCEEDINGS (Continuing)				false

		189						LN		269		2		false		            2     PROCEEDINGS/WITNESSES:                         PAGE NO.				false

		190						LN		269		3		false		            3   Adjournment                                         407				false

		191						LN		269		4		false		            4				false

		192						LN		269		5		false		            5				false

		193						LN		269		6		false		            6				false

		194						LN		269		7		false		            7				false

		195						LN		269		8		false		            8				false

		196						LN		269		9		false		            9				false

		197						LN		269		10		false		           10				false

		198						LN		269		11		false		           11				false

		199						LN		269		12		false		           12				false

		200						LN		269		13		false		           13				false

		201						LN		269		14		false		           14				false

		202						LN		269		15		false		           15				false

		203						LN		269		16		false		           16				false

		204						LN		269		17		false		           17				false

		205						LN		269		18		false		           18				false

		206						LN		269		19		false		           19				false

		207						LN		269		20		false		           20				false

		208						LN		269		21		false		           21				false

		209						LN		269		22		false		           22				false

		210						LN		269		23		false		           23				false

		211						LN		269		24		false		           24				false

		212						LN		269		25		false		           25				false

		213						PG		270		0		false		page 270				false

		214						LN		270		1		false		            1                          EXHIBIT INDEX				false

		215						LN		270		2		false		            2     EXHIBIT NO.            PARTY                  ADMITTED				false

		216						LN		270		3		false		            3   2003_T                   Benton County              300				false

		217						LN		270		4		false		            4   4008_T_Revised           Yakama Nation              372				false

		218						LN		270		5		false		            5   4009_Confidential        Yakama Nation              372				false

		219						LN		270		6		false		            6   4009_Redacted            Yakama Nation              372				false

		220						LN		270		7		false		            7   4010_Confidential        Yakama Nation              372				false

		221						LN		270		8		false		            8   4010_Redacted            Yakama Nation              372				false

		222						LN		270		9		false		            9   4011_T                   Yakama Nation              372				false

		223						LN		270		10		false		           10   4012                     Yakama Nation              372				false

		224						LN		270		11		false		           11   4013                     Yakama Nation              372				false

		225						LN		270		12		false		           12				false

		226						LN		270		13		false		           13				false

		227						LN		270		14		false		           14				false

		228						LN		270		15		false		           15				false

		229						LN		270		16		false		           16				false

		230						LN		270		17		false		           17				false

		231						LN		270		18		false		           18				false

		232						LN		270		19		false		           19				false

		233						LN		270		20		false		           20				false

		234						LN		270		21		false		           21				false

		235						LN		270		22		false		           22				false

		236						LN		270		23		false		           23				false

		237						LN		270		24		false		           24				false

		238						LN		270		25		false		           25				false

		239						PG		271		0		false		page 271				false

		240						LN		271		1		false		            1                       BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,				false

		241						LN		271		2		false		            2     August 15, 2023, at 621 Woodland Square Loop Southeast,				false

		242						LN		271		3		false		            3     Lacey, Washington, at 8:30 a.m., before the Washington				false

		243						LN		271		4		false		            4     Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council; Kathleen Drew,				false

		244						LN		271		5		false		            5     Chair; and Adam E. Torem, Administrative Law Judge, the				false

		245						LN		271		6		false		            6     following proceedings were continued, to wit:				false

		246						LN		271		7		false		            7				false

		247						LN		271		8		false		            8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>				false

		248						LN		271		9		false		            9				false

		249						LN		271		10		false		           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  Let's go ahead and be				false

		250						LN		271		11		false		           11     on the record.				false

		251						LN		271		12		false		           12          This is the Horse Heaven wind farm adjudication.				false

		252						LN		271		13		false		           13     We're doing our housekeeping session for Tuesday,				false

		253						LN		271		14		false		           14     August 15th, 2023.  It is 8:30 in the morning.				false

		254						LN		271		15		false		           15          Counsel, I can see Mr. Harper there, and I saw				false

		255						LN		271		16		false		           16     Ms. Voelckers on the screen earlier.				false

		256						LN		271		17		false		           17          Counsel for the applicant present?				false

		257						LN		271		18		false		           18          How about Mr. --				false

		258						LN		271		19		false		           19                        MR. McMAHAN:  Good morning, Judge				false

		259						LN		271		20		false		           20     Torem.  You were cutting out a lot in your query to us,				false

		260						LN		271		21		false		           21     so just so you know.				false

		261						LN		271		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.				false

		262						LN		271		23		false		           23                        MR. McMAHAN:  But the applicant is				false

		263						LN		271		24		false		           24     here and present.  Thank you.				false

		264						LN		271		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Hopefully				false

		265						PG		272		0		false		page 272				false

		266						LN		272		1		false		            1     we'll get the audio quality better.  I think I was				false

		267						LN		272		2		false		            2     leaning back to look at the screen there.				false

		268						LN		272		3		false		            3          Mr. Aramburu, I can see you.  Good morning.				false

		269						LN		272		4		false		            4          And do we have counsel for the environment?				false

		270						LN		272		5		false		            5                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, I am here, Your				false

		271						LN		272		6		false		            6     Honor.				false

		272						LN		272		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Good				false

		273						LN		272		8		false		            8     morning, everyone.				false

		274						LN		272		9		false		            9          Is the audio any better, Mr. McMahan?				false

		275						LN		272		10		false		           10                        MR. McMAHAN:  I believe it is,				false

		276						LN		272		11		false		           11     Judge.  Thank you.				false

		277						LN		272		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think				false

		278						LN		272		13		false		           13     it's just a directional microphone question and keeping				false

		279						LN		272		14		false		           14     straight ahead and looking at you guys as opposed to				false

		280						LN		272		15		false		           15     trying to look at the court reporter behind me.				false

		281						LN		272		16		false		           16          All right.  My agenda for this morning is to talk				false

		282						LN		272		17		false		           17     about a couple of motions that were outstanding and				false

		283						LN		272		18		false		           18     decisions that are coming verbally during this				false

		284						LN		272		19		false		           19     housekeeping session and also written, talk about some				false

		285						LN		272		20		false		           20     screen sharing and exhibits and maybe allow for a quick				false

		286						LN		272		21		false		           21     test of anybody's ability to do that today to take a				false

		287						LN		272		22		false		           22     little bit of the burden off Ms. Masengale, and then				false

		288						LN		272		23		false		           23     we'll turn to the scheduling question and				false

		289						LN		272		24		false		           24     Ms. Perlmutter's health.				false

		290						LN		272		25		false		           25          Does anybody else have agenda items we need to try				false

		291						PG		273		0		false		page 273				false

		292						LN		273		1		false		            1     to cover before 9:00?  And making sure if we don't				false

		293						LN		273		2		false		            2     cover them before 9, we just take up housekeeping again				false

		294						LN		273		3		false		            3     after today's business.				false

		295						LN		273		4		false		            4          Mr. McMahan, anything else you want to add to the				false

		296						LN		273		5		false		            5     agenda?				false

		297						LN		273		6		false		            6                        MR. McMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank				false

		298						LN		273		7		false		            7     you.				false

		299						LN		273		8		false		            8          And, unfortunately, we have not checked in with				false

		300						LN		273		9		false		            9     Ms. Perlmutter today yet.				false

		301						LN		273		10		false		           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  It's early.				false

		302						LN		273		11		false		           11                        MR. McMAHAN:  It's early.				false

		303						LN		273		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		304						LN		273		13		false		           13     Mr. Harper, from the County's perspective?				false

		305						LN		273		14		false		           14                        MR. HARPER:  Well, Your Honor, I				false

		306						LN		273		15		false		           15     think you probably identified this already in your				false

		307						LN		273		16		false		           16     comments, but if we could just do as a housekeeping				false

		308						LN		273		17		false		           17     matter kind of a confirmation of which exhibits have				false

		309						LN		273		18		false		           18     been requested for admission and admitted, that'd be				false

		310						LN		273		19		false		           19     helpful.				false

		311						LN		273		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think I				false

		312						LN		273		21		false		           21     have a pretty good list of that.  And I think it's good				false

		313						LN		273		22		false		           22     practice, Mr. Harper, to do that on a running basis, so				false

		314						LN		273		23		false		           23     we will do so.				false

		315						LN		273		24		false		           24          Ms. Reyneveld, anything else to add to the agenda?				false

		316						LN		273		25		false		           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Just briefly.  The				false

		317						PG		274		0		false		page 274				false

		318						LN		274		1		false		            1     parties did want for me to clarify who had been				false

		319						LN		274		2		false		            2     involved in those kind of initial settlement				false

		320						LN		274		3		false		            3     discussions in the spring for the record, so I was				false

		321						LN		274		4		false		            4     going to provide some clarification on that.				false

		322						LN		274		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We'll come to				false

		323						LN		274		6		false		            6     that.				false

		324						LN		274		7		false		            7          Ms. Voelckers, anything that the Yakama Nation				false

		325						LN		274		8		false		            8     wants added today?				false

		326						LN		274		9		false		            9                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Good morning.  Thank				false

		327						LN		274		10		false		           10     you, Your Honor.  Yes, we have reached out to				false

		328						LN		274		11		false		           11     Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Neutzmann, who were scheduled to				false

		329						LN		274		12		false		           12     be sworn in tomorrow and were -- they have made				false

		330						LN		274		13		false		           13     themselves available the second half of this morning to				false

		331						LN		274		14		false		           14     do that today since they are now the only ones, I				false

		332						LN		274		15		false		           15     believe, on the schedule for tomorrow, and no party has				false

		333						LN		274		16		false		           16     identified them for cross-examination.				false

		334						LN		274		17		false		           17          So we would like to propose that they be called				false

		335						LN		274		18		false		           18     today rather than doing all this tomorrow just for				false

		336						LN		274		19		false		           19     their swearing in.				false

		337						LN		274		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm making a note of				false

		338						LN		274		21		false		           21     that.  Thank you.				false

		339						LN		274		22		false		           22          And, Mr. Aramburu, anything else for the				false

		340						LN		274		23		false		           23     housekeeping part of our discussion?				false

		341						LN		274		24		false		           24                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  I think it might				false

		342						LN		274		25		false		           25     be a good idea, if it's possible each day, for -- that				false

		343						PG		275		0		false		page 275				false

		344						LN		275		1		false		            1     we get a running list of the exhibits so that we know				false

		345						LN		275		2		false		            2     what the official version is that's being kept.				false

		346						LN		275		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		347						LN		275		4		false		            4     I know that Ms. Masengale is keeping a master exhibit				false

		348						LN		275		5		false		            5     list.  And there's no reason that I don't think we				false

		349						LN		275		6		false		            6     could share that or at least a version of that with all				false

		350						LN		275		7		false		            7     the parties.  I'll check with her to make sure there's				false

		351						LN		275		8		false		            8     not any EFSEC internal information on the version that				false

		352						LN		275		9		false		            9     we're keeping.  But from what I've seen, it should be				false

		353						LN		275		10		false		           10     an easy request, Mr. Aramburu.				false

		354						LN		275		11		false		           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		355						LN		275		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me turn to				false

		356						LN		275		13		false		           13     the first item on my list.				false

		357						LN		275		14		false		           14          Ms. Voelckers, you had supplied me, about a week				false

		358						LN		275		15		false		           15     and a half, maybe two weeks ago, with your proposed				false

		359						LN		275		16		false		           16     order on the motions to supplement the record with the				false

		360						LN		275		17		false		           17     three Fish and Wildlife discovery depositions and also				false

		361						LN		275		18		false		           18     Mr. Aramburu's motion separately to admit the Dave				false

		362						LN		275		19		false		           19     Kobus deposition.				false

		363						LN		275		20		false		           20          There were no objections to that by the parties				false

		364						LN		275		21		false		           21     that I was made aware of, and I think your draft order				false

		365						LN		275		22		false		           22     referenced that.  And I think we talked about that at				false

		366						LN		275		23		false		           23     Prehearing Conference No. 4.  So I wrote up or edited				false

		367						LN		275		24		false		           24     the version you sent me, Ms. Voelckers.  It was a great				false

		368						LN		275		25		false		           25     start.  That should be coming out in writing sometime				false

		369						PG		276		0		false		page 276				false

		370						LN		276		1		false		            1     this morning.  Ms. Owens is working on that as we				false

		371						LN		276		2		false		            2     speak.				false

		372						LN		276		3		false		            3          On the motion to compel -- I'll move to the next				false

		373						LN		276		4		false		            4     item on my list -- I wanted to give you essentially an				false

		374						LN		276		5		false		            5     oral ruling on that rather than spend the time writing.				false

		375						LN		276		6		false		            6     And if you're going to take notes, this is a good time				false

		376						LN		276		7		false		            7     to start on this, the motion to compel filed by				false

		377						LN		276		8		false		            8     Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.				false

		378						LN		276		9		false		            9          My notes indicate that on July 28th, Mr. Aramburu				false

		379						LN		276		10		false		           10     filed the motion to compel certain documents to be				false

		380						LN		276		11		false		           11     produced by the applicant.  The motion was based on an				false

		381						LN		276		12		false		           12     impasse that was reached during discovery.  And in				false

		382						LN		276		13		false		           13     quick summary, the documents and the motions he's				false

		383						LN		276		14		false		           14     trying to compel production of are meteorological data;				false

		384						LN		276		15		false		           15     information about the applicant trying to do their				false

		385						LN		276		16		false		           16     interconnections with BPA, the Bonneville Power				false

		386						LN		276		17		false		           17     Association, and -- or Administration; and the				false

		387						LN		276		18		false		           18     estimated production of the various turbines, and				false

		388						LN		276		19		false		           19     essentially was questioning some of the commercial				false

		389						LN		276		20		false		           20     viability aspects of the proposed project.  And it may				false

		390						LN		276		21		false		           21     have been seeking proprietary data, some indication of				false

		391						LN		276		22		false		           22     that being discussed during testimony prefiled by a				false

		392						LN		276		23		false		           23     Witness Poulos, P-o-u-l-o-s.				false

		393						LN		276		24		false		           24          That was on a Friday afternoon.  And the following				false

		394						LN		276		25		false		           25     week, on Tuesday, August 1st, the applicant filed its				false

		395						PG		277		0		false		page 277				false

		396						LN		277		1		false		            1     opposition.  And the applicant indicated there were				false

		397						LN		277		2		false		            2     four requests for production that they opposed.  And				false

		398						LN		277		3		false		            3     they were:  No. 1, based on the July 28th order that				false

		399						LN		277		4		false		            4     took BPA interconnection topics essentially off the				false

		400						LN		277		5		false		            5     table for this adjudication.				false

		401						LN		277		6		false		            6          They also, under RFP No. 2, cited to the Whistling				false

		402						LN		277		7		false		            7     Ridge case and the same order that I just referenced				false

		403						LN		277		8		false		            8     that I issued on July 28th.  That particular RFP was				false

		404						LN		277		9		false		            9     looking for wind resource potential, and the applicant				false

		405						LN		277		10		false		           10     contended that I had made that not a topic for the				false

		406						LN		277		11		false		           11     adjudication in the previous order.				false

		407						LN		277		12		false		           12          And looking at the Whistling Ridge previous				false

		408						LN		277		13		false		           13     prehearing conference order that was issued in that				false

		409						LN		277		14		false		           14     matter, making these kind of inquiries essentially				false

		410						LN		277		15		false		           15     not -- it's a business decision, and it'd be based on				false

		411						LN		277		16		false		           16     proprietary information.				false

		412						LN		277		17		false		           17          Request for Production No. 3 was opposed because				false

		413						LN		277		18		false		           18     it went into energy production of the turbines, and the				false

		414						LN		277		19		false		           19     applicant asserted again proprietary information there.				false

		415						LN		277		20		false		           20          And, finally, for the Request for Production				false

		416						LN		277		21		false		           21     No. 5, the applicant said that looking for a cost per				false

		417						LN		277		22		false		           22     kilowatt hour on what the savings or cost to the				false

		418						LN		277		23		false		           23     consumer might be was another commercial viability				false

		419						LN		277		24		false		           24     issue and not within the realm of EFSEC's mission or				false

		420						LN		277		25		false		           25     jurisdiction.				false

		421						PG		278		0		false		page 278				false

		422						LN		278		1		false		            1          I looked at the Residents Opposed to Kittitas				false

		423						LN		278		2		false		            2     County and EFSEC matter that came out from the supreme				false

		424						LN		278		3		false		            3     court, otherwise known as the ROKT case, R-O-K-T, and				false

		425						LN		278		4		false		            4     it ruled according to 80.50.040, Sub 2, that under that				false

		426						LN		278		5		false		            5     statute, the economic viability of a proposed project				false

		427						LN		278		6		false		            6     was not relevant.  And the quote that I found				false

		428						LN		278		7		false		            7     persuasive there in favor of the applicant's arguments				false

		429						LN		278		8		false		            8     was as follows:				false

		430						LN		278		9		false		            9          "As economic analysis does not relate to				false

		431						LN		278		10		false		           10     environmental or ecological concerns, we" -- being the				false

		432						LN		278		11		false		           11     supreme court -- "believe that EFSEC was within its				false

		433						LN		278		12		false		           12     authority to refuse to review the economical viability				false

		434						LN		278		13		false		           13     of the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project."				false

		435						LN		278		14		false		           14          In the Whistling Ridge case, Administrative Law				false

		436						LN		278		15		false		           15     Judge Bob Wallis, on behalf of the Council, took the				false

		437						LN		278		16		false		           16     same approach.  His Prehearing Order No. 11, which is				false

		438						LN		278		17		false		           17     also labeled as Council Order No. 855, took a fairly				false

		439						LN		278		18		false		           18     careful and conservative approach to discovery,				false

		440						LN		278		19		false		           19     particularly of confidential and sensitive information.				false

		441						LN		278		20		false		           20          And in the Whistling Ridge case, that order				false

		442						LN		278		21		false		           21     followed the Kittitas Valley precedent from the supreme				false

		443						LN		278		22		false		           22     court and denied discovery based on the relevance of				false

		444						LN		278		23		false		           23     that information to the adjudication and the				false

		445						LN		278		24		false		           24     sensitivity of the proprietary data and information.				false

		446						LN		278		25		false		           25          So my ruling denying the motion is that I won't				false

		447						PG		279		0		false		page 279				false

		448						LN		279		1		false		            1     break with the precedent established by the ROKT court				false

		449						LN		279		2		false		            2     or the ruling more recently in the Whistling Ridge				false

		450						LN		279		3		false		            3     matter.				false

		451						LN		279		4		false		            4          My prehearing orders in this case have already				false

		452						LN		279		5		false		            5     indicated that certain economic viability information				false

		453						LN		279		6		false		            6     is not germane or helpful to Council members or their				false

		454						LN		279		7		false		            7     work to develop a recommendation to the governor.  The				false

		455						LN		279		8		false		            8     discovery of BPA interconnection issues, wind resource				false

		456						LN		279		9		false		            9     potential data, and energy production and cost or rate				false

		457						LN		279		10		false		           10     analysis data is not authorized in this matter.  So,				false

		458						LN		279		11		false		           11     therefore, Mr. Aramburu, the TCC motion to compel those				false

		459						LN		279		12		false		           12     documents is denied.				false

		460						LN		279		13		false		           13          I'm going to see if the court reporter can get me				false

		461						LN		279		14		false		           14     a short little extract, a noncertified version of the				false

		462						LN		279		15		false		           15     transcript of what I just read to you.  If I do receive				false

		463						LN		279		16		false		           16     that from the court reporter, I'll forward it on to the				false

		464						LN		279		17		false		           17     parties or ask Ms. Masengale to post it as a summary of				false

		465						LN		279		18		false		           18     the ruling that I just gave you on those matters.				false

		466						LN		279		19		false		           19          On that note, as far as posting transcripts, I				false

		467						LN		279		20		false		           20     wanted to let you know that Andrea Grantham has already				false

		468						LN		279		21		false		           21     taken the hard work of taking yesterday's video of the				false

		469						LN		279		22		false		           22     hearing, many hours that it was, getting it				false

		470						LN		279		23		false		           23     appropriately edited and ready for prime time, and it's				false

		471						LN		279		24		false		           24     already up and linked with the YouTube video from				false

		472						LN		279		25		false		           25     yesterday's proceeding.  So we'll be asking any Council				false

		473						PG		280		0		false		page 280				false

		474						LN		280		1		false		            1     members that might have missed anything to already go				false

		475						LN		280		2		false		            2     back and sort out and watch the portion of the video				false

		476						LN		280		3		false		            3     that they missed.				false

		477						LN		280		4		false		            4          All right.  It's now 8:41.  I wanted to ask				false

		478						LN		280		5		false		            5     parties that might have cross-examination exhibits for				false

		479						LN		280		6		false		            6     today if they wanted to test sharing one or more of				false

		480						LN		280		7		false		            7     those at this time.				false

		481						LN		280		8		false		            8          My look at the schedule says that when we get to				false

		482						LN		280		9		false		            9     Ms. Cooke's testimony that, Mr. McMahan, Scout Clean				false

		483						LN		280		10		false		           10     Energy may be doing at least a half an hour of				false

		484						LN		280		11		false		           11     cross-exam.  Did you intend to use any exhibits?				false

		485						LN		280		12		false		           12                        MR. McMAHAN:  We do not, Your Honor.				false

		486						LN		280		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		487						LN		280		14		false		           14          Mr. Aramburu, you had some other examination of				false

		488						LN		280		15		false		           15     this witness today as well.  Do you have any exhibits				false

		489						LN		280		16		false		           16     you're planning to share?				false

		490						LN		280		17		false		           17                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No.				false

		491						LN		280		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And for				false

		492						LN		280		19		false		           19     the Yakama Nation, Ms. Voelckers, any exhibits?				false

		493						LN		280		20		false		           20                        MS. VOELCKERS:  No exhibits today,				false

		494						LN		280		21		false		           21     Your Honor.				false

		495						LN		280		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That's going to				false

		496						LN		280		23		false		           23     make Ms. Masengale's job that much easier this morning.				false

		497						LN		280		24		false		           24          If that changes for some reason or any of the				false

		498						LN		280		25		false		           25     other parties decide they have questions, we'll go from				false

		499						PG		281		0		false		page 281				false

		500						LN		281		1		false		            1     there.				false

		501						LN		281		2		false		            2          If anybody wants to test screens later today after				false

		502						LN		281		3		false		            3     the adjudication portion of the day is done, let me				false

		503						LN		281		4		false		            4     know, and we'll stick around for some further testing.				false

		504						LN		281		5		false		            5          All right.  Let me turn to the last item that I				false

		505						LN		281		6		false		            6     had, and then we'll pick up the parties' items.				false

		506						LN		281		7		false		            7          Mr. McMahan, on Ms. Perlmutter's health, I hope				false

		507						LN		281		8		false		            8     it's going well.  You'll give us an update as we do.				false

		508						LN		281		9		false		            9          What other proposals did you and Ms. Stavitsky				false

		509						LN		281		10		false		           10     perhaps work out with the other parties for				false

		510						LN		281		11		false		           11     rescheduling the Jansen, Rahmig, and perhaps the McIvor				false

		511						LN		281		12		false		           12     examinations?				false

		512						LN		281		13		false		           13                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Hi, Your Honor.				false

		513						LN		281		14		false		           14     I'll take that one.				false

		514						LN		281		15		false		           15          So we checked in with our Scout witness Morgan				false

		515						LN		281		16		false		           16     Shook, who is currently scheduled to testify on next				false

		516						LN		281		17		false		           17     Tuesday, the 22nd.  And he is available for questioning				false

		517						LN		281		18		false		           18     tomorrow.  So, again, we're trying to find ways to sort				false

		518						LN		281		19		false		           19     of front-load this week to fill the time that				false

		519						LN		281		20		false		           20     Mr. Rahmig and Mr. Jansen were -- and Mr. McIvor were				false

		520						LN		281		21		false		           21     going to take.  So if that works for everyone else, he				false

		521						LN		281		22		false		           22     could be slotted into tomorrow's morning session.				false

		522						LN		281		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I'm just				false

		523						LN		281		24		false		           24     looking for where Mr. Shook had originally been on the				false

		524						LN		281		25		false		           25     schedule.				false

		525						PG		282		0		false		page 282				false

		526						LN		282		1		false		            1                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Yeah.  So he was --				false

		527						LN		282		2		false		            2     his testimony was set to begin Tuesday, August 22nd, at				false

		528						LN		282		3		false		            3     11:40 a.m. and span past lunch to 2:30.				false

		529						LN		282		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		530						LN		282		5		false		            5     I've got that now.  I skipped right past him.  And if				false

		531						LN		282		6		false		            6     my eyes are crossing this early in the morning, that's				false

		532						LN		282		7		false		            7     not a good sign.				false

		533						LN		282		8		false		            8          Ms. Stavitsky, I wanted to let you know there's a				false

		534						LN		282		9		false		            9     little bit of interference when you're speaking.  I				false

		535						LN		282		10		false		           10     don't know if it's, again, a microphone issue that I				false

		536						LN		282		11		false		           11     was having, but it will be easier for the court				false

		537						LN		282		12		false		           12     reporter if both of us keep it slow and deliberate				false

		538						LN		282		13		false		           13     here.				false

		539						LN		282		14		false		           14          Do any of the parties have a concern if Mr. Shook				false

		540						LN		282		15		false		           15     moves the testimony from Tuesday, August 22nd?  Looks				false

		541						LN		282		16		false		           16     like there's at least an hour and a half to two hours				false

		542						LN		282		17		false		           17     scheduled for his testimony if we move that to tomorrow				false

		543						LN		282		18		false		           18     on Wednesday, August 16th.				false

		544						LN		282		19		false		           19          Mr. Harper, any concern with that?				false

		545						LN		282		20		false		           20                        MR. HARPER:  No concern.				false

		546						LN		282		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, any				false

		547						LN		282		22		false		           22     concern?				false

		548						LN		282		23		false		           23                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, I would				false

		549						LN		282		24		false		           24     just like to flag a general concern if we're going to				false

		550						LN		282		25		false		           25     keep shifting around witnesses.  This is being proposed				false

		551						PG		283		0		false		page 283				false

		552						LN		283		1		false		            1     to us in real time.  So we were not approached by the				false

		553						LN		283		2		false		            2     applicant about these changes since yesterday's				false

		554						LN		283		3		false		            3     hearing.				false

		555						LN		283		4		false		            4          And so I don't want to speak for the other parties				false

		556						LN		283		5		false		            5     that have expressed a desire to cross-examine				false

		557						LN		283		6		false		            6     Mr. Shook, because we will not be, but we are concerned				false

		558						LN		283		7		false		            7     about continuing shifting of schedules.				false

		559						LN		283		8		false		            8          So, I mean, I just have a general concern that --				false

		560						LN		283		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Noted.				false

		561						LN		283		10		false		           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  -- (indiscernible)				false

		562						LN		283		11		false		           11     to respond.				false

		563						LN		283		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Noted.  But I'm				false

		564						LN		283		13		false		           13     guessing because you're not going to have any				false

		565						LN		283		14		false		           14     cross-examination questions, we're going to shift				false

		566						LN		283		15		false		           15     witnesses.  Just make it a continuing objection,				false

		567						LN		283		16		false		           16     Ms. Voelckers.  I sympathize, but I got to do what I				false

		568						LN		283		17		false		           17     got to do.  And it was the parties that asked me to				false

		569						LN		283		18		false		           18     give up, I'll remind you, two days of hearing time.				false

		570						LN		283		19		false		           19          I worried about this.  We gave them up, and they				false

		571						LN		283		20		false		           20     were on the -- on the front end, not on the back end.				false

		572						LN		283		21		false		           21     So I can't add time back in.  Work with me on this,				false

		573						LN		283		22		false		           22     please.				false

		574						LN		283		23		false		           23          Ms. Reyneveld, any concerns?				false

		575						LN		283		24		false		           24                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I have no concerns,				false

		576						LN		283		25		false		           25     Your Honor.  Thank you.				false

		577						PG		284		0		false		page 284				false

		578						LN		284		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, you were				false

		579						LN		284		2		false		            2     the other one with the more extensive cross-examination				false

		580						LN		284		3		false		            3     for next week on Tuesday.				false

		581						LN		284		4		false		            4          Can you have it ready to go tomorrow?  I know				false

		582						LN		284		5		false		            5     we're going to have additional time today, and I know				false

		583						LN		284		6		false		            6     that other parties had seemed to think that the				false

		584						LN		284		7		false		            7     applicant could magically take over Ms. Perlmutter's				false

		585						LN		284		8		false		            8     duties by tomorrow.				false

		586						LN		284		9		false		            9          Can you accelerate what you had planned for next				false

		587						LN		284		10		false		           10     Tuesday, please?				false

		588						LN		284		11		false		           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  We'll work with the				false

		589						LN		284		12		false		           12     parties and with the witness, and we'll be ready to go				false

		590						LN		284		13		false		           13     for Mr. Shook tomorrow.				false

		591						LN		284		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Consider				false

		592						LN		284		15		false		           15     it done.				false

		593						LN		284		16		false		           16          Ms. Stavitsky, do you have a time suggested for				false

		594						LN		284		17		false		           17     tomorrow?				false

		595						LN		284		18		false		           18                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, I would				false

		596						LN		284		19		false		           19     propose that we can slot Mr. Shook in right where we				false

		597						LN		284		20		false		           20     were supposed to take up with Mr. Rahmig tomorrow, so				false

		598						LN		284		21		false		           21     that would be at 9 a.m.				false

		599						LN		284		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And that may				false

		600						LN		284		23		false		           23     carry us to about 11 a.m.  And that would be a good use				false

		601						LN		284		24		false		           24     of the time we had scheduled up to 11:30.  And we'll				false

		602						LN		284		25		false		           25     have already moved up the Ganuelas and Nuetzmann				false

		603						PG		285		0		false		page 285				false

		604						LN		285		1		false		            1     swearing in.				false

		605						LN		285		2		false		            2          If there's anything else we can use up until for				false

		606						LN		285		3		false		            3     another hour tomorrow, you'll let me know.  But, again,				false

		607						LN		285		4		false		            4     work that out with the parties that have the				false

		608						LN		285		5		false		            5     cross-examination prescheduled.  And, again, I'll note				false

		609						LN		285		6		false		            6     the Yakama Nation's continuing concern for the				false

		610						LN		285		7		false		            7     shuffling that we're doing.  It's difficult, and I				false

		611						LN		285		8		false		            8     appreciate if all the parties would just work with each				false

		612						LN		285		9		false		            9     other and essentially stipulate we're going to try to				false

		613						LN		285		10		false		           10     get this done in the eight days we have.  It was pretty				false

		614						LN		285		11		false		           11     efficient yesterday.  I do appreciate that.  But we're				false

		615						LN		285		12		false		           12     working in real time, as you said, and trying to keep				false

		616						LN		285		13		false		           13     the information flowing.				false

		617						LN		285		14		false		           14          All right.  That's taking care of that.				false

		618						LN		285		15		false		           15          Was the applicant aware of any other scheduling				false

		619						LN		285		16		false		           16     issues impacted by Ms. Perlmutter's ongoing health				false

		620						LN		285		17		false		           17     concern?				false

		621						LN		285		18		false		           18                        MS. STAVITSKY:  No, Your Honor.				false

		622						LN		285		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  And --				false

		623						LN		285		20		false		           20                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.				false

		624						LN		285		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on one second.				false

		625						LN		285		22		false		           22          Ms. Reyneveld, as to Mr. McIvor, have you let him				false

		626						LN		285		23		false		           23     know what's going on there?				false

		627						LN		285		24		false		           24                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I have.  And my				false

		628						LN		285		25		false		           25     understanding is Mr. McIvor is flexible.  And so if we				false

		629						PG		286		0		false		page 286				false

		630						LN		286		1		false		            1     needed to slate him into Tuesday or Wednesday, that				false

		631						LN		286		2		false		            2     would also be a possibility.  But I would have to				false

		632						LN		286		3		false		            3     confirm.				false

		633						LN		286		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Keep working				false

		634						LN		286		5		false		            5     with the other parties.  And we'll see how that one				false

		635						LN		286		6		false		            6     comes out.				false

		636						LN		286		7		false		            7          Ms. Voelckers, you had something else?				false

		637						LN		286		8		false		            8                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your				false

		638						LN		286		9		false		            9     Honor.  I just wanted to finish my statement earlier,				false

		639						LN		286		10		false		           10     which would be a request that we do determine who is				false

		640						LN		286		11		false		           11     going to be going in that time slot on Tuesday as soon				false

		641						LN		286		12		false		           12     as possible rather than waiting till next week.				false

		642						LN		286		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  And we will have				false

		643						LN		286		14		false		           14     another housekeeping opportunity either this afternoon				false

		644						LN		286		15		false		           15     after our proceeding.  That may not be particularly				false

		645						LN		286		16		false		           16     informative, but definitely tomorrow morning we will				false

		646						LN		286		17		false		           17     get an update.				false

		647						LN		286		18		false		           18          All right.  Let's move on to your documents.				false

		648						LN		286		19		false		           19          Ms. Masengale, do you happen to be on the line				false

		649						LN		286		20		false		           20     already?				false

		650						LN		286		21		false		           21                        MS. MASENGALE:  Yes, Judge.  This is				false

		651						LN		286		22		false		           22     Lisa Masengale.				false

		652						LN		286		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you have that				false

		653						LN		286		24		false		           24     master exhibit list that you've been keeping up for me				false

		654						LN		286		25		false		           25     and the rest of staff and the counsel?				false

		655						PG		287		0		false		page 287				false

		656						LN		287		1		false		            1                        MS. MASENGALE:  I do.  And I sent it				false

		657						LN		287		2		false		            2     to the party e-mail list a few minutes ago.  It's dated				false

		658						LN		287		3		false		            3     with today's date, but it was last updated a little				false

		659						LN		287		4		false		            4     after 5 p.m. last night.				false

		660						LN		287		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  And would you tell the				false

		661						LN		287		6		false		            6     parties, please, how you're annotating the list as we				false

		662						LN		287		7		false		            7     go to indicate what's admitted, rejected, or				false

		663						LN		287		8		false		            8     particularly on the order yesterday, how Mr. Aramburu's				false

		664						LN		287		9		false		            9     citizen and community member testimony was				false

		665						LN		287		10		false		           10     recharacterized?				false

		666						LN		287		11		false		           11                        MS. MASENGALE:  Absolutely.				false

		667						LN		287		12		false		           12          So there's three columns a little to the -- to the				false

		668						LN		287		13		false		           13     right of the middle.  It'll make more sense if you have				false

		669						LN		287		14		false		           14     it in front of you.  But basically those columns are				false

		670						LN		287		15		false		           15     added to the template that the parties are providing to				false

		671						LN		287		16		false		           16     me, so it has some additional data in there.				false

		672						LN		287		17		false		           17          And there's three columns basically indicating if				false

		673						LN		287		18		false		           18     something was admitted, whether it was rejected or --				false

		674						LN		287		19		false		           19     or stricken or if it has been withdrawn.				false

		675						LN		287		20		false		           20          And so as a determination is made on the exhibits,				false

		676						LN		287		21		false		           21     I am trying to update that in real time.  And the notes				false

		677						LN		287		22		false		           22     column is mostly for my reference, but parties may find				false

		678						LN		287		23		false		           23     that helpful as well, indicating when something was				false

		679						LN		287		24		false		           24     admitted or when something was stricken, or some of				false

		680						LN		287		25		false		           25     them are notes for me about why it was a revised				false

		681						PG		288		0		false		page 288				false

		682						LN		288		1		false		            1     exhibit.				false

		683						LN		288		2		false		            2          So, again, that last column might make more sense				false

		684						LN		288		3		false		            3     to me than to the parties, but I'm providing you with				false

		685						LN		288		4		false		            4     the exact list that I am working off of right now.				false

		686						LN		288		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thanks,				false

		687						LN		288		6		false		            6     Ms. Masengale.  And if the parties have questions about				false

		688						LN		288		7		false		            7     that, I hope they'll e-mail and copy the other parties				false

		689						LN		288		8		false		            8     so that everybody can benefit from any information that				false

		690						LN		288		9		false		            9     you didn't just convey if it's not self-evident.				false

		691						LN		288		10		false		           10          So hopefully, parties, that's going to work.  And				false

		692						LN		288		11		false		           11     I know Ms. Masengale, as she said, she's doing that in				false

		693						LN		288		12		false		           12     real time.  If she has time at the end of each day,				false

		694						LN		288		13		false		           13     I'll ask that she send it out so you have it sooner				false

		695						LN		288		14		false		           14     rather than the morning of, and for your own				false

		696						LN		288		15		false		           15     housekeeping purposes, can keep tracking on what				false

		697						LN		288		16		false		           16     exhibit were there.				false

		698						LN		288		17		false		           17          Ms. Masengale, we had some cross-exam exhibits.				false

		699						LN		288		18		false		           18     Are you adding those and indicating the ones that were				false

		700						LN		288		19		false		           19     offered and ruled on?				false

		701						LN		288		20		false		           20                        MS. MASENGALE:  That is correct.  As				false

		702						LN		288		21		false		           21     I receive e-mails with cross exhibits and the updated				false

		703						LN		288		22		false		           22     exhibit list from parties with those cross exhibits,				false

		704						LN		288		23		false		           23     I'm adding those in.  And then as the parties move to				false

		705						LN		288		24		false		           24     admit those, those are being indicated in there as				false

		706						LN		288		25		false		           25     well.				false

		707						PG		289		0		false		page 289				false

		708						LN		289		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  And you and I spoke				false

		709						LN		289		2		false		            2     yesterday just about the timing and, again, this				false

		710						LN		289		3		false		            3     in-real-time item.  Can you give the parties kind of a				false

		711						LN		289		4		false		            4     best practice, at least notional best practice for them				false

		712						LN		289		5		false		            5     to aspire to, to make -- help you help them?				false

		713						LN		289		6		false		            6                        MS. MASENGALE:  Absolutely.  I know				false

		714						LN		289		7		false		            7     the -- the needs and the best practice for -- for the				false

		715						LN		289		8		false		            8     parties and their legal counsel may be different than				false

		716						LN		289		9		false		            9     for me, the records officer.  But as the records				false

		717						LN		289		10		false		           10     person, ideally, if I could get things at least by the				false

		718						LN		289		11		false		           11     day before.  In a perfect world, that way I have time				false

		719						LN		289		12		false		           12     to appropriately add them to the main exhibit list and				false

		720						LN		289		13		false		           13     have them ready, especially if I need to help parties				false

		721						LN		289		14		false		           14     share their exhibits.				false

		722						LN		289		15		false		           15          That way it's just a little bit tough.  I can't				false

		723						LN		289		16		false		           16     process e-mails if I'm sharing my screen.  So just the				false

		724						LN		289		17		false		           17     logistics of processing things that might arrive during				false

		725						LN		289		18		false		           18     the hearings is a little complicated if things are also				false

		726						LN		289		19		false		           19     arriving during the hearing as well that might need to				false

		727						LN		289		20		false		           20     be referenced or shown on screen immediately.				false

		728						LN		289		21		false		           21          So, if possible, from my perspective, it's great				false

		729						LN		289		22		false		           22     if you can get them to me at least the night before,				false

		730						LN		289		23		false		           23     but I understand for legal reasons you might not want				false

		731						LN		289		24		false		           24     to do that.  But from my perspective, it'd be super				false

		732						LN		289		25		false		           25     helpful.  So thank you.				false

		733						PG		290		0		false		page 290				false

		734						LN		290		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I want to				false

		735						LN		290		2		false		            2     compliment Ms. Masengale, much as Mr. Harper did				false

		736						LN		290		3		false		            3     yesterday, for really, really good work that she's				false

		737						LN		290		4		false		            4     doing to help all of us keep this massive information				false

		738						LN		290		5		false		            5     load going forward.  It services the Council well.				false

		739						LN		290		6		false		            6     And, Mr. Harper, no, you can't hire her away from				false

		740						LN		290		7		false		            7     EFSEC.				false

		741						LN		290		8		false		            8          All right.  The Ganuelas and Nuetzmann testimony				false

		742						LN		290		9		false		            9     being adopted today, anybody have objections to that?				false

		743						LN		290		10		false		           10     I'm seeing some head nods "no."  No objections.				false

		744						LN		290		11		false		           11          So, Ms. Voelckers, what time would you think we				false

		745						LN		290		12		false		           12     can take and adopt their testimony today?				false

		746						LN		290		13		false		           13                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your				false

		747						LN		290		14		false		           14     Honor.  I think that we can stick to the schedule in				false

		748						LN		290		15		false		           15     terms of Ms. Cooke's testimony and then have them adopt				false

		749						LN		290		16		false		           16     it after she's done.  We would just ask for a brief				false

		750						LN		290		17		false		           17     break.  But they -- they should be available starting a				false

		751						LN		290		18		false		           18     little bit after 10.				false

		752						LN		290		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That sounds				false

		753						LN		290		20		false		           20     good.				false

		754						LN		290		21		false		           21          We'll get a chance to break, then call them and				false

		755						LN		290		22		false		           22     have them available.				false

		756						LN		290		23		false		           23          And, Ms. Reyneveld, you had the last question				false

		757						LN		290		24		false		           24     about the status of who was involved in settlement				false

		758						LN		290		25		false		           25     items.				false

		759						PG		291		0		false		page 291				false

		760						LN		291		1		false		            1                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Per the				false

		761						LN		291		2		false		            2     parties' request, I just wanted to provide some				false

		762						LN		291		3		false		            3     clarification for the record pertaining to the				false

		763						LN		291		4		false		            4     settlement discussions between applicant and counsel				false

		764						LN		291		5		false		            5     for the environment in the spring.				false

		765						LN		291		6		false		            6          Upon review of my correspondence and meeting				false

		766						LN		291		7		false		            7     invitations, I wanted to clarify for the record that				false

		767						LN		291		8		false		            8     Yakama Nation was invited into and participated in a				false

		768						LN		291		9		false		            9     meeting to discuss the proposal and provided a copy of				false

		769						LN		291		10		false		           10     the settlement proposal, but TCC and Benton County were				false

		770						LN		291		11		false		           11     not invited to these discussions.  It was certainly my				false

		771						LN		291		12		false		           12     intent to involve them had the settlement discussions				false

		772						LN		291		13		false		           13     progressed or continued.  And Mr. McMahan, I believe,				false

		773						LN		291		14		false		           14     has now provided all parties with the settlement				false

		774						LN		291		15		false		           15     proposal.  Is that correct?				false

		775						LN		291		16		false		           16                        MR. McMAHAN:  That is correct,				false

		776						LN		291		17		false		           17     Ms. Reyneveld.				false

		777						LN		291		18		false		           18                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That was my update.				false

		778						LN		291		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do parties have any				false

		779						LN		291		20		false		           20     other questions for the record about the status and who				false

		780						LN		291		21		false		           21     participated in those settlement items?				false

		781						LN		291		22		false		           22          All right.  Seeing none.				false

		782						LN		291		23		false		           23          We've managed to push through an hour of material,				false

		783						LN		291		24		false		           24     I think, in 25 minutes.  Thank you for letting me push				false

		784						LN		291		25		false		           25     hard on those.				false

		785						PG		292		0		false		page 292				false

		786						LN		292		1		false		            1          Let's take a break until 9:00.  We'll go on the				false

		787						LN		292		2		false		            2     record then, and we'll get started with Ms. Cooke's				false

		788						LN		292		3		false		            3     adoption of her testimony and cross-exam.				false

		789						LN		292		4		false		            4          Thank you.  We'll be back on here in about five				false

		790						LN		292		5		false		            5     minutes.				false

		791						LN		292		6		false		            6                               (Pause in proceedings from				false

		792						LN		292		7		false		            7                                8:55 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.)				false

		793						LN		292		8		false		            8				false

		794						LN		292		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning,				false

		795						LN		292		10		false		           10     everyone.  This is Day 2 of our adjudicative hearing in				false

		796						LN		292		11		false		           11     the Horse Heaven wind power project.				false

		797						LN		292		12		false		           12          I'm going ask our staff today to just take a poll				false

		798						LN		292		13		false		           13     of who's here from the Council.  I know we have one				false

		799						LN		292		14		false		           14     that's running late and will be listening in to the				false

		800						LN		292		15		false		           15     recording at a later time here.				false

		801						LN		292		16		false		           16          And I see our witness is here already.  Ms. Cooke,				false

		802						LN		292		17		false		           17     good morning.  We'll get to you very shortly.				false

		803						LN		292		18		false		           18          If the staff could call the roll.				false

		804						LN		292		19		false		           19                        MS. SHILEY:  When I proceed through				false

		805						LN		292		20		false		           20     the roll call, please be sure to state your name for				false

		806						LN		292		21		false		           21     the record as well as your status as present.  Thank				false

		807						LN		292		22		false		           22     you.				false

		808						LN		292		23		false		           23          EFSEC Chair.				false

		809						LN		292		24		false		           24                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Kathleen Drew,				false

		810						LN		292		25		false		           25     present.				false

		811						PG		293		0		false		page 293				false

		812						LN		293		1		false		            1                        MS. SHILEY:  Department of Commerce.				false

		813						LN		293		2		false		            2          Department of Ecology.				false

		814						LN		293		3		false		            3                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt,				false

		815						LN		293		4		false		            4     present.				false

		816						LN		293		5		false		            5                        MS. SHILEY:  Department of Fish and				false

		817						LN		293		6		false		            6     Wildlife.				false

		818						LN		293		7		false		            7                        COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:  Mike				false

		819						LN		293		8		false		            8     Livingston, present.				false

		820						LN		293		9		false		            9                        MS. SHILEY:  Department of Natural				false

		821						LN		293		10		false		           10     Resources.				false

		822						LN		293		11		false		           11                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Lenny Young,				false

		823						LN		293		12		false		           12     present.				false

		824						LN		293		13		false		           13                        MS. SHILEY:  Utilities and				false

		825						LN		293		14		false		           14     Transportation Commission.				false

		826						LN		293		15		false		           15                        COUNCIL MEMBER BREWSTER:  Stacey				false

		827						LN		293		16		false		           16     Brewster, present.				false

		828						LN		293		17		false		           17                        MS. SHILEY:  For the Horse Heaven				false

		829						LN		293		18		false		           18     project:  Department of Agriculture.				false

		830						LN		293		19		false		           19          And Benton County.				false

		831						LN		293		20		false		           20          All right.  Judge Torem, that's who we have.				false

		832						LN		293		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So it				false

		833						LN		293		22		false		           22     looks to me that Mr. Brost will have to review some of				false

		834						LN		293		23		false		           23     the testimony at a later date, and I think it's Kate				false

		835						LN		293		24		false		           24     Kelly for Commerce.				false

		836						LN		293		25		false		           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge Torem, this is				false

		837						PG		294		0		false		page 294				false

		838						LN		294		1		false		            1     Andrea Grantham.  Really quick:  For Department of				false

		839						LN		294		2		false		            2     Commerce, it is Elizabeth Osborne now.  She is our new				false

		840						LN		294		3		false		            3     Department of Commerce Council member.  She did inform				false

		841						LN		294		4		false		            4     us that she will be running a bit late this morning.				false

		842						LN		294		5		false		            5          Also, I do see Ed Brost's phone number online.  It				false

		843						LN		294		6		false		            6     is just muted.  So he is here.  I just -- Mr. Brost, if				false

		844						LN		294		7		false		            7     you would like to try to unmute, you can do "#6" or				false

		845						LN		294		8		false		            8     "*6" and see if you can confirm that you are present.				false

		846						LN		294		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We'll see				false

		847						LN		294		10		false		           10     if Mr. Brost, at least if he's called in, we'll figure				false

		848						LN		294		11		false		           11     out with him.  Maybe Ms. Grantham can send another				false

		849						LN		294		12		false		           12     e-mail and sort out any confirmation.				false

		850						LN		294		13		false		           13          Let's go over the parties and make sure				false

		851						LN		294		14		false		           14     everybody's present.				false

		852						LN		294		15		false		           15          For the applicant today.				false

		853						LN		294		16		false		           16                        MR. McMAHAN:  Your Honor, applicant				false

		854						LN		294		17		false		           17     is present.  Tim McMahan -- excuse me -- with --				false

		855						LN		294		18		false		           18     with -- excuse me -- Emily Schimelpfenig and Ariel				false

		856						LN		294		19		false		           19     Stavitsky.				false

		857						LN		294		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you,				false

		858						LN		294		21		false		           21     Mr. McMahan.				false

		859						LN		294		22		false		           22          For Benton County.				false

		860						LN		294		23		false		           23                        MR. HARPER:  Good morning, Your				false

		861						LN		294		24		false		           24     Honor.  Ken Harper and Z. Foster for Benton County.				false

		862						LN		294		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  Counsel for the				false

		863						PG		295		0		false		page 295				false

		864						LN		295		1		false		            1     environment.				false

		865						LN		295		2		false		            2                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Good morning, Your				false

		866						LN		295		3		false		            3     Honor.  Sarah Reyneveld for counsel for the				false

		867						LN		295		4		false		            4     environment.  Thank you.				false

		868						LN		295		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama Nation.				false

		869						LN		295		6		false		            6                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Good morning, Your				false

		870						LN		295		7		false		            7     Honor, Shona Voelckers, Ethan Jones, and Jessica				false

		871						LN		295		8		false		            8     Houston for the Yakama Nation.				false

		872						LN		295		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  And for Tri-Cities				false

		873						LN		295		10		false		           10     C.A.R.E.S.				false

		874						LN		295		11		false		           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Richard Aramburu for				false

		875						LN		295		12		false		           12     Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		876						LN		295		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council				false

		877						LN		295		14		false		           14     members, today's agenda, if you looked at the daily				false

		878						LN		295		15		false		           15     schedule, I've already had a housekeeping meeting with				false

		879						LN		295		16		false		           16     the parties and gone over some of the schedule				false

		880						LN		295		17		false		           17     modifications that are necessary by moving the Jansen				false

		881						LN		295		18		false		           18     and Rahmig testimonies to a later date, as well as				false

		882						LN		295		19		false		           19     tomorrow's McIvor testimony that's scheduled at 10:30.				false

		883						LN		295		20		false		           20          Just as I think you heard yesterday, we have some				false

		884						LN		295		21		false		           21     questions of one of the attorney's health and				false

		885						LN		295		22		false		           22     participating in cross and redirect of those witnesses.				false

		886						LN		295		23		false		           23     Today we do have Michelle Cooke.  She's scheduled here				false

		887						LN		295		24		false		           24     at 9:00 for about an hour and a half to two hours of				false

		888						LN		295		25		false		           25     examination.  I hope you've read her testimony, which I				false

		889						PG		296		0		false		page 296				false

		890						LN		296		1		false		            1     believe is Exhibit 2003.				false

		891						LN		296		2		false		            2          Mr. Harper, is that correct?				false

		892						LN		296		3		false		            3                        MR. HARPER:  That's correct, Your				false

		893						LN		296		4		false		            4     Honor.				false

		894						LN		296		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  The parties have done				false

		895						LN		296		6		false		            6     some shuffling, Council members, to see if we can adopt				false

		896						LN		296		7		false		            7     certain testimony from the Yakama Nation's witnesses				false

		897						LN		296		8		false		            8     tomorrow that were originally scheduled at 11:30 on				false

		898						LN		296		9		false		            9     Wednesday, August 16th.  Those would be for Leon				false

		899						LN		296		10		false		           10     Ganuelas and Mark Nuetzmann.				false

		900						LN		296		11		false		           11          Today when we take Mr. Ganuelas's adoption of his				false

		901						LN		296		12		false		           12     testimony, much of it is subject to confidentiality				false

		902						LN		296		13		false		           13     provisions, so my proposal to staff was that we attempt				false

		903						LN		296		14		false		           14     to see, on kind of a low-threat environment				false

		904						LN		296		15		false		           15     opportunity, how the procedures we've developed to move				false

		905						LN		296		16		false		           16     us all into a breakout room for a closed-record session				false

		906						LN		296		17		false		           17     might work.				false

		907						LN		296		18		false		           18          So today when we're done with Ms. Cooke's				false

		908						LN		296		19		false		           19     testimony and we get Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Nuetzmann				false

		909						LN		296		20		false		           20     together, I think what I'll do is take Mr. Nuetzmann,				false

		910						LN		296		21		false		           21     have him adopt his testimony, and let him go, and then				false

		911						LN		296		22		false		           22     Mr. Ganuelas, we'll all see how it works for us to go				false

		912						LN		296		23		false		           23     into closed-record session to adopt his testimony, work				false

		913						LN		296		24		false		           24     out any glitches on that today when we have a little				false

		914						LN		296		25		false		           25     extra time.  That way when we take a number of other				false

		915						PG		297		0		false		page 297				false

		916						LN		297		1		false		            1     confidential matters in a closed-record session next				false

		917						LN		297		2		false		            2     week it looks like, we'll have a better idea how that				false

		918						LN		297		3		false		            3     all works and be able to be that much more efficient.				false

		919						LN		297		4		false		            4          I think the only other update is the exhibit				false

		920						LN		297		5		false		            5     running list that Lisa Masengale is updating in real				false

		921						LN		297		6		false		            6     time has now been shared with the parties, so they'll				false

		922						LN		297		7		false		            7     also be tracking, Council members, what we made sure				false

		923						LN		297		8		false		            8     you understood yesterday afternoon for your purposes of				false

		924						LN		297		9		false		            9     keeping score.				false

		925						LN		297		10		false		           10          I think those are all the things that I covered				false

		926						LN		297		11		false		           11     with the attorneys during housekeeping that I wanted				false

		927						LN		297		12		false		           12     you to know about.				false

		928						LN		297		13		false		           13          You'll also have seen that Ms. Grantham sent an				false

		929						LN		297		14		false		           14     e-mail this morning to the service list linking to				false

		930						LN		297		15		false		           15     yesterday's video of the entire hearing.  So those				false

		931						LN		297		16		false		           16     members that missed anything or think they need to				false

		932						LN		297		17		false		           17     review anything on the video side can get it there.				false

		933						LN		297		18		false		           18          Transcripts may take a little longer to hit the				false

		934						LN		297		19		false		           19     website, particularly because we're using the same				false

		935						LN		297		20		false		           20     court reporter for the bulk of this adjudicative				false

		936						LN		297		21		false		           21     hearing.  So in mercy to the court reporter, we're not				false

		937						LN		297		22		false		           22     asking him to continue to work that many more hours				false

		938						LN		297		23		false		           23     after what we do each day.				false

		939						LN		297		24		false		           24          All right.  Anything else from the parties by just				false

		940						LN		297		25		false		           25     a raising of your hand electronically before I swear in				false

		941						PG		298		0		false		page 298				false

		942						LN		298		1		false		            1     Ms. Cooke?				false

		943						LN		298		2		false		            2          All right.  I'm not seeing any.				false

		944						LN		298		3		false		            3          I have one, looks like open microphone on a "509"				false

		945						LN		298		4		false		            4     number.  We'll see if staff -- it starts with a "53,"				false

		946						LN		298		5		false		            5     something.  If you can mute yourself, that'd be great.				false

		947						LN		298		6		false		            6     Otherwise I'll have --				false

		948						LN		298		7		false		            7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge.				false

		949						LN		298		8		false		            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- do that.				false

		950						LN		298		9		false		            9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Okay.  Yeah, this is				false

		951						LN		298		10		false		           10     Andrea.  That was Ed Brost's number.  Just letting you				false

		952						LN		298		11		false		           11     know.				false

		953						LN		298		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I know you had				false

		954						LN		298		13		false		           13     manually maybe unmuted that.  But I haven't heard				false

		955						LN		298		14		false		           14     anything from Mr. Brost yet.  And hopefully if he has a				false

		956						LN		298		15		false		           15     question for Ms. Cooke, we can unmute him at that time.				false

		957						LN		298		16		false		           16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Sounds good.				false

		958						LN		298		17		false		           17                               (Witness Michelle Cooke				false

		959						LN		298		18		false		           18                                appearing remotely.)				false

		960						LN		298		19		false		           19				false

		961						LN		298		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Not seeing				false

		962						LN		298		21		false		           21     any other delays.  Let me -- Ms. Cooke, I'm Judge				false

		963						LN		298		22		false		           22     Torem.  Good morning.  I've got your --				false

		964						LN		298		23		false		           23                        THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Your				false

		965						LN		298		24		false		           24     Honor.				false

		966						LN		298		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  I've got your prefiled				false

		967						PG		299		0		false		page 299				false

		968						LN		299		1		false		            1     testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, in front of me.  And our				false

		969						LN		299		2		false		            2     process is going to be that I swear you in, ask you to				false

		970						LN		299		3		false		            3     adopt that testimony.  Let us know if there's any				false

		971						LN		299		4		false		            4     changes, modifications.  And then I'll turn you over				false

		972						LN		299		5		false		            5     for cross-examination, unless Mr. Harper, I think your				false

		973						LN		299		6		false		            6     sponsoring witness, has anything else.  So I'll ask				false

		974						LN		299		7		false		            7     him, and then we'll go from there.				false

		975						LN		299		8		false		            8          So if you'll raise your --				false

		976						LN		299		9		false		            9                        MR. HARPER:  No, Your Honor.  That's				false

		977						LN		299		10		false		           10     fine.				false

		978						LN		299		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- right hand.				false

		979						LN		299		12		false		           12                        MR. HARPER:  I'm sorry.				false

		980						LN		299		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Cooke,				false

		981						LN		299		14		false		           14     if you'll raise your right hand.				false

		982						LN		299		15		false		           15				false

		983						LN		299		16		false		           16     MICHELLE COOKE,             appearing remotely, was duly				false

		984						LN		299		17		false		           17                                 sworn by the Administrative				false

		985						LN		299		18		false		           18                                 Law Judge as follows:				false

		986						LN		299		19		false		           19				false

		987						LN		299		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you solemnly swear				false

		988						LN		299		21		false		           21     or affirm that all the testimony contained in your				false

		989						LN		299		22		false		           22     prefiled testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, and the rest of				false

		990						LN		299		23		false		           23     your testimony provided today will be the truth, the				false

		991						LN		299		24		false		           24     whole truth, and nothing but the truth?				false

		992						LN		299		25		false		           25                        THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		993						PG		300		0		false		page 300				false

		994						LN		300		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Now that				false

		995						LN		300		2		false		            2     you've adopted your testimony, that exhibit can be				false

		996						LN		300		3		false		            3     marked admitted.				false

		997						LN		300		4		false		            4                               (Exhibit No. 2003_T				false

		998						LN		300		5		false		            5                                admitted.)				false

		999						LN		300		6		false		            6				false

		1000						LN		300		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  Did you have any				false

		1001						LN		300		8		false		            8     modifications or updates you wanted to share before				false

		1002						LN		300		9		false		            9     cross-exam?				false

		1003						LN		300		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  I do not.				false

		1004						LN		300		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then I'm				false

		1005						LN		300		12		false		           12     going to look at my schedule and see who has questions				false

		1006						LN		300		13		false		           13     first.				false

		1007						LN		300		14		false		           14          I believe Mr. McMahan from Scout Clean Energy has				false

		1008						LN		300		15		false		           15     questions for you, then Mr. Aramburu from Tri-Cities				false

		1009						LN		300		16		false		           16     C.A.R.E.S., and then Ms. Voelckers from the Yakama				false

		1010						LN		300		17		false		           17     Nation.  After that, I'll see if anybody else from				false

		1011						LN		300		18		false		           18     Council members have questions as well as other parties				false

		1012						LN		300		19		false		           19     that didn't specifically list anything.  And depending				false

		1013						LN		300		20		false		           20     on what's asked, I may have some questions for you as				false

		1014						LN		300		21		false		           21     well.				false

		1015						LN		300		22		false		           22          Mr. McMahan, we'll mute here in Lacey, and we'll				false

		1016						LN		300		23		false		           23     turn it over to you.				false

		1017						LN		300		24		false		           24                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1018						LN		300		25		false		           25     ////				false

		1019						PG		301		0		false		page 301				false

		1020						LN		301		1		false		            1                        CROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		1021						LN		301		2		false		            2     BY MR. McMAHAN:				false

		1022						LN		301		3		false		            3  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Tim McMahan.  I'm lead				false

		1023						LN		301		4		false		            4     counsel representing Scout Clean Energy in these				false

		1024						LN		301		5		false		            5     proceedings.  Thank you for being here today.				false

		1025						LN		301		6		false		            6  A  Good morning.				false

		1026						LN		301		7		false		            7  Q  Just to --				false

		1027						LN		301		8		false		            8  A  And thank you.				false

		1028						LN		301		9		false		            9  Q  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		1029						LN		301		10		false		           10          And I just was -- I just violated what I was just				false

		1030						LN		301		11		false		           11     about to say, which is yesterday Mr. Wendt and I tended				false

		1031						LN		301		12		false		           12     to talk over each other a little too often.  I'm sure I				false

		1032						LN		301		13		false		           13     have 50 percent of that responsibility.  So if I do				false

		1033						LN		301		14		false		           14     that -- I will try not to -- and I think you and I can				false

		1034						LN		301		15		false		           15     perhaps develop a vibe where that doesn't happen, so I				false

		1035						LN		301		16		false		           16     promise to do my part there.  And, yeah, I think that				false

		1036						LN		301		17		false		           17     was kind of the main thing I just wanted to introduce.				false

		1037						LN		301		18		false		           18     So let me know.				false

		1038						LN		301		19		false		           19          And I also tend to be a fast talker.  I will try				false

		1039						LN		301		20		false		           20     to discipline myself there as well.  But if I go too				false

		1040						LN		301		21		false		           21     fast -- I don't know -- show me a hand or something,				false

		1041						LN		301		22		false		           22     and I'll slow myself down.  All right?				false

		1042						LN		301		23		false		           23  A  Okay.				false

		1043						LN		301		24		false		           24  Q  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1044						LN		301		25		false		           25          Ms. Cooke, getting into your testimony here, on				false

		1045						PG		302		0		false		page 302				false

		1046						LN		302		1		false		            1     Page 10 of your testimony, you state that fragmentation				false

		1047						LN		302		2		false		            2     from the project will cause the children of landowners				false

		1048						LN		302		3		false		            3     to be less likely to -- and you're -- you're in				false

		1049						LN		302		4		false		            4     quotes -- leave their non-farming-related jobs in order				false

		1050						LN		302		5		false		            5     to renew the farming legacy, the legacy of farming.				false

		1051						LN		302		6		false		            6          Are you insinuating that it is the County's				false

		1052						LN		302		7		false		            7     land-use policy or role to influence the succession				false

		1053						LN		302		8		false		            8     planning of farming families?				false

		1054						LN		302		9		false		            9  A  No.  I -- no.  I was not insinuating that at all.  I				false

		1055						LN		302		10		false		           10     was insinuating it's the scope of the County to				false

		1056						LN		302		11		false		           11     practice good planning, that -- which leads not to the				false

		1057						LN		302		12		false		           12     fragmentation of agricultural lands, which are				false

		1058						LN		302		13		false		           13     economically important to our area.  It's not a socio-				false

		1059						LN		302		14		false		           14     impact to a certain family or demographic.  It's the				false

		1060						LN		302		15		false		           15     protection and conservation of the agricultural lands				false

		1061						LN		302		16		false		           16     as a whole and keeping those from fragmenting.				false

		1062						LN		302		17		false		           17  Q  And we'll get into this a little further.				false

		1063						LN		302		18		false		           18          So is it actually your testimony that this				false

		1064						LN		302		19		false		           19     project, around 1 percent of the overall agricultural				false

		1065						LN		302		20		false		           20     lands in the County, will in fact interrupt succession				false

		1066						LN		302		21		false		           21     planning or make it more difficult for farmers to farm?				false

		1067						LN		302		22		false		           22  A  I think it's -- it's a lot more likely, yes.				false

		1068						LN		302		23		false		           23     Absolutely.  Especially the farming portion, seeing as				false

		1069						LN		302		24		false		           24     that a majority of the land that's going to be lost or				false

		1070						LN		302		25		false		           25     the term of the lease is under solar, and you can't				false

		1071						PG		303		0		false		page 303				false

		1072						LN		303		1		false		            1     farm under solar panels.  So, yeah, absolutely, I do				false

		1073						LN		303		2		false		            2     think that.				false

		1074						LN		303		3		false		            3  Q  For the solar facility.  Okay.				false

		1075						LN		303		4		false		            4          Have you -- did you ever reach out to landowners				false

		1076						LN		303		5		false		            5     and farmers involved in the project to ask them what				false

		1077						LN		303		6		false		            6     their long-term plans were for their lands?				false

		1078						LN		303		7		false		            7  A  I didn't reach out to specific lease owners, as that				false

		1079						LN		303		8		false		            8     information was not made publicly available to myself.				false

		1080						LN		303		9		false		            9     I would have for sure if I would have known who those				false

		1081						LN		303		10		false		           10     lease owners were.  But I did reach out to other people				false

		1082						LN		303		11		false		           11     that I know in the area and asked questions about their				false

		1083						LN		303		12		false		           12     practices and what they would do in a similar				false

		1084						LN		303		13		false		           13     circumstance.				false

		1085						LN		303		14		false		           14  Q  So you're saying you -- you had no idea who these lease				false

		1086						LN		303		15		false		           15     owners or landowners were that were involved in the				false

		1087						LN		303		16		false		           16     project, never?				false

		1088						LN		303		17		false		           17  A  I was never made aware of who they were or where to				false

		1089						LN		303		18		false		           18     find that information.				false

		1090						LN		303		19		false		           19  Q  Okay.  Are you aware of any other Benton County				false

		1091						LN		303		20		false		           20     representative that reached out to landowners or				false

		1092						LN		303		21		false		           21     farmers who were involved in the project to ask about				false

		1093						LN		303		22		false		           22     their long-term plans for their lands?				false

		1094						LN		303		23		false		           23  A  I'm not aware, but it's not the scope of the County to				false

		1095						LN		303		24		false		           24     get involved with private leases between farmers and --				false

		1096						LN		303		25		false		           25     and developers.  It would be unheard of -- it would be				false

		1097						PG		304		0		false		page 304				false

		1098						LN		304		1		false		            1     unheard of for me, my staff, or anyone else here at				false

		1099						LN		304		2		false		            2     the -- at the County to get involved or ask questions				false

		1100						LN		304		3		false		            3     about the nature of a lease or their impressions for				false

		1101						LN		304		4		false		            4     any development, whether it's this one, a subdivision,				false

		1102						LN		304		5		false		            5     or anything of -- of that nature.				false

		1103						LN		304		6		false		            6  Q  So you are, in fact, not aware of any such outreach to				false

		1104						LN		304		7		false		            7     these landowners.				false

		1105						LN		304		8		false		            8          That's the answer to your question?				false

		1106						LN		304		9		false		            9  A  No.  Yeah, that's the answer to my question.				false

		1107						LN		304		10		false		           10  Q  Okay.  So in your testimony, Page 9, Lines 5 through				false

		1108						LN		304		11		false		           11     6 -- and if you need to pull that up, I'm fine with you				false

		1109						LN		304		12		false		           12     doing so.				false

		1110						LN		304		13		false		           13  A  I'm -- can you also put that on the screen for us as				false

		1111						LN		304		14		false		           14     well?				false

		1112						LN		304		15		false		           15  Q  You know, I don't have it on -- I'm not able to share				false

		1113						LN		304		16		false		           16     it on the screen.  Ms. Masengale --				false

		1114						LN		304		17		false		           17  A  You said Page 5, Lines 9 -- 5 through 6?				false

		1115						LN		304		18		false		           18  Q  5 through 9.				false

		1116						LN		304		19		false		           19                        MS. STAVITSKY:  We'll work to get				false

		1117						LN		304		20		false		           20     that on the screen.				false

		1118						LN		304		21		false		           21                        MR. McMAHAN:  If you need it on the				false

		1119						LN		304		22		false		           22     screen, we can pull it up, or if you've got it in your				false

		1120						LN		304		23		false		           23     hand, I think we can proceed.				false

		1121						LN		304		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I				false

		1122						LN		304		25		false		           25     understand that Ms. Masengale is in the process of				false

		1123						PG		305		0		false		page 305				false

		1124						LN		305		1		false		            1     pulling that exhibit up.				false

		1125						LN		305		2		false		            2          Ms. Cooke, if you wait for Mr. McMahan to finish				false

		1126						LN		305		3		false		            3     the question just half a breath, I think it's going to				false

		1127						LN		305		4		false		            4     make the gentleman to my right a little happier.  It's				false

		1128						LN		305		5		false		            5     just --				false

		1129						LN		305		6		false		            6                        THE WITNESS:  Okay.				false

		1130						LN		305		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- the nature of court				false

		1131						LN		305		8		false		            8     reporting.  It's not a -- I have to tell a lot of				false

		1132						LN		305		9		false		            9     witnesses it's just not a normal conversation.  It's				false

		1133						LN		305		10		false		           10     being taken down verbatim.  Anything you and				false

		1134						LN		305		11		false		           11     Mr. McMahan can do on this dance and the other counsel				false

		1135						LN		305		12		false		           12     will help.				false

		1136						LN		305		13		false		           13          All right.  And here comes your exhibit.  We're				false

		1137						LN		305		14		false		           14     going to go to Page 5, Lines 5 through 7.				false

		1138						LN		305		15		false		           15          Thank you, Ms. Masengale.				false

		1139						LN		305		16		false		           16          Mr. McMahan, if you want to --				false

		1140						LN		305		17		false		           17                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		1141						LN		305		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- re-ask your				false

		1142						LN		305		19		false		           19     question.				false

		1143						LN		305		20		false		           20                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.				false

		1144						LN		305		21		false		           21  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  In your testimony, Ms. Cooke, you				false

		1145						LN		305		22		false		           22     indicate -- and I'm quoting -- "The land is more				false

		1146						LN		305		23		false		           23     suitable for continuing farming industry in Benton				false

		1147						LN		305		24		false		           24     County than being put to use as a large industrial				false

		1148						LN		305		25		false		           25     project."				false

		1149						PG		306		0		false		page 306				false

		1150						LN		306		1		false		            1          Is that your testimony?				false

		1151						LN		306		2		false		            2  A  Yes, as you can see clearly in the exhibit, that is my				false

		1152						LN		306		3		false		            3     testimony.				false

		1153						LN		306		4		false		            4  Q  Shouldn't the property owners, themselves, be the ones				false

		1154						LN		306		5		false		            5     to determine how best to manage their farmlands and				false

		1155						LN		306		6		false		            6     their family legacy?				false

		1156						LN		306		7		false		            7  A  That's an interesting question.  Unfortunately, the				false

		1157						LN		306		8		false		            8     State of Washington mandates land-use planning				false

		1158						LN		306		9		false		            9     practices, which is our office's purview.  So although				false

		1159						LN		306		10		false		           10     the line sometimes is contentious about private				false

		1160						LN		306		11		false		           11     property owners' rights and what they can and can't and				false

		1161						LN		306		12		false		           12     should and should not do with their property and what				false

		1162						LN		306		13		false		           13     the state law mandates the County to regulate, it's a				false

		1163						LN		306		14		false		           14     little contentious.				false

		1164						LN		306		15		false		           15          And so for us as land-use planners to do -- uphold				false

		1165						LN		306		16		false		           16     what the State has charged us with, we have determined				false

		1166						LN		306		17		false		           17     these areas are suitable for farming as they are zoned				false

		1167						LN		306		18		false		           18     agricultural.				false

		1168						LN		306		19		false		           19  Q  Right.				false

		1169						LN		306		20		false		           20          And, in fact -- and, in fact, farming will				false

		1170						LN		306		21		false		           21     continue on the wind energy site after the construction				false

		1171						LN		306		22		false		           22     of the facility, won't it?				false

		1172						LN		306		23		false		           23  A  Yes.  Unfortunately, that's a minority of the property				false

		1173						LN		306		24		false		           24     that's going to be lost.  You cannot farm under solar				false

		1174						LN		306		25		false		           25     panels, and that's a majority of the acres lost.				false

		1175						PG		307		0		false		page 307				false

		1176						LN		307		1		false		            1  Q  I understand what you're saying.				false

		1177						LN		307		2		false		            2          So -- so you -- you -- are you insinuating that				false

		1178						LN		307		3		false		            3     the planning department should decide the destiny of				false

		1179						LN		307		4		false		            4     these landowners?				false

		1180						LN		307		5		false		            5  A  The -- the County has zoned this as agriculture, and we				false

		1181						LN		307		6		false		            6     are maintaining those permitted uses, which are				false

		1182						LN		307		7		false		            7     agricultural in nature.  We're not deciding what people				false

		1183						LN		307		8		false		            8     should and should not do with their property.  There is				false

		1184						LN		307		9		false		            9     a list of allowed uses, and those are what are				false

		1185						LN		307		10		false		           10     permitted on the property.  If someone wants to go				false

		1186						LN		307		11		false		           11     outside of that, then that would be not consistent with				false

		1187						LN		307		12		false		           12     what the State has mandated us to do in these areas,				false

		1188						LN		307		13		false		           13     and that would be going against our County code.				false

		1189						LN		307		14		false		           14  Q  Is there anything that restricts renewable energy				false

		1190						LN		307		15		false		           15     development based upon the soil classification?				false

		1191						LN		307		16		false		           16  A  Can you repeat your question?				false

		1192						LN		307		17		false		           17  Q  Is there anything that restricts renewable energy				false

		1193						LN		307		18		false		           18     development on these lands based on soil				false

		1194						LN		307		19		false		           19     classification?				false

		1195						LN		307		20		false		           20  A  I'm not aware that there is.				false

		1196						LN		307		21		false		           21  Q  And isn't it true that, at least what I think I'm				false

		1197						LN		307		22		false		           22     hearing, is that you or the planning department decide				false

		1198						LN		307		23		false		           23     what is compatible for these landowners on behalf of				false

		1199						LN		307		24		false		           24     these landowners?				false

		1200						LN		307		25		false		           25  A  We don't decide that.  Our county code, which has been				false

		1201						PG		308		0		false		page 308				false

		1202						LN		308		1		false		            1     adopted into law, lays that out.				false

		1203						LN		308		2		false		            2  Q  But for this project, are you -- is it your role to				false

		1204						LN		308		3		false		            3     decide whether or not renewable energy is -- is allowed				false

		1205						LN		308		4		false		            4     as a compatible use on the wind facility portion of				false

		1206						LN		308		5		false		            5     this project?				false

		1207						LN		308		6		false		            6  A  For this project, it's EFSEC's role to decide whether				false

		1208						LN		308		7		false		            7     or not compatibility is there.				false

		1209						LN		308		8		false		            8  Q  Okay.  All right.  Good.  Well, we agree on that, then.				false

		1210						LN		308		9		false		            9          So concerning the soils classification, is there				false

		1211						LN		308		10		false		           10     anything that restricts development on the land based				false

		1212						LN		308		11		false		           11     upon soil classification?				false

		1213						LN		308		12		false		           12  A  Not to my understanding.  But the land was designated				false

		1214						LN		308		13		false		           13     as soil classification is a consideration, one of eight				false

		1215						LN		308		14		false		           14     considerations that -- that are used to designate ag				false

		1216						LN		308		15		false		           15     lands.				false

		1217						LN		308		16		false		           16  Q  And do you have knowledge of the farm soils on this				false

		1218						LN		308		17		false		           17     property, on -- excuse me -- on the -- on this -- on				false

		1219						LN		308		18		false		           18     the -- on the area that's proposed for development?				false

		1220						LN		308		19		false		           19  A  It's a very large area, so I'm not specifically aware				false

		1221						LN		308		20		false		           20     of what they are, but I did take an active role in our				false

		1222						LN		308		21		false		           21     ag lands reclassification, and I know that they're not				false

		1223						LN		308		22		false		           22     poor soils.				false

		1224						LN		308		23		false		           23  Q  But your testimony, you characterize this as prime				false

		1225						LN		308		24		false		           24     farmland, right?				false

		1226						LN		308		25		false		           25  A  Yes.				false

		1227						PG		309		0		false		page 309				false

		1228						LN		309		1		false		            1  Q  Okay.				false

		1229						LN		309		2		false		            2  A  Like I said, there's eight factors that go into --				false

		1230						LN		309		3		false		            3  Q  Yes.				false

		1231						LN		309		4		false		            4  A  -- prime farmland, not just soils.				false

		1232						LN		309		5		false		            5  Q  I understand that.				false

		1233						LN		309		6		false		            6          Prime farmland designation, however, is typically				false

		1234						LN		309		7		false		            7     referencing USDA NRCS farmland classification, correct?				false

		1235						LN		309		8		false		            8  A  Are you speaking as far as soils go?				false

		1236						LN		309		9		false		            9  Q  Yes.  So far as soils go.				false

		1237						LN		309		10		false		           10  A  That's one of eight tests to designate ag lands of				false

		1238						LN		309		11		false		           11     long-term significance.				false

		1239						LN		309		12		false		           12  Q  Yes.  And I'm talking about your testimony that calls				false

		1240						LN		309		13		false		           13     this project prime farmland.				false

		1241						LN		309		14		false		           14          You do state that in your testimony, don't you?				false

		1242						LN		309		15		false		           15  A  Yes.				false

		1243						LN		309		16		false		           16  Q  And isn't it true that for this particular soil -- and				false

		1244						LN		309		17		false		           17     I know you come from a farming family.				false

		1245						LN		309		18		false		           18          Isn't it true that for the Ritzville silt loam				false

		1246						LN		309		19		false		           19     soils, which is about 92 percent -- I can -- I can				false

		1247						LN		309		20		false		           20     represent to you 92 percent of the project lease				false

		1248						LN		309		21		false		           21     boundary, is classified as prime farmland if irrigated,				false

		1249						LN		309		22		false		           22     correct?				false

		1250						LN		309		23		false		           23  A  No, that's not correct.  It has to do with water				false

		1251						LN		309		24		false		           24     availability, including precipitation.				false

		1252						LN		309		25		false		           25  Q  So you're disputing that definition from USDA NRCS data				false

		1253						PG		310		0		false		page 310				false

		1254						LN		310		1		false		            1     concerning the -- the characteristics of prime				false

		1255						LN		310		2		false		            2     farmland?				false

		1256						LN		310		3		false		            3  A  As I said, it's one of eight criterias.  And water and				false

		1257						LN		310		4		false		            4     precipitation is another criteria.  So those factored				false

		1258						LN		310		5		false		            5     together.  So if there's enough precipitation for				false

		1259						LN		310		6		false		            6     dryland wheat farming, those soils, that area, are				false

		1260						LN		310		7		false		            7     suitable as an agricultural area.				false

		1261						LN		310		8		false		            8  Q  And you are aware that none of this property is				false

		1262						LN		310		9		false		            9     irrigated, correct?				false

		1263						LN		310		10		false		           10  A  I am aware.				false

		1264						LN		310		11		false		           11  Q  All right.				false

		1265						LN		310		12		false		           12  A  But it does have good precipitation levels.				false

		1266						LN		310		13		false		           13  Q  Well, what is the annual precipitation per year in this				false

		1267						LN		310		14		false		           14     area?				false

		1268						LN		310		15		false		           15  A  In -- in this area?  I believe it's -- well, and I				false

		1269						LN		310		16		false		           16     can't say this for sure on the record, but the last				false

		1270						LN		310		17		false		           17     time I read the memo, I want to say it's four to six				false

		1271						LN		310		18		false		           18     inches of rain a year, roughly.				false

		1272						LN		310		19		false		           19  Q  So rather arid, isn't it?				false

		1273						LN		310		20		false		           20  A  Not for dryland wheat.  That's enough.				false

		1274						LN		310		21		false		           21  Q  But it is arid land up there, isn't it?				false

		1275						LN		310		22		false		           22  A  It's dryland.  It's not arid.				false

		1276						LN		310		23		false		           23  Q  Okay.  Right.				false

		1277						LN		310		24		false		           24          Is it your -- oh, let's see.				false

		1278						LN		310		25		false		           25          So is your testimony that this location, Benton				false

		1279						PG		311		0		false		page 311				false

		1280						LN		311		1		false		            1     County, differs from other dryland wheat areas in the				false

		1281						LN		311		2		false		            2     Northwest is just somehow unique, or is it pretty --				false

		1282						LN		311		3		false		            3     typical?				false

		1283						LN		311		4		false		            4  A  I'm not familiar with other dryland wheat operations in				false

		1284						LN		311		5		false		            5     the Northwest as I'm not from there.				false

		1285						LN		311		6		false		            6  Q  Okay.  Where are you from?  I'm sorry.  That's				false

		1286						LN		311		7		false		            7     interesting.				false

		1287						LN		311		8		false		            8          Where are you from?				false

		1288						LN		311		9		false		            9  A  I'm from Prosser, Washington, the Horse Heaven Hills.				false

		1289						LN		311		10		false		           10  Q  Okay.				false

		1290						LN		311		11		false		           11  A  But I'm not familiar with the other dryland wheat				false

		1291						LN		311		12		false		           12     regions of Washington State, such as the Palouse,				false

		1292						LN		311		13		false		           13     because I'm not from there, and I don't know --				false

		1293						LN		311		14		false		           14  Q  All right.				false

		1294						LN		311		15		false		           15  A  -- what their yields are like.				false

		1295						LN		311		16		false		           16  Q  I understand.  Thanks for the clarification there.				false

		1296						LN		311		17		false		           17          What about for Nine Canyon?  Are you aware that				false

		1297						LN		311		18		false		           18     that is dryland wheat, unirrigated, on the Nine Canyon				false

		1298						LN		311		19		false		           19     wind farm?				false

		1299						LN		311		20		false		           20  A  I don't know what the history of Nine Canyon was, but				false

		1300						LN		311		21		false		           21     given the topography of where it's located, I would				false

		1301						LN		311		22		false		           22     have -- I would have assumed that it was not dryland.				false

		1302						LN		311		23		false		           23     My assumption is it was probably rangeland, because				false

		1303						LN		311		24		false		           24     it's on top of a hill.  But I don't know that for a				false

		1304						LN		311		25		false		           25     fact, because I wasn't in the country at the time it				false

		1305						PG		312		0		false		page 312				false

		1306						LN		312		1		false		            1     was developed.				false

		1307						LN		312		2		false		            2  Q  So you are speculating with that answer, aren't you?				false

		1308						LN		312		3		false		            3  A  You're asking me a question I can't answer, so yes.				false

		1309						LN		312		4		false		            4  Q  Yes, you're speculating.  Thank you.				false

		1310						LN		312		5		false		            5          Have you visited other wind farms in Oregon or				false

		1311						LN		312		6		false		            6     Washington?				false

		1312						LN		312		7		false		            7  A  I have.  On a --				false

		1313						LN		312		8		false		            8  Q  Which wind farms?				false

		1314						LN		312		9		false		            9          Excuse me.				false

		1315						LN		312		10		false		           10  A  I haven't --				false

		1316						LN		312		11		false		           11  Q  I'm sorry.				false

		1317						LN		312		12		false		           12  A  I haven't on a professional level.  I have on a				false

		1318						LN		312		13		false		           13     personal level.  I've visited the one out in Bickleton.				false

		1319						LN		312		14		false		           14  Q  Okay.  In -- in Klickitat County, then?				false

		1320						LN		312		15		false		           15  A  In Klickitat County.				false

		1321						LN		312		16		false		           16  Q  All right.  And have you discussed farm operations with				false

		1322						LN		312		17		false		           17     any farmers out in the Klickitat County area?				false

		1323						LN		312		18		false		           18  A  I have.  I...				false

		1324						LN		312		19		false		           19  Q  And have you discussed whether or not -- well, have you				false

		1325						LN		312		20		false		           20     discussed with those farmers in Klickitat County				false

		1326						LN		312		21		false		           21     whether their farming operations are in any way				false

		1327						LN		312		22		false		           22     disrupted by the renewable energy development that's				false

		1328						LN		312		23		false		           23     hosted on their lands?				false

		1329						LN		312		24		false		           24  A  I haven't -- I haven't had conversations with the				false

		1330						LN		312		25		false		           25     actual landowners who have the turbines on their				false

		1331						PG		313		0		false		page 313				false

		1332						LN		313		1		false		            1     properties.  I've had conversations with adjacent				false

		1333						LN		313		2		false		            2     landowners in the area, so I can't answer that				false

		1334						LN		313		3		false		            3     question.				false

		1335						LN		313		4		false		            4  Q  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1336						LN		313		5		false		            5          Do you dispute that farmers customarily farm				false

		1337						LN		313		6		false		            6     around local topography, including, you know, for				false

		1338						LN		313		7		false		            7     example, canyons, sloped areas?				false

		1339						LN		313		8		false		            8          I mean, it's pretty typical, isn't it, for farmers				false

		1340						LN		313		9		false		            9     to farm around topographic features?				false

		1341						LN		313		10		false		           10  A  It is.  And in our area, it's a very small percentage				false

		1342						LN		313		11		false		           11     of the -- of the land.  Because the Horse Heaven Hills				false

		1343						LN		313		12		false		           12     is a mesa and very flat, we do have some areas of				false

		1344						LN		313		13		false		           13     shrub-steppe habitat and critical areas in the -- in				false

		1345						LN		313		14		false		           14     the drainages, and they do farm around those areas.				false

		1346						LN		313		15		false		           15  Q  And the farmers can customarily farm around, oh, power				false

		1347						LN		313		16		false		           16     poles, ditches, many things, right?				false

		1348						LN		313		17		false		           17  A  Typically in the Horse Heaven Hills, they don't have				false

		1349						LN		313		18		false		           18     any of those, as ditches are not and irrigation is not				false

		1350						LN		313		19		false		           19     up there, and all of the power poles run along the road				false

		1351						LN		313		20		false		           20     right-of-way infrastructure, so they don't need to go				false

		1352						LN		313		21		false		           21     around those necessarily.  Those are on the periphery				false

		1353						LN		313		22		false		           22     of their operations.				false

		1354						LN		313		23		false		           23  Q  So you're saying that entire area up on the Horse				false

		1355						LN		313		24		false		           24     Heaven Hills is all flat as a table.				false

		1356						LN		313		25		false		           25          Is that what you're saying?				false

		1357						PG		314		0		false		page 314				false

		1358						LN		314		1		false		            1  A  It's predominantly flat.  It's not flat as a pancake,				false

		1359						LN		314		2		false		            2     but it's predominantly flat.  There are some rolling				false

		1360						LN		314		3		false		            3     hills, but not to any great extent.  The slopes are on				false

		1361						LN		314		4		false		            4     the fringe.				false

		1362						LN		314		5		false		            5  Q  In your -- I want to just turn to your testimony about				false

		1363						LN		314		6		false		            6     support services.				false

		1364						LN		314		7		false		            7          And is it your testimony -- I believe it's your				false

		1365						LN		314		8		false		            8     testimony that due to Horse Heaven, somehow the				false

		1366						LN		314		9		false		            9     agricultural economy will wither, that farmers will let				false

		1367						LN		314		10		false		           10     the land go, all because of the construction of the				false

		1368						LN		314		11		false		           11     solar and wind projects.				false

		1369						LN		314		12		false		           12          Is that your testimony?				false

		1370						LN		314		13		false		           13  A  Can you reference where you're finding that at in my				false

		1371						LN		314		14		false		           14     testimony?				false

		1372						LN		314		15		false		           15  Q  Page 6.				false

		1373						LN		314		16		false		           16  A  And what line?				false

		1374						LN		314		17		false		           17  Q  I am not sure about that.				false

		1375						LN		314		18		false		           18                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  All right.				false

		1376						LN		314		19		false		           19     Yeah, could you scroll down, please.				false

		1377						LN		314		20		false		           20          Yeah, I'm going to come back to that.  I'm sorry,				false

		1378						LN		314		21		false		           21     Ms. Cooke.  I want to come back to that, so if you				false

		1379						LN		314		22		false		           22     could just hold on that, we're going to -- we're going				false

		1380						LN		314		23		false		           23     to revisit that in a minute.				false

		1381						LN		314		24		false		           24  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Is it your opinion that this 1				false

		1382						LN		314		25		false		           25     percent of Benton County farms proposed for wind and				false

		1383						PG		315		0		false		page 315				false

		1384						LN		315		1		false		            1     solar development will actually destroy agricultural				false

		1385						LN		315		2		false		            2     support services?				false

		1386						LN		315		3		false		            3  A  Can you define what you mean by destroy agricultural				false

		1387						LN		315		4		false		            4     support systems?				false

		1388						LN		315		5		false		            5  Q  Well, agricultural support industries, agricultural				false

		1389						LN		315		6		false		            6     support systems.  Things like selling fertilizer,				false

		1390						LN		315		7		false		            7     seeing things like selling equipment, tractors.				false

		1391						LN		315		8		false		            8     Agricultural support services, which you have -- have				false

		1392						LN		315		9		false		            9     provided testimony about.				false

		1393						LN		315		10		false		           10          Is it your opinion that this project, at 1 percent				false

		1394						LN		315		11		false		           11     or so of the local agricultural economy, will somehow				false

		1395						LN		315		12		false		           12     undermine those agricultural services?				false

		1396						LN		315		13		false		           13  A  Well, I'm not exactly qualified to speak to economic				false

		1397						LN		315		14		false		           14     development and farming practices such as that.  I do				false

		1398						LN		315		15		false		           15     believe that this project will impact those services.				false

		1399						LN		315		16		false		           16          Will it destroy or undermine?  Those are very				false

		1400						LN		315		17		false		           17     aggressive words, and I don't -- I think that's taking				false

		1401						LN		315		18		false		           18     it a little too brusque.  But I do believe it will have				false

		1402						LN		315		19		false		           19     impact to the support services of those types of				false

		1403						LN		315		20		false		           20     businesses that help the farmers out in that area.				false

		1404						LN		315		21		false		           21  Q  And do you deny that new revenues from the wind leases				false

		1405						LN		315		22		false		           22     will spur further investments by these landowners?				false

		1406						LN		315		23		false		           23  A  In what capacity are you speaking?				false

		1407						LN		315		24		false		           24  Q  Any capacity.				false

		1408						LN		315		25		false		           25          Will the new revenues for these landowners, with				false

		1409						PG		316		0		false		page 316				false

		1410						LN		316		1		false		            1     new generation of additional income, is it your opinion				false

		1411						LN		316		2		false		            2     that that -- that that will not spur further				false

		1412						LN		316		3		false		            3     investments?				false

		1413						LN		316		4		false		            4  A  Further investments into what?  Stocks or into their				false

		1414						LN		316		5		false		            5     land or what?				false

		1415						LN		316		6		false		            6  Q  Into their land.  Into their farming operations.				false

		1416						LN		316		7		false		            7     Into buying --				false

		1417						LN		316		8		false		            8  A  I -- I can't speak to what the farmers are --				false

		1418						LN		316		9		false		            9  Q  Excuse me.				false

		1419						LN		316		10		false		           10  A  -- going to do --				false

		1420						LN		316		11		false		           11  Q  Excuse me.				false

		1421						LN		316		12		false		           12  A  -- with their payouts.				false

		1422						LN		316		13		false		           13  Q  Excuse me.  We're not going to talk over each other.				false

		1423						LN		316		14		false		           14          Tractors, any equipment.				false

		1424						LN		316		15		false		           15  A  I can't --				false

		1425						LN		316		16		false		           16  Q  Go ahead.				false

		1426						LN		316		17		false		           17  A  -- speak to that.  I don't -- I don't know what the --				false

		1427						LN		316		18		false		           18     the personal financial agenda is for -- for the farmers				false

		1428						LN		316		19		false		           19     getting the payouts.				false

		1429						LN		316		20		false		           20  Q  All right.  Well, let's try this.				false

		1430						LN		316		21		false		           21          With lease revenues, do you deny that farmers will				false

		1431						LN		316		22		false		           22     not make additional investments in things like repair				false

		1432						LN		316		23		false		           23     and replacement of old equipment?				false

		1433						LN		316		24		false		           24  A  I would hope so.  But that's speculation on my part,				false

		1434						LN		316		25		false		           25     that I'm hoping that they will put the money back into				false

		1435						PG		317		0		false		page 317				false

		1436						LN		317		1		false		            1     the land and continue and improve their practices.  I				false

		1437						LN		317		2		false		            2     don't know that.  That's speculation on my part.				false

		1438						LN		317		3		false		            3  Q  Enhancement of crop -- of crop -- of protection of				false

		1439						LN		317		4		false		            4     crops?				false

		1440						LN		317		5		false		            5  A  Is that a question?				false

		1441						LN		317		6		false		            6  Q  Yes.				false

		1442						LN		317		7		false		            7  A  I don't understand the question.  Sorry.				false

		1443						LN		317		8		false		            8  Q  Purchase of more fertilizer?				false

		1444						LN		317		9		false		            9  A  Again, that's speculation.  I have no idea how the				false

		1445						LN		317		10		false		           10     farmers are going to spend their money, if they even				false

		1446						LN		317		11		false		           11     ferti- --				false

		1447						LN		317		12		false		           12  Q  So you don't --				false

		1448						LN		317		13		false		           13  A  -- if they fertilize.  I have no idea.				false

		1449						LN		317		14		false		           14  Q  So you don't think the lease revenues are going to spur				false

		1450						LN		317		15		false		           15     these kinds of investments?				false

		1451						LN		317		16		false		           16  A  I didn't say that.  I said it was speculation.  I don't				false

		1452						LN		317		17		false		           17     know how they're going to spend their money.  I would				false

		1453						LN		317		18		false		           18     hope so.  As a -- as a child of a farmer, yes, I would				false

		1454						LN		317		19		false		           19     hope so, but I can't say.				false

		1455						LN		317		20		false		           20  Q  So you don't know whether -- you speculate -- you can't				false

		1456						LN		317		21		false		           21     speculate.  I guess you can't guess that these				false

		1457						LN		317		22		false		           22     landowners, with their lease revenues, might invest in				false

		1458						LN		317		23		false		           23     additional technology, changes in farm practices,				false

		1459						LN		317		24		false		           24     beneficial tools in farming production.				false

		1460						LN		317		25		false		           25          As a farmer, as a child of farmers, do you believe				false

		1461						PG		318		0		false		page 318				false

		1462						LN		318		1		false		            1     that that actually won't happen, that those investments				false

		1463						LN		318		2		false		            2     actually won't be made in these farms --				false

		1464						LN		318		3		false		            3                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor.				false

		1465						LN		318		4		false		            4  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  -- as a consequence of lease				false

		1466						LN		318		5		false		            5     revenues?				false

		1467						LN		318		6		false		            6                        MR. HARPER:  I'm objecting at this				false

		1468						LN		318		7		false		            7     point, Your Honor.  This has gone on long enough.  This				false

		1469						LN		318		8		false		            8     seems to be repetitive, argumentative.  It's just				false

		1470						LN		318		9		false		            9     badgering the witness.  Mr. McMahan is testifying.				false

		1471						LN		318		10		false		           10     He's not examining at this stage.				false

		1472						LN		318		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, I have to				false

		1473						LN		318		12		false		           12     agree with Mr. Harper.  I think you've made your point.				false

		1474						LN		318		13		false		           13     It's becoming argumentative.				false

		1475						LN		318		14		false		           14                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  All right.				false

		1476						LN		318		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  So that on that basis,				false

		1477						LN		318		16		false		           16     it's sustained.				false

		1478						LN		318		17		false		           17                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  Thank you,				false

		1479						LN		318		18		false		           18     Your Honor.  I'll move on.				false

		1480						LN		318		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, if you				false

		1481						LN		318		20		false		           20     wanted to go back, if -- if it's still germane --				false

		1482						LN		318		21		false		           21                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.				false

		1483						LN		318		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to your inquiry,				false

		1484						LN		318		23		false		           23     the portion you were looking for about support starts				false

		1485						LN		318		24		false		           24     at the bottom of Page 6, Line 24, and continues to				false

		1486						LN		318		25		false		           25     approximately that level on Page 7.  Maybe you've				false

		1487						PG		319		0		false		page 319				false

		1488						LN		319		1		false		            1     already gone through it with your questions, but that				false

		1489						LN		319		2		false		            2     was, I think, what you were looking for.				false

		1490						LN		319		3		false		            3                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.				false

		1491						LN		319		4		false		            4                        MS. STAVITSKY:  You got to those				false

		1492						LN		319		5		false		            5     questions.				false

		1493						LN		319		6		false		            6                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  Yeah, I think I				false

		1494						LN		319		7		false		            7     did end up getting to those questions, Your Honor.				false

		1495						LN		319		8		false		            8     Thank you.				false

		1496						LN		319		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  What's				false

		1497						LN		319		10		false		           10     next?				false

		1498						LN		319		11		false		           11                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		1499						LN		319		12		false		           12  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Ms. Cooke, you provided testimony				false

		1500						LN		319		13		false		           13     about the potential loss of agricultural economy or				false

		1501						LN		319		14		false		           14     agricultural products.				false

		1502						LN		319		15		false		           15          And your testimony really only references dryland				false

		1503						LN		319		16		false		           16     wheat, doesn't it?				false

		1504						LN		319		17		false		           17  A  Dryland wheat and rangeland are the majority of what				false

		1505						LN		319		18		false		           18     this operation will be taking up.				false

		1506						LN		319		19		false		           19  Q  Yes.  Understood.				false

		1507						LN		319		20		false		           20          But you have test- -- your testimony indicates				false

		1508						LN		319		21		false		           21     that there are -- that -- you talk about -- we talked				false

		1509						LN		319		22		false		           22     in the testimony about -- about specialty crops and any				false

		1510						LN		319		23		false		           23     crops other than wheat.				false

		1511						LN		319		24		false		           24          Are you -- are you indicating that -- your				false

		1512						LN		319		25		false		           25     testimony seems to only be dealing with dryland wheat,				false

		1513						PG		320		0		false		page 320				false

		1514						LN		320		1		false		            1     right?				false

		1515						LN		320		2		false		            2  A  I try to narrow the focus to the -- the agricultural				false

		1516						LN		320		3		false		            3     production which is occurring on the lands that are				false

		1517						LN		320		4		false		            4     slated for this development.  So I did not speak to				false

		1518						LN		320		5		false		            5     other types of agriculture.				false

		1519						LN		320		6		false		            6  Q  But in representing 1 percent of supposed destruction				false

		1520						LN		320		7		false		            7     of the -- of the agricultural economy, you don't				false

		1521						LN		320		8		false		            8     account for any specialty crops other than wheat,				false

		1522						LN		320		9		false		            9     right?				false

		1523						LN		320		10		false		           10  A  Again, I'm only speaking to wheat and rangeland,				false

		1524						LN		320		11		false		           11     because those are the two primary operations that will				false

		1525						LN		320		12		false		           12     be impacted by this, because of that -- of the				false

		1526						LN		320		13		false		           13     footprint of it.  If you'd like me to speak to other				false

		1527						LN		320		14		false		           14     agricultural in the greater Horse Heaven Hills, I'd be				false

		1528						LN		320		15		false		           15     happy to, if you have a question.				false

		1529						LN		320		16		false		           16  Q  Well, the question is this:  Your -- or the point is				false

		1530						LN		320		17		false		           17     this.  The question is this:				false

		1531						LN		320		18		false		           18          Your testimony talks a lot about the destruction				false

		1532						LN		320		19		false		           19     of the farming economy because of the loss of dryland				false

		1533						LN		320		20		false		           20     wheat and this 1 percent of the agricultural economy or				false

		1534						LN		320		21		false		           21     the agricultural products.				false

		1535						LN		320		22		false		           22          That is your testimony, right?  Focusing on that 1				false

		1536						LN		320		23		false		           23     percent which is dryland wheat.				false

		1537						LN		320		24		false		           24  A  The -- I'm -- yes, my testimony does speak to the				false

		1538						LN		320		25		false		           25     agricultural economy and how this project would impact				false

		1539						PG		321		0		false		page 321				false

		1540						LN		321		1		false		            1     that.  Because the scope of the project is within the				false

		1541						LN		321		2		false		            2     dryland area of Benton County.				false

		1542						LN		321		3		false		            3  Q  Yet isn't it true that Benton County grows many				false

		1543						LN		321		4		false		            4     crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples, hops -- that				false

		1544						LN		321		5		false		            5     have a much, much higher value than dryland wheat?				false

		1545						LN		321		6		false		            6  A  The agricultural economics isn't at debate here for the				false

		1546						LN		321		7		false		            7     conditional use criteria, sir.				false

		1547						LN		321		8		false		            8  Q  Well, actually, I -- I disagree with that.  I'm trying				false

		1548						LN		321		9		false		            9     to understand your testimony, which infers that this				false

		1549						LN		321		10		false		           10     project is going to have a material impact on the				false

		1550						LN		321		11		false		           11     agricultural economy of Benton County.				false

		1551						LN		321		12		false		           12          Yet your testimony does not account for products				false

		1552						LN		321		13		false		           13     other than wheat.  Is that true?				false

		1553						LN		321		14		false		           14  A  Yes.  Well, wheat and rangeland, which would be cattle.				false

		1554						LN		321		15		false		           15  Q  Okay.  I think we can -- we can move on here.				false

		1555						LN		321		16		false		           16          Isn't it true -- and perhaps you can't answer this				false

		1556						LN		321		17		false		           17     question, but I'll try.				false

		1557						LN		321		18		false		           18          Isn't it true that dryland wheat is really a very				false

		1558						LN		321		19		false		           19     small fraction of the value and use of these lands when				false

		1559						LN		321		20		false		           20     you account for all of the other agricultural products,				false

		1560						LN		321		21		false		           21     including specialty products and specialty crops which				false

		1561						LN		321		22		false		           22     I just described?				false

		1562						LN		321		23		false		           23  A  I don't think that we're comparing the agricultural				false

		1563						LN		321		24		false		           24     economy as a whole of Benton County here, which				false

		1564						LN		321		25		false		           25     surprises me especially as your expert witness				false

		1565						PG		322		0		false		page 322				false

		1566						LN		322		1		false		            1     Mr. Wiley, that's his bread and butter.  That's his				false

		1567						LN		322		2		false		            2     family's income, and you're demeaning their -- the				false

		1568						LN		322		3		false		            3     value of their products that they're bringing to the				false

		1569						LN		322		4		false		            4     county.  I find that --				false

		1570						LN		322		5		false		            5  Q  No, I'm not demeaning Mr. Wiley at all, nor am I				false

		1571						LN		322		6		false		            6     demeaning you, ma'am.				false

		1572						LN		322		7		false		            7          What I am just indicating, that your testimony is				false

		1573						LN		322		8		false		            8     based on dryland wheat.  You characterized the				false

		1574						LN		322		9		false		            9     agricultural economy based on dryland wheat, correct?				false

		1575						LN		322		10		false		           10  A  It's one of the factors of Benton County's agricultural				false

		1576						LN		322		11		false		           11     economies, yes.				false

		1577						LN		322		12		false		           12  Q  And you -- your testimony does not account for all the				false

		1578						LN		322		13		false		           13     other crops, espec- -- particularly specialty crops or				false

		1579						LN		322		14		false		           14     high-value crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples				false

		1580						LN		322		15		false		           15     hops -- that have a much higher value than dryland				false

		1581						LN		322		16		false		           16     wheat, right?				false

		1582						LN		322		17		false		           17  A  Again, I don't see the relevance here to the scope of				false

		1583						LN		322		18		false		           18     this project.				false

		1584						LN		322		19		false		           19  Q  Ma'am, you are not -- excuse me.  You are not the				false

		1585						LN		322		20		false		           20     adjudicator of relevance or not.  I'm trying to get you				false

		1586						LN		322		21		false		           21     to answer a specific question and get your opinion.				false

		1587						LN		322		22		false		           22  A  Can you re-ask the question, then, in a way that --				false

		1588						LN		322		23		false		           23  Q  Yes.				false

		1589						LN		322		24		false		           24  A  -- I can understand?				false

		1590						LN		322		25		false		           25  Q  You -- your characterization of the agricultural				false

		1591						PG		323		0		false		page 323				false

		1592						LN		323		1		false		            1     economy in Benton County is limited in your testimony				false

		1593						LN		323		2		false		            2     to nothing but dryland wheat, correct?				false

		1594						LN		323		3		false		            3  A  I have spoken to the project area, which is dryland				false

		1595						LN		323		4		false		            4     wheat and rangeland, and how this project will affect				false

		1596						LN		323		5		false		            5     that and the overall economy of Benton County from an				false

		1597						LN		323		6		false		            6     agricultural standpoint.				false

		1598						LN		323		7		false		            7  Q  Right.				false

		1599						LN		323		8		false		            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		1600						LN		323		9		false		            9     Mr. McMahan, I think you made your point here.  I'm				false

		1601						LN		323		10		false		           10     going to let Ms. --				false

		1602						LN		323		11		false		           11                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.  Right, Your				false

		1603						LN		323		12		false		           12     Honor.				false

		1604						LN		323		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  If there --				false

		1605						LN		323		14		false		           14                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you.				false

		1606						LN		323		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  If there are other				false

		1607						LN		323		16		false		           16     crops of value that Mr. Harper wants to draw out on				false

		1608						LN		323		17		false		           17     redirect, we'll learn about that and find it in the				false

		1609						LN		323		18		false		           18     testimony at that point.				false

		1610						LN		323		19		false		           19          What else have you got?				false

		1611						LN		323		20		false		           20                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, I'm going				false

		1612						LN		323		21		false		           21     to interrupt now, if I may, because Mr. McMahan has				false

		1613						LN		323		22		false		           22     continued to talk over Ms. Cooke's answers.  I				false

		1614						LN		323		23		false		           23     understand that occasionally Ms. Cooke anticipates his				false

		1615						LN		323		24		false		           24     question, but it's particularly important that the				false

		1616						LN		323		25		false		           25     Council hear her complete thought before Mr. McMahan				false

		1617						PG		324		0		false		page 324				false

		1618						LN		324		1		false		            1     moves on.				false

		1619						LN		324		2		false		            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I'll interject,				false

		1620						LN		324		3		false		            3     Mr. Harper and Ms. Cooke.  If it's a yes-or-no				false

		1621						LN		324		4		false		            4     question, it's a lot simpler if you just answer "yes"				false

		1622						LN		324		5		false		            5     or "no" up front.  And if it's necessary to elaborate,				false

		1623						LN		324		6		false		            6     you can, but you may want to wait for Mr. Harper to				false

		1624						LN		324		7		false		            7     redirect on the things he thinks the Council will find				false

		1625						LN		324		8		false		            8     most important.				false

		1626						LN		324		9		false		            9          Again, it's not the most natural thing in				false

		1627						LN		324		10		false		           10     conversation to just drop a "yes" or a "no," but for				false

		1628						LN		324		11		false		           11     purposes of cross-exam, it might speed things up a				false

		1629						LN		324		12		false		           12     little bit, and then we can see what else Mr. Harper				false

		1630						LN		324		13		false		           13     wants to make sure the Council knows.				false

		1631						LN		324		14		false		           14          So thank you for continuing to answer.				false

		1632						LN		324		15		false		           15          Mr. McMahan, back to you.				false

		1633						LN		324		16		false		           16                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.  And, again, I				false

		1634						LN		324		17		false		           17     apologize for talking over you, Ms. Cooke.  You and I				false

		1635						LN		324		18		false		           18     both seem to have a habit of doing that, and so I				false

		1636						LN		324		19		false		           19     will -- I have just one more question, and so hopefully				false

		1637						LN		324		20		false		           20     we can do that without talking over each other.				false

		1638						LN		324		21		false		           21  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  On Page 3, Line 22, of your				false

		1639						LN		324		22		false		           22     testimony, Ms. Cooke, you claim that the land will be				false

		1640						LN		324		23		false		           23     permanently taken out of production.				false

		1641						LN		324		24		false		           24          Are you aware that the land can and will be fully				false

		1642						LN		324		25		false		           25     restored after the life of the project?				false

		1643						PG		325		0		false		page 325				false

		1644						LN		325		1		false		            1  A  It's my professional opinion as a land-use planner that				false

		1645						LN		325		2		false		            2     the majority of the land will not go back to				false

		1646						LN		325		3		false		            3     agriculture after the lifetime of this project.				false

		1647						LN		325		4		false		            4  Q  So you dispute the findings throughout the Northwest,				false

		1648						LN		325		5		false		            5     in general, that -- and the understanding that, after				false

		1649						LN		325		6		false		            6     retirement, the land will be returned to agricultural				false
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		1892						LN		334		15		false		           15          Mr. Harper.				false

		1893						LN		334		16		false		           16                        MR. HARPER:  All right.  Thank you,				false

		1894						LN		334		17		false		           17     Your Honor.				false

		1895						LN		334		18		false		           18				false

		1896						LN		334		19		false		           19                       REDIRECT EXAMINATION				false

		1897						LN		334		20		false		           20     BY MR. HARPER:				false

		1898						LN		334		21		false		           21  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  How are you?				false

		1899						LN		334		22		false		           22  A  Good.  Thank you.				false

		1900						LN		334		23		false		           23  Q  All right.  Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan spent a fair amount				false

		1901						LN		334		24		false		           24     of time focusing his questioning on what he portrayed				false

		1902						LN		334		25		false		           25     as a -- as a, I guess, a farm economics dispute.				false

		1903						PG		335		0		false		page 335				false

		1904						LN		335		1		false		            1          And what I'd like you to do, Ms. Cooke, is -- if				false

		1905						LN		335		2		false		            2     you could -- just, could you -- could you -- could you				false

		1906						LN		335		3		false		            3     tell the Council about whether that in your view is				false

		1907						LN		335		4		false		            4     germane to the concept of long-range planning and how a				false

		1908						LN		335		5		false		            5     conditional use permit in this case may factor into the				false

		1909						LN		335		6		false		            6     County's long-range interests in its agricultural				false

		1910						LN		335		7		false		            7     lands?				false

		1911						LN		335		8		false		            8  A  The County does consider economics when it comes to				false

		1912						LN		335		9		false		            9     long-range planning in a small sense, but economic				false

		1913						LN		335		10		false		           10     development isn't necessarily our scope of or area of				false

		1914						LN		335		11		false		           11     expertise.  While our land-use practices, we try very				false

		1915						LN		335		12		false		           12     hard to ensure that they promote economic development				false

		1916						LN		335		13		false		           13     throughout the county, whatever that may be, we				false

		1917						LN		335		14		false		           14     certainly try not to have land-use long-range code				false

		1918						LN		335		15		false		           15     provisions such as our comprehensive plan that would go				false

		1919						LN		335		16		false		           16     against the benefit of economic development in the				false

		1920						LN		335		17		false		           17     county.				false

		1921						LN		335		18		false		           18          But when it comes to -- so that is within the				false

		1922						LN		335		19		false		           19     scope of long-range planning or, you know,				false

		1923						LN		335		20		false		           20     comprehensive long -- long-term planning.				false

		1924						LN		335		21		false		           21          Within the scope of a conditional use permit,				false

		1925						LN		335		22		false		           22     the -- it's a little bit different.  So while we have				false

		1926						LN		335		23		false		           23     our comprehensive plan designation for planning -- so				false

		1927						LN		335		24		false		           24     planning goes kind of top down -- we have this giant				false

		1928						LN		335		25		false		           25     20-year plan with all of our hopes and dreams and good				false

		1929						PG		336		0		false		page 336				false

		1930						LN		336		1		false		            1     visions for the future, how you do good practical				false

		1931						LN		336		2		false		            2     planning that will have a robust -- robust economy.				false

		1932						LN		336		3		false		            3          From there, you whittle down -- as I said earlier				false

		1933						LN		336		4		false		            4     in one of my other statements, from there you whittle				false

		1934						LN		336		5		false		            5     down into specifics, and get into the day-to-day				false

		1935						LN		336		6		false		            6     permits, which the conditional use permit would be one				false

		1936						LN		336		7		false		            7     of those, and it gets a lot more limited in its scope.				false

		1937						LN		336		8		false		            8          And, unfortunately, for a conditional use permit,				false

		1938						LN		336		9		false		            9     we take out the economic gain or the opportunity to a				false

		1939						LN		336		10		false		           10     certain demographic of people or that sort of specifics				false

		1940						LN		336		11		false		           11     from our evaluation, and we just look at our set of				false

		1941						LN		336		12		false		           12     criteria, which doesn't include that economic gain or				false

		1942						LN		336		13		false		           13     benefit to a small group of citizens.				false

		1943						LN		336		14		false		           14          And as I said earlier, it's a really tough				false

		1944						LN		336		15		false		           15     conversation to have, because somebody's coming to you,				false

		1945						LN		336		16		false		           16     wanting to develop their land, and you know from a				false

		1946						LN		336		17		false		           17     human level that they will have economic gains from				false

		1947						LN		336		18		false		           18     this.  But from a regulation standpoint -- and,				false

		1948						LN		336		19		false		           19     honestly, that's what we are; we're regulators of the				false

		1949						LN		336		20		false		           20     state statutes -- we can't allow it.				false

		1950						LN		336		21		false		           21          And so our -- our limitations, you know, prevent				false

		1951						LN		336		22		false		           22     us from doing that.  Even though it makes sense from a				false

		1952						LN		336		23		false		           23     human standpoint, professionally it's just not a				false

		1953						LN		336		24		false		           24     factor, unfortunately.  And -- and, you know, it's --				false

		1954						LN		336		25		false		           25     it's hard.  As a professional, it's really hard.				false

		1955						PG		337		0		false		page 337				false

		1956						LN		337		1		false		            1     Because you understand that there's going to be				false

		1957						LN		337		2		false		            2     economic impacts to a group of people if -- if a use is				false

		1958						LN		337		3		false		            3     denied or not allowed or not permitted, you know.				false

		1959						LN		337		4		false		            4          And personally, the Wileys are my family.  They're				false

		1960						LN		337		5		false		            5     my cousins.  So do I want them to have economic gain?				false

		1961						LN		337		6		false		            6     Absolutely I do.  But professionally, this isn't an				false

		1962						LN		337		7		false		            7     allowed use.  This isn't a permitted use.  It doesn't				false

		1963						LN		337		8		false		            8     further the protection of agricultural lands.  So				false

		1964						LN		337		9		false		            9     professionally, I have to say no.				false

		1965						LN		337		10		false		           10  Q  Ms. Cooke, is there a sense in which your permitting				false

		1966						LN		337		11		false		           11     decision-making or your -- your -- your testimony in				false

		1967						LN		337		12		false		           12     this case -- because it is certainly correct you're not				false

		1968						LN		337		13		false		           13     deciding the outcome of the CUP.				false

		1969						LN		337		14		false		           14          But is there a sense in which your -- your -- your				false

		1970						LN		337		15		false		           15     permitting analysis is intended to further and help				false

		1971						LN		337		16		false		           16     facilitate longer-range planning goals?				false

		1972						LN		337		17		false		           17          Are those in harmony in some sense?				false

		1973						LN		337		18		false		           18  A  They are, on a -- on a kind of a 3,000-foot level, I				false

		1974						LN		337		19		false		           19     would say.  Although one permitted use may be denied or				false

		1975						LN		337		20		false		           20     isn't permissible, it doesn't take away from the				false

		1976						LN		337		21		false		           21     objectives of the allow- -- the allowable uses in a				false

		1977						LN		337		22		false		           22     zone, which then further the goals and the policies				false

		1978						LN		337		23		false		           23     that we in the state have for each one of our areas.				false

		1979						LN		337		24		false		           24          So let's say a oil refinery isn't allowed in the				false

		1980						LN		337		25		false		           25     agricultural zone, since we heard that yesterday.  That				false

		1981						PG		338		0		false		page 338				false

		1982						LN		338		1		false		            1     may not -- that may not improve the economy of Benton				false

		1983						LN		338		2		false		            2     County, but it is going to keep farmers and the				false

		1984						LN		338		3		false		            3     agricultural zone -- it's going to allow them to				false

		1985						LN		338		4		false		            4     continue to have the ability to implement their own				false

		1986						LN		338		5		false		            5     economy.				false

		1987						LN		338		6		false		            6          And so the allowable uses that we have in our				false

		1988						LN		338		7		false		            7     zoning designation further that economy.  It's just				false

		1989						LN		338		8		false		            8     kind of a narrow scope, unfortunately.				false

		1990						LN		338		9		false		            9  Q  Is it -- is it fair to say, Ms. Cooke, that -- that a				false

		1991						LN		338		10		false		           10     significant portion of your prefiled testimony is				false

		1992						LN		338		11		false		           11     intended to draw the attention of the Council to the				false

		1993						LN		338		12		false		           12     long duration of the Horse Heaven wind farm facility?				false

		1994						LN		338		13		false		           13  A  Yeah, I would say so.  I think a lot of people are				false

		1995						LN		338		14		false		           14     looking at this project within a limited scope, you				false

		1996						LN		338		15		false		           15     know, whether it's 30 years or a lifetime.  And from				false

		1997						LN		338		16		false		           16     planning, we try to look much further out.				false

		1998						LN		338		17		false		           17          And for us, we only have a limited area of				false

		1999						LN		338		18		false		           18     agriculture.  We're not making new agricultural lands.				false

		2000						LN		338		19		false		           19     And so that protection is key.				false

		2001						LN		338		20		false		           20          And it's not just protecting it for 10 or 20 years				false

		2002						LN		338		21		false		           21     or 30 years, or however long the lease is.  I -- I know				false

		2003						LN		338		22		false		           22     from practice that as soon as a use is established, it				false

		2004						LN		338		23		false		           23     generally is there in perpetuity.  It doesn't				false

		2005						LN		338		24		false		           24     necessarily go away.  It definitely shifts the				false

		2006						LN		338		25		false		           25     landscape and -- and what goes on there in the future				false

		2007						PG		339		0		false		page 339				false

		2008						LN		339		1		false		            1     long after I'm gone.				false

		2009						LN		339		2		false		            2          And so these are things that we consider as				false

		2010						LN		339		3		false		            3     land-use planners.				false

		2011						LN		339		4		false		            4  Q  Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan asked you a question that I				false

		2012						LN		339		5		false		            5     objected to as lacking foundation.  He asked you about				false

		2013						LN		339		6		false		            6     other examples of restoration after retirement of a --				false

		2014						LN		339		7		false		            7     of a -- term a similar type of project.  I don't know				false

		2015						LN		339		8		false		            8     quite what he was trying to draw to there.				false

		2016						LN		339		9		false		            9          But are you aware of any example -- whether it's a				false

		2017						LN		339		10		false		           10     wind farm project or any other example -- of proven,				false

		2018						LN		339		11		false		           11     demonstrable restoration after compaction of soil,				false

		2019						LN		339		12		false		           12     after exporting of soil, after importing of soil,				false

		2020						LN		339		13		false		           13     alterations of the landscape, are you aware of any				false

		2021						LN		339		14		false		           14     area-wide soil rehabilitation effort that would be				false

		2022						LN		339		15		false		           15     comparable to what Horse Heaven wind farm portrays in				false

		2023						LN		339		16		false		           16     its ASC here?				false

		2024						LN		339		17		false		           17  A  I'm not aware of that.  I'm not aware of any projects				false

		2025						LN		339		18		false		           18     that have amended the project boundaries or the				false

		2026						LN		339		19		false		           19     footprint for reintroduction.				false

		2027						LN		339		20		false		           20          And one example that, you know, from -- a small				false

		2028						LN		339		21		false		           21     example that I can give off the top of my head is CRP				false

		2029						LN		339		22		false		           22     ground.  So Conservation Reserve Program has fallow				false

		2030						LN		339		23		false		           23     areas of wheat.  And you -- I drive home to visit my				false

		2031						LN		339		24		false		           24     family up on Horse Heaven, and you still see these				false

		2032						LN		339		25		false		           25     wheat fields that aren't in production.  And, you know,				false

		2033						PG		340		0		false		page 340				false

		2034						LN		340		1		false		            1     that was supposed to be kind of a short-term program				false

		2035						LN		340		2		false		            2     from the federal government, and they're still laying				false

		2036						LN		340		3		false		            3     fallow.  And that's not necessarily an intense use				false

		2037						LN		340		4		false		            4     which stopped farming for a short period of time.				false

		2038						LN		340		5		false		            5          Larger impacts, such as solar project, I don't				false

		2039						LN		340		6		false		            6     think people realize how critical that microclimate is				false

		2040						LN		340		7		false		            7     and how sensitive the microclimate of the shrub-steppe				false

		2041						LN		340		8		false		            8     is.  And those solar panels are going to devastate				false

		2042						LN		340		9		false		            9     that.				false

		2043						LN		340		10		false		           10          So we're not just talking about can you put it				false

		2044						LN		340		11		false		           11     back into dryland wheat.  We're talking about can				false

		2045						LN		340		12		false		           12     you -- can you grow shrub-steppe back under those solar				false

		2046						LN		340		13		false		           13     panels; can you grow those native plants back there				false

		2047						LN		340		14		false		           14     that are sensitive and rare species.				false

		2048						LN		340		15		false		           15          I don't believe you can after it's been shaded for				false

		2049						LN		340		16		false		           16     30 years.  It's going to completely change that				false

		2050						LN		340		17		false		           17     microclimate.  And I don't know of any conservation				false

		2051						LN		340		18		false		           18     practices that has successfully done that on, you know,				false

		2052						LN		340		19		false		           19     thousands and thousands of acres.				false

		2053						LN		340		20		false		           20  Q  Does the ASC and the supporting materials that you've				false

		2054						LN		340		21		false		           21     had a chance to review in the SEPA documents, does it				false

		2055						LN		340		22		false		           22     adequately engage with this -- this topic, in your				false

		2056						LN		340		23		false		           23     opinion?				false

		2057						LN		340		24		false		           24  A  I don't believe it does.				false

		2058						LN		340		25		false		           25  Q  Ms. Cooke, do you know what the useful operating life				false

		2059						PG		341		0		false		page 341				false

		2060						LN		341		1		false		            1     of the Horse Heaven wind farm project is?				false

		2061						LN		341		2		false		            2  A  I don't know for sure, but I believe it's 30 years.				false

		2062						LN		341		3		false		            3  Q  Yeah, I think that's correct.				false

		2063						LN		341		4		false		            4          I guess the question is this, Ms. Cooke.				false

		2064						LN		341		5		false		            5          What will essentially happen if, at the end of the				false

		2065						LN		341		6		false		            6     30-year period, it proves to be infeasible or just				false

		2066						LN		341		7		false		            7     uneconomic to engage with this restoration effort to				false

		2067						LN		341		8		false		            8     return the soils to the kind of growing capacity that				false

		2068						LN		341		9		false		            9     they currently have?				false

		2069						LN		341		10		false		           10          Do you have any opinion on that?				false

		2070						LN		341		11		false		           11  A  Well, it's going to -- it's going to continue				false

		2071						LN		341		12		false		           12     fragmenting the landscape if they're not able to				false

		2072						LN		341		13		false		           13     restore it.  And, you know, as I said in my testimony,				false

		2073						LN		341		14		false		           14     if that's the case, I believe, then, that it will lead				false

		2074						LN		341		15		false		           15     to other uses.				false

		2075						LN		341		16		false		           16          So what typically happens in land-use planning is,				false

		2076						LN		341		17		false		           17     let's say for some reason a use isn't allowed or it was				false

		2077						LN		341		18		false		           18     what we call grandfathered in and today it's not				false

		2078						LN		341		19		false		           19     allowed.  Well, it's been there forever, so I should be				false

		2079						LN		341		20		false		           20     able to do this thing.				false

		2080						LN		341		21		false		           21          And so if we have an industry scale or an				false

		2081						LN		341		22		false		           22     industrial-type use out in an agricultural zone and				false

		2082						LN		341		23		false		           23     that use ends its life cycle or goes away, but maybe				false

		2083						LN		341		24		false		           24     the infrastructure is there or something of that				false

		2084						LN		341		25		false		           25     nature, we'll see inquiries of more industrial uses				false

		2085						PG		342		0		false		page 342				false

		2086						LN		342		1		false		            1     come in, say, Yeah, well, but for the last 30 years,				false

		2087						LN		342		2		false		            2     there's been a wind turbine here, so of course I should				false

		2088						LN		342		3		false		            3     have a communication facility, or of course I should				false

		2089						LN		342		4		false		            4     have, you know, a data server farm.  It -- it won't be				false

		2090						LN		342		5		false		            5     any more intense than what was there previously.				false

		2091						LN		342		6		false		            6          And that's a -- that's a hard argument from our				false

		2092						LN		342		7		false		            7     standpoint to make.  That's typically when we see a lot				false

		2093						LN		342		8		false		            8     of petitions for rezoning, reclassification, when you				false

		2094						LN		342		9		false		            9     have that legacy of fragmentation in a particular zone.				false

		2095						LN		342		10		false		           10  Q  Is it a concern of the County, Ms. Cooke, that in the				false

		2096						LN		342		11		false		           11     same manner that Mr. McMahan has tried to portray the				false

		2097						LN		342		12		false		           12     Scout facility as a natural extension of the Nine				false

		2098						LN		342		13		false		           13     Canyon project, that subsequent projects will be viewed				false

		2099						LN		342		14		false		           14     or sought in relationship to the Horse Heaven wind farm				false

		2100						LN		342		15		false		           15     should it be approved?				false

		2101						LN		342		16		false		           16  A  Yeah, I think, you know, in our layman's terms -- and				false

		2102						LN		342		17		false		           17     I'm sorry, but in our -- in our terms, we say				false

		2103						LN		342		18		false		           18     essentially we're opening a can of worms.  If you --				false

		2104						LN		342		19		false		           19     you know, and Nine Canyon is a really good example of				false

		2105						LN		342		20		false		           20     that.				false

		2106						LN		342		21		false		           21          So Nine Canyon was approved by the Board of				false

		2107						LN		342		22		false		           22     Adjustment, which is a citizen panel who may not be				false

		2108						LN		342		23		false		           23     adequately sufficient to consider all of the facts and				false

		2109						LN		342		24		false		           24     the criteria and the issues at hand when it comes to a				false

		2110						LN		342		25		false		           25     large-scale project like this, what effect it will				false

		2111						PG		343		0		false		page 343				false

		2112						LN		343		1		false		            1     have.				false

		2113						LN		343		2		false		            2          And so because Nine Canyon was approved, unlike				false

		2114						LN		343		3		false		            3     the other -- we've had two other wind farms that				false

		2115						LN		343		4		false		            4     weren't approved, and they were larger and almost in				false

		2116						LN		343		5		false		            5     the same area.  It essentially opens the floodgates to				false

		2117						LN		343		6		false		            6     other inquiries.  And I feel like, if this is approved,				false

		2118						LN		343		7		false		            7     other developers will come in and say, Yeah, but				false

		2119						LN		343		8		false		            8     there's this large-scale project right here, so, you				false

		2120						LN		343		9		false		            9     know, it's not going to be that -- that much different				false

		2121						LN		343		10		false		           10     of an impact.				false

		2122						LN		343		11		false		           11          Unfortunately, when we're analyzing the CUP				false

		2123						LN		343		12		false		           12     criteria or other uses in a -- in a zone for				false

		2124						LN		343		13		false		           13     permitting, we don't look at what's historically been				false

		2125						LN		343		14		false		           14     done, especially if there were some errors in analyzing				false

		2126						LN		343		15		false		           15     them.				false

		2127						LN		343		16		false		           16          So we look at what's before us, not what was done				false

		2128						LN		343		17		false		           17     previously.  And so we would look at what's happening				false

		2129						LN		343		18		false		           18     now, not what happened then, and base it on today's				false

		2130						LN		343		19		false		           19     factors and today's criteria.				false

		2131						LN		343		20		false		           20          And, like you said, you know, I just feel like if				false

		2132						LN		343		21		false		           21     this is approved, then it's going to lead to more				false

		2133						LN		343		22		false		           22     fragmentation, more interest, more developers.  And				false

		2134						LN		343		23		false		           23     that really has me concerned, because our landscape is				false

		2135						LN		343		24		false		           24     rare and unique and beautiful.  And, you know, we as				false

		2136						LN		343		25		false		           25     farmers, speaking from a personal sense, try really				false

		2137						PG		344		0		false		page 344				false

		2138						LN		344		1		false		            1     hard to be good stewards of the land, both for				false

		2139						LN		344		2		false		            2     ourselves, our families, and our econ- -- our				false

		2140						LN		344		3		false		            3     community.				false

		2141						LN		344		4		false		            4  Q  I've tried to focus, Ms. Cooke, on factors that are				false

		2142						LN		344		5		false		            5     germane to the CUP criteria.  Some of those are very,				false

		2143						LN		344		6		false		            6     very specific.  Some of those have to do almost with				false

		2144						LN		344		7		false		            7     SEPA-level mitigation.  Others are more values-based				false

		2145						LN		344		8		false		            8     and more subjective.  I think you heard Mr. Wendt's				false

		2146						LN		344		9		false		            9     testimony on that.				false

		2147						LN		344		10		false		           10          Let me wrap up with this, Ms. Cooke.				false

		2148						LN		344		11		false		           11          Regardless of Mr. McMahan's discussion of economic				false

		2149						LN		344		12		false		           12     impacts, bringing it down to a farmer-by-farmer level,				false

		2150						LN		344		13		false		           13     speaking strictly now to CUP criteria contained in the				false

		2151						LN		344		14		false		           14     Benton County Code, are you aware of any other				false

		2152						LN		344		15		false		           15     conditional use permit that would have a comparable				false

		2153						LN		344		16		false		           16     effect to the 10 square miles of irrevocably lost or				false

		2154						LN		344		17		false		           17     permanently disturbed, if you will, footprint or the				false

		2155						LN		344		18		false		           18     110-square-mile area-wide, lease-wide boundary of this				false

		2156						LN		344		19		false		           19     project?				false

		2157						LN		344		20		false		           20          Is there anything else that you've seen as a CUP				false

		2158						LN		344		21		false		           21     approved by Benton County comparable to this?				false

		2159						LN		344		22		false		           22  A  I have -- I have not seen any CUP approved comparable				false

		2160						LN		344		23		false		           23     to this.  The only CUP that we've had in the last				false

		2161						LN		344		24		false		           24     eight, six years that wasn't an intense use was denied,				false

		2162						LN		344		25		false		           25     and that was for our gravel pit.				false

		2163						PG		345		0		false		page 345				false

		2164						LN		345		1		false		            1                        MR. HARPER:  Ms. Cooke, I will end				false

		2165						LN		345		2		false		            2     there.  Thank you very much.				false

		2166						LN		345		3		false		            3                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.				false

		2167						LN		345		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We've				false

		2168						LN		345		5		false		            5     completed the redirect.  We're going to do a little bit				false

		2169						LN		345		6		false		            6     of recross-exam, and then we'll come to the Chair and				false

		2170						LN		345		7		false		            7     the Council.				false

		2171						LN		345		8		false		            8          Mr. McMahan, anything further?				false

		2172						LN		345		9		false		            9                        THE WITNESS:  Your Honor, can I				false

		2173						LN		345		10		false		           10     request a short break?				false

		2174						LN		345		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Sure.  We have gone				false

		2175						LN		345		12		false		           12     for an hour.  So let's come back at 10:10, and we'll --				false

		2176						LN		345		13		false		           13                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.				false

		2177						LN		345		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- go from there.				false

		2178						LN		345		15		false		           15                               (Pause in proceedings from				false

		2179						LN		345		16		false		           16                                10:04 a.m. to 10:10 a.m.)				false

		2180						LN		345		17		false		           17				false

		2181						LN		345		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right, everybody.				false

		2182						LN		345		19		false		           19     Let's see if we can get back on screen here.  Court				false

		2183						LN		345		20		false		           20     reporter's ready to go.				false

		2184						LN		345		21		false		           21          Ms. Cooke, you ready?				false

		2185						LN		345		22		false		           22                        THE WITNESS:  I am.  Thank you for				false

		2186						LN		345		23		false		           23     the break.				false

		2187						LN		345		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  No worries.  I think				false

		2188						LN		345		25		false		           25     everybody probably it needed.  I appreciated the cue.				false

		2189						PG		346		0		false		page 346				false

		2190						LN		346		1		false		            1     There were some nodding heads when you asked.				false

		2191						LN		346		2		false		            2          Mr. McMahan, recross.				false

		2192						LN		346		3		false		            3                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		2193						LN		346		4		false		            4     One question.  I promise.				false

		2194						LN		346		5		false		            5				false

		2195						LN		346		6		false		            6                       RECROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		2196						LN		346		7		false		            7     BY MR. McMAHAN:				false

		2197						LN		346		8		false		            8  Q  Ms. Cooke, are you aware that the project will cause or				false

		2198						LN		346		9		false		            9     propose only one acre of shrub-steppe habitat impacted?				false

		2199						LN		346		10		false		           10  A  I don't know that for a fact, but if you're saying that				false

		2200						LN		346		11		false		           11     that's the impact, then okay.				false

		2201						LN		346		12		false		           12                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  That's my only				false

		2202						LN		346		13		false		           13     question.  Thank you.				false

		2203						LN		346		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, any				false

		2204						LN		346		15		false		           15     follow-up?				false

		2205						LN		346		16		false		           16				false

		2206						LN		346		17		false		           17                       RECROSS-EXAMINATION				false

		2207						LN		346		18		false		           18     BY MR. ARAMBURU:				false

		2208						LN		346		19		false		           19  Q  Ms. Cooke, during your testimony, you expressed some				false

		2209						LN		346		20		false		           20     concerns about future development following the				false

		2210						LN		346		21		false		           21     cessation of the wind and solar aspects of this				false

		2211						LN		346		22		false		           22     project.				false

		2212						LN		346		23		false		           23          Do you remember that?				false

		2213						LN		346		24		false		           24  A  Yes.				false

		2214						LN		346		25		false		           25  Q  And is that a factor that's taken up during SEPA				false

		2215						PG		347		0		false		page 347				false

		2216						LN		347		1		false		            1     review?				false

		2217						LN		347		2		false		            2                        MR. McMAHAN:  Your Honor, if you				false

		2218						LN		347		3		false		            3     don't mind, I would object to this.  This -- if we're				false

		2219						LN		347		4		false		            4     following the scope of the -- the direct and				false

		2220						LN		347		5		false		            5     cross-examination, this is a new area that				false

		2221						LN		347		6		false		            6     Mr. Aramburu's taking us into that has not been				false

		2222						LN		347		7		false		            7     previously covered and is not within the appropriate				false

		2223						LN		347		8		false		            8     scope right now.				false

		2224						LN		347		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Got it.				false

		2225						LN		347		10		false		           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I'm following up on				false

		2226						LN		347		11		false		           11     the witness's testimony, Your Honor.  That was her				false

		2227						LN		347		12		false		           12     testimony.				false

		2228						LN		347		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, we have				false

		2229						LN		347		14		false		           14     a little bit of time today, so I'm going to allow it.				false

		2230						LN		347		15		false		           15     But for future witnesses and we have a tight time				false

		2231						LN		347		16		false		           16     frame, we do have to, as Mr. McMahan said, keep				false

		2232						LN		347		17		false		           17     funneling down within the scope of things.				false

		2233						LN		347		18		false		           18          So go ahead and ask a question again, and then				false

		2234						LN		347		19		false		           19     Ms. Cooke can answer, and then we'll keep moving along.				false

		2235						LN		347		20		false		           20  Q  (By Mr. Aramburu)  Okay.  Ms. Cooke, I went back and				false

		2236						LN		347		21		false		           21     refreshed your recollection a bit about your testimony				false

		2237						LN		347		22		false		           22     concerning your concerns about future use once				false

		2238						LN		347		23		false		           23     particularly the solar aspects of this might be				false

		2239						LN		347		24		false		           24     removed.				false

		2240						LN		347		25		false		           25          And is -- is the question of whether the project				false

		2241						PG		348		0		false		page 348				false

		2242						LN		348		1		false		            1     would create a precedent for further actions, is that a				false

		2243						LN		348		2		false		            2     matter that's covered by SEPA review?				false

		2244						LN		348		3		false		            3  A  I am unsure.  I don't know that a SEPA review would				false

		2245						LN		348		4		false		            4     speak directly to that or setting a precedent for				false

		2246						LN		348		5		false		            5     something, but it -- a SEPA review would definitely				false

		2247						LN		348		6		false		            6     review and comment on the loss of habitat, the impacts				false

		2248						LN		348		7		false		            7     to, or I would hope that it would.  You know, what the				false

		2249						LN		348		8		false		            8     ramifications would be both short-term and long-term,				false

		2250						LN		348		9		false		            9     which then may set a precedent later in the future.				false

		2251						LN		348		10		false		           10  Q  And is it the case that no final action is taken by				false

		2252						LN		348		11		false		           11     Benton County on proposals until a final environmental				false

		2253						LN		348		12		false		           12     impact statement is prepared?				false

		2254						LN		348		13		false		           13  A  On conditional use permits, that's -- that's correct.				false

		2255						LN		348		14		false		           14     So typically for conditional use permits, we have				false

		2256						LN		348		15		false		           15     concurrent applications.  We have a conditional use				false

		2257						LN		348		16		false		           16     permit application, and we have a SEPA application or a				false

		2258						LN		348		17		false		           17     checklist.  And those run concurrently.  However, the				false

		2259						LN		348		18		false		           18     conditional use permit doesn't go to the hearing				false

		2260						LN		348		19		false		           19     examiner until the SEPA has -- determination has been				false

		2261						LN		348		20		false		           20     made.				false

		2262						LN		348		21		false		           21  Q  And a final impact statement prepared; is that correct?				false

		2263						LN		348		22		false		           22  A  I've never dealt with one of those, but, yes, if it got				false

		2264						LN		348		23		false		           23     to that point, I assume we would need an FEIS before we				false

		2265						LN		348		24		false		           24     come to a hearing for a CUP.				false

		2266						LN		348		25		false		           25  Q  And -- and under the -- the Benton County SEPA				false

		2267						PG		349		0		false		page 349				false

		2268						LN		349		1		false		            1     ordinance, is it the case that the adequacy of a final				false

		2269						LN		349		2		false		            2     environmental impact statement is subject to appeal?				false

		2270						LN		349		3		false		            3  A  Yes.				false

		2271						LN		349		4		false		            4  Q  Okay.  And -- and --				false

		2272						LN		349		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, I just				false

		2273						LN		349		6		false		            6     want to -- I just want to interrupt you here.  SEPA's				false

		2274						LN		349		7		false		            7     not on trial in the adjudication.  It's not appropriate				false

		2275						LN		349		8		false		            8     to go down that road.				false

		2276						LN		349		9		false		            9          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?				false

		2277						LN		349		10		false		           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Mr. Examiner, I'm				false

		2278						LN		349		11		false		           11     asking what the Benton County procedures are.  I				false

		2279						LN		349		12		false		           12     understand that the -- that a ruling has been made by				false

		2280						LN		349		13		false		           13     you, which we take great exception to, that SEPA will				false

		2281						LN		349		14		false		           14     be somehow excised from this process.  But I think I'm				false

		2282						LN		349		15		false		           15     entitled to ask questions about the Benton County				false

		2283						LN		349		16		false		           16     procedures and what procedures would be followed in				false

		2284						LN		349		17		false		           17     Benton County.				false

		2285						LN		349		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not going to allow				false

		2286						LN		349		19		false		           19     it, Mr. Aramburu.  We already understand what the				false

		2287						LN		349		20		false		           20     Benton County procedures are for conditional use, and				false

		2288						LN		349		21		false		           21     we understand how the EFSEC procedures are in their				false

		2289						LN		349		22		false		           22     place.  We're applying those.  We're not applying				false

		2290						LN		349		23		false		           23     Benton County SEPA.  We're using state rules, and we're				false

		2291						LN		349		24		false		           24     having EFSEC as the lead agency.				false

		2292						LN		349		25		false		           25          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?				false

		2293						PG		350		0		false		page 350				false

		2294						LN		350		1		false		            1                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Witness has testified				false

		2295						LN		350		2		false		            2     that in -- in her analysis of the County's analysis of				false

		2296						LN		350		3		false		            3     conditional use permits, they also comply with SEPA.				false

		2297						LN		350		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  And so does EFSEC.				false

		2298						LN		350		5		false		            5     We're done -- we're done with this line of questioning,				false

		2299						LN		350		6		false		            6     Mr. Aramburu.  I'm going to take great exception if you				false

		2300						LN		350		7		false		            7     ask another SEPA question and ask our administrator to				false

		2301						LN		350		8		false		            8     mute your mike.				false

		2302						LN		350		9		false		            9          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?				false

		2303						LN		350		10		false		           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  You're going				false

		2304						LN		350		11		false		           11     to cut me off.  That's fine, Mr. Torem.				false

		2305						LN		350		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  I am.  If you don't				false

		2306						LN		350		13		false		           13     have any other non-SEPA-related questions, I'm going to				false

		2307						LN		350		14		false		           14     move on to the Yakama Nation.				false

		2308						LN		350		15		false		           15          Ms. Voelckers, any other follow-up?				false

		2309						LN		350		16		false		           16                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing from --				false

		2310						LN		350		17		false		           17     further from the Yakama Nation for Ms. Cooke.  Thank				false

		2311						LN		350		18		false		           18     you, Your Honor.				false

		2312						LN		350		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Chair				false

		2313						LN		350		20		false		           20     Drew, do you have any questions that you wanted to ask?				false

		2314						LN		350		21		false		           21                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  I do not.				false

		2315						LN		350		22		false		           22     Thank you.				false

		2316						LN		350		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  Council members, any				false

		2317						LN		350		24		false		           24     questions you wanted to ask?				false

		2318						LN		350		25		false		           25                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  This is Eli.				false

		2319						PG		351		0		false		page 351				false

		2320						LN		351		1		false		            1     I have some questions.				false

		2321						LN		351		2		false		            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right, Mr. Levitt.				false

		2322						LN		351		3		false		            3     If you'll introduce yourself to the witness so she				false

		2323						LN		351		4		false		            4     knows where you're from, and go ahead and ask your				false

		2324						LN		351		5		false		            5     questions.				false

		2325						LN		351		6		false		            6                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Hi,				false

		2326						LN		351		7		false		            7     Ms. Cooke.  My name is Eli Levitt.  I'm a section				false

		2327						LN		351		8		false		            8     manager at the Washington Department of Ecology, and				false

		2328						LN		351		9		false		            9     I'm Ecology's Council member for EFSEC.				false

		2329						LN		351		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  Hello.				false

		2330						LN		351		11		false		           11                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Just a --				false

		2331						LN		351		12		false		           12     just a moment.  I need to pull up my questions.				false

		2332						LN		351		13		false		           13          So do you or Mr. Wendt or your team do the GIS				false

		2333						LN		351		14		false		           14     analysis on land use on behalf of the County?  Land use				false

		2334						LN		351		15		false		           15     or zoning?				false

		2335						LN		351		16		false		           16                        THE WITNESS:  We used to.  However,				false

		2336						LN		351		17		false		           17     we established the GIS department, so now we work with				false

		2337						LN		351		18		false		           18     them to do our mapping.				false

		2338						LN		351		19		false		           19                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Do				false

		2339						LN		351		20		false		           20     you know, does anyone on that team kind of ground-truth				false

		2340						LN		351		21		false		           21     the maps by going out into the field ever?  You know,				false

		2341						LN		351		22		false		           22     to see, okay, this industrial land use borders this				false

		2342						LN		351		23		false		           23     agricultural use and, you know, try to get the lines as				false

		2343						LN		351		24		false		           24     correct as possible, so to speak?				false

		2344						LN		351		25		false		           25                        THE WITNESS:  Typically -- typically				false

		2345						PG		352		0		false		page 352				false

		2346						LN		352		1		false		            1     that falls on the planners as we do site visits and				false

		2347						LN		352		2		false		            2     work with landowners.  The planners will be the ones				false

		2348						LN		352		3		false		            3     that bring up to GIS any amendments needed if there's a				false

		2349						LN		352		4		false		            4     mapping error.				false

		2350						LN		352		5		false		            5          However, we as staff do not make any amendments or				false

		2351						LN		352		6		false		            6     mapping changes to our data layers, which we get from				false

		2352						LN		352		7		false		            7     other agencies.  So coming to mind, a pretty				false

		2353						LN		352		8		false		            8     contentious one that we have is wetlands.  And although				false

		2354						LN		352		9		false		            9     they may not be the most accurate, we're not able to				false

		2355						LN		352		10		false		           10     make amendments to those.  We send them to the				false

		2356						LN		352		11		false		           11     appropriate State agency to work with in determining				false

		2357						LN		352		12		false		           12     whether or not the wetland is actually present, as we				false

		2358						LN		352		13		false		           13     don't have the expertise to make those determinations.				false

		2359						LN		352		14		false		           14                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Got it.				false

		2360						LN		352		15		false		           15          Yesterday, Mr. Wendt's testimony implied that, you				false

		2361						LN		352		16		false		           16     know, between the 2018 comprehensive plan and the				false

		2362						LN		352		17		false		           17     previous one --				false

		2363						LN		352		18		false		           18          What was that?  Around 2006 or something.				false

		2364						LN		352		19		false		           19                        THE WITNESS:  Mm-hmm.				false

		2365						LN		352		20		false		           20                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  -- that the				false

		2366						LN		352		21		false		           21     acres of ag land jumped, increased by something like				false

		2367						LN		352		22		false		           22     4,000 acres.				false

		2368						LN		352		23		false		           23          Is it possible that 4- to 6,000 acres, that --				false

		2369						LN		352		24		false		           24     that sort of level of change, is within a margin of				false

		2370						LN		352		25		false		           25     error or due to the changes in the way, the				false

		2371						PG		353		0		false		page 353				false

		2372						LN		353		1		false		            1     methodology -- methodologies that the County GI mappers				false

		2373						LN		353		2		false		            2     use?				false

		2374						LN		353		3		false		            3  A  No, that change was -- came about from our ag lands				false

		2375						LN		353		4		false		            4     classification memo.  So we hired developers to analyze				false

		2376						LN		353		5		false		            5     a set of criteria, the eight criteria listed in the				false

		2377						LN		353		6		false		            6     WAC, and our -- and our current zoning.  And that net				false

		2378						LN		353		7		false		            7     gain came about from that classification memo.  So				false

		2379						LN		353		8		false		            8     after that data was provided to us, then we implemented				false

		2380						LN		353		9		false		            9     that into code by making those zone changes, which is				false

		2381						LN		353		10		false		           10     when we held the public hearings and that sort of				false

		2382						LN		353		11		false		           11     things.  We physically kind of added those areas into				false

		2383						LN		353		12		false		           12     our agricultural zoning designation as staff.				false

		2384						LN		353		13		false		           13                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  I				false

		2385						LN		353		14		false		           14     guess I just want to note, it -- it seems that your				false

		2386						LN		353		15		false		           15     testimony combines both personal and lived experience,				false

		2387						LN		353		16		false		           16     so I just wanted to ask one quick question about the				false

		2388						LN		353		17		false		           17     personal experience.				false

		2389						LN		353		18		false		           18                        THE WITNESS:  Sure.				false

		2390						LN		353		19		false		           19                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  And it's --				false

		2391						LN		353		20		false		           20     it's valuable for us to learn about, you know, how ag				false

		2392						LN		353		21		false		           21     works in your county for sure.  I visited multiple				false

		2393						LN		353		22		false		           22     farms in the Palouse in my past work at Ecology, so I				false

		2394						LN		353		23		false		           23     know a little bit about no-till and low-till dryland				false

		2395						LN		353		24		false		           24     wheat farming.				false

		2396						LN		353		25		false		           25          Do you -- does your -- you know, you mentioned				false

		2397						PG		354		0		false		page 354				false

		2398						LN		354		1		false		            1     your family members in your testimony.  Do any of them				false

		2399						LN		354		2		false		            2     or the other farmers you've spoken to about solar and				false

		2400						LN		354		3		false		            3     wind developments use low- or no-till wheat farming				false

		2401						LN		354		4		false		            4     techniques?				false

		2402						LN		354		5		false		            5                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  My cousins				false

		2403						LN		354		6		false		            6     actually use no-till wheat farming.  It seems to be a				false

		2404						LN		354		7		false		            7     general practice of the Horse Heaven wheat farmers.  I				false

		2405						LN		354		8		false		            8     don't know that -- I don't know their practices as				false

		2406						LN		354		9		false		            9     intimately as I do irrigated ag, grow crops, and animal				false

		2407						LN		354		10		false		           10     husbandry, which is more of my background.  But in				false

		2408						LN		354		11		false		           11     speaking with them both in Klickitat County and in				false

		2409						LN		354		12		false		           12     Benton County as dryland wheat farmers, they both use				false

		2410						LN		354		13		false		           13     no-till practices.				false

		2411						LN		354		14		false		           14          Our irrigated ag land, my cousin actually runs				false

		2412						LN		354		15		false		           15     soil regeneration practices on -- in the -- in the				false

		2413						LN		354		16		false		           16     critical areas using animal husbandry to regenerate				false

		2414						LN		354		17		false		           17     soil habitat and, you know, continue the economic				false

		2415						LN		354		18		false		           18     development of our farm in the areas that we don't				false

		2416						LN		354		19		false		           19     actually till up or irrigate or remove out of a				false

		2417						LN		354		20		false		           20     critical area.  And that's been extremely successful,				false

		2418						LN		354		21		false		           21     and he's actually taking it to defend in his thesis				false

		2419						LN		354		22		false		           22     this year as a senior at USC.				false

		2420						LN		354		23		false		           23                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Interesting.				false

		2421						LN		354		24		false		           24          Well, going back to the GIS questions:  Does the				false

		2422						LN		354		25		false		           25     County GIS -- do GIS maps or layers at the level where				false

		2423						PG		355		0		false		page 355				false

		2424						LN		355		1		false		            1     you can differentiate exactly where active dryland				false

		2425						LN		355		2		false		            2     wheat farming is occurring in the Horse Heaven Hills				false

		2426						LN		355		3		false		            3     area?				false

		2427						LN		355		4		false		            4                        THE WITNESS:  It's pretty appar- --				false

		2428						LN		355		5		false		            5     yeah, it's pretty apparent from aerial imagery.  You				false

		2429						LN		355		6		false		            6     have a swath of blond, which is the wheat field, and				false

		2430						LN		355		7		false		            7     then you have the clear cutoff line.				false

		2431						LN		355		8		false		            8          The other defining factor is that the wheat				false

		2432						LN		355		9		false		            9     farmers tend to use sections.  Because of the large				false

		2433						LN		355		10		false		           10     linear squares that they have up there, irrigated ag				false

		2434						LN		355		11		false		           11     tends to use crop circles.  And so just visually, you				false

		2435						LN		355		12		false		           12     can kind of see the difference between those two				false

		2436						LN		355		13		false		           13     visually from the aerial imagery.				false

		2437						LN		355		14		false		           14                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  So if you				false

		2438						LN		355		15		false		           15     asked your GIS mapping team, they could estimate the				false

		2439						LN		355		16		false		           16     number of acres in the Horse Heaven region that is in				false

		2440						LN		355		17		false		           17     active use right now for dryland wheat farming and/or				false

		2441						LN		355		18		false		           18     ranching?				false

		2442						LN		355		19		false		           19                        THE WITNESS:  Ranching is a lot -- a				false

		2443						LN		355		20		false		           20     heck of a lot tougher, just because you can't really				false

		2444						LN		355		21		false		           21     define where people run cattle on.  It looks like				false

		2445						LN		355		22		false		           22     open -- open habitat.  So you wouldn't know if it was				false

		2446						LN		355		23		false		           23     preserved or not.				false

		2447						LN		355		24		false		           24          But as far as dryland wheat goes, you could				false

		2448						LN		355		25		false		           25     probably slap a polygon and get a rough estimate,				false

		2449						PG		356		0		false		page 356				false

		2450						LN		356		1		false		            1     obviously not including physical barriers and canyons				false

		2451						LN		356		2		false		            2     and that sort of thing.				false

		2452						LN		356		3		false		            3                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  And				false

		2453						LN		356		4		false		            4     jumping around here a little bit.				false

		2454						LN		356		5		false		            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Excuse me, Mr. Levitt.				false

		2455						LN		356		6		false		            6          Ms. Cooke, you just called something slap a pole				false

		2456						LN		356		7		false		            7     up...?				false

		2457						LN		356		8		false		            8                        THE WITNESS:  Sorry.  Sorry.				false

		2458						LN		356		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  What was that?				false

		2459						LN		356		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  To draw a polygon				false

		2460						LN		356		11		false		           11     using GIS, you know, roughly.  Not necessarily				false

		2461						LN		356		12		false		           12     accurately as far as determining how many acres within				false

		2462						LN		356		13		false		           13     the Horse Heaven region would be dryland versus				false

		2463						LN		356		14		false		           14     irrigated.  But we do actually have that analysis for				false

		2464						LN		356		15		false		           15     zoning -- specific zoning designations.				false

		2465						LN		356		16		false		           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  That's fine.				false

		2466						LN		356		17		false		           17                        THE WITNESS:  We just don't have --				false

		2467						LN		356		18		false		           18     okay.				false

		2468						LN		356		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  I just -- I missed the				false

		2469						LN		356		20		false		           20     word "polygon" as you spoke quickly.				false

		2470						LN		356		21		false		           21                        THE WITNESS:  Oh.				false

		2471						LN		356		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  I wanted to make sure				false

		2472						LN		356		23		false		           23     it was accurate in the record.				false

		2473						LN		356		24		false		           24          Mr. Levitt, you had a follow-up.				false

		2474						LN		356		25		false		           25                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Yeah.  Just				false

		2475						PG		357		0		false		page 357				false

		2476						LN		357		1		false		            1     a few more.  Three more maybe.				false

		2477						LN		357		2		false		            2          To your knowledge, has the County, Energy				false

		2478						LN		357		3		false		            3     northwest, or any other entity that you partner with				false

		2479						LN		357		4		false		            4     surveyed and/or reviewed the productivity of farming or				false

		2480						LN		357		5		false		            5     any lessons learned in general, such as challenges and				false

		2481						LN		357		6		false		            6     opportunities, associated with the Nine Canyon wind				false

		2482						LN		357		7		false		            7     farm?				false

		2483						LN		357		8		false		            8                        THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge,				false

		2484						LN		357		9		false		            9     no.				false

		2485						LN		357		10		false		           10                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  So				false

		2486						LN		357		11		false		           11     the County and/or partners like Energy Northwest have				false

		2487						LN		357		12		false		           12     not, for example, asked the -- the wheat farmers in				false

		2488						LN		357		13		false		           13     that area how are things going since --				false

		2489						LN		357		14		false		           14                        THE WITNESS:  I'm not --				false

		2490						LN		357		15		false		           15                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  -- since the				false

		2491						LN		357		16		false		           16     wind farm was established?				false

		2492						LN		357		17		false		           17                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm not				false

		2493						LN		357		18		false		           18     aware of it, but Ener- -- I mean, Energy Northwest may				false

		2494						LN		357		19		false		           19     check in with their leaseholders.  I -- I just -- we,				false

		2495						LN		357		20		false		           20     the County, are a bit disattached from that narrative,				false

		2496						LN		357		21		false		           21     so we don't -- we don't hear things like that unless we				false

		2497						LN		357		22		false		           22     know someone personally involved or professionally				false

		2498						LN		357		23		false		           23     involved.				false

		2499						LN		357		24		false		           24                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.				false

		2500						LN		357		25		false		           25     Mr. Wendt didn't get into this yesterday, but I guess				false

		2501						PG		358		0		false		page 358				false

		2502						LN		358		1		false		            1     I'm curious.				false

		2503						LN		358		2		false		            2          You said something earlier about a board of				false

		2504						LN		358		3		false		            3     citizens approved the Nine Canyon winds -- wind farm in				false

		2505						LN		358		4		false		            4     some way.				false

		2506						LN		358		5		false		            5                        THE WITNESS:  Yes.				false

		2507						LN		358		6		false		            6                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Do you have				false

		2508						LN		358		7		false		            7     any -- yeah.  Okay.				false

		2509						LN		358		8		false		            8          Could you give me just a very brief background on				false

		2510						LN		358		9		false		            9     that, what that process was, from your perspective?				false

		2511						LN		358		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  So currently a				false

		2512						LN		358		11		false		           11     conditional use permit is heard by a hearings examiner,				false

		2513						LN		358		12		false		           12     which is a quasi-judicial, typically a lawyer that we,				false

		2514						LN		358		13		false		           13     the County, hire.  And she -- she's a woman for us.				false

		2515						LN		358		14		false		           14     She's an unbiased third party.  So she will hear these.				false

		2516						LN		358		15		false		           15     She's also professionally trained generally in land-use				false

		2517						LN		358		16		false		           16     law.  And so she will go through our code and all the				false

		2518						LN		358		17		false		           17     testimony she's received and the application and review				false

		2519						LN		358		18		false		           18     it for consistency and then will make her determination				false

		2520						LN		358		19		false		           19     as to whether something should be approved or denied.				false

		2521						LN		358		20		false		           20          The Nine Canyon project -- so prior to having a				false

		2522						LN		358		21		false		           21     hearing examiner set up, my understanding is -- 'cause				false

		2523						LN		358		22		false		           22     I wasn't here at the time -- the County used a Board of				false

		2524						LN		358		23		false		           23     Adjustment, and that was a panel of -- of citizens with				false

		2525						LN		358		24		false		           24     no particular training who would hear land-use matters				false

		2526						LN		358		25		false		           25     and make a decision based -- which was supposed to be				false

		2527						PG		359		0		false		page 359				false

		2528						LN		359		1		false		            1     based on the county code.				false

		2529						LN		359		2		false		            2          We have a similar board called the planning				false

		2530						LN		359		3		false		            3     commission, which I oversee, and I can tell you that				false

		2531						LN		359		4		false		            4     the difference in the hearings are night and day,				false

		2532						LN		359		5		false		            5     especially with consideration and the scope that needs				false

		2533						LN		359		6		false		            6     to be narrowed into what they're reviewing.  I feel				false

		2534						LN		359		7		false		            7     that hearings examiners are a lot more defensible and				false

		2535						LN		359		8		false		            8     accurate in their decisions.  The -- when you get				false

		2536						LN		359		9		false		            9     boards of private citizens making decisions on land				false

		2537						LN		359		10		false		           10     use, sometimes they're not always the best decisions or				false

		2538						LN		359		11		false		           11     the most appropriate decisions.				false

		2539						LN		359		12		false		           12                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Then				false

		2540						LN		359		13		false		           13     I'm curious, I guess, from just the County staff				false

		2541						LN		359		14		false		           14     perspective, so this includes you and Mr. Wendt and				false

		2542						LN		359		15		false		           15     other County officials.				false

		2543						LN		359		16		false		           16          Is there anything official that changed at the				false

		2544						LN		359		17		false		           17     County level, 2020 and prior -- you know, it could be a				false

		2545						LN		359		18		false		           18     commissioner's resolution; it could be changes to code;				false

		2546						LN		359		19		false		           19     it could be white papers, policies, procedures that				false

		2547						LN		359		20		false		           20     changed -- that would impact how you and your team				false

		2548						LN		359		21		false		           21     approach the consideration of proposed wind farms or --				false

		2549						LN		359		22		false		           22     or solar farms?				false

		2550						LN		359		23		false		           23                        THE WITNESS:  I don't believe so.  I				false

		2551						LN		359		24		false		           24     mean, we had a tax amendment which prohibited them				false

		2552						LN		359		25		false		           25     after 2020, but I don't -- I don't believe that there				false

		2553						PG		360		0		false		page 360				false

		2554						LN		360		1		false		            1     was any documentation or guidance of how to review a				false

		2555						LN		360		2		false		            2     wind proposal except for those that are listed in our				false

		2556						LN		360		3		false		            3     county code and our comprehensive plan, kind of those				false

		2557						LN		360		4		false		            4     guiding documents that we as staff would use.				false

		2558						LN		360		5		false		            5          But, again, you know, that's outside of our -- our				false

		2559						LN		360		6		false		            6     purview, because we don't get to make those decisions				false

		2560						LN		360		7		false		            7     on those types of permits.  It's the same as a dog				false

		2561						LN		360		8		false		            8     kennel.  I don't get to decide if somebody gets a dog				false

		2562						LN		360		9		false		            9     kennel or not.  That has to go through another				false

		2563						LN		360		10		false		           10     administrator as far as approval goes.				false

		2564						LN		360		11		false		           11                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Thank				false

		2565						LN		360		12		false		           12     you.  That's it.				false

		2566						LN		360		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do other Council				false

		2567						LN		360		14		false		           14     members have any questions for Ms. Cooke?				false

		2568						LN		360		15		false		           15          All right.  Hearing none.				false

		2569						LN		360		16		false		           16          I have one question, Ms. Cooke.				false

		2570						LN		360		17		false		           17          From Page 8 toward the end of your -- to the end				false

		2571						LN		360		18		false		           18     of your testimony, there -- the theme talks about				false

		2572						LN		360		19		false		           19     taking land out of production and not maintaining				false

		2573						LN		360		20		false		           20     agricultural viability for a variety of concerns				false

		2574						LN		360		21		false		           21     between family farms and succession.				false

		2575						LN		360		22		false		           22          When I got down to Page 10, your conclusion was it				false

		2576						LN		360		23		false		           23     won't be economically viable for farmers to return the				false

		2577						LN		360		24		false		           24     agricultural lands of long-term commercial significance				false

		2578						LN		360		25		false		           25     to agricultural use at the end of the Horse Heaven wind				false

		2579						PG		361		0		false		page 361				false

		2580						LN		361		1		false		            1     farm project life.				false

		2581						LN		361		2		false		            2          Have you thought about any ways that you could				false

		2582						LN		361		3		false		            3     assist from the County level or you might ask EFSEC or				false

		2583						LN		361		4		false		            4     the State government to assist, assuming this				false

		2584						LN		361		5		false		            5     recommendation is for approval and it's built?				false

		2585						LN		361		6		false		            6          With that scenario, have you thought of any ways				false

		2586						LN		361		7		false		            7     that would change your conclusion to make it easier for				false

		2587						LN		361		8		false		            8     things to go back to long-term commercial significance				false

		2588						LN		361		9		false		            9     and agricultural use?				false

		2589						LN		361		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  I have not.  But I can				false

		2590						LN		361		11		false		           11     see where you're going with it.  And honestly I would				false

		2591						LN		361		12		false		           12     hope that either the State or, you know, another body				false

		2592						LN		361		13		false		           13     would help incubate and, you know, generate these maybe				false

		2593						LN		361		14		false		           14     progressive ideas that would help them keep in the				false

		2594						LN		361		15		false		           15     scope of agricultural while maintaining a new source of				false

		2595						LN		361		16		false		           16     income.  I just personally don't -- I haven't done it				false

		2596						LN		361		17		false		           17     myself or thought about it or engaged with anybody on				false

		2597						LN		361		18		false		           18     that in the context of this project.				false

		2598						LN		361		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  One of the ideas that,				false

		2599						LN		361		20		false		           20     as I looked at your testimony last night, that came to				false

		2600						LN		361		21		false		           21     mind -- I don't know if the Council, it's within their				false

		2601						LN		361		22		false		           22     scope even -- is a question of you -- you made it seem				false

		2602						LN		361		23		false		           23     as though it's economically infeasible to reverse the				false

		2603						LN		361		24		false		           24     effects of the wind farm and get things done.  It would				false

		2604						LN		361		25		false		           25     be a financial issue for the landowners.				false

		2605						PG		362		0		false		page 362				false

		2606						LN		362		1		false		            1                        THE WITNESS:  Mm-hmm.				false

		2607						LN		362		2		false		            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I wondered if				false

		2608						LN		362		3		false		            3     there was any consideration in the County for financial				false

		2609						LN		362		4		false		            4     assistance to do that, and if so, some kind of				false

		2610						LN		362		5		false		            5     long-term trust that may be part of the conditioning				false

		2611						LN		362		6		false		            6     the Council considers.  Again, sometimes we're looking				false

		2612						LN		362		7		false		            7     at environmental impacts, not financial impacts, but				false

		2613						LN		362		8		false		            8     part of the decommissioning of the project usually				false

		2614						LN		362		9		false		            9     includes posting a bond and other fiscal things.				false

		2615						LN		362		10		false		           10          So I'm wondering again in the context of				false

		2616						LN		362		11		false		           11     decommissioning whether the County has thought about --				false

		2617						LN		362		12		false		           12     for this project, for Nine Canyon, for any of them that				false

		2618						LN		362		13		false		           13     might be a change to an agricultural area -- a trust				false

		2619						LN		362		14		false		           14     fund of some sort -- how it's funded, I don't know --				false

		2620						LN		362		15		false		           15     to make sure it's not a financial burden on the				false

		2621						LN		362		16		false		           16     individual, and the County, as you've said, can				false

		2622						LN		362		17		false		           17     maintain its regional and zoning area interests to get				false

		2623						LN		362		18		false		           18     things back and what the County's vision might be for				false

		2624						LN		362		19		false		           19     beyond our lifetimes.				false

		2625						LN		362		20		false		           20          Long question, but the concept, I hope, is clear.				false

		2626						LN		362		21		false		           21                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Yeah.  No, and				false

		2627						LN		362		22		false		           22     it's a great concept, and it's a great idea.  You know,				false

		2628						LN		362		23		false		           23     unfortunately, I just -- I don't know about the greater				false

		2629						LN		362		24		false		           24     County as a whole, but certainly for -- for my office,				false

		2630						LN		362		25		false		           25     you know, we just don't have the legal ability to do				false

		2631						PG		363		0		false		page 363				false

		2632						LN		363		1		false		            1     that or make those requirements on the applicant.  I				false

		2633						LN		363		2		false		            2     would feel like it's outside the burden of what, you				false

		2634						LN		363		3		false		            3     know, a conditional use permit or other, you know,				false

		2635						LN		363		4		false		            4     permit that we apply conditions of approval for.				false

		2636						LN		363		5		false		            5          It's kind of outside the scope of what we normally				false

		2637						LN		363		6		false		            6     would have done.  But that's not to say it's				false

		2638						LN		363		7		false		            7     impossible.  There -- you know, there's universities				false

		2639						LN		363		8		false		            8     and all sorts of interest groups that are continuing to				false

		2640						LN		363		9		false		            9     work on the promotion of agricultural, so maybe in the				false

		2641						LN		363		10		false		           10     future it would get -- it would get approved into state				false

		2642						LN		363		11		false		           11     law and we could have something set up like that for				false

		2643						LN		363		12		false		           12     them.  It's just not something that's available on the				false

		2644						LN		363		13		false		           13     table at the moment.				false

		2645						LN		363		14		false		           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, admittedly, I				false

		2646						LN		363		15		false		           15     don't understand all of the decommissioning scope of				false

		2647						LN		363		16		false		           16     what EFSEC can or can't do.  It's just an outside-the-				false

		2648						LN		363		17		false		           17     box thought on, as you say, the longer term and perhaps				false

		2649						LN		363		18		false		           18     more progressive thinking.  Thank you for the input on				false

		2650						LN		363		19		false		           19     that.				false

		2651						LN		363		20		false		           20          Mr. Harper, does that raise anything else -- this				false

		2652						LN		363		21		false		           21     is your witness -- before we...?				false

		2653						LN		363		22		false		           22                        MR. HARPER:  No.  No, it doesn't.				false

		2654						LN		363		23		false		           23     Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		2655						LN		363		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council				false

		2656						LN		363		25		false		           25     members, Chair Drew, any other questions?				false

		2657						PG		364		0		false		page 364				false

		2658						LN		364		1		false		            1          I see Eli Levitt has his hand up.				false

		2659						LN		364		2		false		            2                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Yeah.				false

		2660						LN		364		3		false		            3     Sorry.  I guess, just a quick follow-up question.				false

		2661						LN		364		4		false		            4          So you mentioned that there were two wind farms				false

		2662						LN		364		5		false		            5     proposed in the county in the past, and those were				false

		2663						LN		364		6		false		            6     denied in some fashion.				false

		2664						LN		364		7		false		            7          Can you talk about, just briefly, about how the				false

		2665						LN		364		8		false		            8     process worked for Nine Canyon versus those two other				false

		2666						LN		364		9		false		            9     farm -- wind farm proposals that you mentioned?				false

		2667						LN		364		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  I believe they were				false

		2668						LN		364		11		false		           11     all heard by the Board of Adjustment.  I'm not entirely				false

		2669						LN		364		12		false		           12     sure.  The other two are from 2001, and our records				false

		2670						LN		364		13		false		           13     from those days are quite sparse.  Recordkeeping wasn't				false

		2671						LN		364		14		false		           14     quite a priority then as it was now.				false

		2672						LN		364		15		false		           15          But my understanding is they were larger projects,				false

		2673						LN		364		16		false		           16     anywhere from 200 to 500 turbines that were roughly 250				false

		2674						LN		364		17		false		           17     to maybe 300-plus feet, covering 4,000-ish acres.				false

		2675						LN		364		18		false		           18          One was denied.  The other, we don't know -- it				false

		2676						LN		364		19		false		           19     was not approved.  I just don't know what the status is				false

		2677						LN		364		20		false		           20     because of recordkeeping purposes, but it was not				false

		2678						LN		364		21		false		           21     approved.  But those more than likely went in front of				false

		2679						LN		364		22		false		           22     the Board of Adjustments as well.				false

		2680						LN		364		23		false		           23                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  And to your				false

		2681						LN		364		24		false		           24     knowledge, for all three of those, Nine Canyon and the				false

		2682						LN		364		25		false		           25     two -- other two you mentioned, did the County ever				false

		2683						PG		365		0		false		page 365				false

		2684						LN		365		1		false		            1     discuss mitigation measures, that they would be				false

		2685						LN		365		2		false		            2     interested if -- if the projects went forward?  Does				false

		2686						LN		365		3		false		            3     that make sense?				false

		2687						LN		365		4		false		            4                        THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge.				false

		2688						LN		365		5		false		            5     I haven't done a deep dive into the Nine Canyon project				false

		2689						LN		365		6		false		            6     myself, so I don't know what was discussed.  I know it				false

		2690						LN		365		7		false		            7     was an MDNS, which professionally for me is an				false

		2691						LN		365		8		false		            8     interesting choice.  I feel like that's something I				false

		2692						LN		365		9		false		            9     wouldn't have made a determination on.				false

		2693						LN		365		10		false		           10          But one of the other projects actually had an EIS				false

		2694						LN		365		11		false		           11     request, and I don't know that it was ever seen				false

		2695						LN		365		12		false		           12     through, so my guess is, from that project, that one,				false

		2696						LN		365		13		false		           13     that had an EIS, it could have had mitigation measures				false

		2697						LN		365		14		false		           14     or, you know, spoken to that as part of that scope for				false

		2698						LN		365		15		false		           15     an EIS.				false

		2699						LN		365		16		false		           16                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Thank				false

		2700						LN		365		17		false		           17     you.				false

		2701						LN		365		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Lenny Young?				false

		2702						LN		365		19		false		           19                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Yeah.				false

		2703						LN		365		20		false		           20          Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Lenny Young.  I'm a				false

		2704						LN		365		21		false		           21     Department of Natural Resources representative to				false

		2705						LN		365		22		false		           22     EFSEC.  And quick follow-up to Mr. Levitt's question.				false

		2706						LN		365		23		false		           23          Could you -- do you know the name or some type of				false

		2707						LN		365		24		false		           24     a reference if we wanted to look more into those two				false

		2708						LN		365		25		false		           25     other projects that were denied?  Is there some kind of				false

		2709						PG		366		0		false		page 366				false

		2710						LN		366		1		false		            1     a name or identifier we could use to -- to find				false

		2711						LN		366		2		false		            2     information on those?				false

		2712						LN		366		3		false		            3                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah, the one was,				false

		2713						LN		366		4		false		            4     ironically, Horse Heaven Wind.  The other was Maiden				false

		2714						LN		366		5		false		            5     Wind.				false

		2715						LN		366		6		false		            6                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Thank you.				false

		2716						LN		366		7		false		            7                        THE WITNESS:  M-a-i-d-e-n.				false

		2717						LN		366		8		false		            8                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Got it.				false

		2718						LN		366		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Any others?				false

		2719						LN		366		10		false		           10                        THE WITNESS:  Those are the only two				false

		2720						LN		366		11		false		           11     besides Nine Canyon that I'm aware of.				false

		2721						LN		366		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Oh.  I'm sorry.  Any				false

		2722						LN		366		13		false		           13     other questions --				false

		2723						LN		366		14		false		           14                        THE WITNESS:  Oh.  Sorry.				false

		2724						LN		366		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- from Council				false

		2725						LN		366		16		false		           16     members?				false

		2726						LN		366		17		false		           17          All right.  Seeing none.				false

		2727						LN		366		18		false		           18          I want to make sure the parties understand.  I				false

		2728						LN		366		19		false		           19     think when Mr. Young's asking about getting other				false

		2729						LN		366		20		false		           20     information, we'll make sure we have advice from our				false

		2730						LN		366		21		false		           21     attorney general as to what's in the record and what's				false

		2731						LN		366		22		false		           22     not.  We talked with Council members about not doing				false

		2732						LN		366		23		false		           23     our own research outside the record, so that advice is				false

		2733						LN		366		24		false		           24     being given as we go.  And if anything else is sought				false

		2734						LN		366		25		false		           25     for the record, it will be in the form of a data				false

		2735						PG		367		0		false		page 367				false

		2736						LN		367		1		false		            1     request to parties, and you'll know what the Council				false

		2737						LN		367		2		false		            2     members are considering.				false

		2738						LN		367		3		false		            3          So if there's any concerns that Council members				false

		2739						LN		367		4		false		            4     are asking questions in that regard, they're not				false

		2740						LN		367		5		false		            5     necessarily familiar with the -- the niceties of the				false

		2741						LN		367		6		false		            6     APA, typical trial practice, and what might be a				false

		2742						LN		367		7		false		            7     limited record.  But certainly if the Council members				false

		2743						LN		367		8		false		            8     for the adjudication are going to have anything, you'll				false

		2744						LN		367		9		false		            9     know what it is.				false

		2745						LN		367		10		false		           10          All right.  Anybody have any other questions for				false

		2746						LN		367		11		false		           11     Ms. Cooke that I need to recognize before we let her go				false

		2747						LN		367		12		false		           12     and move on to our next order of business?				false

		2748						LN		367		13		false		           13          All right.  Hearing none.				false

		2749						LN		367		14		false		           14          Ms. Cooke, thank you.  Good morning.  And --				false

		2750						LN		367		15		false		           15                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.				false

		2751						LN		367		16		false		           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- I appreciate your				false

		2752						LN		367		17		false		           17     time and testimony.				false

		2753						LN		367		18		false		           18                               (Witness excused.)				false

		2754						LN		367		19		false		           19				false

		2755						LN		367		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council				false

		2756						LN		367		21		false		           21     members, today we had just the one scheduled witness.				false

		2757						LN		367		22		false		           22     And previous at the housekeeping session, there was a				false

		2758						LN		367		23		false		           23     question of whether or not we could move some things				false

		2759						LN		367		24		false		           24     around.				false

		2760						LN		367		25		false		           25          We have permission from the Yakama Nation and all				false

		2761						PG		368		0		false		page 368				false

		2762						LN		368		1		false		            1     the other parties to call Mr. Ganuelas and				false

		2763						LN		368		2		false		            2     Mr. Nuetzmann today.				false

		2764						LN		368		3		false		            3          Ms. Voelckers, what's the status of their				false

		2765						LN		368		4		false		            4     availability?				false

		2766						LN		368		5		false		            5                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your				false

		2767						LN		368		6		false		            6     Honor.  They are available.  I would ask that we take a				false

		2768						LN		368		7		false		            7     brief break.  But they are here and available to be				false

		2769						LN		368		8		false		            8     sworn in.				false

		2770						LN		368		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We're				false

		2771						LN		368		10		false		           10     going to take a break just to get them on the line.				false

		2772						LN		368		11		false		           11     We'll come back at 10:45.				false

		2773						LN		368		12		false		           12          Before we go off to our break, the Nuetzmann				false

		2774						LN		368		13		false		           13     exhibits that you might want to have, if you have any				false

		2775						LN		368		14		false		           14     questions, Council members, even though they're not				false

		2776						LN		368		15		false		           15     scheduled for cross-exam, would be 4011_T and 4012.				false

		2777						LN		368		16		false		           16          As for Mr. Ganuelas, they would be mostly				false

		2778						LN		368		17		false		           17     confidential.  But 4008_T and then 4009 and 4010.				false

		2779						LN		368		18		false		           18     Those are both marked as confidential, and you have a				false

		2780						LN		368		19		false		           19     redacted version as well.  The reply testimony is an				false

		2781						LN		368		20		false		           20     Exhibit 4013.  So if you are looking for something to				false

		2782						LN		368		21		false		           21     do in the next eight minutes --				false

		2783						LN		368		22		false		           22                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Judge.				false

		2784						LN		368		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to get ready, we				false

		2785						LN		368		24		false		           24     would have those.				false

		2786						LN		368		25		false		           25          Chair Drew.				false

		2787						PG		369		0		false		page 369				false

		2788						LN		369		1		false		            1                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Would you				false

		2789						LN		369		2		false		            2     please have someone put those in the chat since I				false

		2790						LN		369		3		false		            3     didn't write that quickly.				false

		2791						LN		369		4		false		            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Sure.  They're easy --				false

		2792						LN		369		5		false		            5                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		2793						LN		369		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to find in the				false

		2794						LN		369		7		false		            7     exhibit list.  The -- the Yakama Nation's exhibits all				false

		2795						LN		369		8		false		            8     start with a 4.				false

		2796						LN		369		9		false		            9                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Okay.				false

		2797						LN		369		10		false		           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I'll ask that --				false

		2798						LN		369		11		false		           11     we'll get those in the chat, 4011 and -12, 4008 through				false

		2799						LN		369		12		false		           12     -13.				false

		2800						LN		369		13		false		           13          All right.  Thank you.  We'll take our break.				false

		2801						LN		369		14		false		           14                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Oh.  I just got				false

		2802						LN		369		15		false		           15     a message.  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		2803						LN		369		16		false		           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yep.  We'll take our				false

		2804						LN		369		17		false		           17     break and come back at 10:45.				false

		2805						LN		369		18		false		           18                               (Pause in proceedings from				false

		2806						LN		369		19		false		           19                                10:37 a.m. to 10:45 a.m.)				false

		2807						LN		369		20		false		           20				false

		2808						LN		369		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  It's now				false

		2809						LN		369		22		false		           22     10:45.  We're back on the record.				false

		2810						LN		369		23		false		           23          Ms. Voelckers, have you had a chance to make sure				false

		2811						LN		369		24		false		           24     whether Mr. Ganuelas and Nuetzmann are on the line?				false

		2812						LN		369		25		false		           25                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.				false

		2813						PG		370		0		false		page 370				false

		2814						LN		370		1		false		            1     They are logging on through Mr. Jones' computer.  I see				false

		2815						LN		370		2		false		            2     Mr. Nuetzmann now.				false

		2816						LN		370		3		false		            3          If I could ask a clarifying question before we get				false

		2817						LN		370		4		false		            4     going regarding something that you said before the				false

		2818						LN		370		5		false		            5     break.				false

		2819						LN		370		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, ma'am.				false

		2820						LN		370		7		false		            7                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Our understanding				false

		2821						LN		370		8		false		            8     was that Council was going to be provided with the				false

		2822						LN		370		9		false		            9     confidential versions of everything, not just the				false

		2823						LN		370		10		false		           10     redacted ones.  And so I don't know if that -- I just				false

		2824						LN		370		11		false		           11     wanted to make sure that that was the case.				false

		2825						LN		370		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  And				false

		2826						LN		370		13		false		           13     Ms. Masengale has definitely provided all of those				false

		2827						LN		370		14		false		           14     documents.  We've got them in a separate part of our				false

		2828						LN		370		15		false		           15     SharePoint drive that only has access to Council				false

		2829						LN		370		16		false		           16     members and not to the general EFSEC or UTC population				false

		2830						LN		370		17		false		           17     that is on the same server, to my understanding.  So,				false

		2831						LN		370		18		false		           18     yes, they have both.				false

		2832						LN		370		19		false		           19                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Okay.  I appreciate				false

		2833						LN		370		20		false		           20     the clarification and also just making sure they have a				false

		2834						LN		370		21		false		           21     chance to review that before Monday for the other				false

		2835						LN		370		22		false		           22     members that are testifying.  So thank you for that.				false

		2836						LN		370		23		false		           23          I see that Mr. Nuetzmann is all set up.				false

		2837						LN		370		24		false		           24                               (Witness Mark Nuetzmann				false

		2838						LN		370		25		false		           25                                appearing remotely.)				false

		2839						PG		371		0		false		page 371				false

		2840						LN		371		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let me get				false

		2841						LN		371		2		false		            2     to where his exhibits are.				false

		2842						LN		371		3		false		            3          All right.  Good morning, Mr. Nuetzmann.  How are				false

		2843						LN		371		4		false		            4     you?				false

		2844						LN		371		5		false		            5                        THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Judge				false

		2845						LN		371		6		false		            6     Torem.  I'm good.				false

		2846						LN		371		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm going to swear you				false

		2847						LN		371		8		false		            8     in to adopt your testimony, and then we'll see if				false

		2848						LN		371		9		false		            9     there's any questions.				false

		2849						LN		371		10		false		           10          Again, my understanding is that your testimony is				false

		2850						LN		371		11		false		           11     limited to two exhibits.  They are 4011_T, your				false

		2851						LN		371		12		false		           12     prefiled direct testimony; and Exhibit 4012, your reply				false

		2852						LN		371		13		false		           13     testimony to Erik Jansen's rebuttal testimony.				false

		2853						LN		371		14		false		           14          Are those the two documents that you're aware of				false

		2854						LN		371		15		false		           15     you've submitted as testimony?				false

		2855						LN		371		16		false		           16                        THE WITNESS:  That's correct.				false

		2856						LN		371		17		false		           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I'm going				false

		2857						LN		371		18		false		           18     to have you raise your right hand and adopt that, and				false

		2858						LN		371		19		false		           19     then we'll see if the Council members have any				false

		2859						LN		371		20		false		           20     questions.				false

		2860						LN		371		21		false		           21				false

		2861						LN		371		22		false		           22     MARK NUETZMANN,             appearing remotely, was duly				false

		2862						LN		371		23		false		           23                                 sworn by the Administrative				false

		2863						LN		371		24		false		           24                                 Law Judge as follows:				false

		2864						LN		371		25		false		           25     ////				false

		2865						PG		372		0		false		page 372				false

		2866						LN		372		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you, Mark				false

		2867						LN		372		2		false		            2     Nuetzmann, solemnly swear or affirm that all testimony				false

		2868						LN		372		3		false		            3     you've indicated you'll adopt today and any answers you				false

		2869						LN		372		4		false		            4     give to Council questions will be the truth, the whole				false

		2870						LN		372		5		false		            5     truth, and nothing but the truth?				false

		2871						LN		372		6		false		            6                        THE WITNESS:  I do.				false

		2872						LN		372		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		2873						LN		372		8		false		            8          I'm going to note that for the record, those				false

		2874						LN		372		9		false		            9     exhibits I talked about have been adopted under oath,				false

		2875						LN		372		10		false		           10     and they're now admitted to the record.				false

		2876						LN		372		11		false		           11                               (Exhibit Nos. 4008_T_Revised,				false

		2877						LN		372		12		false		           12                                4009_Confidential,				false

		2878						LN		372		13		false		           13                                4009_Redacted,				false

		2879						LN		372		14		false		           14                                4010_Confidential,				false

		2880						LN		372		15		false		           15                                4010_Redacted, 4011_T, 4012,				false

		2881						LN		372		16		false		           16                                and 4013 admitted.)				false

		2882						LN		372		17		false		           17				false

		2883						LN		372		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Council members, Chair				false

		2884						LN		372		19		false		           19     Drew, any questions for Mr. Nuetzmann?				false

		2885						LN		372		20		false		           20          All right.  I'm not hearing any, Mr. Nuetzmann.				false

		2886						LN		372		21		false		           21     That's probably the easiest morning at trial you'll				false

		2887						LN		372		22		false		           22     ever experience.				false

		2888						LN		372		23		false		           23          And we're going to take our next witness from the				false

		2889						LN		372		24		false		           24     Yakama Nation, Mr. Leon Ganuelas.  So thank you,				false

		2890						LN		372		25		false		           25     Mr. Nuetzmann.  So thank you, Mr. Nuetzmann.  You can				false

		2891						PG		373		0		false		page 373				false

		2892						LN		373		1		false		            1     stand down and switch places.				false

		2893						LN		373		2		false		            2                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.				false

		2894						LN		373		3		false		            3                               (Witness excused.)				false

		2895						LN		373		4		false		            4                               (Witness Leon Ganuelas				false

		2896						LN		373		5		false		            5                                appearing remotely.)				false

		2897						LN		373		6		false		            6				false

		2898						LN		373		7		false		            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning.  Are you				false

		2899						LN		373		8		false		            8     Leon Ganuelas?				false

		2900						LN		373		9		false		            9                        THE WITNESS:  Good morning.  Yes,				false

		2901						LN		373		10		false		           10     sir, I am.				false

		2902						LN		373		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Out of respect for the				false

		2903						LN		373		12		false		           12     confidentiality of much of your testimony, Council				false

		2904						LN		373		13		false		           13     members, we're now going to make sure that our system				false

		2905						LN		373		14		false		           14     for moving into closed-record hearing works.  So I'm				false

		2906						LN		373		15		false		           15     going to ask staff to move us to a Microsoft Teams				false

		2907						LN		373		16		false		           16     breakout room.				false

		2908						LN		373		17		false		           17          So, Mr. Ganuelas, hopefully everybody transfers				false

		2909						LN		373		18		false		           18     over.  And I'll do a quick roll call of parties and				false

		2910						LN		373		19		false		           19     Council members to make sure we're all there, and then				false

		2911						LN		373		20		false		           20     we'll take your testimony.				false

		2912						LN		373		21		false		           21                               (Pause in proceedings from				false

		2913						LN		373		22		false		           22                                10:49 a.m. to 10:53 a.m.)				false

		2914						LN		373		23		false		           23                   ** Closed-record hearing **				false

		2915						LN		373		24		false		           24     * Not available to general public per protective order *				false

		2916						LN		373		25		false		           25     ////				false

		2917						PG		392		0		false		page 392				false

		2918						LN		392		1		false		            1				false

		2919						LN		392		2		false		            2				false

		2920						LN		392		3		false		            3				false

		2921						LN		392		4		false		            4				false

		2922						LN		392		5		false		            5				false

		2923						LN		392		6		false		            6				false

		2924						LN		392		7		false		            7				false

		2925						LN		392		8		false		            8				false

		2926						LN		392		9		false		            9				false

		2927						LN		392		10		false		           10				false

		2928						LN		392		11		false		           11				false

		2929						LN		392		12		false		           12				false

		2930						LN		392		13		false		           13				false

		2931						LN		392		14		false		           14				false

		2932						LN		392		15		false		           15				false

		2933						LN		392		16		false		           16				false

		2934						LN		392		17		false		           17                               (Closed-record session				false

		2935						LN		392		18		false		           18                                concluded.)				false

		2936						LN		392		19		false		           19				false

		2937						LN		392		20		false		           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I can see				false

		2938						LN		392		21		false		           21     that a number of us are back, moved over automatically				false

		2939						LN		392		22		false		           22     from the other meeting.  Let's see if I can have the				false

		2940						LN		392		23		false		           23     participant list put up on the side.  I see there's				false

		2941						LN		392		24		false		           24     more of us in this session than there were in the				false

		2942						LN		392		25		false		           25     other.				false

		2943						PG		393		0		false		page 393				false

		2944						LN		393		1		false		            1          For any members of the public that are listening,				false

		2945						LN		393		2		false		            2     we're back from a closed-record session where witness				false

		2946						LN		393		3		false		            3     Leon Ganuelas was talking about some privileged and				false

		2947						LN		393		4		false		            4     confidential information regarding pronghorn antelope.				false

		2948						LN		393		5		false		            5          There are redacted versions of his testimony				false

		2949						LN		393		6		false		            6     available on the EFSEC website if you're interested.				false

		2950						LN		393		7		false		            7     Those are -- the redacted portions are the ones that				false

		2951						LN		393		8		false		            8     members of the public or those that haven't signed				false

		2952						LN		393		9		false		            9     confidentiality agreements can -- can access.				false

		2953						LN		393		10		false		           10          And we were gone out of public session for about				false

		2954						LN		393		11		false		           11     30 minutes, maybe less.				false

		2955						LN		393		12		false		           12          All right.  Council members, I don't know that				false

		2956						LN		393		13		false		           13     there's any other business.  I'm going to ask the				false

		2957						LN		393		14		false		           14     parties again if I'm overlooking anything we said we				false

		2958						LN		393		15		false		           15     would do on the record today with all of the Council				false

		2959						LN		393		16		false		           16     members.				false

		2960						LN		393		17		false		           17          Mr. McMahan, was there anything on your list that				false

		2961						LN		393		18		false		           18     we still needed to do with the Council members today?				false

		2962						LN		393		19		false		           19                        MR. McMAHAN:  Not that I'm aware of,				false

		2963						LN		393		20		false		           20     Your Honor.  Thank you.				false

		2964						LN		393		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper?				false

		2965						LN		393		22		false		           22                        MR. HARPER:  No.  I don't think so.				false

		2966						LN		393		23		false		           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. Reyneveld.				false

		2967						LN		393		24		false		           24                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Nothing further.				false

		2968						LN		393		25		false		           25     Thank you.				false

		2969						PG		394		0		false		page 394				false

		2970						LN		394		1		false		            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, let me				false

		2971						LN		394		2		false		            2     come to you.  Was there anything else we needed to do				false

		2972						LN		394		3		false		            3     on the record with Council members?				false

		2973						LN		394		4		false		            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I do have an item,				false

		2974						LN		394		5		false		            5     but the Council members' presence is not necessary.				false

		2975						LN		394		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		2976						LN		394		7		false		            7     We'll do another housekeeping session here shortly.				false

		2977						LN		394		8		false		            8          And, Ms. Voelckers, anything else from the Yakama				false

		2978						LN		394		9		false		            9     Nation we need to do with the Council members today?				false

		2979						LN		394		10		false		           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing else for the				false

		2980						LN		394		11		false		           11     Council today from Yakama Nation.  Thank you, Your				false

		2981						LN		394		12		false		           12     Honor.				false

		2982						LN		394		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then				false

		2983						LN		394		14		false		           14     looking forward to tomorrow, Council members, the				false

		2984						LN		394		15		false		           15     Rahmig scheduled testimony is still not happening				false

		2985						LN		394		16		false		           16     tomorrow.  But I understand that we're going to have				false

		2986						LN		394		17		false		           17     Morgan Shook.				false

		2987						LN		394		18		false		           18          And Morgan Shook, I'll go over the exhibit numbers				false

		2988						LN		394		19		false		           19     with you if you have your pens and pencils ready.				false

		2989						LN		394		20		false		           20     Morgan Shook's testimony will be available also, I'm				false

		2990						LN		394		21		false		           21     sure, from the very busy Ms. Masengale in a daily				false

		2991						LN		394		22		false		           22     folder on the SharePoint drive to make it easy to				false

		2992						LN		394		23		false		           23     access and review this evening.				false

		2993						LN		394		24		false		           24          Morgan Shook was originally scheduled for next				false

		2994						LN		394		25		false		           25     Tuesday, August 22nd, at 11:40 a.m. and supposed to go				false

		2995						PG		395		0		false		page 395				false

		2996						LN		395		1		false		            1     after a lunch break into 2:30 p.m.  So there's				false

		2997						LN		395		2		false		            2     approximately two hours of testimony to be ready for				false

		2998						LN		395		3		false		            3     tomorrow.  And unless there's anything else added,				false

		2999						LN		395		4		false		            4     we'll start at 9:00, and then we have the monthly				false

		3000						LN		395		5		false		            5     Council meeting at 1:30.  Please plan on being				false

		3001						LN		395		6		false		            6     available for this adjudication maybe up till 12 or				false

		3002						LN		395		7		false		            7     12:30 just in case we're able to add anything else and				false

		3003						LN		395		8		false		            8     front-load the schedule a little bit more to				false

		3004						LN		395		9		false		            9     accommodate the ever-fluid schedule we've got.				false

		3005						LN		395		10		false		           10          But the exhibits that I have for this				false

		3006						LN		395		11		false		           11     applicant-sponsored witness start with 1008_T.  And				false

		3007						LN		395		12		false		           12     that's a set of revised testimony filed by the				false

		3008						LN		395		13		false		           13     applicant.  The supporting exhibits follow in sequence				false

		3009						LN		395		14		false		           14     through 1009 all the way through 1020.  And there's				false

		3010						LN		395		15		false		           15     also some reply testimony, if I'm not mistaken, at				false

		3011						LN		395		16		false		           16     1051_R.  So essentially 1008 through 1020 and 1051.				false

		3012						LN		395		17		false		           17          Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, did I get those				false

		3013						LN		395		18		false		           18     correct?				false

		3014						LN		395		19		false		           19                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Yes, Your Honor.				false

		3015						LN		395		20		false		           20     Thank you.				false

		3016						LN		395		21		false		           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. [Sic] Shook				false

		3017						LN		395		22		false		           22     will be available at 9 a.m. tomorrow?				false

		3018						LN		395		23		false		           23                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Correct.				false

		3019						LN		395		24		false		           24          It's "Mr. Shook" --				false

		3020						LN		395		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  Oh.				false

		3021						PG		396		0		false		page 396				false

		3022						LN		396		1		false		            1                        MS. STAVITSKY:  -- just for the				false

		3023						LN		396		2		false		            2     record.  Thank you.				false

		3024						LN		396		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.				false

		3025						LN		396		4		false		            4          Council members, any question on your homework for				false

		3026						LN		396		5		false		            5     tonight and ready for tomorrow?				false

		3027						LN		396		6		false		            6          All right.  Then we'll recess the adjudicative				false

		3028						LN		396		7		false		            7     hearing portion.				false

		3029						LN		396		8		false		            8          I have a question from Mr. Livingston.				false

		3030						LN		396		9		false		            9                        COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:  Yeah.				false

		3031						LN		396		10		false		           10     I'm sorry, Judge.  I missed:  What time will we start				false

		3032						LN		396		11		false		           11     tomorrow?				false

		3033						LN		396		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  9:00.  I'll do a				false

		3034						LN		396		13		false		           13     housekeeping session with the parties to see about any				false

		3035						LN		396		14		false		           14     other schedule items I can advise you of, and then at				false

		3036						LN		396		15		false		           15     9:00 we'll have Mr. Morgan Shook adopt his testimony				false

		3037						LN		396		16		false		           16     and see if there's any questions.				false

		3038						LN		396		17		false		           17          We know we're going to have cross-exam from --				false

		3039						LN		396		18		false		           18     it'll be a follow-up after Mr. Aramburu's questions on				false

		3040						LN		396		19		false		           19     behalf of Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S. from the applicant.  So				false

		3041						LN		396		20		false		           20     about an hour-plus is what Mr. Aramburu is estimating,				false

		3042						LN		396		21		false		           21     followed by any redirect exam.  And then, as you've				false

		3043						LN		396		22		false		           22     seen, the round-robin that we do.  And then we'll get				false

		3044						LN		396		23		false		           23     to the Council members' questions along with anything				false

		3045						LN		396		24		false		           24     else we need after that.				false

		3046						LN		396		25		false		           25          Any other Council questions?				false

		3047						PG		397		0		false		page 397				false

		3048						LN		397		1		false		            1          All right.  You had a short day today.  I can't				false

		3049						LN		397		2		false		            2     promise there'll be many of these ahead.  Especially				false

		3050						LN		397		3		false		            3     tomorrow you'll have a follow-on Council meeting.  So				false

		3051						LN		397		4		false		            4     thank you very much.  And I'm going to take a brief				false

		3052						LN		397		5		false		            5     recess here till 11:25 so people can stretch and				false

		3053						LN		397		6		false		            6     everybody can sign on or off, and we'll resume at 11:25				false

		3054						LN		397		7		false		            7     with our housekeeping session.				false

		3055						LN		397		8		false		            8                               (Pause in proceedings from				false

		3056						LN		397		9		false		            9                                11:22 a.m. to 11:25 a.m.)				false

		3057						LN		397		10		false		           10				false

		3058						LN		397		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We're back into				false

		3059						LN		397		12		false		           12     a housekeeping session.  We're back on the record to				false

		3060						LN		397		13		false		           13     take any notes that we need.				false

		3061						LN		397		14		false		           14          Mr. Aramburu, I'll come to you first.  You said				false

		3062						LN		397		15		false		           15     you had a note you wanted to take up.				false

		3063						LN		397		16		false		           16                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I have a question for				false

		3064						LN		397		17		false		           17     you, Judge Torem.  When might we expect decisions on				false

		3065						LN		397		18		false		           18     the other outstanding motions?				false

		3066						LN		397		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Tomorrow morning.				false

		3067						LN		397		20		false		           20     I've got some time this afternoon suddenly.  So I				false

		3068						LN		397		21		false		           21     apologize that you're still waiting.  But tomorrow				false

		3069						LN		397		22		false		           22     morning, you'll have my answers on as many of them as I				false

		3070						LN		397		23		false		           23     can get to.  And given the time balance I have today,				false

		3071						LN		397		24		false		           24     I'm hoping all.				false

		3072						LN		397		25		false		           25                        MR. ARAMBURU:  And particularly				false

		3073						PG		398		0		false		page 398				false

		3074						LN		398		1		false		            1     because at least one of the motions deals with				false

		3075						LN		398		2		false		            2     scheduling, if you don't have a written ruling, an oral				false

		3076						LN		398		3		false		            3     ruling would be -- would be helpful to us as well, just				false

		3077						LN		398		4		false		            4     so we -- we know how to -- how to schedule things.  So				false

		3078						LN		398		5		false		            5     thank you for that.				false

		3079						LN		398		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that.				false

		3080						LN		398		7		false		            7     And that's why I try to make notes on that oral ruling				false

		3081						LN		398		8		false		            8     today.  And I've asked the court reporter to make sure,				false

		3082						LN		398		9		false		            9     if it's reduced to writing that way, then it can also				false

		3083						LN		398		10		false		           10     be circulated to the parties as soon as possible.				false

		3084						LN		398		11		false		           11          So if it's efficiency sake, Mr. Aramburu, I will				false

		3085						LN		398		12		false		           12     give the oral rulings as best we can and use the				false

		3086						LN		398		13		false		           13     transcript to document those going forward for				false

		3087						LN		398		14		false		           14     preserving issues for appeal and a way to cite to them.				false

		3088						LN		398		15		false		           15     I'm trying to make sure that to service both purposes				false

		3089						LN		398		16		false		           16     of efficiency and any other errors that might want to				false

		3090						LN		398		17		false		           17     be called out by parties.				false

		3091						LN		398		18		false		           18                        MR. ARAMBURU:  So let me just				false

		3092						LN		398		19		false		           19     understand the process here.  You -- you made an oral				false

		3093						LN		398		20		false		           20     ruling on our motion to compel.  Are you going				false

		3094						LN		398		21		false		           21     to re- -- are you going to enter an independent written				false

		3095						LN		398		22		false		           22     ruling on that, or are we just going to rely on your				false

		3096						LN		398		23		false		           23     oral comments?				false

		3097						LN		398		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  I am not planning to				false

		3098						LN		398		25		false		           25     issue a further written ruling, but I will circulate in				false

		3099						PG		399		0		false		page 399				false

		3100						LN		399		1		false		            1     advance a separate piece of the transcript that				false

		3101						LN		399		2		false		            2     memorializes it.  Just given the time constraints on				false

		3102						LN		399		3		false		            3     everything else, Mr. Aramburu, I just -- I don't want				false

		3103						LN		399		4		false		            4     to keep the parties waiting for those written products.				false

		3104						LN		399		5		false		            5     The ruling has been made, and I think from there, it				false

		3105						LN		399		6		false		            6     will speak for itself.				false

		3106						LN		399		7		false		            7                        MR. ARAMBURU:  So the date of your				false

		3107						LN		399		8		false		            8     ruling is today, then?  Would that be correct?				false

		3108						LN		399		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  It must be, yes.				false

		3109						LN		399		10		false		           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		3110						LN		399		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		3111						LN		399		12		false		           12     Mr. McMahan, any other housekeeping items that the				false

		3112						LN		399		13		false		           13     applicant had for me today?  Perhaps you've heard from				false

		3113						LN		399		14		false		           14     Ms. Perlmutter over the course of the morning.				false

		3114						LN		399		15		false		           15                        MR. McMAHAN:  I will let				false

		3115						LN		399		16		false		           16     Ms. Stavitsky talk about her communication with				false

		3116						LN		399		17		false		           17     Ms. Perlmutter.				false

		3117						LN		399		18		false		           18                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Yeah, nothing more				false

		3118						LN		399		19		false		           19     for Scout, Your Honor, except just I can provide an				false

		3119						LN		399		20		false		           20     update.  We heard back from Ms. Perlmutter, who says				false

		3120						LN		399		21		false		           21     she's feeling slightly better but still out of				false

		3121						LN		399		22		false		           22     commission.  So we'll keep checking in and update				false

		3122						LN		399		23		false		           23     you-all.				false

		3123						LN		399		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		3124						LN		399		25		false		           25          Mr. Harper, any other updates from the County or				false

		3125						PG		400		0		false		page 400				false

		3126						LN		400		1		false		            1     housekeeping measures for today?				false

		3127						LN		400		2		false		            2                        MR. HARPER:  No.  Thank you, Judge.				false

		3128						LN		400		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		3129						LN		400		4		false		            4     Ms. Reyneveld?				false

		3130						LN		400		5		false		            5                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have				false

		3131						LN		400		6		false		            6     anything except for, if we wanted to try to move up the				false

		3132						LN		400		7		false		            7     wildlife testimony, then Your Honor's direction is for				false

		3133						LN		400		8		false		            8     us to coordinate that and come to you with a proposal.				false

		3134						LN		400		9		false		            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Maybe not you				false

		3135						LN		400		10		false		           10     individually, but the parties together collaboratively.				false

		3136						LN		400		11		false		           11                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		3137						LN		400		12		false		           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you have any status				false

		3138						LN		400		13		false		           13     updates, if appropriate, on your proposed settlement				false

		3139						LN		400		14		false		           14     agreement that you referenced, I think, last Thursday				false

		3140						LN		400		15		false		           15     in the fifth prehearing conference regarding the				false

		3141						LN		400		16		false		           16     eastern solar array wildlife impacts, and there was				false

		3142						LN		400		17		false		           17     some reference to the memorandum Page 2?  I don't				false

		3143						LN		400		18		false		           18     remember if we're calling it the Kobus memo or the Moon				false

		3144						LN		400		19		false		           19     memo.  Any updates on that?				false

		3145						LN		400		20		false		           20                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I do not have any				false

		3146						LN		400		21		false		           21     updates.  And there will not be any updates until the				false

		3147						LN		400		22		false		           22     conclusion of the adjudicative process from the				false

		3148						LN		400		23		false		           23     attorney general's perspective.				false

		3149						LN		400		24		false		           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That helps.				false

		3150						LN		400		25		false		           25     Because I was wondering if I needed to mention to the				false

		3151						PG		401		0		false		page 401				false

		3152						LN		401		1		false		            1     Council members they might see that during the course				false

		3153						LN		401		2		false		            2     of the adjudication.  Because it won't be signed before				false

		3154						LN		401		3		false		            3     the end of the adjudication, it's probably best not to				false

		3155						LN		401		4		false		            4     give them any anticipation that there is something				false

		3156						LN		401		5		false		            5     coming in.  I don't want any negative connotation or				false

		3157						LN		401		6		false		            6     positive connotation to be implied because of the				false

		3158						LN		401		7		false		            7     ongoing negotiations there.				false

		3159						LN		401		8		false		            8          Would you agree, Ms. Reyneveld?				false

		3160						LN		401		9		false		            9                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, I think that				false

		3161						LN		401		10		false		           10     makes sense.  Thanks, Your Honor.				false

		3162						LN		401		11		false		           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Over the course of my				false

		3163						LN		401		12		false		           12     career, I've learned that settlements in principle are				false

		3164						LN		401		13		false		           13     not always settlements in writing.  So we'll leave it				false

		3165						LN		401		14		false		           14     at that.				false

		3166						LN		401		15		false		           15                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah, and I would				false

		3167						LN		401		16		false		           16     say that it's not even a settlement in principle.				false

		3168						LN		401		17		false		           17     It's -- we've had discussions around the potential for				false

		3169						LN		401		18		false		           18     settlement.				false

		3170						LN		401		19		false		           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  That helps				false

		3171						LN		401		20		false		           20     clarify it even further.  Okay.				false

		3172						LN		401		21		false		           21                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.				false

		3173						LN		401		22		false		           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  Ms. Voelckers, I				false

		3174						LN		401		23		false		           23     was about to come to you.				false

		3175						LN		401		24		false		           24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Oh.  Well, just				false

		3176						LN		401		25		false		           25     before we move on from this topic, if Ms. Reyneveld was				false

		3177						PG		402		0		false		page 402				false

		3178						LN		402		1		false		            1     able to, we would appreciate clarity on when those				false

		3179						LN		402		2		false		            2     discussions ceased.				false

		3180						LN		402		3		false		            3                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I think we had the				false

		3181						LN		402		4		false		            4     discussions in the spring, and that's -- I think --				false

		3182						LN		402		5		false		            5     correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. McMahan, but I don't think				false

		3183						LN		402		6		false		            6     there were further -- further discussions specifically				false

		3184						LN		402		7		false		            7     on this that were substantive after that.				false

		3185						LN		402		8		false		            8                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes, Ms. Reyneveld, I				false

		3186						LN		402		9		false		            9     think that's correct.  And I -- if I remember right --				false

		3187						LN		402		10		false		           10     stand to be corrected -- there was a date on the				false

		3188						LN		402		11		false		           11     document after we essentially completed those tentative				false

		3189						LN		402		12		false		           12     discussions.  And as far as I can recall -- and, Sarah,				false

		3190						LN		402		13		false		           13     correct me if you think I'm wrong -- I think that was				false

		3191						LN		402		14		false		           14     it from the -- from the date of the last version that				false

		3192						LN		402		15		false		           15     we circulated.				false

		3193						LN		402		16		false		           16                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That's my				false

		3194						LN		402		17		false		           17     recollection.  Thanks, Mr. McMahan.				false

		3195						LN		402		18		false		           18                        MS. VOELCKERS:  So is it fair to				false

		3196						LN		402		19		false		           19     say, then, that there weren't further discussions about				false

		3197						LN		402		20		false		           20     the proposal after the date of the one that Mr. McMahan				false

		3198						LN		402		21		false		           21     e-mailed to the parties last Friday?				false

		3199						LN		402		22		false		           22                        MR. McMAHAN:  Well, I didn't want to				false

		3200						LN		402		23		false		           23     speak for Sarah, or for Ms. Randolph -- excuse me --				false

		3201						LN		402		24		false		           24     but I believe that's correct.				false

		3202						LN		402		25		false		           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah, I don't -- I				false

		3203						PG		403		0		false		page 403				false

		3204						LN		403		1		false		            1     think we might have checked in on the status of it, but				false

		3205						LN		403		2		false		            2     there was no substantive discussions after that, is my				false

		3206						LN		403		3		false		            3     recollection after that date, so...				false

		3207						LN		403		4		false		            4                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you.  We				false

		3208						LN		403		5		false		            5     appreciate the clarification.				false

		3209						LN		403		6		false		            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, did you				false

		3210						LN		403		7		false		            7     have any other items for the housekeeping?				false

		3211						LN		403		8		false		            8                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Just a request to				false

		3212						LN		403		9		false		            9     the parties, Your Honor, that -- that we do engage in				false

		3213						LN		403		10		false		           10     that conversation around who might be taking				false

		3214						LN		403		11		false		           11     Mr. Shook's spot on Tuesday before tomorrow morning's				false

		3215						LN		403		12		false		           12     check-in with you.				false

		3216						LN		403		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, I think we will				false

		3217						LN		403		14		false		           14     hear from you guys in the morning.  I won't participate				false

		3218						LN		403		15		false		           15     in those conversations, but hopefully the parties will				false

		3219						LN		403		16		false		           16     make time today.				false

		3220						LN		403		17		false		           17          I just see that Ms. Masengale's posted an updated				false

		3221						LN		403		18		false		           18     exhibit list.  I have one question about an exhibit				false

		3222						LN		403		19		false		           19     yesterday.  Ms. Masengale, maybe you can clarify it				false

		3223						LN		403		20		false		           20     best.				false

		3224						LN		403		21		false		           21          I'm looking for Exhibit 1040_R.  I think that was				false

		3225						LN		403		22		false		           22     from Ms. McClain.  And I don't know if we expressly				false

		3226						LN		403		23		false		           23     asked her to adopt that testimony.  My notes didn't				false

		3227						LN		403		24		false		           24     catch up to that.  Did yours?				false

		3228						LN		403		25		false		           25                        MS. MASENGALE:  Judge Torem, I'm				false

		3229						PG		404		0		false		page 404				false

		3230						LN		404		1		false		            1     just reopening that document, and I will be back with				false

		3231						LN		404		2		false		            2     you shortly.				false

		3232						LN		404		3		false		            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  While				false

		3233						LN		404		4		false		            4     you're doing that, the four items.  And, Mr. Aramburu,				false

		3234						LN		404		5		false		            5     you might keep along with me here to make sure I've got				false

		3235						LN		404		6		false		            6     them.				false

		3236						LN		404		7		false		            7          There's your motion to reconsider the				false

		3237						LN		404		8		false		            8     witnesses' -- the testimony that were stricken:				false

		3238						LN		404		9		false		            9     Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and Simon.  That's one item I know				false

		3239						LN		404		10		false		           10     you're waiting for.				false

		3240						LN		404		11		false		           11          Related to that is the applicant's motion to				false

		3241						LN		404		12		false		           12     strike certain rebuttal response testimony of, I think,				false

		3242						LN		404		13		false		           13     those same witnesses.  There may be more.				false

		3243						LN		404		14		false		           14          And, Ms. Reyneveld, there's your motion, which I				false

		3244						LN		404		15		false		           15     think will be the easiest for me, on your proposed				false

		3245						LN		404		16		false		           16     supplemental testimony.				false

		3246						LN		404		17		false		           17          And, finally, there's Mr. McMahan and the				false

		3247						LN		404		18		false		           18     applicant's motion to supplement the record with				false

		3248						LN		404		19		false		           19     Mr. Kobus's testimony.				false

		3249						LN		404		20		false		           20          Mr. Aramburu, were there any other items that				false

		3250						LN		404		21		false		           21     you're still waiting for that I didn't list?				false

		3251						LN		404		22		false		           22                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Those sound like the				false

		3252						LN		404		23		false		           23     ones that are on the list that have not yet been				false

		3253						LN		404		24		false		           24     decided.				false

		3254						LN		404		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.				false

		3255						PG		405		0		false		page 405				false

		3256						LN		405		1		false		            1     I'm just making sure I'm not overlooked something.				false

		3257						LN		405		2		false		            2     Sometimes the e-mails have been voluminous, or I think				false

		3258						LN		405		3		false		            3     I've used the word "onslaught" before.				false

		3259						LN		405		4		false		            4          Mr. McMahan, anything on the list that I didn't				false

		3260						LN		405		5		false		            5     call out that needs to be?				false

		3261						LN		405		6		false		            6                        MR. McMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank				false

		3262						LN		405		7		false		            7     you.				false

		3263						LN		405		8		false		            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper?				false

		3264						LN		405		9		false		            9                        MR. HARPER:  No.  Thank you.				false

		3265						LN		405		10		false		           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.				false

		3266						LN		405		11		false		           11     Ms. Reyneveld?				false

		3267						LN		405		12		false		           12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That summary				false

		3268						LN		405		13		false		           13     reflects my understanding of the pending motions.				false

		3269						LN		405		14		false		           14     Thank you.				false

		3270						LN		405		15		false		           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. Voelckers?				false

		3271						LN		405		16		false		           16                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing further.				false

		3272						LN		405		17		false		           17     Thank you, Your Honor.				false

		3273						LN		405		18		false		           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  That's my				false

		3274						LN		405		19		false		           19     homework for this afternoon.				false

		3275						LN		405		20		false		           20          Ms. Masengale, what did you find out about				false

		3276						LN		405		21		false		           21     Exhibit 1040, Sub R?				false

		3277						LN		405		22		false		           22                        MS. MASENGALE:  Judge Torem, I had				false

		3278						LN		405		23		false		           23     marked that as admitted, but if that's an error, I can				false

		3279						LN		405		24		false		           24     delete that.				false

		3280						LN		405		25		false		           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  No.  I'll just ask				false

		3281						PG		406		0		false		page 406				false

		3282						LN		406		1		false		            1     applicant's counsel:  Was that, to your recollection,				false

		3283						LN		406		2		false		            2     also adopted by the witness yesterday?				false

		3284						LN		406		3		false		            3                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, I'm				false

		3285						LN		406		4		false		            4     sorry.  The sound broke out.				false

		3286						LN		406		5		false		            5          Did -- Ms. Masengale, did you say 1040 was or was				false

		3287						LN		406		6		false		            6     not adopted?				false

		3288						LN		406		7		false		            7                        MS. MASENGALE:  I marked it as being				false

		3289						LN		406		8		false		            8     admitted.  However, that may have been an error on my				false

		3290						LN		406		9		false		            9     part.				false

		3291						LN		406		10		false		           10                        MS. STAVITSKY:  No, it was -- that				false

		3292						LN		406		11		false		           11     was what I had in my notes as well, and it should be				false

		3293						LN		406		12		false		           12     admitted.  So that's correct and accurate.  Thank you.				false

		3294						LN		406		13		false		           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Again,				false

		3295						LN		406		14		false		           14     it's probably my note-taking as I was multitasking.				false

		3296						LN		406		15		false		           15          Does any other party have a question and concern				false

		3297						LN		406		16		false		           16     whether we can just on the record today confirm 1040_R				false

		3298						LN		406		17		false		           17     from Ms. McClain was adopted?				false

		3299						LN		406		18		false		           18          All right.  Hearing no objections, then.  If it				false

		3300						LN		406		19		false		           19     wasn't yesterday, it is today.				false

		3301						LN		406		20		false		           20          Thank you, Ms. Masengale.  Your notes, I expect,				false

		3302						LN		406		21		false		           21     are better than mine on some of these as we work				false

		3303						LN		406		22		false		           22     through it.				false

		3304						LN		406		23		false		           23          All right.  Tomorrow morning at 8:30, then, is				false

		3305						LN		406		24		false		           24     when we'll convene our housekeeping session, and we'll				false

		3306						LN		406		25		false		           25     go on with Mr. Morgan Cooke's [sic] testimony and				false

		3307						PG		407		0		false		page 407				false

		3308						LN		407		1		false		            1     whatever else you agree might be fit in before we break				false

		3309						LN		407		2		false		            2     for the afternoon Council meeting.				false

		3310						LN		407		3		false		            3          After our session tomorrow morning and before the				false

		3311						LN		407		4		false		            4     Council meeting, we'll talk again and confirm as best				false

		3312						LN		407		5		false		            5     we can the week of August 21st to 25th and what we can				false

		3313						LN		407		6		false		            6     do going forward.				false

		3314						LN		407		7		false		            7          And I'd ask Mr. McMahan and Ms. Stavitsky to keep				false

		3315						LN		407		8		false		            8     us apprised, even though we're not going to conduct				false

		3316						LN		407		9		false		            9     sessions on Thursday, Friday, or over the weekend, on				false

		3317						LN		407		10		false		           10     any developments with Ms. Perlmutter's health.				false

		3318						LN		407		11		false		           11     Hopefully it takes a turn for the better and we'll have				false

		3319						LN		407		12		false		           12     her with all vim and vigor ready to go next week.				false

		3320						LN		407		13		false		           13          So with that, thank you very much for your time.				false

		3321						LN		407		14		false		           14     At 11:36, we're adjourned for the day, and we'll pick				false

		3322						LN		407		15		false		           15     up tomorrow.				false

		3323						LN		407		16		false		           16                               (Proceedings adjourned at				false

		3324						LN		407		17		false		           17                                11:36 a.m.)				false

		3325						LN		407		18		false		           18				false
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            1                       BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday,



            2     August 15, 2023, at 621 Woodland Square Loop Southeast,



            3     Lacey, Washington, at 8:30 a.m., before the Washington



            4     Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council; Kathleen Drew,



            5     Chair; and Adam E. Torem, Administrative Law Judge, the



            6     following proceedings were continued, to wit:



            7



            8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



            9



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  Let's go ahead and be



           11     on the record.



           12          This is the Horse Heaven wind farm adjudication.



           13     We're doing our housekeeping session for Tuesday,



           14     August 15th, 2023.  It is 8:30 in the morning.



           15          Counsel, I can see Mr. Harper there, and I saw



           16     Ms. Voelckers on the screen earlier.



           17          Counsel for the applicant present?



           18          How about Mr. --



           19                        MR. McMAHAN:  Good morning, Judge



           20     Torem.  You were cutting out a lot in your query to us,



           21     so just so you know.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.



           23                        MR. McMAHAN:  But the applicant is



           24     here and present.  Thank you.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Hopefully
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            1     we'll get the audio quality better.  I think I was



            2     leaning back to look at the screen there.



            3          Mr. Aramburu, I can see you.  Good morning.



            4          And do we have counsel for the environment?



            5                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, I am here, Your



            6     Honor.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Good



            8     morning, everyone.



            9          Is the audio any better, Mr. McMahan?



           10                        MR. McMAHAN:  I believe it is,



           11     Judge.  Thank you.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think



           13     it's just a directional microphone question and keeping



           14     straight ahead and looking at you guys as opposed to



           15     trying to look at the court reporter behind me.



           16          All right.  My agenda for this morning is to talk



           17     about a couple of motions that were outstanding and



           18     decisions that are coming verbally during this



           19     housekeeping session and also written, talk about some



           20     screen sharing and exhibits and maybe allow for a quick



           21     test of anybody's ability to do that today to take a



           22     little bit of the burden off Ms. Masengale, and then



           23     we'll turn to the scheduling question and



           24     Ms. Perlmutter's health.



           25          Does anybody else have agenda items we need to try
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            1     to cover before 9:00?  And making sure if we don't



            2     cover them before 9, we just take up housekeeping again



            3     after today's business.



            4          Mr. McMahan, anything else you want to add to the



            5     agenda?



            6                        MR. McMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank



            7     you.



            8          And, unfortunately, we have not checked in with



            9     Ms. Perlmutter today yet.



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  It's early.



           11                        MR. McMAHAN:  It's early.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



           13     Mr. Harper, from the County's perspective?



           14                        MR. HARPER:  Well, Your Honor, I



           15     think you probably identified this already in your



           16     comments, but if we could just do as a housekeeping



           17     matter kind of a confirmation of which exhibits have



           18     been requested for admission and admitted, that'd be



           19     helpful.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I think I



           21     have a pretty good list of that.  And I think it's good



           22     practice, Mr. Harper, to do that on a running basis, so



           23     we will do so.



           24          Ms. Reyneveld, anything else to add to the agenda?



           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Just briefly.  The





                                                                       273

�







            1     parties did want for me to clarify who had been



            2     involved in those kind of initial settlement



            3     discussions in the spring for the record, so I was



            4     going to provide some clarification on that.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We'll come to



            6     that.



            7          Ms. Voelckers, anything that the Yakama Nation



            8     wants added today?



            9                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Good morning.  Thank



           10     you, Your Honor.  Yes, we have reached out to



           11     Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Neutzmann, who were scheduled to



           12     be sworn in tomorrow and were -- they have made



           13     themselves available the second half of this morning to



           14     do that today since they are now the only ones, I



           15     believe, on the schedule for tomorrow, and no party has



           16     identified them for cross-examination.



           17          So we would like to propose that they be called



           18     today rather than doing all this tomorrow just for



           19     their swearing in.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm making a note of



           21     that.  Thank you.



           22          And, Mr. Aramburu, anything else for the



           23     housekeeping part of our discussion?



           24                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No.  I think it might



           25     be a good idea, if it's possible each day, for -- that
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            1     we get a running list of the exhibits so that we know



            2     what the official version is that's being kept.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



            4     I know that Ms. Masengale is keeping a master exhibit



            5     list.  And there's no reason that I don't think we



            6     could share that or at least a version of that with all



            7     the parties.  I'll check with her to make sure there's



            8     not any EFSEC internal information on the version that



            9     we're keeping.  But from what I've seen, it should be



           10     an easy request, Mr. Aramburu.



           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  Thank you.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me turn to



           13     the first item on my list.



           14          Ms. Voelckers, you had supplied me, about a week



           15     and a half, maybe two weeks ago, with your proposed



           16     order on the motions to supplement the record with the



           17     three Fish and Wildlife discovery depositions and also



           18     Mr. Aramburu's motion separately to admit the Dave



           19     Kobus deposition.



           20          There were no objections to that by the parties



           21     that I was made aware of, and I think your draft order



           22     referenced that.  And I think we talked about that at



           23     Prehearing Conference No. 4.  So I wrote up or edited



           24     the version you sent me, Ms. Voelckers.  It was a great



           25     start.  That should be coming out in writing sometime
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            1     this morning.  Ms. Owens is working on that as we



            2     speak.



            3          On the motion to compel -- I'll move to the next



            4     item on my list -- I wanted to give you essentially an



            5     oral ruling on that rather than spend the time writing.



            6     And if you're going to take notes, this is a good time



            7     to start on this, the motion to compel filed by



            8     Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S.



            9          My notes indicate that on July 28th, Mr. Aramburu



           10     filed the motion to compel certain documents to be



           11     produced by the applicant.  The motion was based on an



           12     impasse that was reached during discovery.  And in



           13     quick summary, the documents and the motions he's



           14     trying to compel production of are meteorological data;



           15     information about the applicant trying to do their



           16     interconnections with BPA, the Bonneville Power



           17     Association, and -- or Administration; and the



           18     estimated production of the various turbines, and



           19     essentially was questioning some of the commercial



           20     viability aspects of the proposed project.  And it may



           21     have been seeking proprietary data, some indication of



           22     that being discussed during testimony prefiled by a



           23     Witness Poulos, P-o-u-l-o-s.



           24          That was on a Friday afternoon.  And the following



           25     week, on Tuesday, August 1st, the applicant filed its
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            1     opposition.  And the applicant indicated there were



            2     four requests for production that they opposed.  And



            3     they were:  No. 1, based on the July 28th order that



            4     took BPA interconnection topics essentially off the



            5     table for this adjudication.



            6          They also, under RFP No. 2, cited to the Whistling



            7     Ridge case and the same order that I just referenced



            8     that I issued on July 28th.  That particular RFP was



            9     looking for wind resource potential, and the applicant



           10     contended that I had made that not a topic for the



           11     adjudication in the previous order.



           12          And looking at the Whistling Ridge previous



           13     prehearing conference order that was issued in that



           14     matter, making these kind of inquiries essentially



           15     not -- it's a business decision, and it'd be based on



           16     proprietary information.



           17          Request for Production No. 3 was opposed because



           18     it went into energy production of the turbines, and the



           19     applicant asserted again proprietary information there.



           20          And, finally, for the Request for Production



           21     No. 5, the applicant said that looking for a cost per



           22     kilowatt hour on what the savings or cost to the



           23     consumer might be was another commercial viability



           24     issue and not within the realm of EFSEC's mission or



           25     jurisdiction.
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            1          I looked at the Residents Opposed to Kittitas



            2     County and EFSEC matter that came out from the supreme



            3     court, otherwise known as the ROKT case, R-O-K-T, and



            4     it ruled according to 80.50.040, Sub 2, that under that



            5     statute, the economic viability of a proposed project



            6     was not relevant.  And the quote that I found



            7     persuasive there in favor of the applicant's arguments



            8     was as follows:



            9          "As economic analysis does not relate to



           10     environmental or ecological concerns, we" -- being the



           11     supreme court -- "believe that EFSEC was within its



           12     authority to refuse to review the economical viability



           13     of the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project."



           14          In the Whistling Ridge case, Administrative Law



           15     Judge Bob Wallis, on behalf of the Council, took the



           16     same approach.  His Prehearing Order No. 11, which is



           17     also labeled as Council Order No. 855, took a fairly



           18     careful and conservative approach to discovery,



           19     particularly of confidential and sensitive information.



           20          And in the Whistling Ridge case, that order



           21     followed the Kittitas Valley precedent from the supreme



           22     court and denied discovery based on the relevance of



           23     that information to the adjudication and the



           24     sensitivity of the proprietary data and information.



           25          So my ruling denying the motion is that I won't
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            1     break with the precedent established by the ROKT court



            2     or the ruling more recently in the Whistling Ridge



            3     matter.



            4          My prehearing orders in this case have already



            5     indicated that certain economic viability information



            6     is not germane or helpful to Council members or their



            7     work to develop a recommendation to the governor.  The



            8     discovery of BPA interconnection issues, wind resource



            9     potential data, and energy production and cost or rate



           10     analysis data is not authorized in this matter.  So,



           11     therefore, Mr. Aramburu, the TCC motion to compel those



           12     documents is denied.



           13          I'm going to see if the court reporter can get me



           14     a short little extract, a noncertified version of the



           15     transcript of what I just read to you.  If I do receive



           16     that from the court reporter, I'll forward it on to the



           17     parties or ask Ms. Masengale to post it as a summary of



           18     the ruling that I just gave you on those matters.



           19          On that note, as far as posting transcripts, I



           20     wanted to let you know that Andrea Grantham has already



           21     taken the hard work of taking yesterday's video of the



           22     hearing, many hours that it was, getting it



           23     appropriately edited and ready for prime time, and it's



           24     already up and linked with the YouTube video from



           25     yesterday's proceeding.  So we'll be asking any Council
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            1     members that might have missed anything to already go



            2     back and sort out and watch the portion of the video



            3     that they missed.



            4          All right.  It's now 8:41.  I wanted to ask



            5     parties that might have cross-examination exhibits for



            6     today if they wanted to test sharing one or more of



            7     those at this time.



            8          My look at the schedule says that when we get to



            9     Ms. Cooke's testimony that, Mr. McMahan, Scout Clean



           10     Energy may be doing at least a half an hour of



           11     cross-exam.  Did you intend to use any exhibits?



           12                        MR. McMAHAN:  We do not, Your Honor.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



           14          Mr. Aramburu, you had some other examination of



           15     this witness today as well.  Do you have any exhibits



           16     you're planning to share?



           17                        MR. ARAMBURU:  No.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  And for



           19     the Yakama Nation, Ms. Voelckers, any exhibits?



           20                        MS. VOELCKERS:  No exhibits today,



           21     Your Honor.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That's going to



           23     make Ms. Masengale's job that much easier this morning.



           24          If that changes for some reason or any of the



           25     other parties decide they have questions, we'll go from
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            1     there.



            2          If anybody wants to test screens later today after



            3     the adjudication portion of the day is done, let me



            4     know, and we'll stick around for some further testing.



            5          All right.  Let me turn to the last item that I



            6     had, and then we'll pick up the parties' items.



            7          Mr. McMahan, on Ms. Perlmutter's health, I hope



            8     it's going well.  You'll give us an update as we do.



            9          What other proposals did you and Ms. Stavitsky



           10     perhaps work out with the other parties for



           11     rescheduling the Jansen, Rahmig, and perhaps the McIvor



           12     examinations?



           13                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Hi, Your Honor.



           14     I'll take that one.



           15          So we checked in with our Scout witness Morgan



           16     Shook, who is currently scheduled to testify on next



           17     Tuesday, the 22nd.  And he is available for questioning



           18     tomorrow.  So, again, we're trying to find ways to sort



           19     of front-load this week to fill the time that



           20     Mr. Rahmig and Mr. Jansen were -- and Mr. McIvor were



           21     going to take.  So if that works for everyone else, he



           22     could be slotted into tomorrow's morning session.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I'm just



           24     looking for where Mr. Shook had originally been on the



           25     schedule.
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            1                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Yeah.  So he was --



            2     his testimony was set to begin Tuesday, August 22nd, at



            3     11:40 a.m. and span past lunch to 2:30.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



            5     I've got that now.  I skipped right past him.  And if



            6     my eyes are crossing this early in the morning, that's



            7     not a good sign.



            8          Ms. Stavitsky, I wanted to let you know there's a



            9     little bit of interference when you're speaking.  I



           10     don't know if it's, again, a microphone issue that I



           11     was having, but it will be easier for the court



           12     reporter if both of us keep it slow and deliberate



           13     here.



           14          Do any of the parties have a concern if Mr. Shook



           15     moves the testimony from Tuesday, August 22nd?  Looks



           16     like there's at least an hour and a half to two hours



           17     scheduled for his testimony if we move that to tomorrow



           18     on Wednesday, August 16th.



           19          Mr. Harper, any concern with that?



           20                        MR. HARPER:  No concern.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, any



           22     concern?



           23                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor, I would



           24     just like to flag a general concern if we're going to



           25     keep shifting around witnesses.  This is being proposed
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            1     to us in real time.  So we were not approached by the



            2     applicant about these changes since yesterday's



            3     hearing.



            4          And so I don't want to speak for the other parties



            5     that have expressed a desire to cross-examine



            6     Mr. Shook, because we will not be, but we are concerned



            7     about continuing shifting of schedules.



            8          So, I mean, I just have a general concern that --



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Noted.



           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  -- (indiscernible)



           11     to respond.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Noted.  But I'm



           13     guessing because you're not going to have any



           14     cross-examination questions, we're going to shift



           15     witnesses.  Just make it a continuing objection,



           16     Ms. Voelckers.  I sympathize, but I got to do what I



           17     got to do.  And it was the parties that asked me to



           18     give up, I'll remind you, two days of hearing time.



           19          I worried about this.  We gave them up, and they



           20     were on the -- on the front end, not on the back end.



           21     So I can't add time back in.  Work with me on this,



           22     please.



           23          Ms. Reyneveld, any concerns?



           24                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I have no concerns,



           25     Your Honor.  Thank you.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, you were



            2     the other one with the more extensive cross-examination



            3     for next week on Tuesday.



            4          Can you have it ready to go tomorrow?  I know



            5     we're going to have additional time today, and I know



            6     that other parties had seemed to think that the



            7     applicant could magically take over Ms. Perlmutter's



            8     duties by tomorrow.



            9          Can you accelerate what you had planned for next



           10     Tuesday, please?



           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  We'll work with the



           12     parties and with the witness, and we'll be ready to go



           13     for Mr. Shook tomorrow.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Consider



           15     it done.



           16          Ms. Stavitsky, do you have a time suggested for



           17     tomorrow?



           18                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, I would



           19     propose that we can slot Mr. Shook in right where we



           20     were supposed to take up with Mr. Rahmig tomorrow, so



           21     that would be at 9 a.m.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  And that may



           23     carry us to about 11 a.m.  And that would be a good use



           24     of the time we had scheduled up to 11:30.  And we'll



           25     have already moved up the Ganuelas and Nuetzmann
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            1     swearing in.



            2          If there's anything else we can use up until for



            3     another hour tomorrow, you'll let me know.  But, again,



            4     work that out with the parties that have the



            5     cross-examination prescheduled.  And, again, I'll note



            6     the Yakama Nation's continuing concern for the



            7     shuffling that we're doing.  It's difficult, and I



            8     appreciate if all the parties would just work with each



            9     other and essentially stipulate we're going to try to



           10     get this done in the eight days we have.  It was pretty



           11     efficient yesterday.  I do appreciate that.  But we're



           12     working in real time, as you said, and trying to keep



           13     the information flowing.



           14          All right.  That's taking care of that.



           15          Was the applicant aware of any other scheduling



           16     issues impacted by Ms. Perlmutter's ongoing health



           17     concern?



           18                        MS. STAVITSKY:  No, Your Honor.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  And --



           20                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Hold on one second.



           22          Ms. Reyneveld, as to Mr. McIvor, have you let him



           23     know what's going on there?



           24                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I have.  And my



           25     understanding is Mr. McIvor is flexible.  And so if we
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            1     needed to slate him into Tuesday or Wednesday, that



            2     would also be a possibility.  But I would have to



            3     confirm.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Keep working



            5     with the other parties.  And we'll see how that one



            6     comes out.



            7          Ms. Voelckers, you had something else?



            8                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your



            9     Honor.  I just wanted to finish my statement earlier,



           10     which would be a request that we do determine who is



           11     going to be going in that time slot on Tuesday as soon



           12     as possible rather than waiting till next week.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  And we will have



           14     another housekeeping opportunity either this afternoon



           15     after our proceeding.  That may not be particularly



           16     informative, but definitely tomorrow morning we will



           17     get an update.



           18          All right.  Let's move on to your documents.



           19          Ms. Masengale, do you happen to be on the line



           20     already?



           21                        MS. MASENGALE:  Yes, Judge.  This is



           22     Lisa Masengale.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you have that



           24     master exhibit list that you've been keeping up for me



           25     and the rest of staff and the counsel?
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            1                        MS. MASENGALE:  I do.  And I sent it



            2     to the party e-mail list a few minutes ago.  It's dated



            3     with today's date, but it was last updated a little



            4     after 5 p.m. last night.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  And would you tell the



            6     parties, please, how you're annotating the list as we



            7     go to indicate what's admitted, rejected, or



            8     particularly on the order yesterday, how Mr. Aramburu's



            9     citizen and community member testimony was



           10     recharacterized?



           11                        MS. MASENGALE:  Absolutely.



           12          So there's three columns a little to the -- to the



           13     right of the middle.  It'll make more sense if you have



           14     it in front of you.  But basically those columns are



           15     added to the template that the parties are providing to



           16     me, so it has some additional data in there.



           17          And there's three columns basically indicating if



           18     something was admitted, whether it was rejected or --



           19     or stricken or if it has been withdrawn.



           20          And so as a determination is made on the exhibits,



           21     I am trying to update that in real time.  And the notes



           22     column is mostly for my reference, but parties may find



           23     that helpful as well, indicating when something was



           24     admitted or when something was stricken, or some of



           25     them are notes for me about why it was a revised
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            1     exhibit.



            2          So, again, that last column might make more sense



            3     to me than to the parties, but I'm providing you with



            4     the exact list that I am working off of right now.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thanks,



            6     Ms. Masengale.  And if the parties have questions about



            7     that, I hope they'll e-mail and copy the other parties



            8     so that everybody can benefit from any information that



            9     you didn't just convey if it's not self-evident.



           10          So hopefully, parties, that's going to work.  And



           11     I know Ms. Masengale, as she said, she's doing that in



           12     real time.  If she has time at the end of each day,



           13     I'll ask that she send it out so you have it sooner



           14     rather than the morning of, and for your own



           15     housekeeping purposes, can keep tracking on what



           16     exhibit were there.



           17          Ms. Masengale, we had some cross-exam exhibits.



           18     Are you adding those and indicating the ones that were



           19     offered and ruled on?



           20                        MS. MASENGALE:  That is correct.  As



           21     I receive e-mails with cross exhibits and the updated



           22     exhibit list from parties with those cross exhibits,



           23     I'm adding those in.  And then as the parties move to



           24     admit those, those are being indicated in there as



           25     well.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  And you and I spoke



            2     yesterday just about the timing and, again, this



            3     in-real-time item.  Can you give the parties kind of a



            4     best practice, at least notional best practice for them



            5     to aspire to, to make -- help you help them?



            6                        MS. MASENGALE:  Absolutely.  I know



            7     the -- the needs and the best practice for -- for the



            8     parties and their legal counsel may be different than



            9     for me, the records officer.  But as the records



           10     person, ideally, if I could get things at least by the



           11     day before.  In a perfect world, that way I have time



           12     to appropriately add them to the main exhibit list and



           13     have them ready, especially if I need to help parties



           14     share their exhibits.



           15          That way it's just a little bit tough.  I can't



           16     process e-mails if I'm sharing my screen.  So just the



           17     logistics of processing things that might arrive during



           18     the hearings is a little complicated if things are also



           19     arriving during the hearing as well that might need to



           20     be referenced or shown on screen immediately.



           21          So, if possible, from my perspective, it's great



           22     if you can get them to me at least the night before,



           23     but I understand for legal reasons you might not want



           24     to do that.  But from my perspective, it'd be super



           25     helpful.  So thank you.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I want to



            2     compliment Ms. Masengale, much as Mr. Harper did



            3     yesterday, for really, really good work that she's



            4     doing to help all of us keep this massive information



            5     load going forward.  It services the Council well.



            6     And, Mr. Harper, no, you can't hire her away from



            7     EFSEC.



            8          All right.  The Ganuelas and Nuetzmann testimony



            9     being adopted today, anybody have objections to that?



           10     I'm seeing some head nods "no."  No objections.



           11          So, Ms. Voelckers, what time would you think we



           12     can take and adopt their testimony today?



           13                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your



           14     Honor.  I think that we can stick to the schedule in



           15     terms of Ms. Cooke's testimony and then have them adopt



           16     it after she's done.  We would just ask for a brief



           17     break.  But they -- they should be available starting a



           18     little bit after 10.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That sounds



           20     good.



           21          We'll get a chance to break, then call them and



           22     have them available.



           23          And, Ms. Reyneveld, you had the last question



           24     about the status of who was involved in settlement



           25     items.
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            1                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes.  Per the



            2     parties' request, I just wanted to provide some



            3     clarification for the record pertaining to the



            4     settlement discussions between applicant and counsel



            5     for the environment in the spring.



            6          Upon review of my correspondence and meeting



            7     invitations, I wanted to clarify for the record that



            8     Yakama Nation was invited into and participated in a



            9     meeting to discuss the proposal and provided a copy of



           10     the settlement proposal, but TCC and Benton County were



           11     not invited to these discussions.  It was certainly my



           12     intent to involve them had the settlement discussions



           13     progressed or continued.  And Mr. McMahan, I believe,



           14     has now provided all parties with the settlement



           15     proposal.  Is that correct?



           16                        MR. McMAHAN:  That is correct,



           17     Ms. Reyneveld.



           18                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That was my update.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do parties have any



           20     other questions for the record about the status and who



           21     participated in those settlement items?



           22          All right.  Seeing none.



           23          We've managed to push through an hour of material,



           24     I think, in 25 minutes.  Thank you for letting me push



           25     hard on those.
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            1          Let's take a break until 9:00.  We'll go on the



            2     record then, and we'll get started with Ms. Cooke's



            3     adoption of her testimony and cross-exam.



            4          Thank you.  We'll be back on here in about five



            5     minutes.



            6                               (Pause in proceedings from



            7                                8:55 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.)



            8



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning,



           10     everyone.  This is Day 2 of our adjudicative hearing in



           11     the Horse Heaven wind power project.



           12          I'm going ask our staff today to just take a poll



           13     of who's here from the Council.  I know we have one



           14     that's running late and will be listening in to the



           15     recording at a later time here.



           16          And I see our witness is here already.  Ms. Cooke,



           17     good morning.  We'll get to you very shortly.



           18          If the staff could call the roll.



           19                        MS. SHILEY:  When I proceed through



           20     the roll call, please be sure to state your name for



           21     the record as well as your status as present.  Thank



           22     you.



           23          EFSEC Chair.



           24                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Kathleen Drew,



           25     present.
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            1                        MS. SHILEY:  Department of Commerce.



            2          Department of Ecology.



            3                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt,



            4     present.



            5                        MS. SHILEY:  Department of Fish and



            6     Wildlife.



            7                        COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:  Mike



            8     Livingston, present.



            9                        MS. SHILEY:  Department of Natural



           10     Resources.



           11                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Lenny Young,



           12     present.



           13                        MS. SHILEY:  Utilities and



           14     Transportation Commission.



           15                        COUNCIL MEMBER BREWSTER:  Stacey



           16     Brewster, present.



           17                        MS. SHILEY:  For the Horse Heaven



           18     project:  Department of Agriculture.



           19          And Benton County.



           20          All right.  Judge Torem, that's who we have.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  So it



           22     looks to me that Mr. Brost will have to review some of



           23     the testimony at a later date, and I think it's Kate



           24     Kelly for Commerce.



           25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge Torem, this is





                                                                       293

�







            1     Andrea Grantham.  Really quick:  For Department of



            2     Commerce, it is Elizabeth Osborne now.  She is our new



            3     Department of Commerce Council member.  She did inform



            4     us that she will be running a bit late this morning.



            5          Also, I do see Ed Brost's phone number online.  It



            6     is just muted.  So he is here.  I just -- Mr. Brost, if



            7     you would like to try to unmute, you can do "#6" or



            8     "*6" and see if you can confirm that you are present.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We'll see



           10     if Mr. Brost, at least if he's called in, we'll figure



           11     out with him.  Maybe Ms. Grantham can send another



           12     e-mail and sort out any confirmation.



           13          Let's go over the parties and make sure



           14     everybody's present.



           15          For the applicant today.



           16                        MR. McMAHAN:  Your Honor, applicant



           17     is present.  Tim McMahan -- excuse me -- with --



           18     with -- excuse me -- Emily Schimelpfenig and Ariel



           19     Stavitsky.



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you,



           21     Mr. McMahan.



           22          For Benton County.



           23                        MR. HARPER:  Good morning, Your



           24     Honor.  Ken Harper and Z. Foster for Benton County.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  Counsel for the
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            1     environment.



            2                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Good morning, Your



            3     Honor.  Sarah Reyneveld for counsel for the



            4     environment.  Thank you.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  For the Yakama Nation.



            6                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Good morning, Your



            7     Honor, Shona Voelckers, Ethan Jones, and Jessica



            8     Houston for the Yakama Nation.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  And for Tri-Cities



           10     C.A.R.E.S.



           11                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Richard Aramburu for



           12     Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.  Thank you, Your Honor.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council



           14     members, today's agenda, if you looked at the daily



           15     schedule, I've already had a housekeeping meeting with



           16     the parties and gone over some of the schedule



           17     modifications that are necessary by moving the Jansen



           18     and Rahmig testimonies to a later date, as well as



           19     tomorrow's McIvor testimony that's scheduled at 10:30.



           20          Just as I think you heard yesterday, we have some



           21     questions of one of the attorney's health and



           22     participating in cross and redirect of those witnesses.



           23     Today we do have Michelle Cooke.  She's scheduled here



           24     at 9:00 for about an hour and a half to two hours of



           25     examination.  I hope you've read her testimony, which I
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            1     believe is Exhibit 2003.



            2          Mr. Harper, is that correct?



            3                        MR. HARPER:  That's correct, Your



            4     Honor.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  The parties have done



            6     some shuffling, Council members, to see if we can adopt



            7     certain testimony from the Yakama Nation's witnesses



            8     tomorrow that were originally scheduled at 11:30 on



            9     Wednesday, August 16th.  Those would be for Leon



           10     Ganuelas and Mark Nuetzmann.



           11          Today when we take Mr. Ganuelas's adoption of his



           12     testimony, much of it is subject to confidentiality



           13     provisions, so my proposal to staff was that we attempt



           14     to see, on kind of a low-threat environment



           15     opportunity, how the procedures we've developed to move



           16     us all into a breakout room for a closed-record session



           17     might work.



           18          So today when we're done with Ms. Cooke's



           19     testimony and we get Mr. Ganuelas and Mr. Nuetzmann



           20     together, I think what I'll do is take Mr. Nuetzmann,



           21     have him adopt his testimony, and let him go, and then



           22     Mr. Ganuelas, we'll all see how it works for us to go



           23     into closed-record session to adopt his testimony, work



           24     out any glitches on that today when we have a little



           25     extra time.  That way when we take a number of other
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            1     confidential matters in a closed-record session next



            2     week it looks like, we'll have a better idea how that



            3     all works and be able to be that much more efficient.



            4          I think the only other update is the exhibit



            5     running list that Lisa Masengale is updating in real



            6     time has now been shared with the parties, so they'll



            7     also be tracking, Council members, what we made sure



            8     you understood yesterday afternoon for your purposes of



            9     keeping score.



           10          I think those are all the things that I covered



           11     with the attorneys during housekeeping that I wanted



           12     you to know about.



           13          You'll also have seen that Ms. Grantham sent an



           14     e-mail this morning to the service list linking to



           15     yesterday's video of the entire hearing.  So those



           16     members that missed anything or think they need to



           17     review anything on the video side can get it there.



           18          Transcripts may take a little longer to hit the



           19     website, particularly because we're using the same



           20     court reporter for the bulk of this adjudicative



           21     hearing.  So in mercy to the court reporter, we're not



           22     asking him to continue to work that many more hours



           23     after what we do each day.



           24          All right.  Anything else from the parties by just



           25     a raising of your hand electronically before I swear in
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            1     Ms. Cooke?



            2          All right.  I'm not seeing any.



            3          I have one, looks like open microphone on a "509"



            4     number.  We'll see if staff -- it starts with a "53,"



            5     something.  If you can mute yourself, that'd be great.



            6     Otherwise I'll have --



            7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Judge.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- do that.



            9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Okay.  Yeah, this is



           10     Andrea.  That was Ed Brost's number.  Just letting you



           11     know.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  I know you had



           13     manually maybe unmuted that.  But I haven't heard



           14     anything from Mr. Brost yet.  And hopefully if he has a



           15     question for Ms. Cooke, we can unmute him at that time.



           16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Sounds good.



           17                               (Witness Michelle Cooke



           18                                appearing remotely.)



           19



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Not seeing



           21     any other delays.  Let me -- Ms. Cooke, I'm Judge



           22     Torem.  Good morning.  I've got your --



           23                        THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Your



           24     Honor.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  I've got your prefiled
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            1     testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, in front of me.  And our



            2     process is going to be that I swear you in, ask you to



            3     adopt that testimony.  Let us know if there's any



            4     changes, modifications.  And then I'll turn you over



            5     for cross-examination, unless Mr. Harper, I think your



            6     sponsoring witness, has anything else.  So I'll ask



            7     him, and then we'll go from there.



            8          So if you'll raise your --



            9                        MR. HARPER:  No, Your Honor.  That's



           10     fine.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- right hand.



           12                        MR. HARPER:  I'm sorry.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Ms. Cooke,



           14     if you'll raise your right hand.



           15



           16     MICHELLE COOKE,             appearing remotely, was duly



           17                                 sworn by the Administrative



           18                                 Law Judge as follows:



           19



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you solemnly swear



           21     or affirm that all the testimony contained in your



           22     prefiled testimony, Exhibit 2003_T, and the rest of



           23     your testimony provided today will be the truth, the



           24     whole truth, and nothing but the truth?



           25                        THE WITNESS:  I do.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Now that



            2     you've adopted your testimony, that exhibit can be



            3     marked admitted.



            4                               (Exhibit No. 2003_T



            5                                admitted.)



            6



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  Did you have any



            8     modifications or updates you wanted to share before



            9     cross-exam?



           10                        THE WITNESS:  I do not.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then I'm



           12     going to look at my schedule and see who has questions



           13     first.



           14          I believe Mr. McMahan from Scout Clean Energy has



           15     questions for you, then Mr. Aramburu from Tri-Cities



           16     C.A.R.E.S., and then Ms. Voelckers from the Yakama



           17     Nation.  After that, I'll see if anybody else from



           18     Council members have questions as well as other parties



           19     that didn't specifically list anything.  And depending



           20     on what's asked, I may have some questions for you as



           21     well.



           22          Mr. McMahan, we'll mute here in Lacey, and we'll



           23     turn it over to you.



           24                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           25     ////
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            1                        CROSS-EXAMINATION



            2     BY MR. McMAHAN:



            3  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Tim McMahan.  I'm lead



            4     counsel representing Scout Clean Energy in these



            5     proceedings.  Thank you for being here today.



            6  A  Good morning.



            7  Q  Just to --



            8  A  And thank you.



            9  Q  Yes.  Thank you.



           10          And I just was -- I just violated what I was just



           11     about to say, which is yesterday Mr. Wendt and I tended



           12     to talk over each other a little too often.  I'm sure I



           13     have 50 percent of that responsibility.  So if I do



           14     that -- I will try not to -- and I think you and I can



           15     perhaps develop a vibe where that doesn't happen, so I



           16     promise to do my part there.  And, yeah, I think that



           17     was kind of the main thing I just wanted to introduce.



           18     So let me know.



           19          And I also tend to be a fast talker.  I will try



           20     to discipline myself there as well.  But if I go too



           21     fast -- I don't know -- show me a hand or something,



           22     and I'll slow myself down.  All right?



           23  A  Okay.



           24  Q  All right.  Thank you.



           25          Ms. Cooke, getting into your testimony here, on
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            1     Page 10 of your testimony, you state that fragmentation



            2     from the project will cause the children of landowners



            3     to be less likely to -- and you're -- you're in



            4     quotes -- leave their non-farming-related jobs in order



            5     to renew the farming legacy, the legacy of farming.



            6          Are you insinuating that it is the County's



            7     land-use policy or role to influence the succession



            8     planning of farming families?



            9  A  No.  I -- no.  I was not insinuating that at all.  I



           10     was insinuating it's the scope of the County to



           11     practice good planning, that -- which leads not to the



           12     fragmentation of agricultural lands, which are



           13     economically important to our area.  It's not a socio-



           14     impact to a certain family or demographic.  It's the



           15     protection and conservation of the agricultural lands



           16     as a whole and keeping those from fragmenting.



           17  Q  And we'll get into this a little further.



           18          So is it actually your testimony that this



           19     project, around 1 percent of the overall agricultural



           20     lands in the County, will in fact interrupt succession



           21     planning or make it more difficult for farmers to farm?



           22  A  I think it's -- it's a lot more likely, yes.



           23     Absolutely.  Especially the farming portion, seeing as



           24     that a majority of the land that's going to be lost or



           25     the term of the lease is under solar, and you can't
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            1     farm under solar panels.  So, yeah, absolutely, I do



            2     think that.



            3  Q  For the solar facility.  Okay.



            4          Have you -- did you ever reach out to landowners



            5     and farmers involved in the project to ask them what



            6     their long-term plans were for their lands?



            7  A  I didn't reach out to specific lease owners, as that



            8     information was not made publicly available to myself.



            9     I would have for sure if I would have known who those



           10     lease owners were.  But I did reach out to other people



           11     that I know in the area and asked questions about their



           12     practices and what they would do in a similar



           13     circumstance.



           14  Q  So you're saying you -- you had no idea who these lease



           15     owners or landowners were that were involved in the



           16     project, never?



           17  A  I was never made aware of who they were or where to



           18     find that information.



           19  Q  Okay.  Are you aware of any other Benton County



           20     representative that reached out to landowners or



           21     farmers who were involved in the project to ask about



           22     their long-term plans for their lands?



           23  A  I'm not aware, but it's not the scope of the County to



           24     get involved with private leases between farmers and --



           25     and developers.  It would be unheard of -- it would be
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            1     unheard of for me, my staff, or anyone else here at



            2     the -- at the County to get involved or ask questions



            3     about the nature of a lease or their impressions for



            4     any development, whether it's this one, a subdivision,



            5     or anything of -- of that nature.



            6  Q  So you are, in fact, not aware of any such outreach to



            7     these landowners.



            8          That's the answer to your question?



            9  A  No.  Yeah, that's the answer to my question.



           10  Q  Okay.  So in your testimony, Page 9, Lines 5 through



           11     6 -- and if you need to pull that up, I'm fine with you



           12     doing so.



           13  A  I'm -- can you also put that on the screen for us as



           14     well?



           15  Q  You know, I don't have it on -- I'm not able to share



           16     it on the screen.  Ms. Masengale --



           17  A  You said Page 5, Lines 9 -- 5 through 6?



           18  Q  5 through 9.



           19                        MS. STAVITSKY:  We'll work to get



           20     that on the screen.



           21                        MR. McMAHAN:  If you need it on the



           22     screen, we can pull it up, or if you've got it in your



           23     hand, I think we can proceed.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I



           25     understand that Ms. Masengale is in the process of
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            1     pulling that exhibit up.



            2          Ms. Cooke, if you wait for Mr. McMahan to finish



            3     the question just half a breath, I think it's going to



            4     make the gentleman to my right a little happier.  It's



            5     just --



            6                        THE WITNESS:  Okay.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- the nature of court



            8     reporting.  It's not a -- I have to tell a lot of



            9     witnesses it's just not a normal conversation.  It's



           10     being taken down verbatim.  Anything you and



           11     Mr. McMahan can do on this dance and the other counsel



           12     will help.



           13          All right.  And here comes your exhibit.  We're



           14     going to go to Page 5, Lines 5 through 7.



           15          Thank you, Ms. Masengale.



           16          Mr. McMahan, if you want to --



           17                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- re-ask your



           19     question.



           20                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.



           21  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  In your testimony, Ms. Cooke, you



           22     indicate -- and I'm quoting -- "The land is more



           23     suitable for continuing farming industry in Benton



           24     County than being put to use as a large industrial



           25     project."
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            1          Is that your testimony?



            2  A  Yes, as you can see clearly in the exhibit, that is my



            3     testimony.



            4  Q  Shouldn't the property owners, themselves, be the ones



            5     to determine how best to manage their farmlands and



            6     their family legacy?



            7  A  That's an interesting question.  Unfortunately, the



            8     State of Washington mandates land-use planning



            9     practices, which is our office's purview.  So although



           10     the line sometimes is contentious about private



           11     property owners' rights and what they can and can't and



           12     should and should not do with their property and what



           13     the state law mandates the County to regulate, it's a



           14     little contentious.



           15          And so for us as land-use planners to do -- uphold



           16     what the State has charged us with, we have determined



           17     these areas are suitable for farming as they are zoned



           18     agricultural.



           19  Q  Right.



           20          And, in fact -- and, in fact, farming will



           21     continue on the wind energy site after the construction



           22     of the facility, won't it?



           23  A  Yes.  Unfortunately, that's a minority of the property



           24     that's going to be lost.  You cannot farm under solar



           25     panels, and that's a majority of the acres lost.
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            1  Q  I understand what you're saying.



            2          So -- so you -- you -- are you insinuating that



            3     the planning department should decide the destiny of



            4     these landowners?



            5  A  The -- the County has zoned this as agriculture, and we



            6     are maintaining those permitted uses, which are



            7     agricultural in nature.  We're not deciding what people



            8     should and should not do with their property.  There is



            9     a list of allowed uses, and those are what are



           10     permitted on the property.  If someone wants to go



           11     outside of that, then that would be not consistent with



           12     what the State has mandated us to do in these areas,



           13     and that would be going against our County code.



           14  Q  Is there anything that restricts renewable energy



           15     development based upon the soil classification?



           16  A  Can you repeat your question?



           17  Q  Is there anything that restricts renewable energy



           18     development on these lands based on soil



           19     classification?



           20  A  I'm not aware that there is.



           21  Q  And isn't it true that, at least what I think I'm



           22     hearing, is that you or the planning department decide



           23     what is compatible for these landowners on behalf of



           24     these landowners?



           25  A  We don't decide that.  Our county code, which has been
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            1     adopted into law, lays that out.



            2  Q  But for this project, are you -- is it your role to



            3     decide whether or not renewable energy is -- is allowed



            4     as a compatible use on the wind facility portion of



            5     this project?



            6  A  For this project, it's EFSEC's role to decide whether



            7     or not compatibility is there.



            8  Q  Okay.  All right.  Good.  Well, we agree on that, then.



            9          So concerning the soils classification, is there



           10     anything that restricts development on the land based



           11     upon soil classification?



           12  A  Not to my understanding.  But the land was designated



           13     as soil classification is a consideration, one of eight



           14     considerations that -- that are used to designate ag



           15     lands.



           16  Q  And do you have knowledge of the farm soils on this



           17     property, on -- excuse me -- on the -- on this -- on



           18     the -- on the area that's proposed for development?



           19  A  It's a very large area, so I'm not specifically aware



           20     of what they are, but I did take an active role in our



           21     ag lands reclassification, and I know that they're not



           22     poor soils.



           23  Q  But your testimony, you characterize this as prime



           24     farmland, right?



           25  A  Yes.
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            1  Q  Okay.



            2  A  Like I said, there's eight factors that go into --



            3  Q  Yes.



            4  A  -- prime farmland, not just soils.



            5  Q  I understand that.



            6          Prime farmland designation, however, is typically



            7     referencing USDA NRCS farmland classification, correct?



            8  A  Are you speaking as far as soils go?



            9  Q  Yes.  So far as soils go.



           10  A  That's one of eight tests to designate ag lands of



           11     long-term significance.



           12  Q  Yes.  And I'm talking about your testimony that calls



           13     this project prime farmland.



           14          You do state that in your testimony, don't you?



           15  A  Yes.



           16  Q  And isn't it true that for this particular soil -- and



           17     I know you come from a farming family.



           18          Isn't it true that for the Ritzville silt loam



           19     soils, which is about 92 percent -- I can -- I can



           20     represent to you 92 percent of the project lease



           21     boundary, is classified as prime farmland if irrigated,



           22     correct?



           23  A  No, that's not correct.  It has to do with water



           24     availability, including precipitation.



           25  Q  So you're disputing that definition from USDA NRCS data
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            1     concerning the -- the characteristics of prime



            2     farmland?



            3  A  As I said, it's one of eight criterias.  And water and



            4     precipitation is another criteria.  So those factored



            5     together.  So if there's enough precipitation for



            6     dryland wheat farming, those soils, that area, are



            7     suitable as an agricultural area.



            8  Q  And you are aware that none of this property is



            9     irrigated, correct?



           10  A  I am aware.



           11  Q  All right.



           12  A  But it does have good precipitation levels.



           13  Q  Well, what is the annual precipitation per year in this



           14     area?



           15  A  In -- in this area?  I believe it's -- well, and I



           16     can't say this for sure on the record, but the last



           17     time I read the memo, I want to say it's four to six



           18     inches of rain a year, roughly.



           19  Q  So rather arid, isn't it?



           20  A  Not for dryland wheat.  That's enough.



           21  Q  But it is arid land up there, isn't it?



           22  A  It's dryland.  It's not arid.



           23  Q  Okay.  Right.



           24          Is it your -- oh, let's see.



           25          So is your testimony that this location, Benton
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            1     County, differs from other dryland wheat areas in the



            2     Northwest is just somehow unique, or is it pretty --



            3     typical?



            4  A  I'm not familiar with other dryland wheat operations in



            5     the Northwest as I'm not from there.



            6  Q  Okay.  Where are you from?  I'm sorry.  That's



            7     interesting.



            8          Where are you from?



            9  A  I'm from Prosser, Washington, the Horse Heaven Hills.



           10  Q  Okay.



           11  A  But I'm not familiar with the other dryland wheat



           12     regions of Washington State, such as the Palouse,



           13     because I'm not from there, and I don't know --



           14  Q  All right.



           15  A  -- what their yields are like.



           16  Q  I understand.  Thanks for the clarification there.



           17          What about for Nine Canyon?  Are you aware that



           18     that is dryland wheat, unirrigated, on the Nine Canyon



           19     wind farm?



           20  A  I don't know what the history of Nine Canyon was, but



           21     given the topography of where it's located, I would



           22     have -- I would have assumed that it was not dryland.



           23     My assumption is it was probably rangeland, because



           24     it's on top of a hill.  But I don't know that for a



           25     fact, because I wasn't in the country at the time it
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            1     was developed.



            2  Q  So you are speculating with that answer, aren't you?



            3  A  You're asking me a question I can't answer, so yes.



            4  Q  Yes, you're speculating.  Thank you.



            5          Have you visited other wind farms in Oregon or



            6     Washington?



            7  A  I have.  On a --



            8  Q  Which wind farms?



            9          Excuse me.



           10  A  I haven't --



           11  Q  I'm sorry.



           12  A  I haven't on a professional level.  I have on a



           13     personal level.  I've visited the one out in Bickleton.



           14  Q  Okay.  In -- in Klickitat County, then?



           15  A  In Klickitat County.



           16  Q  All right.  And have you discussed farm operations with



           17     any farmers out in the Klickitat County area?



           18  A  I have.  I...



           19  Q  And have you discussed whether or not -- well, have you



           20     discussed with those farmers in Klickitat County



           21     whether their farming operations are in any way



           22     disrupted by the renewable energy development that's



           23     hosted on their lands?



           24  A  I haven't -- I haven't had conversations with the



           25     actual landowners who have the turbines on their
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            1     properties.  I've had conversations with adjacent



            2     landowners in the area, so I can't answer that



            3     question.



            4  Q  All right.  Thank you.



            5          Do you dispute that farmers customarily farm



            6     around local topography, including, you know, for



            7     example, canyons, sloped areas?



            8          I mean, it's pretty typical, isn't it, for farmers



            9     to farm around topographic features?



           10  A  It is.  And in our area, it's a very small percentage



           11     of the -- of the land.  Because the Horse Heaven Hills



           12     is a mesa and very flat, we do have some areas of



           13     shrub-steppe habitat and critical areas in the -- in



           14     the drainages, and they do farm around those areas.



           15  Q  And the farmers can customarily farm around, oh, power



           16     poles, ditches, many things, right?



           17  A  Typically in the Horse Heaven Hills, they don't have



           18     any of those, as ditches are not and irrigation is not



           19     up there, and all of the power poles run along the road



           20     right-of-way infrastructure, so they don't need to go



           21     around those necessarily.  Those are on the periphery



           22     of their operations.



           23  Q  So you're saying that entire area up on the Horse



           24     Heaven Hills is all flat as a table.



           25          Is that what you're saying?
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            1  A  It's predominantly flat.  It's not flat as a pancake,



            2     but it's predominantly flat.  There are some rolling



            3     hills, but not to any great extent.  The slopes are on



            4     the fringe.



            5  Q  In your -- I want to just turn to your testimony about



            6     support services.



            7          And is it your testimony -- I believe it's your



            8     testimony that due to Horse Heaven, somehow the



            9     agricultural economy will wither, that farmers will let



           10     the land go, all because of the construction of the



           11     solar and wind projects.



           12          Is that your testimony?



           13  A  Can you reference where you're finding that at in my



           14     testimony?



           15  Q  Page 6.



           16  A  And what line?



           17  Q  I am not sure about that.



           18                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  All right.



           19     Yeah, could you scroll down, please.



           20          Yeah, I'm going to come back to that.  I'm sorry,



           21     Ms. Cooke.  I want to come back to that, so if you



           22     could just hold on that, we're going to -- we're going



           23     to revisit that in a minute.



           24  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Is it your opinion that this 1



           25     percent of Benton County farms proposed for wind and
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            1     solar development will actually destroy agricultural



            2     support services?



            3  A  Can you define what you mean by destroy agricultural



            4     support systems?



            5  Q  Well, agricultural support industries, agricultural



            6     support systems.  Things like selling fertilizer,



            7     seeing things like selling equipment, tractors.



            8     Agricultural support services, which you have -- have



            9     provided testimony about.



           10          Is it your opinion that this project, at 1 percent



           11     or so of the local agricultural economy, will somehow



           12     undermine those agricultural services?



           13  A  Well, I'm not exactly qualified to speak to economic



           14     development and farming practices such as that.  I do



           15     believe that this project will impact those services.



           16          Will it destroy or undermine?  Those are very



           17     aggressive words, and I don't -- I think that's taking



           18     it a little too brusque.  But I do believe it will have



           19     impact to the support services of those types of



           20     businesses that help the farmers out in that area.



           21  Q  And do you deny that new revenues from the wind leases



           22     will spur further investments by these landowners?



           23  A  In what capacity are you speaking?



           24  Q  Any capacity.



           25          Will the new revenues for these landowners, with
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            1     new generation of additional income, is it your opinion



            2     that that -- that that will not spur further



            3     investments?



            4  A  Further investments into what?  Stocks or into their



            5     land or what?



            6  Q  Into their land.  Into their farming operations.



            7     Into buying --



            8  A  I -- I can't speak to what the farmers are --



            9  Q  Excuse me.



           10  A  -- going to do --



           11  Q  Excuse me.



           12  A  -- with their payouts.



           13  Q  Excuse me.  We're not going to talk over each other.



           14          Tractors, any equipment.



           15  A  I can't --



           16  Q  Go ahead.



           17  A  -- speak to that.  I don't -- I don't know what the --



           18     the personal financial agenda is for -- for the farmers



           19     getting the payouts.



           20  Q  All right.  Well, let's try this.



           21          With lease revenues, do you deny that farmers will



           22     not make additional investments in things like repair



           23     and replacement of old equipment?



           24  A  I would hope so.  But that's speculation on my part,



           25     that I'm hoping that they will put the money back into
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            1     the land and continue and improve their practices.  I



            2     don't know that.  That's speculation on my part.



            3  Q  Enhancement of crop -- of crop -- of protection of



            4     crops?



            5  A  Is that a question?



            6  Q  Yes.



            7  A  I don't understand the question.  Sorry.



            8  Q  Purchase of more fertilizer?



            9  A  Again, that's speculation.  I have no idea how the



           10     farmers are going to spend their money, if they even



           11     ferti- --



           12  Q  So you don't --



           13  A  -- if they fertilize.  I have no idea.



           14  Q  So you don't think the lease revenues are going to spur



           15     these kinds of investments?



           16  A  I didn't say that.  I said it was speculation.  I don't



           17     know how they're going to spend their money.  I would



           18     hope so.  As a -- as a child of a farmer, yes, I would



           19     hope so, but I can't say.



           20  Q  So you don't know whether -- you speculate -- you can't



           21     speculate.  I guess you can't guess that these



           22     landowners, with their lease revenues, might invest in



           23     additional technology, changes in farm practices,



           24     beneficial tools in farming production.



           25          As a farmer, as a child of farmers, do you believe
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            1     that that actually won't happen, that those investments



            2     actually won't be made in these farms --



            3                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor.



            4  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  -- as a consequence of lease



            5     revenues?



            6                        MR. HARPER:  I'm objecting at this



            7     point, Your Honor.  This has gone on long enough.  This



            8     seems to be repetitive, argumentative.  It's just



            9     badgering the witness.  Mr. McMahan is testifying.



           10     He's not examining at this stage.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, I have to



           12     agree with Mr. Harper.  I think you've made your point.



           13     It's becoming argumentative.



           14                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  All right.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  So that on that basis,



           16     it's sustained.



           17                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  Thank you,



           18     Your Honor.  I'll move on.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, if you



           20     wanted to go back, if -- if it's still germane --



           21                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to your inquiry,



           23     the portion you were looking for about support starts



           24     at the bottom of Page 6, Line 24, and continues to



           25     approximately that level on Page 7.  Maybe you've
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            1     already gone through it with your questions, but that



            2     was, I think, what you were looking for.



            3                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.



            4                        MS. STAVITSKY:  You got to those



            5     questions.



            6                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  Yeah, I think I



            7     did end up getting to those questions, Your Honor.



            8     Thank you.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  What's



           10     next?



           11                        MR. McMAHAN:  All right.  Thank you.



           12  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Ms. Cooke, you provided testimony



           13     about the potential loss of agricultural economy or



           14     agricultural products.



           15          And your testimony really only references dryland



           16     wheat, doesn't it?



           17  A  Dryland wheat and rangeland are the majority of what



           18     this operation will be taking up.



           19  Q  Yes.  Understood.



           20          But you have test- -- your testimony indicates



           21     that there are -- that -- you talk about -- we talked



           22     in the testimony about -- about specialty crops and any



           23     crops other than wheat.



           24          Are you -- are you indicating that -- your



           25     testimony seems to only be dealing with dryland wheat,
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            1     right?



            2  A  I try to narrow the focus to the -- the agricultural



            3     production which is occurring on the lands that are



            4     slated for this development.  So I did not speak to



            5     other types of agriculture.



            6  Q  But in representing 1 percent of supposed destruction



            7     of the -- of the agricultural economy, you don't



            8     account for any specialty crops other than wheat,



            9     right?



           10  A  Again, I'm only speaking to wheat and rangeland,



           11     because those are the two primary operations that will



           12     be impacted by this, because of that -- of the



           13     footprint of it.  If you'd like me to speak to other



           14     agricultural in the greater Horse Heaven Hills, I'd be



           15     happy to, if you have a question.



           16  Q  Well, the question is this:  Your -- or the point is



           17     this.  The question is this:



           18          Your testimony talks a lot about the destruction



           19     of the farming economy because of the loss of dryland



           20     wheat and this 1 percent of the agricultural economy or



           21     the agricultural products.



           22          That is your testimony, right?  Focusing on that 1



           23     percent which is dryland wheat.



           24  A  The -- I'm -- yes, my testimony does speak to the



           25     agricultural economy and how this project would impact





                                                                       320

�







            1     that.  Because the scope of the project is within the



            2     dryland area of Benton County.



            3  Q  Yet isn't it true that Benton County grows many



            4     crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples, hops -- that



            5     have a much, much higher value than dryland wheat?



            6  A  The agricultural economics isn't at debate here for the



            7     conditional use criteria, sir.



            8  Q  Well, actually, I -- I disagree with that.  I'm trying



            9     to understand your testimony, which infers that this



           10     project is going to have a material impact on the



           11     agricultural economy of Benton County.



           12          Yet your testimony does not account for products



           13     other than wheat.  Is that true?



           14  A  Yes.  Well, wheat and rangeland, which would be cattle.



           15  Q  Okay.  I think we can -- we can move on here.



           16          Isn't it true -- and perhaps you can't answer this



           17     question, but I'll try.



           18          Isn't it true that dryland wheat is really a very



           19     small fraction of the value and use of these lands when



           20     you account for all of the other agricultural products,



           21     including specialty products and specialty crops which



           22     I just described?



           23  A  I don't think that we're comparing the agricultural



           24     economy as a whole of Benton County here, which



           25     surprises me especially as your expert witness
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            1     Mr. Wiley, that's his bread and butter.  That's his



            2     family's income, and you're demeaning their -- the



            3     value of their products that they're bringing to the



            4     county.  I find that --



            5  Q  No, I'm not demeaning Mr. Wiley at all, nor am I



            6     demeaning you, ma'am.



            7          What I am just indicating, that your testimony is



            8     based on dryland wheat.  You characterized the



            9     agricultural economy based on dryland wheat, correct?



           10  A  It's one of the factors of Benton County's agricultural



           11     economies, yes.



           12  Q  And you -- your testimony does not account for all the



           13     other crops, espec- -- particularly specialty crops or



           14     high-value crops -- grapes, potatoes, onions, apples



           15     hops -- that have a much higher value than dryland



           16     wheat, right?



           17  A  Again, I don't see the relevance here to the scope of



           18     this project.



           19  Q  Ma'am, you are not -- excuse me.  You are not the



           20     adjudicator of relevance or not.  I'm trying to get you



           21     to answer a specific question and get your opinion.



           22  A  Can you re-ask the question, then, in a way that --



           23  Q  Yes.



           24  A  -- I can understand?



           25  Q  You -- your characterization of the agricultural
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            1     economy in Benton County is limited in your testimony



            2     to nothing but dryland wheat, correct?



            3  A  I have spoken to the project area, which is dryland



            4     wheat and rangeland, and how this project will affect



            5     that and the overall economy of Benton County from an



            6     agricultural standpoint.



            7  Q  Right.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



            9     Mr. McMahan, I think you made your point here.  I'm



           10     going to let Ms. --



           11                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.  Right, Your



           12     Honor.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  If there --



           14                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  If there are other



           16     crops of value that Mr. Harper wants to draw out on



           17     redirect, we'll learn about that and find it in the



           18     testimony at that point.



           19          What else have you got?



           20                        MR. HARPER:  Your Honor, I'm going



           21     to interrupt now, if I may, because Mr. McMahan has



           22     continued to talk over Ms. Cooke's answers.  I



           23     understand that occasionally Ms. Cooke anticipates his



           24     question, but it's particularly important that the



           25     Council hear her complete thought before Mr. McMahan
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            1     moves on.



            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I'll interject,



            3     Mr. Harper and Ms. Cooke.  If it's a yes-or-no



            4     question, it's a lot simpler if you just answer "yes"



            5     or "no" up front.  And if it's necessary to elaborate,



            6     you can, but you may want to wait for Mr. Harper to



            7     redirect on the things he thinks the Council will find



            8     most important.



            9          Again, it's not the most natural thing in



           10     conversation to just drop a "yes" or a "no," but for



           11     purposes of cross-exam, it might speed things up a



           12     little bit, and then we can see what else Mr. Harper



           13     wants to make sure the Council knows.



           14          So thank you for continuing to answer.



           15          Mr. McMahan, back to you.



           16                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes.  And, again, I



           17     apologize for talking over you, Ms. Cooke.  You and I



           18     both seem to have a habit of doing that, and so I



           19     will -- I have just one more question, and so hopefully



           20     we can do that without talking over each other.



           21  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  On Page 3, Line 22, of your



           22     testimony, Ms. Cooke, you claim that the land will be



           23     permanently taken out of production.



           24          Are you aware that the land can and will be fully



           25     restored after the life of the project?
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            1  A  It's my professional opinion as a land-use planner that



            2     the majority of the land will not go back to



            3     agriculture after the lifetime of this project.



            4  Q  So you dispute the findings throughout the Northwest,



            5     in general, that -- and the understanding that, after



            6     retirement, the land will be returned to agricultural



            7     use.  You -- you --



            8                        MR. HARPER:  Objection.  That --



            9     that -- objection, Your Honor.  That lacks foundation.



           10     I don't know what he means, throughout the Northwest,



           11     the land will be returned after retirement.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. McMahan, can you



           13     give a little bit more specificity so the Council knows



           14     what you might be referring to as well?



           15  Q  (By Mr. McMahan)  Well, Ms. Cooke, are you aware that



           16     wind facilities throughout the Northwest, all of them,



           17     are required to restore the land upon which they have



           18     hosted the projects?



           19          Are you aware of that?



           20  A  I'm not familiar with other wind projects or their



           21     conditions of approval in the Northwest, but I am aware



           22     that they do need to have a plan in place for the



           23     removal of these.  However, I -- I've yet to see a



           24     successful wind farm being removed to this point in



           25     my -- in my career or my lifetime.
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            1                        MR. McMAHAN:  Understood.  It's a



            2     relatively new industry.



            3          With that, I -- I have no further questions.  I



            4     thank you for your time.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right,



            6     Mr. McMahan.



            7          Let's go on to Mr. Aramburu.



            8



            9                        CROSS-EXAMINATION



           10     BY MR. ARAMBURU:



           11  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Richard Aramburu.  I



           12     represent Tri-City C.A.R.E.S.



           13          Good morning.



           14  A  Good morning.



           15  Q  Just a couple of questions for you on behalf of the



           16     community.



           17          You're the Benton County planning manager.  What



           18     is your responsibilities as planning manager?



           19  A  That's correct.  I am the planning manager.  I oversee



           20     the planning staff.  And I essentially make all of the



           21     administrative decisions for the planning department on



           22     behalf of Benton County.



           23  Q  And have you been involved in the designation of -- of



           24     agricultural lands of long-term significance?



           25  A  Yes.  I was involved during our 2018 comprehensive plan
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            1     update where we did an agricultural lands



            2     classification memo.



            3  Q  And was that confirming the designation of -- of



            4     agricultural lands of long-term significance from prior



            5     versions of the comp plan?



            6  A  For the most part, yes.  We de-designated a few areas.



            7     But overall, we had a net gain of agricultural land



            8     that we add into the county.  But the majority of that



            9     land stayed the same, which was historically classified



           10     as agricultural lands and are continuing to be zoned



           11     agriculture.



           12  Q  And was there any challenges or appeals of the County's



           13     designation of agricultural lands of long-term



           14     significance to the Growth -- Growth Management



           15     Hearings Board?



           16  A  There was not.  The groups that we typically get



           17     appeals from had no issue with our classification memo.



           18  Q  And were there any challenges from -- from anyone in



           19     the farming community to the desi- -- to the



           20     designation of agricultural lands of long-term



           21     significance?



           22  A  No, there was not.  And I believe we did hold public



           23     meetings for that classification and designation.



           24  Q  And do you recall what -- whether there was significant



           25     opposition at those meetings?
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            1  A  There was a pretty good turnout.  I can't say that



            2     there was significant opposition.  I know a lot of



            3     people had questions, whether or not they were --



            4     particularly the property owners that were either going



            5     to be included in or excepted out of the -- the zone,



            6     as is normal when you're changing zonings on



            7     landowners.



            8          However, there was no significant objections that



            9     our office received.



           10  Q  And did -- did the County do SEPA compliance for this



           11     designation?



           12  A  Yes, I believe we did as part of the comprehensive plan



           13     update.  The ag- -- agricultural lands classification



           14     memo was part of an appendix to our comprehensive plan.



           15  Q  And was a threshold determination entered regarding the



           16     decision to designate the lands as agricultural lands



           17     of long-term significance?



           18  A  Are you asking what the designation was?



           19  Q  No.



           20          I'm asking you whether there was a -- a -- with



           21     SEPA compliance, was there a checklist, and was there a



           22     threshold determination?



           23  A  Yes, I believe there was.



           24  Q  Okay.  And was -- was the threshold determination



           25     appealed?
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            1  A  I don't -- I don't know off the top of my head.



            2     Actually, I believe our -- I believe our -- well, I



            3     don't know if the threshold determination was appealed,



            4     but our comprehensive plan, I believe, was appealed on



            5     different grounds.



            6  Q  But not on -- on the grounds that we're discussing



            7     today?



            8  A  No.  It was on groundwater, I believe.



            9  Q  Okay.  And the -- let's see.



           10          That's all the questions I have.  Let me just look



           11     here for a moment.



           12          And is -- is the designation of long- --



           13     agricultural lands of long-term significance, that's a



           14     part of the comprehensive plan, correct?



           15  A  The -- we do have a land-use designation.  The process



           16     of designating them is part of the Washington State



           17     WAC, not necessarily spelled out in our comprehensive



           18     plan, but we do discuss that under the agricultural



           19     land-use designation in the comp plan.



           20  Q  And then for the comp plan, then zoning is adopted for



           21     agricultural lands; is that correct?



           22  A  That's correct.  The comp plan is a guiding document,



           23     and from there, it's more specific into which zoning



           24     designation it is classified as.



           25  Q  And were there any appeals of the zoning designation
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            1     that's being discussed here by anyone in the Horse



            2     Heaven Hills?



            3  A  No, I'm not aware of anyone appealing the agricultural



            4     zone designation for this area.



            5  Q  And is the -- the zoning designation, comprehensive



            6     plan designation, taken into account by the Benton



            7     County assessor when he assesses value of property?



            8  A  Not to my knowledge.  My understanding is the appraisal



            9     of property, the taxation of property is a separate



           10     process than the land-use designation or the zoning



           11     designation of property.



           12          Typically we see the assessor pick up similar



           13     descriptions of land use based on what we've zoned it,



           14     but not always necessarily; such as if there's an



           15     agricultural piece of property and there's a home on



           16     it, they may have it as residential for appraisal



           17     purposes, but maybe they don't reflect that it's



           18     necessarily agriculture in nature or zoned agriculture



           19     if it's not being currently farmed.



           20                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  No further



           21     questions.  Thank you, Ms. Cooke.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let's turn



           23     to Ms. Voelckers at the Yakama Nation.



           24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your



           25     Honor.
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            1                        CROSS-EXAMINATION



            2     BY MS. VOELCKERS:



            3  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  My name is Shona Voelckers,



            4     and I represent Yakama Nation in this proceeding.



            5          My question for you this morning is:  Can Benton



            6     County, under the Benton County Code, issue a



            7     conditional use permit to a development that needs



            8     water without first determining that the proposed



            9     development has a legally available water source to



           10     serve that development?



           11  A  Sorry.  Can you rephrase the question a little bit?  I



           12     think I -- I think I understand what you're asking, but



           13     I just want to make sure.



           14  Q  Yeah.



           15          Does Benton County Code allow issuance of a



           16     conditional use permit to a development that needs



           17     water if the permitter has not yet determined that



           18     water is actually legally available for that



           19     development?



           20  A  It's not typical.  So typically from a conditional use



           21     permit, we will ensure there's water or at least help



           22     district approval.  Most of our conditional use permits



           23     don't get into the depth of water law and actual water



           24     rights from the Department of Ecology because of



           25     their -- their size and scope and nature.
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            1          Most just require approval of the use from the



            2     Benton Franklin Health District, which would approve



            3     the well and/or sanitary facilities.  And we require,



            4     as a part of their application, that Benton Franklin



            5     Health District letter before they can apply, or with



            6     their application materials.  If their water source is



            7     from somewhere else, then we generally ask for



            8     compliance from that water purveyor as part of their



            9     application materials.



           10          I'm trying to think of a larger-type conditional



           11     use permit in the last ten years.  We've only had a few



           12     of them.



           13          And I would say groundwater compliance would be



           14     something, as staff, we would certainly look at.  We



           15     also -- when we send out the agency packet to the



           16     reviewing agencies, they often -- the Department of



           17     Ecology often will comment back that need for



           18     groundwater is required, and so we will use that as a



           19     condition of approval in the conditional use permit,



           20     that they seek compliance with that groundwater



           21     requirement.



           22  Q  And if you have concerns about whether or not they can



           23     comply with the groundwater requirement, would you



           24     investigate those concerns before issuing a conditional



           25     use permit?
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            1  A  Typically, yes.  Most of them -- I won't say all of



            2     them.  Again, it depends on the nature of a conditional



            3     use permit.  The scope is huge as far as, you know,



            4     something small such as a dog kennel versus something



            5     large like a con- -- a confined animal feed lot



            6     operation.  You know, the -- the intensity on the land



            7     is much different.  But we would ensure that there's



            8     compliance with water regulations for that.



            9          I know before I'd started at Benton County, there



           10     was a proposed dairy or a feed lot up on the



           11     Rattlesnake Hill, and I believe it was denied due to



           12     groundwater issues and concerns.  And that was a



           13     conditional use permit as well in an agricultural zone.



           14                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you.  I may --



           15     I may have other questions, depending on what else is



           16     asked, but that's all I have at this time.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you,



           18     Ms. Voelckers.



           19          Ms. Cooke, can you clarify:  When you said it was



           20     denied for groundwater concerns, was that water supply,



           21     or was that potential for water pollution?



           22                        THE WITNESS:  I don't -- I don't



           23     know.  As I said, it was before I arrived.  I just know



           24     that water -- groundwater was an issue of some sort.  I



           25     don't know -- I don't know the status of it entirely.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  If it becomes



            2     relevant to the Council whether it was for nonpoint



            3     pollution or contamination concerns or water supply, it



            4     may come from another witness.



            5          Ms. Reyneveld, I know you're not listed for any



            6     cross-exam questions.  Did you have anything this



            7     morning?



            8                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have



            9     anything at this time.  Thank you, Judge.



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



           11          Mr. Harper, I'm going to come back to you and go



           12     one more round of questions.  Then I'll ask the Chair



           13     and the Council members for their questions if they



           14     haven't already been asked.



           15          Mr. Harper.



           16                        MR. HARPER:  All right.  Thank you,



           17     Your Honor.



           18



           19                       REDIRECT EXAMINATION



           20     BY MR. HARPER:



           21  Q  Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  How are you?



           22  A  Good.  Thank you.



           23  Q  All right.  Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan spent a fair amount



           24     of time focusing his questioning on what he portrayed



           25     as a -- as a, I guess, a farm economics dispute.
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            1          And what I'd like you to do, Ms. Cooke, is -- if



            2     you could -- just, could you -- could you -- could you



            3     tell the Council about whether that in your view is



            4     germane to the concept of long-range planning and how a



            5     conditional use permit in this case may factor into the



            6     County's long-range interests in its agricultural



            7     lands?



            8  A  The County does consider economics when it comes to



            9     long-range planning in a small sense, but economic



           10     development isn't necessarily our scope of or area of



           11     expertise.  While our land-use practices, we try very



           12     hard to ensure that they promote economic development



           13     throughout the county, whatever that may be, we



           14     certainly try not to have land-use long-range code



           15     provisions such as our comprehensive plan that would go



           16     against the benefit of economic development in the



           17     county.



           18          But when it comes to -- so that is within the



           19     scope of long-range planning or, you know,



           20     comprehensive long -- long-term planning.



           21          Within the scope of a conditional use permit,



           22     the -- it's a little bit different.  So while we have



           23     our comprehensive plan designation for planning -- so



           24     planning goes kind of top down -- we have this giant



           25     20-year plan with all of our hopes and dreams and good
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            1     visions for the future, how you do good practical



            2     planning that will have a robust -- robust economy.



            3          From there, you whittle down -- as I said earlier



            4     in one of my other statements, from there you whittle



            5     down into specifics, and get into the day-to-day



            6     permits, which the conditional use permit would be one



            7     of those, and it gets a lot more limited in its scope.



            8          And, unfortunately, for a conditional use permit,



            9     we take out the economic gain or the opportunity to a



           10     certain demographic of people or that sort of specifics



           11     from our evaluation, and we just look at our set of



           12     criteria, which doesn't include that economic gain or



           13     benefit to a small group of citizens.



           14          And as I said earlier, it's a really tough



           15     conversation to have, because somebody's coming to you,



           16     wanting to develop their land, and you know from a



           17     human level that they will have economic gains from



           18     this.  But from a regulation standpoint -- and,



           19     honestly, that's what we are; we're regulators of the



           20     state statutes -- we can't allow it.



           21          And so our -- our limitations, you know, prevent



           22     us from doing that.  Even though it makes sense from a



           23     human standpoint, professionally it's just not a



           24     factor, unfortunately.  And -- and, you know, it's --



           25     it's hard.  As a professional, it's really hard.
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            1     Because you understand that there's going to be



            2     economic impacts to a group of people if -- if a use is



            3     denied or not allowed or not permitted, you know.



            4          And personally, the Wileys are my family.  They're



            5     my cousins.  So do I want them to have economic gain?



            6     Absolutely I do.  But professionally, this isn't an



            7     allowed use.  This isn't a permitted use.  It doesn't



            8     further the protection of agricultural lands.  So



            9     professionally, I have to say no.



           10  Q  Ms. Cooke, is there a sense in which your permitting



           11     decision-making or your -- your -- your testimony in



           12     this case -- because it is certainly correct you're not



           13     deciding the outcome of the CUP.



           14          But is there a sense in which your -- your -- your



           15     permitting analysis is intended to further and help



           16     facilitate longer-range planning goals?



           17          Are those in harmony in some sense?



           18  A  They are, on a -- on a kind of a 3,000-foot level, I



           19     would say.  Although one permitted use may be denied or



           20     isn't permissible, it doesn't take away from the



           21     objectives of the allow- -- the allowable uses in a



           22     zone, which then further the goals and the policies



           23     that we in the state have for each one of our areas.



           24          So let's say a oil refinery isn't allowed in the



           25     agricultural zone, since we heard that yesterday.  That
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            1     may not -- that may not improve the economy of Benton



            2     County, but it is going to keep farmers and the



            3     agricultural zone -- it's going to allow them to



            4     continue to have the ability to implement their own



            5     economy.



            6          And so the allowable uses that we have in our



            7     zoning designation further that economy.  It's just



            8     kind of a narrow scope, unfortunately.



            9  Q  Is it -- is it fair to say, Ms. Cooke, that -- that a



           10     significant portion of your prefiled testimony is



           11     intended to draw the attention of the Council to the



           12     long duration of the Horse Heaven wind farm facility?



           13  A  Yeah, I would say so.  I think a lot of people are



           14     looking at this project within a limited scope, you



           15     know, whether it's 30 years or a lifetime.  And from



           16     planning, we try to look much further out.



           17          And for us, we only have a limited area of



           18     agriculture.  We're not making new agricultural lands.



           19     And so that protection is key.



           20          And it's not just protecting it for 10 or 20 years



           21     or 30 years, or however long the lease is.  I -- I know



           22     from practice that as soon as a use is established, it



           23     generally is there in perpetuity.  It doesn't



           24     necessarily go away.  It definitely shifts the



           25     landscape and -- and what goes on there in the future
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            1     long after I'm gone.



            2          And so these are things that we consider as



            3     land-use planners.



            4  Q  Ms. Cooke, Mr. McMahan asked you a question that I



            5     objected to as lacking foundation.  He asked you about



            6     other examples of restoration after retirement of a --



            7     of a -- term a similar type of project.  I don't know



            8     quite what he was trying to draw to there.



            9          But are you aware of any example -- whether it's a



           10     wind farm project or any other example -- of proven,



           11     demonstrable restoration after compaction of soil,



           12     after exporting of soil, after importing of soil,



           13     alterations of the landscape, are you aware of any



           14     area-wide soil rehabilitation effort that would be



           15     comparable to what Horse Heaven wind farm portrays in



           16     its ASC here?



           17  A  I'm not aware of that.  I'm not aware of any projects



           18     that have amended the project boundaries or the



           19     footprint for reintroduction.



           20          And one example that, you know, from -- a small



           21     example that I can give off the top of my head is CRP



           22     ground.  So Conservation Reserve Program has fallow



           23     areas of wheat.  And you -- I drive home to visit my



           24     family up on Horse Heaven, and you still see these



           25     wheat fields that aren't in production.  And, you know,
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            1     that was supposed to be kind of a short-term program



            2     from the federal government, and they're still laying



            3     fallow.  And that's not necessarily an intense use



            4     which stopped farming for a short period of time.



            5          Larger impacts, such as solar project, I don't



            6     think people realize how critical that microclimate is



            7     and how sensitive the microclimate of the shrub-steppe



            8     is.  And those solar panels are going to devastate



            9     that.



           10          So we're not just talking about can you put it



           11     back into dryland wheat.  We're talking about can



           12     you -- can you grow shrub-steppe back under those solar



           13     panels; can you grow those native plants back there



           14     that are sensitive and rare species.



           15          I don't believe you can after it's been shaded for



           16     30 years.  It's going to completely change that



           17     microclimate.  And I don't know of any conservation



           18     practices that has successfully done that on, you know,



           19     thousands and thousands of acres.



           20  Q  Does the ASC and the supporting materials that you've



           21     had a chance to review in the SEPA documents, does it



           22     adequately engage with this -- this topic, in your



           23     opinion?



           24  A  I don't believe it does.



           25  Q  Ms. Cooke, do you know what the useful operating life
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            1     of the Horse Heaven wind farm project is?



            2  A  I don't know for sure, but I believe it's 30 years.



            3  Q  Yeah, I think that's correct.



            4          I guess the question is this, Ms. Cooke.



            5          What will essentially happen if, at the end of the



            6     30-year period, it proves to be infeasible or just



            7     uneconomic to engage with this restoration effort to



            8     return the soils to the kind of growing capacity that



            9     they currently have?



           10          Do you have any opinion on that?



           11  A  Well, it's going to -- it's going to continue



           12     fragmenting the landscape if they're not able to



           13     restore it.  And, you know, as I said in my testimony,



           14     if that's the case, I believe, then, that it will lead



           15     to other uses.



           16          So what typically happens in land-use planning is,



           17     let's say for some reason a use isn't allowed or it was



           18     what we call grandfathered in and today it's not



           19     allowed.  Well, it's been there forever, so I should be



           20     able to do this thing.



           21          And so if we have an industry scale or an



           22     industrial-type use out in an agricultural zone and



           23     that use ends its life cycle or goes away, but maybe



           24     the infrastructure is there or something of that



           25     nature, we'll see inquiries of more industrial uses
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            1     come in, say, Yeah, well, but for the last 30 years,



            2     there's been a wind turbine here, so of course I should



            3     have a communication facility, or of course I should



            4     have, you know, a data server farm.  It -- it won't be



            5     any more intense than what was there previously.



            6          And that's a -- that's a hard argument from our



            7     standpoint to make.  That's typically when we see a lot



            8     of petitions for rezoning, reclassification, when you



            9     have that legacy of fragmentation in a particular zone.



           10  Q  Is it a concern of the County, Ms. Cooke, that in the



           11     same manner that Mr. McMahan has tried to portray the



           12     Scout facility as a natural extension of the Nine



           13     Canyon project, that subsequent projects will be viewed



           14     or sought in relationship to the Horse Heaven wind farm



           15     should it be approved?



           16  A  Yeah, I think, you know, in our layman's terms -- and



           17     I'm sorry, but in our -- in our terms, we say



           18     essentially we're opening a can of worms.  If you --



           19     you know, and Nine Canyon is a really good example of



           20     that.



           21          So Nine Canyon was approved by the Board of



           22     Adjustment, which is a citizen panel who may not be



           23     adequately sufficient to consider all of the facts and



           24     the criteria and the issues at hand when it comes to a



           25     large-scale project like this, what effect it will
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            1     have.



            2          And so because Nine Canyon was approved, unlike



            3     the other -- we've had two other wind farms that



            4     weren't approved, and they were larger and almost in



            5     the same area.  It essentially opens the floodgates to



            6     other inquiries.  And I feel like, if this is approved,



            7     other developers will come in and say, Yeah, but



            8     there's this large-scale project right here, so, you



            9     know, it's not going to be that -- that much different



           10     of an impact.



           11          Unfortunately, when we're analyzing the CUP



           12     criteria or other uses in a -- in a zone for



           13     permitting, we don't look at what's historically been



           14     done, especially if there were some errors in analyzing



           15     them.



           16          So we look at what's before us, not what was done



           17     previously.  And so we would look at what's happening



           18     now, not what happened then, and base it on today's



           19     factors and today's criteria.



           20          And, like you said, you know, I just feel like if



           21     this is approved, then it's going to lead to more



           22     fragmentation, more interest, more developers.  And



           23     that really has me concerned, because our landscape is



           24     rare and unique and beautiful.  And, you know, we as



           25     farmers, speaking from a personal sense, try really
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            1     hard to be good stewards of the land, both for



            2     ourselves, our families, and our econ- -- our



            3     community.



            4  Q  I've tried to focus, Ms. Cooke, on factors that are



            5     germane to the CUP criteria.  Some of those are very,



            6     very specific.  Some of those have to do almost with



            7     SEPA-level mitigation.  Others are more values-based



            8     and more subjective.  I think you heard Mr. Wendt's



            9     testimony on that.



           10          Let me wrap up with this, Ms. Cooke.



           11          Regardless of Mr. McMahan's discussion of economic



           12     impacts, bringing it down to a farmer-by-farmer level,



           13     speaking strictly now to CUP criteria contained in the



           14     Benton County Code, are you aware of any other



           15     conditional use permit that would have a comparable



           16     effect to the 10 square miles of irrevocably lost or



           17     permanently disturbed, if you will, footprint or the



           18     110-square-mile area-wide, lease-wide boundary of this



           19     project?



           20          Is there anything else that you've seen as a CUP



           21     approved by Benton County comparable to this?



           22  A  I have -- I have not seen any CUP approved comparable



           23     to this.  The only CUP that we've had in the last



           24     eight, six years that wasn't an intense use was denied,



           25     and that was for our gravel pit.
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            1                        MR. HARPER:  Ms. Cooke, I will end



            2     there.  Thank you very much.



            3                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We've



            5     completed the redirect.  We're going to do a little bit



            6     of recross-exam, and then we'll come to the Chair and



            7     the Council.



            8          Mr. McMahan, anything further?



            9                        THE WITNESS:  Your Honor, can I



           10     request a short break?



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Sure.  We have gone



           12     for an hour.  So let's come back at 10:10, and we'll --



           13                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- go from there.



           15                               (Pause in proceedings from



           16                                10:04 a.m. to 10:10 a.m.)



           17



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right, everybody.



           19     Let's see if we can get back on screen here.  Court



           20     reporter's ready to go.



           21          Ms. Cooke, you ready?



           22                        THE WITNESS:  I am.  Thank you for



           23     the break.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  No worries.  I think



           25     everybody probably it needed.  I appreciated the cue.
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            1     There were some nodding heads when you asked.



            2          Mr. McMahan, recross.



            3                        MR. McMAHAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.



            4     One question.  I promise.



            5



            6                       RECROSS-EXAMINATION



            7     BY MR. McMAHAN:



            8  Q  Ms. Cooke, are you aware that the project will cause or



            9     propose only one acre of shrub-steppe habitat impacted?



           10  A  I don't know that for a fact, but if you're saying that



           11     that's the impact, then okay.



           12                        MR. McMAHAN:  Okay.  That's my only



           13     question.  Thank you.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, any



           15     follow-up?



           16



           17                       RECROSS-EXAMINATION



           18     BY MR. ARAMBURU:



           19  Q  Ms. Cooke, during your testimony, you expressed some



           20     concerns about future development following the



           21     cessation of the wind and solar aspects of this



           22     project.



           23          Do you remember that?



           24  A  Yes.



           25  Q  And is that a factor that's taken up during SEPA
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            1     review?



            2                        MR. McMAHAN:  Your Honor, if you



            3     don't mind, I would object to this.  This -- if we're



            4     following the scope of the -- the direct and



            5     cross-examination, this is a new area that



            6     Mr. Aramburu's taking us into that has not been



            7     previously covered and is not within the appropriate



            8     scope right now.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Got it.



           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I'm following up on



           11     the witness's testimony, Your Honor.  That was her



           12     testimony.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, we have



           14     a little bit of time today, so I'm going to allow it.



           15     But for future witnesses and we have a tight time



           16     frame, we do have to, as Mr. McMahan said, keep



           17     funneling down within the scope of things.



           18          So go ahead and ask a question again, and then



           19     Ms. Cooke can answer, and then we'll keep moving along.



           20  Q  (By Mr. Aramburu)  Okay.  Ms. Cooke, I went back and



           21     refreshed your recollection a bit about your testimony



           22     concerning your concerns about future use once



           23     particularly the solar aspects of this might be



           24     removed.



           25          And is -- is the question of whether the project
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            1     would create a precedent for further actions, is that a



            2     matter that's covered by SEPA review?



            3  A  I am unsure.  I don't know that a SEPA review would



            4     speak directly to that or setting a precedent for



            5     something, but it -- a SEPA review would definitely



            6     review and comment on the loss of habitat, the impacts



            7     to, or I would hope that it would.  You know, what the



            8     ramifications would be both short-term and long-term,



            9     which then may set a precedent later in the future.



           10  Q  And is it the case that no final action is taken by



           11     Benton County on proposals until a final environmental



           12     impact statement is prepared?



           13  A  On conditional use permits, that's -- that's correct.



           14     So typically for conditional use permits, we have



           15     concurrent applications.  We have a conditional use



           16     permit application, and we have a SEPA application or a



           17     checklist.  And those run concurrently.  However, the



           18     conditional use permit doesn't go to the hearing



           19     examiner until the SEPA has -- determination has been



           20     made.



           21  Q  And a final impact statement prepared; is that correct?



           22  A  I've never dealt with one of those, but, yes, if it got



           23     to that point, I assume we would need an FEIS before we



           24     come to a hearing for a CUP.



           25  Q  And -- and under the -- the Benton County SEPA
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            1     ordinance, is it the case that the adequacy of a final



            2     environmental impact statement is subject to appeal?



            3  A  Yes.



            4  Q  Okay.  And -- and --



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, I just



            6     want to -- I just want to interrupt you here.  SEPA's



            7     not on trial in the adjudication.  It's not appropriate



            8     to go down that road.



            9          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?



           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Mr. Examiner, I'm



           11     asking what the Benton County procedures are.  I



           12     understand that the -- that a ruling has been made by



           13     you, which we take great exception to, that SEPA will



           14     be somehow excised from this process.  But I think I'm



           15     entitled to ask questions about the Benton County



           16     procedures and what procedures would be followed in



           17     Benton County.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm not going to allow



           19     it, Mr. Aramburu.  We already understand what the



           20     Benton County procedures are for conditional use, and



           21     we understand how the EFSEC procedures are in their



           22     place.  We're applying those.  We're not applying



           23     Benton County SEPA.  We're using state rules, and we're



           24     having EFSEC as the lead agency.



           25          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?
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            1                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Witness has testified



            2     that in -- in her analysis of the County's analysis of



            3     conditional use permits, they also comply with SEPA.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  And so does EFSEC.



            5     We're done -- we're done with this line of questioning,



            6     Mr. Aramburu.  I'm going to take great exception if you



            7     ask another SEPA question and ask our administrator to



            8     mute your mike.



            9          Do you have any non-SEPA-related questions?



           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  You're going



           11     to cut me off.  That's fine, Mr. Torem.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  I am.  If you don't



           13     have any other non-SEPA-related questions, I'm going to



           14     move on to the Yakama Nation.



           15          Ms. Voelckers, any other follow-up?



           16                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing from --



           17     further from the Yakama Nation for Ms. Cooke.  Thank



           18     you, Your Honor.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Chair



           20     Drew, do you have any questions that you wanted to ask?



           21                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  I do not.



           22     Thank you.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  Council members, any



           24     questions you wanted to ask?



           25                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  This is Eli.
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            1     I have some questions.



            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right, Mr. Levitt.



            3     If you'll introduce yourself to the witness so she



            4     knows where you're from, and go ahead and ask your



            5     questions.



            6                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Hi,



            7     Ms. Cooke.  My name is Eli Levitt.  I'm a section



            8     manager at the Washington Department of Ecology, and



            9     I'm Ecology's Council member for EFSEC.



           10                        THE WITNESS:  Hello.



           11                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Just a --



           12     just a moment.  I need to pull up my questions.



           13          So do you or Mr. Wendt or your team do the GIS



           14     analysis on land use on behalf of the County?  Land use



           15     or zoning?



           16                        THE WITNESS:  We used to.  However,



           17     we established the GIS department, so now we work with



           18     them to do our mapping.



           19                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Do



           20     you know, does anyone on that team kind of ground-truth



           21     the maps by going out into the field ever?  You know,



           22     to see, okay, this industrial land use borders this



           23     agricultural use and, you know, try to get the lines as



           24     correct as possible, so to speak?



           25                        THE WITNESS:  Typically -- typically
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            1     that falls on the planners as we do site visits and



            2     work with landowners.  The planners will be the ones



            3     that bring up to GIS any amendments needed if there's a



            4     mapping error.



            5          However, we as staff do not make any amendments or



            6     mapping changes to our data layers, which we get from



            7     other agencies.  So coming to mind, a pretty



            8     contentious one that we have is wetlands.  And although



            9     they may not be the most accurate, we're not able to



           10     make amendments to those.  We send them to the



           11     appropriate State agency to work with in determining



           12     whether or not the wetland is actually present, as we



           13     don't have the expertise to make those determinations.



           14                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Got it.



           15          Yesterday, Mr. Wendt's testimony implied that, you



           16     know, between the 2018 comprehensive plan and the



           17     previous one --



           18          What was that?  Around 2006 or something.



           19                        THE WITNESS:  Mm-hmm.



           20                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  -- that the



           21     acres of ag land jumped, increased by something like



           22     4,000 acres.



           23          Is it possible that 4- to 6,000 acres, that --



           24     that sort of level of change, is within a margin of



           25     error or due to the changes in the way, the
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            1     methodology -- methodologies that the County GI mappers



            2     use?



            3  A  No, that change was -- came about from our ag lands



            4     classification memo.  So we hired developers to analyze



            5     a set of criteria, the eight criteria listed in the



            6     WAC, and our -- and our current zoning.  And that net



            7     gain came about from that classification memo.  So



            8     after that data was provided to us, then we implemented



            9     that into code by making those zone changes, which is



           10     when we held the public hearings and that sort of



           11     things.  We physically kind of added those areas into



           12     our agricultural zoning designation as staff.



           13                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  I



           14     guess I just want to note, it -- it seems that your



           15     testimony combines both personal and lived experience,



           16     so I just wanted to ask one quick question about the



           17     personal experience.



           18                        THE WITNESS:  Sure.



           19                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  And it's --



           20     it's valuable for us to learn about, you know, how ag



           21     works in your county for sure.  I visited multiple



           22     farms in the Palouse in my past work at Ecology, so I



           23     know a little bit about no-till and low-till dryland



           24     wheat farming.



           25          Do you -- does your -- you know, you mentioned
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            1     your family members in your testimony.  Do any of them



            2     or the other farmers you've spoken to about solar and



            3     wind developments use low- or no-till wheat farming



            4     techniques?



            5                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  My cousins



            6     actually use no-till wheat farming.  It seems to be a



            7     general practice of the Horse Heaven wheat farmers.  I



            8     don't know that -- I don't know their practices as



            9     intimately as I do irrigated ag, grow crops, and animal



           10     husbandry, which is more of my background.  But in



           11     speaking with them both in Klickitat County and in



           12     Benton County as dryland wheat farmers, they both use



           13     no-till practices.



           14          Our irrigated ag land, my cousin actually runs



           15     soil regeneration practices on -- in the -- in the



           16     critical areas using animal husbandry to regenerate



           17     soil habitat and, you know, continue the economic



           18     development of our farm in the areas that we don't



           19     actually till up or irrigate or remove out of a



           20     critical area.  And that's been extremely successful,



           21     and he's actually taking it to defend in his thesis



           22     this year as a senior at USC.



           23                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Interesting.



           24          Well, going back to the GIS questions:  Does the



           25     County GIS -- do GIS maps or layers at the level where
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            1     you can differentiate exactly where active dryland



            2     wheat farming is occurring in the Horse Heaven Hills



            3     area?



            4                        THE WITNESS:  It's pretty appar- --



            5     yeah, it's pretty apparent from aerial imagery.  You



            6     have a swath of blond, which is the wheat field, and



            7     then you have the clear cutoff line.



            8          The other defining factor is that the wheat



            9     farmers tend to use sections.  Because of the large



           10     linear squares that they have up there, irrigated ag



           11     tends to use crop circles.  And so just visually, you



           12     can kind of see the difference between those two



           13     visually from the aerial imagery.



           14                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  So if you



           15     asked your GIS mapping team, they could estimate the



           16     number of acres in the Horse Heaven region that is in



           17     active use right now for dryland wheat farming and/or



           18     ranching?



           19                        THE WITNESS:  Ranching is a lot -- a



           20     heck of a lot tougher, just because you can't really



           21     define where people run cattle on.  It looks like



           22     open -- open habitat.  So you wouldn't know if it was



           23     preserved or not.



           24          But as far as dryland wheat goes, you could



           25     probably slap a polygon and get a rough estimate,
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            1     obviously not including physical barriers and canyons



            2     and that sort of thing.



            3                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  And



            4     jumping around here a little bit.



            5                        JUDGE TOREM:  Excuse me, Mr. Levitt.



            6          Ms. Cooke, you just called something slap a pole



            7     up...?



            8                        THE WITNESS:  Sorry.  Sorry.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  What was that?



           10                        THE WITNESS:  To draw a polygon



           11     using GIS, you know, roughly.  Not necessarily



           12     accurately as far as determining how many acres within



           13     the Horse Heaven region would be dryland versus



           14     irrigated.  But we do actually have that analysis for



           15     zoning -- specific zoning designations.



           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  That's fine.



           17                        THE WITNESS:  We just don't have --



           18     okay.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  I just -- I missed the



           20     word "polygon" as you spoke quickly.



           21                        THE WITNESS:  Oh.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  I wanted to make sure



           23     it was accurate in the record.



           24          Mr. Levitt, you had a follow-up.



           25                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Yeah.  Just
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            1     a few more.  Three more maybe.



            2          To your knowledge, has the County, Energy



            3     northwest, or any other entity that you partner with



            4     surveyed and/or reviewed the productivity of farming or



            5     any lessons learned in general, such as challenges and



            6     opportunities, associated with the Nine Canyon wind



            7     farm?



            8                        THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge,



            9     no.



           10                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  So



           11     the County and/or partners like Energy Northwest have



           12     not, for example, asked the -- the wheat farmers in



           13     that area how are things going since --



           14                        THE WITNESS:  I'm not --



           15                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  -- since the



           16     wind farm was established?



           17                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I'm -- I'm not



           18     aware of it, but Ener- -- I mean, Energy Northwest may



           19     check in with their leaseholders.  I -- I just -- we,



           20     the County, are a bit disattached from that narrative,



           21     so we don't -- we don't hear things like that unless we



           22     know someone personally involved or professionally



           23     involved.



           24                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.



           25     Mr. Wendt didn't get into this yesterday, but I guess
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            1     I'm curious.



            2          You said something earlier about a board of



            3     citizens approved the Nine Canyon winds -- wind farm in



            4     some way.



            5                        THE WITNESS:  Yes.



            6                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Do you have



            7     any -- yeah.  Okay.



            8          Could you give me just a very brief background on



            9     that, what that process was, from your perspective?



           10                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  So currently a



           11     conditional use permit is heard by a hearings examiner,



           12     which is a quasi-judicial, typically a lawyer that we,



           13     the County, hire.  And she -- she's a woman for us.



           14     She's an unbiased third party.  So she will hear these.



           15     She's also professionally trained generally in land-use



           16     law.  And so she will go through our code and all the



           17     testimony she's received and the application and review



           18     it for consistency and then will make her determination



           19     as to whether something should be approved or denied.



           20          The Nine Canyon project -- so prior to having a



           21     hearing examiner set up, my understanding is -- 'cause



           22     I wasn't here at the time -- the County used a Board of



           23     Adjustment, and that was a panel of -- of citizens with



           24     no particular training who would hear land-use matters



           25     and make a decision based -- which was supposed to be





                                                                       358

�







            1     based on the county code.



            2          We have a similar board called the planning



            3     commission, which I oversee, and I can tell you that



            4     the difference in the hearings are night and day,



            5     especially with consideration and the scope that needs



            6     to be narrowed into what they're reviewing.  I feel



            7     that hearings examiners are a lot more defensible and



            8     accurate in their decisions.  The -- when you get



            9     boards of private citizens making decisions on land



           10     use, sometimes they're not always the best decisions or



           11     the most appropriate decisions.



           12                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Then



           13     I'm curious, I guess, from just the County staff



           14     perspective, so this includes you and Mr. Wendt and



           15     other County officials.



           16          Is there anything official that changed at the



           17     County level, 2020 and prior -- you know, it could be a



           18     commissioner's resolution; it could be changes to code;



           19     it could be white papers, policies, procedures that



           20     changed -- that would impact how you and your team



           21     approach the consideration of proposed wind farms or --



           22     or solar farms?



           23                        THE WITNESS:  I don't believe so.  I



           24     mean, we had a tax amendment which prohibited them



           25     after 2020, but I don't -- I don't believe that there
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            1     was any documentation or guidance of how to review a



            2     wind proposal except for those that are listed in our



            3     county code and our comprehensive plan, kind of those



            4     guiding documents that we as staff would use.



            5          But, again, you know, that's outside of our -- our



            6     purview, because we don't get to make those decisions



            7     on those types of permits.  It's the same as a dog



            8     kennel.  I don't get to decide if somebody gets a dog



            9     kennel or not.  That has to go through another



           10     administrator as far as approval goes.



           11                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Thank



           12     you.  That's it.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do other Council



           14     members have any questions for Ms. Cooke?



           15          All right.  Hearing none.



           16          I have one question, Ms. Cooke.



           17          From Page 8 toward the end of your -- to the end



           18     of your testimony, there -- the theme talks about



           19     taking land out of production and not maintaining



           20     agricultural viability for a variety of concerns



           21     between family farms and succession.



           22          When I got down to Page 10, your conclusion was it



           23     won't be economically viable for farmers to return the



           24     agricultural lands of long-term commercial significance



           25     to agricultural use at the end of the Horse Heaven wind
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            1     farm project life.



            2          Have you thought about any ways that you could



            3     assist from the County level or you might ask EFSEC or



            4     the State government to assist, assuming this



            5     recommendation is for approval and it's built?



            6          With that scenario, have you thought of any ways



            7     that would change your conclusion to make it easier for



            8     things to go back to long-term commercial significance



            9     and agricultural use?



           10                        THE WITNESS:  I have not.  But I can



           11     see where you're going with it.  And honestly I would



           12     hope that either the State or, you know, another body



           13     would help incubate and, you know, generate these maybe



           14     progressive ideas that would help them keep in the



           15     scope of agricultural while maintaining a new source of



           16     income.  I just personally don't -- I haven't done it



           17     myself or thought about it or engaged with anybody on



           18     that in the context of this project.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  One of the ideas that,



           20     as I looked at your testimony last night, that came to



           21     mind -- I don't know if the Council, it's within their



           22     scope even -- is a question of you -- you made it seem



           23     as though it's economically infeasible to reverse the



           24     effects of the wind farm and get things done.  It would



           25     be a financial issue for the landowners.
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            1                        THE WITNESS:  Mm-hmm.



            2                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I wondered if



            3     there was any consideration in the County for financial



            4     assistance to do that, and if so, some kind of



            5     long-term trust that may be part of the conditioning



            6     the Council considers.  Again, sometimes we're looking



            7     at environmental impacts, not financial impacts, but



            8     part of the decommissioning of the project usually



            9     includes posting a bond and other fiscal things.



           10          So I'm wondering again in the context of



           11     decommissioning whether the County has thought about --



           12     for this project, for Nine Canyon, for any of them that



           13     might be a change to an agricultural area -- a trust



           14     fund of some sort -- how it's funded, I don't know --



           15     to make sure it's not a financial burden on the



           16     individual, and the County, as you've said, can



           17     maintain its regional and zoning area interests to get



           18     things back and what the County's vision might be for



           19     beyond our lifetimes.



           20          Long question, but the concept, I hope, is clear.



           21                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Yeah.  No, and



           22     it's a great concept, and it's a great idea.  You know,



           23     unfortunately, I just -- I don't know about the greater



           24     County as a whole, but certainly for -- for my office,



           25     you know, we just don't have the legal ability to do
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            1     that or make those requirements on the applicant.  I



            2     would feel like it's outside the burden of what, you



            3     know, a conditional use permit or other, you know,



            4     permit that we apply conditions of approval for.



            5          It's kind of outside the scope of what we normally



            6     would have done.  But that's not to say it's



            7     impossible.  There -- you know, there's universities



            8     and all sorts of interest groups that are continuing to



            9     work on the promotion of agricultural, so maybe in the



           10     future it would get -- it would get approved into state



           11     law and we could have something set up like that for



           12     them.  It's just not something that's available on the



           13     table at the moment.



           14                        JUDGE TOREM:  And, admittedly, I



           15     don't understand all of the decommissioning scope of



           16     what EFSEC can or can't do.  It's just an outside-the-



           17     box thought on, as you say, the longer term and perhaps



           18     more progressive thinking.  Thank you for the input on



           19     that.



           20          Mr. Harper, does that raise anything else -- this



           21     is your witness -- before we...?



           22                        MR. HARPER:  No.  No, it doesn't.



           23     Thank you, Your Honor.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council



           25     members, Chair Drew, any other questions?
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            1          I see Eli Levitt has his hand up.



            2                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Yeah.



            3     Sorry.  I guess, just a quick follow-up question.



            4          So you mentioned that there were two wind farms



            5     proposed in the county in the past, and those were



            6     denied in some fashion.



            7          Can you talk about, just briefly, about how the



            8     process worked for Nine Canyon versus those two other



            9     farm -- wind farm proposals that you mentioned?



           10                        THE WITNESS:  I believe they were



           11     all heard by the Board of Adjustment.  I'm not entirely



           12     sure.  The other two are from 2001, and our records



           13     from those days are quite sparse.  Recordkeeping wasn't



           14     quite a priority then as it was now.



           15          But my understanding is they were larger projects,



           16     anywhere from 200 to 500 turbines that were roughly 250



           17     to maybe 300-plus feet, covering 4,000-ish acres.



           18          One was denied.  The other, we don't know -- it



           19     was not approved.  I just don't know what the status is



           20     because of recordkeeping purposes, but it was not



           21     approved.  But those more than likely went in front of



           22     the Board of Adjustments as well.



           23                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  And to your



           24     knowledge, for all three of those, Nine Canyon and the



           25     two -- other two you mentioned, did the County ever
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            1     discuss mitigation measures, that they would be



            2     interested if -- if the projects went forward?  Does



            3     that make sense?



            4                        THE WITNESS:  Not to my knowledge.



            5     I haven't done a deep dive into the Nine Canyon project



            6     myself, so I don't know what was discussed.  I know it



            7     was an MDNS, which professionally for me is an



            8     interesting choice.  I feel like that's something I



            9     wouldn't have made a determination on.



           10          But one of the other projects actually had an EIS



           11     request, and I don't know that it was ever seen



           12     through, so my guess is, from that project, that one,



           13     that had an EIS, it could have had mitigation measures



           14     or, you know, spoken to that as part of that scope for



           15     an EIS.



           16                        COUNCIL MEMBER LEVITT:  Okay.  Thank



           17     you.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Lenny Young?



           19                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Yeah.



           20          Good morning, Ms. Cooke.  I'm Lenny Young.  I'm a



           21     Department of Natural Resources representative to



           22     EFSEC.  And quick follow-up to Mr. Levitt's question.



           23          Could you -- do you know the name or some type of



           24     a reference if we wanted to look more into those two



           25     other projects that were denied?  Is there some kind of
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            1     a name or identifier we could use to -- to find



            2     information on those?



            3                        THE WITNESS:  Yeah, the one was,



            4     ironically, Horse Heaven Wind.  The other was Maiden



            5     Wind.



            6                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Thank you.



            7                        THE WITNESS:  M-a-i-d-e-n.



            8                        COUNCIL MEMBER YOUNG:  Got it.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Any others?



           10                        THE WITNESS:  Those are the only two



           11     besides Nine Canyon that I'm aware of.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Oh.  I'm sorry.  Any



           13     other questions --



           14                        THE WITNESS:  Oh.  Sorry.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- from Council



           16     members?



           17          All right.  Seeing none.



           18          I want to make sure the parties understand.  I



           19     think when Mr. Young's asking about getting other



           20     information, we'll make sure we have advice from our



           21     attorney general as to what's in the record and what's



           22     not.  We talked with Council members about not doing



           23     our own research outside the record, so that advice is



           24     being given as we go.  And if anything else is sought



           25     for the record, it will be in the form of a data
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            1     request to parties, and you'll know what the Council



            2     members are considering.



            3          So if there's any concerns that Council members



            4     are asking questions in that regard, they're not



            5     necessarily familiar with the -- the niceties of the



            6     APA, typical trial practice, and what might be a



            7     limited record.  But certainly if the Council members



            8     for the adjudication are going to have anything, you'll



            9     know what it is.



           10          All right.  Anybody have any other questions for



           11     Ms. Cooke that I need to recognize before we let her go



           12     and move on to our next order of business?



           13          All right.  Hearing none.



           14          Ms. Cooke, thank you.  Good morning.  And --



           15                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- I appreciate your



           17     time and testimony.



           18                               (Witness excused.)



           19



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Council



           21     members, today we had just the one scheduled witness.



           22     And previous at the housekeeping session, there was a



           23     question of whether or not we could move some things



           24     around.



           25          We have permission from the Yakama Nation and all
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            1     the other parties to call Mr. Ganuelas and



            2     Mr. Nuetzmann today.



            3          Ms. Voelckers, what's the status of their



            4     availability?



            5                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you, Your



            6     Honor.  They are available.  I would ask that we take a



            7     brief break.  But they are here and available to be



            8     sworn in.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  We're



           10     going to take a break just to get them on the line.



           11     We'll come back at 10:45.



           12          Before we go off to our break, the Nuetzmann



           13     exhibits that you might want to have, if you have any



           14     questions, Council members, even though they're not



           15     scheduled for cross-exam, would be 4011_T and 4012.



           16          As for Mr. Ganuelas, they would be mostly



           17     confidential.  But 4008_T and then 4009 and 4010.



           18     Those are both marked as confidential, and you have a



           19     redacted version as well.  The reply testimony is an



           20     Exhibit 4013.  So if you are looking for something to



           21     do in the next eight minutes --



           22                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Judge.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to get ready, we



           24     would have those.



           25          Chair Drew.





                                                                       368

�







            1                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Would you



            2     please have someone put those in the chat since I



            3     didn't write that quickly.



            4                        JUDGE TOREM:  Sure.  They're easy --



            5                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  -- to find in the



            7     exhibit list.  The -- the Yakama Nation's exhibits all



            8     start with a 4.



            9                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Okay.



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  And I'll ask that --



           11     we'll get those in the chat, 4011 and -12, 4008 through



           12     -13.



           13          All right.  Thank you.  We'll take our break.



           14                        COUNCIL CHAIR DREW:  Oh.  I just got



           15     a message.  Okay.  Thank you.



           16                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yep.  We'll take our



           17     break and come back at 10:45.



           18                               (Pause in proceedings from



           19                                10:37 a.m. to 10:45 a.m.)



           20



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  It's now



           22     10:45.  We're back on the record.



           23          Ms. Voelckers, have you had a chance to make sure



           24     whether Mr. Ganuelas and Nuetzmann are on the line?



           25                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Yes, Your Honor.
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            1     They are logging on through Mr. Jones' computer.  I see



            2     Mr. Nuetzmann now.



            3          If I could ask a clarifying question before we get



            4     going regarding something that you said before the



            5     break.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes, ma'am.



            7                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Our understanding



            8     was that Council was going to be provided with the



            9     confidential versions of everything, not just the



           10     redacted ones.  And so I don't know if that -- I just



           11     wanted to make sure that that was the case.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  And



           13     Ms. Masengale has definitely provided all of those



           14     documents.  We've got them in a separate part of our



           15     SharePoint drive that only has access to Council



           16     members and not to the general EFSEC or UTC population



           17     that is on the same server, to my understanding.  So,



           18     yes, they have both.



           19                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Okay.  I appreciate



           20     the clarification and also just making sure they have a



           21     chance to review that before Monday for the other



           22     members that are testifying.  So thank you for that.



           23          I see that Mr. Nuetzmann is all set up.



           24                               (Witness Mark Nuetzmann



           25                                appearing remotely.)
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Let me get



            2     to where his exhibits are.



            3          All right.  Good morning, Mr. Nuetzmann.  How are



            4     you?



            5                        THE WITNESS:  Good morning, Judge



            6     Torem.  I'm good.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  I'm going to swear you



            8     in to adopt your testimony, and then we'll see if



            9     there's any questions.



           10          Again, my understanding is that your testimony is



           11     limited to two exhibits.  They are 4011_T, your



           12     prefiled direct testimony; and Exhibit 4012, your reply



           13     testimony to Erik Jansen's rebuttal testimony.



           14          Are those the two documents that you're aware of



           15     you've submitted as testimony?



           16                        THE WITNESS:  That's correct.



           17                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I'm going



           18     to have you raise your right hand and adopt that, and



           19     then we'll see if the Council members have any



           20     questions.



           21



           22     MARK NUETZMANN,             appearing remotely, was duly



           23                                 sworn by the Administrative



           24                                 Law Judge as follows:



           25     ////
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you, Mark



            2     Nuetzmann, solemnly swear or affirm that all testimony



            3     you've indicated you'll adopt today and any answers you



            4     give to Council questions will be the truth, the whole



            5     truth, and nothing but the truth?



            6                        THE WITNESS:  I do.



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



            8          I'm going to note that for the record, those



            9     exhibits I talked about have been adopted under oath,



           10     and they're now admitted to the record.



           11                               (Exhibit Nos. 4008_T_Revised,



           12                                4009_Confidential,



           13                                4009_Redacted,



           14                                4010_Confidential,



           15                                4010_Redacted, 4011_T, 4012,



           16                                and 4013 admitted.)



           17



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  Council members, Chair



           19     Drew, any questions for Mr. Nuetzmann?



           20          All right.  I'm not hearing any, Mr. Nuetzmann.



           21     That's probably the easiest morning at trial you'll



           22     ever experience.



           23          And we're going to take our next witness from the



           24     Yakama Nation, Mr. Leon Ganuelas.  So thank you,



           25     Mr. Nuetzmann.  So thank you, Mr. Nuetzmann.  You can





                                                                       372

�







            1     stand down and switch places.



            2                        THE WITNESS:  Thank you.



            3                               (Witness excused.)



            4                               (Witness Leon Ganuelas



            5                                appearing remotely.)



            6



            7                        JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning.  Are you



            8     Leon Ganuelas?



            9                        THE WITNESS:  Good morning.  Yes,



           10     sir, I am.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Out of respect for the



           12     confidentiality of much of your testimony, Council



           13     members, we're now going to make sure that our system



           14     for moving into closed-record hearing works.  So I'm



           15     going to ask staff to move us to a Microsoft Teams



           16     breakout room.



           17          So, Mr. Ganuelas, hopefully everybody transfers



           18     over.  And I'll do a quick roll call of parties and



           19     Council members to make sure we're all there, and then



           20     we'll take your testimony.



           21                               (Pause in proceedings from



           22                                10:49 a.m. to 10:53 a.m.)



           23                   ** Closed-record hearing **



           24     * Not available to general public per protective order *



           25     ////
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            1



            2



            3



            4



            5



            6



            7



            8



            9



           10



           11



           12



           13



           14



           15



           16



           17                               (Closed-record session



           18                                concluded.)



           19



           20                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  I can see



           21     that a number of us are back, moved over automatically



           22     from the other meeting.  Let's see if I can have the



           23     participant list put up on the side.  I see there's



           24     more of us in this session than there were in the



           25     other.
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            1          For any members of the public that are listening,



            2     we're back from a closed-record session where witness



            3     Leon Ganuelas was talking about some privileged and



            4     confidential information regarding pronghorn antelope.



            5          There are redacted versions of his testimony



            6     available on the EFSEC website if you're interested.



            7     Those are -- the redacted portions are the ones that



            8     members of the public or those that haven't signed



            9     confidentiality agreements can -- can access.



           10          And we were gone out of public session for about



           11     30 minutes, maybe less.



           12          All right.  Council members, I don't know that



           13     there's any other business.  I'm going to ask the



           14     parties again if I'm overlooking anything we said we



           15     would do on the record today with all of the Council



           16     members.



           17          Mr. McMahan, was there anything on your list that



           18     we still needed to do with the Council members today?



           19                        MR. McMAHAN:  Not that I'm aware of,



           20     Your Honor.  Thank you.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper?



           22                        MR. HARPER:  No.  I don't think so.



           23                        JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. Reyneveld.



           24                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Nothing further.



           25     Thank you.
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            1                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Aramburu, let me



            2     come to you.  Was there anything else we needed to do



            3     on the record with Council members?



            4                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I do have an item,



            5     but the Council members' presence is not necessary.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you.



            7     We'll do another housekeeping session here shortly.



            8          And, Ms. Voelckers, anything else from the Yakama



            9     Nation we need to do with the Council members today?



           10                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing else for the



           11     Council today from Yakama Nation.  Thank you, Your



           12     Honor.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Then



           14     looking forward to tomorrow, Council members, the



           15     Rahmig scheduled testimony is still not happening



           16     tomorrow.  But I understand that we're going to have



           17     Morgan Shook.



           18          And Morgan Shook, I'll go over the exhibit numbers



           19     with you if you have your pens and pencils ready.



           20     Morgan Shook's testimony will be available also, I'm



           21     sure, from the very busy Ms. Masengale in a daily



           22     folder on the SharePoint drive to make it easy to



           23     access and review this evening.



           24          Morgan Shook was originally scheduled for next



           25     Tuesday, August 22nd, at 11:40 a.m. and supposed to go
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            1     after a lunch break into 2:30 p.m.  So there's



            2     approximately two hours of testimony to be ready for



            3     tomorrow.  And unless there's anything else added,



            4     we'll start at 9:00, and then we have the monthly



            5     Council meeting at 1:30.  Please plan on being



            6     available for this adjudication maybe up till 12 or



            7     12:30 just in case we're able to add anything else and



            8     front-load the schedule a little bit more to



            9     accommodate the ever-fluid schedule we've got.



           10          But the exhibits that I have for this



           11     applicant-sponsored witness start with 1008_T.  And



           12     that's a set of revised testimony filed by the



           13     applicant.  The supporting exhibits follow in sequence



           14     through 1009 all the way through 1020.  And there's



           15     also some reply testimony, if I'm not mistaken, at



           16     1051_R.  So essentially 1008 through 1020 and 1051.



           17          Mr. McMahan, Ms. Stavitsky, did I get those



           18     correct?



           19                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Yes, Your Honor.



           20     Thank you.



           21                        JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. [Sic] Shook



           22     will be available at 9 a.m. tomorrow?



           23                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Correct.



           24          It's "Mr. Shook" --



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  Oh.
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            1                        MS. STAVITSKY:  -- just for the



            2     record.  Thank you.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.



            4          Council members, any question on your homework for



            5     tonight and ready for tomorrow?



            6          All right.  Then we'll recess the adjudicative



            7     hearing portion.



            8          I have a question from Mr. Livingston.



            9                        COUNCIL MEMBER LIVINGSTON:  Yeah.



           10     I'm sorry, Judge.  I missed:  What time will we start



           11     tomorrow?



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  9:00.  I'll do a



           13     housekeeping session with the parties to see about any



           14     other schedule items I can advise you of, and then at



           15     9:00 we'll have Mr. Morgan Shook adopt his testimony



           16     and see if there's any questions.



           17          We know we're going to have cross-exam from --



           18     it'll be a follow-up after Mr. Aramburu's questions on



           19     behalf of Tri-Cities C.A.R.E.S. from the applicant.  So



           20     about an hour-plus is what Mr. Aramburu is estimating,



           21     followed by any redirect exam.  And then, as you've



           22     seen, the round-robin that we do.  And then we'll get



           23     to the Council members' questions along with anything



           24     else we need after that.



           25          Any other Council questions?
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            1          All right.  You had a short day today.  I can't



            2     promise there'll be many of these ahead.  Especially



            3     tomorrow you'll have a follow-on Council meeting.  So



            4     thank you very much.  And I'm going to take a brief



            5     recess here till 11:25 so people can stretch and



            6     everybody can sign on or off, and we'll resume at 11:25



            7     with our housekeeping session.



            8                               (Pause in proceedings from



            9                                11:22 a.m. to 11:25 a.m.)



           10



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  We're back into



           12     a housekeeping session.  We're back on the record to



           13     take any notes that we need.



           14          Mr. Aramburu, I'll come to you first.  You said



           15     you had a note you wanted to take up.



           16                        MR. ARAMBURU:  I have a question for



           17     you, Judge Torem.  When might we expect decisions on



           18     the other outstanding motions?



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Tomorrow morning.



           20     I've got some time this afternoon suddenly.  So I



           21     apologize that you're still waiting.  But tomorrow



           22     morning, you'll have my answers on as many of them as I



           23     can get to.  And given the time balance I have today,



           24     I'm hoping all.



           25                        MR. ARAMBURU:  And particularly
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            1     because at least one of the motions deals with



            2     scheduling, if you don't have a written ruling, an oral



            3     ruling would be -- would be helpful to us as well, just



            4     so we -- we know how to -- how to schedule things.  So



            5     thank you for that.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  I appreciate that.



            7     And that's why I try to make notes on that oral ruling



            8     today.  And I've asked the court reporter to make sure,



            9     if it's reduced to writing that way, then it can also



           10     be circulated to the parties as soon as possible.



           11          So if it's efficiency sake, Mr. Aramburu, I will



           12     give the oral rulings as best we can and use the



           13     transcript to document those going forward for



           14     preserving issues for appeal and a way to cite to them.



           15     I'm trying to make sure that to service both purposes



           16     of efficiency and any other errors that might want to



           17     be called out by parties.



           18                        MR. ARAMBURU:  So let me just



           19     understand the process here.  You -- you made an oral



           20     ruling on our motion to compel.  Are you going



           21     to re- -- are you going to enter an independent written



           22     ruling on that, or are we just going to rely on your



           23     oral comments?



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  I am not planning to



           25     issue a further written ruling, but I will circulate in





                                                                       398

�







            1     advance a separate piece of the transcript that



            2     memorializes it.  Just given the time constraints on



            3     everything else, Mr. Aramburu, I just -- I don't want



            4     to keep the parties waiting for those written products.



            5     The ruling has been made, and I think from there, it



            6     will speak for itself.



            7                        MR. ARAMBURU:  So the date of your



            8     ruling is today, then?  Would that be correct?



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  It must be, yes.



           10                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Okay.  Thank you.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



           12     Mr. McMahan, any other housekeeping items that the



           13     applicant had for me today?  Perhaps you've heard from



           14     Ms. Perlmutter over the course of the morning.



           15                        MR. McMAHAN:  I will let



           16     Ms. Stavitsky talk about her communication with



           17     Ms. Perlmutter.



           18                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Yeah, nothing more



           19     for Scout, Your Honor, except just I can provide an



           20     update.  We heard back from Ms. Perlmutter, who says



           21     she's feeling slightly better but still out of



           22     commission.  So we'll keep checking in and update



           23     you-all.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.



           25          Mr. Harper, any other updates from the County or
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            1     housekeeping measures for today?



            2                        MR. HARPER:  No.  Thank you, Judge.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



            4     Ms. Reyneveld?



            5                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I don't have



            6     anything except for, if we wanted to try to move up the



            7     wildlife testimony, then Your Honor's direction is for



            8     us to coordinate that and come to you with a proposal.



            9                        JUDGE TOREM:  Maybe not you



           10     individually, but the parties together collaboratively.



           11                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Okay.  Thank you.



           12                        JUDGE TOREM:  Do you have any status



           13     updates, if appropriate, on your proposed settlement



           14     agreement that you referenced, I think, last Thursday



           15     in the fifth prehearing conference regarding the



           16     eastern solar array wildlife impacts, and there was



           17     some reference to the memorandum Page 2?  I don't



           18     remember if we're calling it the Kobus memo or the Moon



           19     memo.  Any updates on that?



           20                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I do not have any



           21     updates.  And there will not be any updates until the



           22     conclusion of the adjudicative process from the



           23     attorney general's perspective.



           24                        JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That helps.



           25     Because I was wondering if I needed to mention to the
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            1     Council members they might see that during the course



            2     of the adjudication.  Because it won't be signed before



            3     the end of the adjudication, it's probably best not to



            4     give them any anticipation that there is something



            5     coming in.  I don't want any negative connotation or



            6     positive connotation to be implied because of the



            7     ongoing negotiations there.



            8          Would you agree, Ms. Reyneveld?



            9                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yes, I think that



           10     makes sense.  Thanks, Your Honor.



           11                        JUDGE TOREM:  Over the course of my



           12     career, I've learned that settlements in principle are



           13     not always settlements in writing.  So we'll leave it



           14     at that.



           15                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah, and I would



           16     say that it's not even a settlement in principle.



           17     It's -- we've had discussions around the potential for



           18     settlement.



           19                        JUDGE TOREM:  Excellent.  That helps



           20     clarify it even further.  Okay.



           21                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Your Honor.



           22                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yes.  Ms. Voelckers, I



           23     was about to come to you.



           24                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Oh.  Well, just



           25     before we move on from this topic, if Ms. Reyneveld was
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            1     able to, we would appreciate clarity on when those



            2     discussions ceased.



            3                        MS. REYNEVELD:  I think we had the



            4     discussions in the spring, and that's -- I think --



            5     correct me if I'm wrong, Mr. McMahan, but I don't think



            6     there were further -- further discussions specifically



            7     on this that were substantive after that.



            8                        MR. McMAHAN:  Yes, Ms. Reyneveld, I



            9     think that's correct.  And I -- if I remember right --



           10     stand to be corrected -- there was a date on the



           11     document after we essentially completed those tentative



           12     discussions.  And as far as I can recall -- and, Sarah,



           13     correct me if you think I'm wrong -- I think that was



           14     it from the -- from the date of the last version that



           15     we circulated.



           16                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That's my



           17     recollection.  Thanks, Mr. McMahan.



           18                        MS. VOELCKERS:  So is it fair to



           19     say, then, that there weren't further discussions about



           20     the proposal after the date of the one that Mr. McMahan



           21     e-mailed to the parties last Friday?



           22                        MR. McMAHAN:  Well, I didn't want to



           23     speak for Sarah, or for Ms. Randolph -- excuse me --



           24     but I believe that's correct.



           25                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Yeah, I don't -- I
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            1     think we might have checked in on the status of it, but



            2     there was no substantive discussions after that, is my



            3     recollection after that date, so...



            4                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Thank you.  We



            5     appreciate the clarification.



            6                        JUDGE TOREM:  Ms. Voelckers, did you



            7     have any other items for the housekeeping?



            8                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Just a request to



            9     the parties, Your Honor, that -- that we do engage in



           10     that conversation around who might be taking



           11     Mr. Shook's spot on Tuesday before tomorrow morning's



           12     check-in with you.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  Yeah, I think we will



           14     hear from you guys in the morning.  I won't participate



           15     in those conversations, but hopefully the parties will



           16     make time today.



           17          I just see that Ms. Masengale's posted an updated



           18     exhibit list.  I have one question about an exhibit



           19     yesterday.  Ms. Masengale, maybe you can clarify it



           20     best.



           21          I'm looking for Exhibit 1040_R.  I think that was



           22     from Ms. McClain.  And I don't know if we expressly



           23     asked her to adopt that testimony.  My notes didn't



           24     catch up to that.  Did yours?



           25                        MS. MASENGALE:  Judge Torem, I'm
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            1     just reopening that document, and I will be back with



            2     you shortly.



            3                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  While



            4     you're doing that, the four items.  And, Mr. Aramburu,



            5     you might keep along with me here to make sure I've got



            6     them.



            7          There's your motion to reconsider the



            8     witnesses' -- the testimony that were stricken:



            9     Krupin, Sharp, Dunn, and Simon.  That's one item I know



           10     you're waiting for.



           11          Related to that is the applicant's motion to



           12     strike certain rebuttal response testimony of, I think,



           13     those same witnesses.  There may be more.



           14          And, Ms. Reyneveld, there's your motion, which I



           15     think will be the easiest for me, on your proposed



           16     supplemental testimony.



           17          And, finally, there's Mr. McMahan and the



           18     applicant's motion to supplement the record with



           19     Mr. Kobus's testimony.



           20          Mr. Aramburu, were there any other items that



           21     you're still waiting for that I didn't list?



           22                        MR. ARAMBURU:  Those sound like the



           23     ones that are on the list that have not yet been



           24     decided.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Thank you.
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            1     I'm just making sure I'm not overlooked something.



            2     Sometimes the e-mails have been voluminous, or I think



            3     I've used the word "onslaught" before.



            4          Mr. McMahan, anything on the list that I didn't



            5     call out that needs to be?



            6                        MR. McMAHAN:  No, Your Honor.  Thank



            7     you.



            8                        JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Harper?



            9                        MR. HARPER:  No.  Thank you.



           10                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.



           11     Ms. Reyneveld?



           12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  That summary



           13     reflects my understanding of the pending motions.



           14     Thank you.



           15                        JUDGE TOREM:  And Ms. Voelckers?



           16                        MS. VOELCKERS:  Nothing further.



           17     Thank you, Your Honor.



           18                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  That's my



           19     homework for this afternoon.



           20          Ms. Masengale, what did you find out about



           21     Exhibit 1040, Sub R?



           22                        MS. MASENGALE:  Judge Torem, I had



           23     marked that as admitted, but if that's an error, I can



           24     delete that.



           25                        JUDGE TOREM:  No.  I'll just ask
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            1     applicant's counsel:  Was that, to your recollection,



            2     also adopted by the witness yesterday?



            3                        MS. STAVITSKY:  Your Honor, I'm



            4     sorry.  The sound broke out.



            5          Did -- Ms. Masengale, did you say 1040 was or was



            6     not adopted?



            7                        MS. MASENGALE:  I marked it as being



            8     admitted.  However, that may have been an error on my



            9     part.



           10                        MS. STAVITSKY:  No, it was -- that



           11     was what I had in my notes as well, and it should be



           12     admitted.  So that's correct and accurate.  Thank you.



           13                        JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Again,



           14     it's probably my note-taking as I was multitasking.



           15          Does any other party have a question and concern



           16     whether we can just on the record today confirm 1040_R



           17     from Ms. McClain was adopted?



           18          All right.  Hearing no objections, then.  If it



           19     wasn't yesterday, it is today.



           20          Thank you, Ms. Masengale.  Your notes, I expect,



           21     are better than mine on some of these as we work



           22     through it.



           23          All right.  Tomorrow morning at 8:30, then, is



           24     when we'll convene our housekeeping session, and we'll



           25     go on with Mr. Morgan Cooke's [sic] testimony and
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            1     whatever else you agree might be fit in before we break



            2     for the afternoon Council meeting.



            3          After our session tomorrow morning and before the



            4     Council meeting, we'll talk again and confirm as best



            5     we can the week of August 21st to 25th and what we can



            6     do going forward.



            7          And I'd ask Mr. McMahan and Ms. Stavitsky to keep



            8     us apprised, even though we're not going to conduct



            9     sessions on Thursday, Friday, or over the weekend, on



           10     any developments with Ms. Perlmutter's health.



           11     Hopefully it takes a turn for the better and we'll have



           12     her with all vim and vigor ready to go next week.



           13          So with that, thank you very much for your time.



           14     At 11:36, we're adjourned for the day, and we'll pick



           15     up tomorrow.



           16                               (Proceedings adjourned at



           17                                11:36 a.m.)



           18



           19



           20
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             5      presence and were adjourned on August 15, 2023, and

                    thereafter were transcribed under my direction; that the

             6      transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

                    said proceedings and was transcribed to the best of my

             7      ability;



             8           That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

                    of any party to this action or relative or employee of any

             9      such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

                    interested in the said action or the outcome thereof;

            10

                         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

            11      this 11th day of September, 2023.
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            15                                _________________________________

                                              John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR

            16                                Certified Court Reporter No. 2976

                                              (Certification expires 5/26/2024.)
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